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Corporate Profile
A leading global marine & offshore engineering group with over 50 years of proven 
track record

Headquartered in Singapore with a global headcount of close to 13,315 employees 
and worldwide operations spanning the key hubs of Brazil, India and United Kingdom 
with strategic presence in Indonesia, China and the United States of America

Singapore operations comprising six yards – Jurong Shipyard, Sembawang Shipyard, 
SMOE, PPL Shipyard, Jurong SML and Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas, Singapore’s 
largest integrated yard that commenced Phase I operations in August 2013

Comprehensive portfolio encompassing the full spectrum of integrated solutions 
from ship repair, shipbuilding, ship conversion, rig repair and rig building to offshore 
engineering and construction

Strong track record for quality and timely delivery as well as the ability to handle 
complex turnkey projects and repairs while meeting high standards for health, safety, 
security and environment

Well-established long-term alliances with international ship operators that provide a 
stable and growing base-load in repair and upgrade

Development and ownership of proprietary designs catering to rigs, drillships, floaters 
and vessels

Continuous research and development as well as process improvements to further raise 
operational efficiency and productivity for greater competitiveness
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$5.8 
billion

20%

$707 
million

13cts

$560 
million

$331 
million

$6.3 
billion

$1.42
Turnover Net Asset  

Value per Share

Total Dividend  
per Share

Operating Profit Net Profit

Economic  
Value Added

Return on  
Equity

Market  
Capitalisation  
as at 6 March 2015

Highlights
Celebrated first full year of operations of Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas with 262 vessels 
repaired and upgraded, including the upgrade and refitting of the Voyager of the Seas cruise 
ship in November 2014 

Net orderbook of contracts secured came to $11.43 billion, with completions and deliveries 
extending till 2019

Secured new contracts worth approximately $4.2 billion in 2014

Estaleiro Jurong Aracruz, Sembcorp Marine’s new integrated shipyard in Brazil commenced 
initial operations in 2H 2014, with scheduled completion by end 2015

Commenced construction of Phase II of Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas with completion of 
steel fabrication facility targeted for 3Q 2015 and marine works for three new drydocks by 2017

Acquisition of SSP Offshore, renamed Sembmarine SSP, and its proprietary Satellite Services 
Platform (SSP) Floater technology and suite of next-generation circular hull floater solutions

Strategic investment of a 12% stake in GraviFloat which enables the Group’s expansion 
into modularised LNG and LPG terminals construction using the patent-pending GraviFloat 
technology

2014 Scorecard

Vision and Mission
Sembcorp Marine aims to be the world leader in ship repair, shipbuilding, ship conversion, rig 

building and offshore engineering & construction, providing innovative solutions that exceed its 

customers’ expectations. While anchoring itself for sustainable growth, the Group continues to 

commit itself to fulfilling the changing needs and aspirations of its employees.
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For the year ($’000) 2014 2013
% 

Change

Group Income Statement

Turnover  5,832,595  5,525,882 6 

Profit

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and  
amortisation (EBITDA)

 822,158  744,864 10 

Operating profit  707,025  644,257 10 

Profit before tax  707,004  660,537 7 

Net profit  560,128  555,747 1 

Group Balance Sheet

Total assets  8,238,420  7,250,100 14 

Total liabilities  5,106,393  4,440,588 15 

Net tangible assets  2,912,504  2,646,695 10 

Equity attributable to owners of the Company  2,965,118  2,677,036 11 

Non-controlling interests  166,909  132,476 26 

Total equity  3,132,027  2,809,512 11 

Cash and cash equivalents  1,078,776  1,694,901 (36)

Interest-bearing borrowings  (1,741,367)  (766,111) 127 

Net (debt)/cash  (662,591)  928,790 n.m.

Economic Value Added (EVA)

Net operating profit after tax (NOPAT) 632,092 644,326 (2)

Capital charge 300,813 238,675 26 

EVA 331,279 405,651 (18)

EVA attributable to owners of the Company 301,430 381,804 (21)

Financial Ratios

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic (cents) 26.83 26.61 1 

Diluted (cents) 26.82 26.59 1 

Dividend per share

One-tier tax-exempt (cents) 13.00 13.00 – 

Net asset value per share (cents) 141.92 128.21 11 

Net tangible asset per share (cents) 139.40 126.76 10 

Return on turnover (%) 9.60 10.06 (5)

Return on total assets (%) 8.00 9.15 (13)

Return on equity (%) 19.86 21.73 (9)

Group Financial Highlights

n.m.: not meaningful
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Basic Earnings PEr sHarE (cEnts) total DiviDEnD PEr sHarE (cEnts)

2014 26.83 2014 13.00

2013 26.61 2013 13.00

rEturn on Equity (%)

2014 19.86

2013 21.73

nEt Profit ($’M) EconoMic valuE aDDED ($’M)

2014 560 2014 331

2013 556 2013 406

oPErating Profit ($’M)

2014 707

2013 644

turnovEr ($’M)

2014 5,833

2013 5,526

Equity attriButaBlE to ownErs of tHE coMPany ($’M)

2014 2,965

2013 2,677
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Letter to Shareholders
The year in review was a busy one as the 

Group focused on increasing efficiencies, 

productivity enhancements and delivering 

projects safely and on time.

“
”
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Dear Shareholders 
The year 2014 proved to be a volatile and challenging one for the global markets, particularly for the oil and gas 
related industries. Against a backdrop of sharply lower oil prices and cutbacks in capital expenditure by major oil 
and gas companies, Sembcorp Marine delivered a net profit of $560 million from $556 million a year ago, as the 
Group focused on increasing efficiencies, productivity enhancements and delivering projects safely and on time.

The Group achieved a turnover of $5.8 billion in 2014, with operating profit and pre-tax profit at $707 million.  
Earnings per share (EPS) was 26.83 cents with return on equity (ROE) at 20% and economic value added (EVA)  
at $331 million.

While we constantly strive to reward our shareholders with a sustainable and consistent dividend, we remain 
mindful of the need to grow and position our company for long term sustainable growth. For the year under 
review, despite our relatively high capital expenditure to enhance our competitiveness with the commencement 
of the Phase II development of our Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas facility in Singapore and our new facility 
in Brazil, the Board of Directors is pleased to propose a final one-tier tax-exempt cash dividend of 8 cents per 
share for 2014.

Including the interim one-tier tax-exempt cash dividend of 5 cents per share paid on 31 August 2014, the total 
dividend for 2014 will be 13 cents per share, which translates to a payout ratio of 48 per cent. The proposed final 
dividend, if approved at the Annual General Meeting, will be paid on 14 May 2015.

To fund Phase II of Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas, our subsidiary Jurong Shipyard successfully priced and 
issued a dual tranche of $600 million bonds comprising $275 million seven-year 2.95% bonds and $325 million  
15-year 3.85% bonds. 

Review of Business Operations
The year in review was a busy one as the Group focused on execution of projects secured in earlier years. For the 
year, project deliveries included eight jack-up rigs, one FSO conversion, one major semi-submersible upgrading, 
three platform related projects and one newbuild research vessel.

As at February 2015, the Group had a net order book of $11.4 billion, with completion and deliveries stretching to 
2019. This includes $4.2 billion in new orders secured in 2014, excluding ship repair contracts.

Group turnover in 2014 was $5.8 billion, 6% higher as compared with $5.5 billion in 2013. This was mainly 
attributable to more projects from the ship conversion & offshore and rig building sectors achieving progressive 
revenue recognition.

Rig building remained the largest contributor, and accounted for 65% or $3.78 billion in total turnover in 2014 
followed by ship conversion & offshore sector at 23% or $1.35 billion, ship repair at 11% or $622 million and others 
at 1% or $79 million.    

Among the eight jack-up rigs delivered during the year were the West Linus, a Gusto MSC CJ70-X150A jack-up rig 
for Seadrill, while the Noble Houston Colbert, Noble Sam Turner, Noble Tom Prosser and Noble Sam Hartley were 
of the Friede & Goldman (F&G) JU3000N design customised to our client’s requirements, and three were of our 
proprietary Pacific Class 400 high specification jack-up design.  

The West Linus is designed and built to operate in water depths of up to 150 metres and drilling depths of up 
to 12,900 metres. Following its successful delivery, the rig is now employed at the Ekofisk Field located on the 
Norwegian Continental Shelf on a five-year charter with ConocoPhillips. West Linus is the twelfth in a series of high 
specification rigs in Seadrill’s fleet that was built by Jurong Shipyard.
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West Linus, a Gusto MSC CJ70-X150A design jack-up rig built for Seadrill’s subsidiary, 
North Atlantic Drilling.

Perisai Pacific 101, a Pacific Class 400 design jack-up rig constructed for  
Perisai Petroleum Teknologi.

Decus, the second proprietary Pacific Class 400 design jack-up rig constructed for 
Oro Negro.

Noble Tom Prosser, the fifth Friede & Goldman JU3000N jack-up rig built for  
Noble Corporation.
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Jurong Shipyard also marked the completion and 
delivery of four high specification F&G JU3000N rigs to 
Noble Corporation. The F&G JU3000N harsh environment 
jack-up rig is a result of combined development efforts of 
Jurong Shipyard, Noble and Friede & Goldman to create 
an enlarged hull, offering more operational benefits 
including ergonomic and efficient accommodation 
layout, increased deck space and equipment placing. 
The rigs can operate in water depths of 400 feet and 
reach drilling depths of 35,000 feet. Three of these  rigs 
are currently operating in Argentina, Denmark and 
Australia respectively.

Transformation for Long-term 
Sustainable Growth
In line with our transformational strategy, the Group 
stepped up and broadened its product offerings through 
the ongoing development of its own proprietary designs 
as well as new product types to best suit the evolving 
requirements of our global customer base. 

New Contract Milestones
In February 2014, we achieved a key breakthrough in 
the drillship market to design and build two drillships 
based on our proprietary Jurong Espadon design for 
Transocean Inc for US$1.08 billion. 

This represents the next generation of high specification 
drillships with advanced capabilities for operational 
efficiency and ultra-deepwater development drilling 
operations. The drillships will be built at our new Tuas yard.  

In May 2014, Jurong Shipyard secured a US$236 million 
contract to build a tailor-made F&G JU2000E jack-up for 
Hercules Offshore with the drilling rig already chartered 
out to Maersk Oil North Sea UK for a five-year charter.

Notwithstanding the intense competition in the jack-up 
rig newbuilding market, the Group’s dedicated jack-up 
facility PPL Shipyard secured contracts to build two units 
of our proprietary designed Pacific Class 400 jack-up rigs 
which takes total orders secured for the PC400 design to 
an impressive eighteen units.

Liquified natural gas (LNG) carriers undergoing repairs and overhaul.
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Ship Repair and Conversion
Sembawang Shipyard secured a long term Favoured 
Customer Contract (FCC) from GasLog LNG Services 
Ltd in June 2014, whereby it will provide ship repair, 
refurbishment, upgrading and related marine services for 
its managed fleet of 20 LNG carriers with an anticipated 
refit of three to five vessels each year.

In fact, Sembawang Shipyard emerged as the world’s 
leading LNG carriers’ repair yard in 2014 according to 
SORJ (Ship & Offshore Repair Journal), with a total of 
32 LNG carriers repaired or upgraded. This is the third 
consecutive year that the shipyard was recognised as 
world No.1 in LNG repairs, refits and life extension works. 

In July, Sembawang Shipyard secured $600 million 
contracts from Saipem to convert two VLCCs (very large 
crude carriers) into FPSOs, with the vessels targeted for 
the Kaombo Project offshore Angola. The two FPSO units, 
owned by Total, will each have an oil treating capacity 
of 115,000 barrels per day, a water injection capacity of 
200,000 barrels per day, a 100 million standard cubic feet 
per day (MMscf/day) gas compression capacity and a 
storage capacity of 1.7 million barrels of oil.

In October 2014, Jurong Shipyard secured a US$696 
million turnkey contract to convert a shuttle tanker 

into a well-test, floating production storage and 
offloading (FPSO) vessel. The contract was awarded 
by OOGTK, a joint venture between Odebrecht and 
Teekay Offshore for the Libra pre-salt field in the Santos 
Basin. SMOE secured a US$190 million LNG processing 
modules project with Bechtel for the Chevron-operated 
Wheatstone project in Western Australia.

Developments at New Yards
Phase I of our new Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas 
facility in Singapore also reached important project 
milestones with the repair of 262 vessels in its first full year 
of operation. This includes the extensive revitalisation 
work on the Voyager of the Seas, a 137,276-gross-tonne 
mega cruise ship from Royal Caribbean Cruises Ltd, 
which is the largest cruise ship home porting in the whole 
of Asia.

During the year, we commenced initial operations at 
our wholly-owned shipyard Estaleiro Jurong Aracruz 
in Brazil as the yard opened its doors to receive its first 
drillship, the Arpoador. Located close to the rich pre-salt 
Santos Basin and the Espirito Santo Basin, Estaleiro Jurong 
Aracruz (EJA) occupies an 82.5 hectare site with 1.6 
kilometres of coastline.  

Letter to Shareholders

Voyager of the Seas  — a 137,276-gross-tonne passengership from Royal Caribbean International — docked in the Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas for extensive revitalisation works.
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With an extensive 2.6 kilometres in breakwaters to the 
South, East and North, over 1 kilometre of quayside and 
an extensive finger pier, plus a water depth range from 
9 metres to 15 metres, the Brazil yard will provide safe 
harbour for the drillships to be built at the yard.  
The yard will also be equipped with covered workshops, 
state-of-the-art steel fabrication facilities, as well as a 
new 3,600-tonne heavy lift floating crane. 

We expect the integrated shipyard facility to enhance 
the Group’s ability to secure more project opportunities 
in Brazil’s oil and gas exploration and production 
sector. When fully completed in 2015, the yard will be 
equipped to undertake the construction of drillships, 
semi-submersible and jack-up rigs, platforms, supply 
vessels and the conversion and integration of FPSOs and 
topside modules fabrication, in addition to rig repairs, 
ship repairs and modification and upgrade works.

The first Sete Brasil drillship Arpoador and the new 3,600-tonne giant floating crane 
at EJA.

Completion of EJA’s South Finger Pier, South Quay and South Quay Extension, which provide 1 kilometre of continuous berthage.
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Construction of Phase II at 
Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ 
Tuas
To enhance our competitive edge and to prepare 
for the eventual consolidation of our various 
Singapore facilities in the Tuas location, the Group also 
commenced Phase II construction of the Sembmarine 
Integrated Yard @ Tuas on a 34.5 hectare site adjoining 
Phase I. 

Given still robust demand for its four VLCC drydocks in 
Phase I, the Group is building another three drydocks 
on the Phase II site, of which two will be 150,000 dwt 
capacity (dimensions of 255 metres by 52 metres), 
while the third will be a dedicated offshore drydock 
(dimensions 255 metres by 110 metres) for offshore  
rig building, upgrades and repairs.

When Phase II is completed, we will have seven drydocks 
in operation including the four VLCC docks in Phase I. 
This will give the yard greater flexibility and help us ensure 
optimum work flow and efficiencies.

Along with the marine works in Phase II, the Group will 
invest in a multi-functional steel fabrication facility which 
will significantly enhance automation and productivity 
of its offshore rig building, conversion and production 
and ship repair businesses. The new steel fabrication 
facility will offer a streamlined, seamless and extensively 
automated production process from steel stock yard to 
final assembly and finishing shop. 

With the new facilities in Phase II, the Group will be 
well placed to benefit from the anticipated growth in 
demand for modern docking capacity and to deliver 
value-added and cost competitive solutions to better 
meet the needs of our growing list of global customers 
and alliance partners. 

The three new docks in Phase II will allow the Group to 
service a broader spectrum of vessels ranging from  
mid-sized to Suezmax commercial ships, as well as to 
build offshore exploration and production units, including 
jack-up & semi-submersible drilling rigs, drillships and 
production vessels, for its expanding list of reputable and 
established shipping and offshore customers.

Phase II

Artist’s impression of the Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas Phase II development.
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Phase I

Acquisition of New Technologies
As part of the drive to advance our capabilities in global 
markets, the Group continued to invest in innovative 
solutions in new market segments.

We acquired a 12% stake in Norway-based GraviFloat 
which designs and develops re-deployable, modularised 
LNG and LPG terminals. These can be built at a shipyard 
and installed in shallow waters, offering a more cost-
competitive solution compared with floating storage 
and regasification units and land terminals.   

In addition, we purchased Houston-based SSP Offshore’s 
business assets for US$21 million, including its flagship 
SSP Floater technology and its entire portfolio of next-
generation proprietary SSP® solutions. With a wide range 
of applications for the upstream oil and gas industry, 
this technology allows customisation for region-specific 
operating requirements, such as harsh environments 
and arctic conditions, and offers cost savings and 
greater fabrication flexibility. These acquisitions will 
provide Sembcorp Marine with a new suite of innovative 
solutions to cater to customers in the offshore exploration 
and production, accommodation and logistics support 
segments.

Strategic expansion with new technologies.
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Sustainability Matters
The Group remains committed to being a socially 
responsible company and will further develop our 
business in a sustainable manner by balancing 
economic, environmental and social objectives. 

To further ongoing efforts to refine management’s 
approach as we adapt to changes in the business as 
well as corporate and social responsibility landscape, 
the Group has set up a Sustainability Steering Committee 
to guide and map out sustainability strategies and 
key performance measures. The steering committee 
will initiate, drive and monitor various aspects of the 
Group’s sustainability practices, ensuring that these are 
integrated into our business operations and complement 
our corporate objectives. 

The key to Sembcorp Marine’s long-term sustainability 
lies in our business model. We are committed to be a 
responsible business through improving shareholder 
value for our customers, suppliers, partners and 
communities; protecting the health and safety of our 

employees and contractor partners; limiting our impact 
on the environment; using resources more efficiently as 
well as investing in communities where we operate.

In the process of expanding our global footprint, we 
continue to recruit, train and retain the best people 
in the industry to boost Sembcorp Marine’s success.  
To equip our people with the skills to stay ahead, we 
provide regular training and skills upgrading programmes 
to help them work more effectively and reach their best 
potential. 

The Group also reached out to many segments of the 
community through various initiatives, including our 
annual SchoolBAG and Green Wave programmes. In 
2014, our philanthropic and community care initiatives 
channelled close to $3.3 million towards worthy causes.

Our Green Wave programme underlines more than 
12 years of commitment in the Group’s environmental 
outreach efforts. Sembcorp Marine has effectively 
promoted the green cause to more than 12,000 
students through the Green Wave Environmental Care 
Competition since its launch in 2003. 

Letter to Shareholders

Naming ceremony for Noble Tom Prosser.
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This annual nation-wide competition in Singapore 
continues to witness a high-level of participation and 
steadfast support from schools and tertiary institutions, 
with a total of 287 projects received from more than 
1,000 students in 2014. Reflecting Sembcorp Marine’s 
continuous commitment towards environmental 
sustainability, the Green Wave competition aims to 
inspire the younger generation to take ownership 
and proactive action in caring for and protecting the 
environment. 

The SchoolBAG scheme is one of several initiatives under 
Sembcorp Marine’s Corporate Social Responsibility 
Programme and is open to Primary, Secondary school 
as well as Junior College students from financially 
disadvantaged families.

With the strong support of the Ministry of Education 
(MOE) and schools, the broadening of the SchoolBAG 
programme over the last 14 years has seen recipient 
numbers and grant amounts double since the start of 
the scheme to reach 1,298 beneficiaries from 85 schools 
in 2014. 

Our journey towards sustainability will continue, as we 
remain committed to advance our efforts towards 
establishing a sustainable business environment for the 
future generations of employees, customers, suppliers, 
partners and communities.

Wong Weng Sun 
President & CEO

Outlook and Prospects
With the steep decline in oil prices in the second half of 
2014, major oil and gas companies have announced 
reduced capital expenditure and deferred some of their 
planned projects. The Group continues to face tough 
competition in upcoming tenders for new projects in the 
offshore exploration and production sectors.

For the ship repair sector, there is continued demand for 
repair, upgrading and life extension work, in particular 
in the niche segments of LNG carriers, passenger/cruise 
vessels and offshore vessels. Demand for the Group’s 
big docks remains strong as alliance and long-term 
customers continue to provide a stable and steady 
base-load which would help cushion the impact of 
weaker demand in the offshore rig building segment.

With our expanded product capabilities, state-of-the-art 
facilities and sound track record, we are well-positioned 
to benefit when the market recovers. Our performance 
in 2015 will be supported by our order book.

Appreciation
On behalf of the Board, we would like to record our 
appreciation to Mr Goh Geok Ling for his years of wise 
counsel and leadership during his tenure as Chairman of 
the company. 

We would also like to express our heartfelt appreciation 
to the Board of Directors for their stewardship and wise 
counsel as well as our dedicated management team, 
employees, unions and sub-contractor partners for their 
tireless efforts, loyalty and contributions in the past year.

Finally, we would like to express our sincere thanks to all 
our valued shareholders for their unwavering support, 
sustained interest and confidence in Sembcorp Marine. 
As we move forward with our transformation plans, we 
look forward to your continued support. 

The Green Wave Environmental Care Competition has over the past 12 years 
witnessed a maturing of ideas and projects among the student participants.

Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican 
Chairman

6 March 2015



14

•	 Customer	Satisfaction
•	 Integrity
•	 Innovativeness
•	 Quality
•	 Health,	Safety,	Security	And
	 Environmental	Preservation
•	 Teamwork
•	 People-Centredness
•	 Community	Responsibility

Core 
Values
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• ISO 9001 Quality Management 
Systems

Since 1995

• OHSAS 18001 Occupational 
Health and Safety

Since 2002

• bizSAFE Partner Since 2007
• bizSAFE Star Since 2011
• International Ship and Port  

Facility Security Code 
Since 2003

• Achilles JQS Certificate of Quality Since 2012
• Singapore Quality Class  

Certification (SQC) 
Since 2000

• Singapore Innovation Class 
Certificate 

Since 2003

• People Developer Standard Since 1999

• ISO 9001 Quality Management 
Systems

Since 1996

• OHSAS 18001 Occupational 
Health and Safety

Since 2005

• International Sustainability Rating 
System (ISRS)

Since 1994

• International Quality Rating 
System (IQRS)

Since 2000

• ISO 14001 Environment 
Management Systems

Since 2002

• bizSAFE Partner Since 2008
• bizSAFE Star Since 2011
• International Ship and Port 

Facility Security Code 
Since 2004

• Singapore Quality Class 
Certification (SQC) 

Since 1996

• ISO 9001 Quality Management 
Systems

Since 1995

• OHSAS 18001 Occupational 
Health and Safety

Since 2007

• bizSAFE Partner Since 2009
• bizSAFE Star Since 2011
• International Ship and Port 

Facility Security Code 
Since 2003

• ISO 22301 Societal Security – 
Business Continuity Management 
Systems

Since 2013

• ISO 9001 Quality Management 
Systems

Since 2004

• OHSAS 18001 Occupational 
Health and Safety

Since 2002

• bizSAFE Partner Since 2009
• bizSAFE Star Since 2011
• International Ship and Port  

Facility Security Code 
Since 2004

• ISO 9001 Quality Management 
Systems

Since 2014

• OHSAS 18001 Occupational 
Health and Safety

Since 2014

• International Ship and Port 
Facility Security Code 

Since 2013

Management Systems

68 hectares, west of Singapore

21 hectares, west of Singapore

86 hectares, north of Singapore

12 hectares, west of Singapore

25 hectares*, north of Singapore

73.3* hectares, west of Singapore

• ISO 9001 Quality Management 
Systems

Since 1988

• OHSAS 18001 Occupational 
Health and Safety

Since 2001

• ISO 14001 Environment  
Management Systems

Since 2004

• bizSAFE Partner Since 2008
• bizSAFE Star Since 2011
• Achilles JQS Certificate of Quality Since 2010
• ISO 3834-2 Provision of Welding 

for Offshore and Onshore, Fixed 
and Floating Metallic Structures

Since 2014

Jurong Shipyard Sembawang Shipyard SMOE

PPL Shipyard Jurong SML Sembmarine Integrated  
Yard @ Tuas

* Phase I commenced operations in August 2013

* SMOE is located on the same plot of land as Sembawang Shipyard
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Approach to Sustainability
Committed to responsible operations and value creation 
for stakeholders and society, Sembcorp Marine integrates 
economic, social and environmental sustainability into its 
growth strategy of achieving business excellence and building 
capabilities for long-term competitiveness.

Sustainability Management
Sembcorp Marine’s sustainability approach is anchored by its vision and core values 
which guide the Group’s management of economic, social and environmental 
impacts in its business conduct and engagement with stakeholders. 

In managing sustainability, Sembcorp Marine utilises a precautionary approach and 
an effective framework to integrate sustainability throughout its business operations.

In early 2015, the Group formed the Sustainability Committee to further augment 
Sembcorp Marine’s commitment to shareholders in respect of sustainable growth and 
responsible management policies and practices. 

The Sembcorp Marine Sustainability Committee is chaired 
by Sembcorp Marine’s Deputy President Mr Ong Poh Kwee 

and steered by senior executives from the key business 
units and various functions within the Group. The committee 

is supported by a sustainability work group comprising 
nominated members from business units across Sembcorp 

Marine’s various functions which include finance, human 
resource, legal, risk management, information technology and 

innovation, and health, safety, security and environment.

Materiality & Stakeholder Engagement
In line with Sembcorp Marine’s commitment made in 2013 to develop 

the Group’s materiality process, internal and external feedback were 
gathered through stakeholder engagement survey and a materiality 

review facilitated by independent sustainability consultant Paia Consulting 
to ascertain important issues for coverage in the sustainability report. 

Analysing the results of the stakeholder engagement survey conducted in 
2014 helped develop an understanding of the key issues of concern 
and confirmed the priorities for coverage. Feedback provided through 

the survey included enhancing communication and engagement with 
stakeholders such as suppliers and employees, investment in productivity 

improvements and strengthening risk management capabilities. 

The external feedback received was used during the materiality review in 2014. 
As part of this process, Sembcorp Marine’s list of material issues was streamlined and 
updated, building upon the results of an earlier cross-functional workshop in 2012, 
where 23 material issues were identified based on the AA1000 five-part materiality test 

and Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) guidelines.

Community

Economic
Corporate 

Governance

Environment Health & Safety

People
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During the latest materiality review process, several 
criteria were used to assess the relevance and 
importance of an issue from Sembcorp Marine’s internal 
perspective. The criteria were informed by the enterprise 
risk management process, and were broken down 
into strategic, operational, compliance and financial 
categories. Questions were posed to facilitate judgment, 
for example, of whether an issue presents significant and 
ongoing impact on operational metrics or efficiencies, or 
whether, for example, an issue has the potential to result 
in significant liability or fines. 

Similar questions were then used based on external 
perspectives mainly generated, although not exclusively, 
from the 2014 engagement exercise. Criteria that guide 
this questioning helped gauge current and potential 
impact on society and the environment, or whether the 
issue has the potential to significantly impact shareholder 
perception. 

Factoring in expert judgments by the sustainability 
consultant, a semi-quantitative process was used to 
assign a score to each issue to reflect the level of 
material importance with due regard for where the 
impacts occur as well as determine the list of material 
issues on which to report. The list of key material issues 
was validated through internal discussions with senior 
management teams at Sembcorp Marine.

Sembcorp Marine believes that it is important to identify 
where the organisation is accountable, even if there 
may be factors not directly or within immediate control. 
The Group is developing an assessment of material 
impacts in its business and this report encompasses 
localised impacts in the Singapore operations and its 
supply chain. 

While every material issue affects stakeholder groups 
within the organisation and externally, the impacts vary 
between operations and up the supply chain. Sembcorp 
Marine’s material issues and impacts are detailed in 
pages 18 to 21.

More information on how and where operations impact 
external stakeholders in context of the value-supply 
chain can be found on pages 97 to 99.

Stakeholders
Sembcorp Marine leverages a diverse range of 
platforms to engage different stakeholder groups. The 
key stakeholder groups identified in line with the AA1000 
Stakeholder Engagement Standard include: customers, 
employees, governments and regulators, the financial 
community, media, contractors, suppliers and members 
of local communities.  

The feedback gathered from stakeholders through 
the Group’s ongoing engagement initiatives enable 
Sembcorp Marine to identify areas for improvement 
and take steps to address stakeholder expectations and 
concerns. 

More information on Sembcorp Marine’s stakeholders 
and engagement platforms can be found on page 22.

Scope of Sustainability Report
This 2014 annual report and ‘Sustainability’ section is 
prepared by Sembcorp Marine in accordance with the 
GRI G4 Core requirements. It incorporates the Group’s 
approach to sustainability and its policy, management 
structure and operational performances. The annual 
report is made available online at www.sembmarine.com 
and fewer copies of the report have been printed to 
minimise the impact on the environment. This is the 
fourth sustainability report to be published by Sembcorp 
Marine. All data and information reported relate to  
the Group’s Singapore operations from 1 January to  
31 December 2014, unless otherwise stated. There were 
no significant changes in the scope from previous 
reporting periods.

The scope of the ‘Sustainability’ section is limited to 
Sembcorp Marine’s Singapore assets, including its 
headquarters and six Singapore yards: Jurong Shipyard, 
Sembawang Shipyard, SMOE, PPL Shipyard, Jurong SML 
and the Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas, which 
commenced operations in August 2013. 

All material issues and stakeholder groups are reported 
within a Singapore context unless otherwise stated. 
A large majority of Sembcorp Marine’s external 
stakeholder groups covered in this report are primarily 
based in Singapore. Some groups like media, fund 
managers, specialist suppliers, as well as international 
classification and regulatory bodies are not limited by 
local boundaries. The Group has a predominantly global 
customer base which is further detailed on page 244.

Recognising that assets outside Singapore may have 
exposure to additional sustainability issues and impacts 
over time, the process to define report content will be 
progressively expanded with the tracking of stakeholder 
feedback on overseas operations. Sembcorp Marine’s 
key overseas assets have recently come on stream and 
will be aligned to the Group’s management systems. 
Given this, processes which assess information on 
significant economic, environmental and social impacts 
on a broader scale are being refined. Please refer to 
pages 18 to 21 and 97 to 99 for a description of the 
impacts within and outside Sembcorp Marine.
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Pg 94 to 103 [Resilient & Responsive]

Pg 94 to 103 [Resilient & Responsive]
Pg 62 to 73 [Financial Review]

Pg 94 to 103 [Resilient & Responsive]

Customer satisfaction is a key factor in sustaining Sembcorp Marine’s business success and is reflected as a core 
value of the organisation. Besides having a direct impact on business performance, customers have an important 
influence on the Group’s growth and expansion, product and service offerings as well as business operations.

Approach: Sembcorp Marine employs several platforms to engage, monitor, assess and manage the Group’s client 
portfolio to sustain customer satisfaction and build long-term business partnerships. Client relationships are managed 
autonomously at the Group’s yards to ensure that products, processes and initiatives are aligned to customer 
needs and expectations. Customer satisfaction, retention and growth are monitored by senior management of the 
respective shipyards. Multiple communication channels such as post-project surveys, one-to-one client meetings 
and exhibition participation serve as feedback mechanisms for the Group. Sembcorp Marine’s Singapore yards are 
certified to the ISO 9001 Quality Management System which involves internal and external audits for compliance to 
international standards. 

Material impact: Internal and External (Customers, Suppliers & Contractors, Financial Community)

Economic

Material Issue: Products & Solutions Development

Material Issue: Innovation & Productivity

Material Issue: Customer Satisfaction

Owning a diverse portfolio of products and a versatile range of solutions is vital for Sembcorp Marine to reach out 
to customers across the value chain and expand into new market segments. By being flexible and adaptable, the 
Group will be well-positioned to seize opportunities and respond swiftly to changing market trends.

Approach: Product and solutions development is undertaken by the Group’s Research & Development (R&D) arm 
Sembcorp Marine Technology (SMT) and its other strategic R&D subsidiaries as well as associate R&D companies 
which provide complementary expertise in niche areas. SMT is the primary driver in the development of proprietary 
designs, innovative products and process innovations within Sembcorp Marine, while specialised R&D functions 
are performed by the Group’s subsidiaries which have expertise in the proprietary design of jack-ups and next-
generation floaters. The Group also partners its associate companies in niche R&D areas, such as Ecospec Global 
Technology in environmental solutions and GraviFloat in LNG and LPG terminals construction. These R&D activities 
are independently managed by the respective subsidiaries and associate companies, with support from SMT. 
To ensure alignment to industry requirements, the products and solutions developed are regularly reviewed and 
assessed through market research, customer feedback as well as input from marketing and business development 
departments.

Material impact: Internal and External (Customers, Investors, Regulators, Suppliers)

Continuous innovation is integral in maintaining Sembcorp Marine’s leading edge in the development of value-added 
cost-competitive solutions and faster turnaround time for customers. High standards of productivity and efficiency are 
essential for ensuring competitiveness and sustaining business profitability. 

Approach: Sembcorp Marine has established innovation management systems in all its Singapore yards to promote 
a strong innovation culture among staff and stakeholders in the development of business, product and process 
innovations for faster turnaround, higher productivity, improved quality and enhanced safety. A stringent evaluation 
mechanism is applied throughout the innovation process – from conceptualisation, development and testing through 
to actual implementation – to assess the safety, viability and effectiveness of the innovative inventions and processes. 
Productivity ratios (see pages 70 to 73) which include Economic Value Added (EVA) data are tracked and reviewed 
to gauge the Group’s operational efficiency and business performance.

Material impact: Internal and External (Customers, Investors, Regulators, Suppliers & Contractors)

Approach to Sustainability
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People are the driving force behind Sembcorp Marine’s progress and every employee is a valuable asset to 
the Group. It is vital for the Group to invest in talent outreach and retention, continuous training and upgrading 
as well as employee care and engagement to continually strengthen its human capital and competitive edge 
for sustainable growth.

Approach: Sembcorp Marine has in place a robust human resource strategy that is aligned to its business 
objectives and strategic thrusts. The Group’s strategic thrusts include attracting, developing and retaining 
talents, creating a conducive and safe work environment, supporting organisation transformation and 
development as well as promoting a strong Sembcorp Marine identity among employees. The Group’s yards 
align their people development systems with business excellence frameworks, including ISO 9001 and SPRING 
Singapore Quality Class, Singapore Innovation Class and People Developer standards, which incorporate 
structured review and evaluation mechanisms to ensure continued competitiveness. The management also 
regularly engages employees through dialogue sessions and communication platforms to gather insights and 
feedback for continuous improvement of the HR strategy and initiatives. 

Material impact: Internal and External (Regulators, Customers, Contractors, Community)

People

Pg 104 to 113 [People Development]Material Issue: Human Capital

Corporate Governance

Material Issue: Business Integrity Pg 30 to 47 [Corporate Governance]     
Pg 48 to 52 [Risk Management]

Sembcorp Marine, its subsidiaries and associated companies are committed to acting professionally, fairly 
and with integrity in their business dealings and relationships wherever they operate. All business interactions 
must be lawful and beyond reproach and the Group does not tolerate bribery and corruption in its business 
dealings and operations. 

Approach: Sembcorp Marine has developed policies and procedures to promote business integrity, 
safeguard shareholders’ interests and the Group’s assets. These policies are based on the Group’s core values 
and Code of Conduct. The Group has put in place a fraud risk management policy, anti-bribery and anti-
corruption policies as well as a whistle-blowing policy and procedures, which come under the oversight of 
Board-level Committees. The Group is also subjected to stringent internal and external audit processes to 
ensure the integrity of its business operations.

Sembcorp Marine adopts and reports on its corporate governance practices in compliance with the Code of 
Corporate Governance 2012 issued by the Monetary Authority of Singapore on May 2, 2012.

Material impact: Internal and External (Customers, Financial Community, including Regulators)
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Sembcorp Marine’s business is an integral part of society and the Group is committed to making a positive 
difference as a responsible corporate citizen by contributing to community improvements and creating a 
caring and nurturing organisation. 

Approach: Steered by the Group’s Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Working Committee, the 
community engagement strategy of Sembcorp Marine focuses on the six core areas of ‘community care 
and development’, ‘nation building’, ‘arts promotion’, ‘youth and education’, ‘industry outreach’ and 
‘environmental care’. The Committee regularly monitors and reviews the effectiveness of these initiatives to 
ensure that the Group’s CSR objectives are met.

Material impact: External (Community)

Community

Pg 126 to 131 [Community Engagement]Material Issue: Community Engagement

High standards of workplace safety and health are critical success factors for Sembcorp Marine in winning the 
trust and confidence of its employees, customers and other stakeholders. The Group is committed to providing 
a safe, secure and healthy workplace for employees, contractors, suppliers and stakeholders with the aim 
of preventing accidents, injuries and occupational risks through the effective implementation of the Health, 
Safety, Security, Environment and Quality policy into various aspects of its business. 

Approach: Sembcorp Marine’s health, safety and environment (HSE) management framework ensures 
compliance with national and international legislation and regulations alongside the Group’s occupational 
health and safety management systems. The framework covers all aspects of Sembcorp Marine’s business 
and is applicable to all internal stakeholders and external partners operating in the Group’s yards. HSE 
excellence is championed throughout Sembcorp Marine – from the Board Risk Committee and Enterprise Risk 
Management Committee to the HSE departments and project teams of the Group’s yards. Sembcorp Marine’s 
yards benchmark against international standards of occupational safety and health, such as the OHSAS 18001 
Occupational Health and Safety standard, and undergo stringent audit and review processes to ensure strict 
compliance to HSE standards and best practices.

Material impact: Internal and External (Customers, Regulators, Suppliers, Contractors, all Shipyard Occupiers, 
Community)

Health & Safety

Pg 114 to 119 [Workplace Safety & Health]Material Issue: Occupational Health & Safety
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Pg 120 to 125 [Environmental Focus]

Pg 120 to 125 [Environmental Focus]

Material Issue: Environment Performance

Material Issue: Materials Management

Environment

The strategic management of materials and responsible stewardship of resources are vital for Sembcorp 
Marine’s operational competitiveness and sustainable growth. As part of Sembcorp Marine’s social 
responsibility commitment, resource optimisation and environmental conservation are also key factors in the 
Group’s strategy of managing costs and ensuring production efficiency for long-term profitability.

Approach: Sembcorp Marine yards have in place materials management frameworks to monitor, control 
and reduce waste at the source and to ensure prudent usage of natural resources such as energy and water. 
This is achieved through optimising resource utilisation and managing the impact of materials used on the 
environment and the community. Waste disposal is aligned to strict national regulation and global benchmarks 
to maximise recycling options and ensure high standards of workplace safety and health for stakeholders. 
Regular audits and regulatory checks are conducted to ensure that processes for materials management 
and waste management are compliant with international standards, such as ISO 9001 quality management 
systems, as well as Singapore and international laws.

Material impact: Internal and External (Customers, Suppliers, Regulators)

Sembcorp Marine recognises that its business activities have an impact on the environment. In line with 
its commitment to environmental protection, the Group strives to minimise the environmental impact of its 
operations through the responsible management of energy, water, emissions, resource materials and waste.   

Approach: Environmental performance at Sembcorp Marine is managed as part of an integrated HSE 
management framework. Adopting a preventive approach, Sembcorp Marine has processes to identify, 
monitor and mitigate its environmental impact. The Group also leverages eco-friendly technologies to minimise 
the impact of its operations on the environment. Environmental Management Systems are customised for 
yard operations and managed by committees consisting of health and safety personnel, business excellence 
specialists and operations representatives. The Group’s yards are regularly audited to ensure compliance to 
governmental regulations including the ‘Environmental Protection and Management Act’, ‘Environmental 
Public Health Act’, ‘Sewage and Drainage Act’ and ‘Hazardous Waste (Control of Export, Import and Transit) 
Act’ by the National Environment Agency as well as the ‘Prevention of Pollution of the Sea Act’ by the Maritime 
and Port Authority of Singapore. All employees, contractors, customers and shipyard occupiers are required to 
comply with the associated policies and practices. 

Material impact: Internal and External (Community, Customers, Regulators)
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Stakeholders Engagement Platforms Stakeholders’  
Expectations/Concerns What was done in 2014

Customers •	 Annual	alliance	meetings	with	partners
•	 Tenders
•	 Regular	project	coordination	meetings	and	

customer visits
•	 Naming	and	delivery	events	for	completed	

projects
•	 Participation	at	exhibitions,	conferences	and	

networking events
•	 Platforms	to	network	and	build	relationships
•	 Corporate	website,	email	and	newsletters

•	 Timely	delivery	within	budget	
•	 Accurate	and	timely	

information
•	 Clear	channels	of	

communication
•	 Alignment	to	customer’s	Code	

of Conduct as well as health, 
safety, security, environmental 
and quality standards and 
policies 

•	 Compliance	to	new	
international environmental 
regulations

•	 14	major	project	deliveries
•	 Participation	in	7	exhibitions	across	USA,	Greece,	Germany,	South	Korea,	

Brazil and Malaysia to meet customers 
•	 One-on-one	meetings	with	customers
•	 Annual	client	networking	functions	in	Singapore	and	USA;	biennial	

networking function in Greece
•	 Post-project	customer	and	follow-up	sessions	to	monitor	and	measure	

client comments and feedback
•	 Participation	in	tenders	and	introductory	meetings
•	 Developing	green	technologies	e.g.	ballast	water	management	and	

emissions control systems
•	 Investment	in	circular	hull	floater	technology	and	modularised	LNG/LPG	

terminal construction 

Suppliers & 
Contractors

•	 Quotations	and	requests	for	proposal
•	 Tenders
•	 Performance	audits
•	 Inspections	and	quality	audits
•	 Training	for	contractor	partners	
•	 Involvement	in	safety	campaigns	and	events
•	 Joint	site	inspections	of	projects
•	 Regular	dialogue	platforms	with	senior	

management  

•	 Compliance	with	terms	and	
conditions of purchasing 
policies and agreements

•	 Training	support
•	 Clear	communication	

channels 
•	 Opportunities	for	growth	and	

collaboration

•	 Daily	work	meetings	and	safety	briefings	with	contractors
•	 Audits	to	ensure	vendors	meet	Approved	Vendor	List	criteria
•	 11,165	contractor	staff	trained	for	workplace	safety	and	health	topics
•	 Workplace	safety	and	health	improvement	programmes	targeted	at	

resident contractors e.g. Review, Educate,& Validate (REV) programme, 
bizSAFE, CultureSAFE

•	 Dialogue	sessions	at	various	levels	ranging	from	management	to	
operations 

•	 Safety	management	system	audits	on	resident	contractors
•	 Ongoing	tenders	and	projects

Employees •	 Regular	reviews	and	appraisals	
•	 Employee	dialogue	sessions	
•	 Intranet	platforms	for	policies,	news	and	

benefits
•	 Briefings	and	toolbox	meetings
•	 Development	programmes	and	training	

workshops/courses
•	 Meet-the-management	sessions
•	 Union-management	dialogues
•	 Grievance/feedback	channels	
•	 Safety	and	innovation	campaigns	
•	 Social	events	including	festive	celebrations
•	 Newsletters,	posters	and	memos

•	 Conducive	workplace
•	 Nurturing	environment
•	 Fair	labour	practices	and	

compensation
•	 Access	to	growth/personal	

development opportunities 
•	 Dynamic	two-way	

communication platforms

•	 Annual	awards	and	recognition	e.g.	WSH	awards	and	long	service	awards	
•	 Annual	performance	review	and	appraisal	
•	 Training	on	anti-bribery	policies	and	whistle-blowing	channels
•	 Annual	employee	bonding	events	e.g.	Deepavali	and	Hari	Raya	

celebrations
•	 $5.08	million	training	and	development	programmes	
•	 Biannual	newsletters	and	annual	report
•	 Health	programmes	with	medical	institutes	e.g.	Jurong	Medical	Centre	

and	Khoo	Teck	Puat	Hospital
•	 Annual	Innovation	Carnival	
•	 Regular	engagement	with	unions	covering	up	to	25%	of	workforce	in	

2014
•	 Regular	updates	through	intranet	website	portals/emails/memos

Financial 
Community 
(Shareholders, 
analysts, fund 
managers, 
regulators & 
media)

•	 Results	announcements	and	news	releases
•	 Annual	meeting	for	shareholders
•	 Briefings	for	analysts	and	media
•	 Meetings,	conference	calls	and	site	visits	for	

analysts and fund managers
•	 Roadshows	and	investor	conferences
•	 Corporate	website
•	 Newsletters

•	 Transparent,	open	and	
effective communication

•	 Timely	information	
•	 Profitability	
•	 Corporate	governance	

compliance
•	 Responsible	management

•	 Annual	General	Meeting	open	to	all	shareholders
•	 Press	releases	and	updates	made	accessible	through	corporate	website,	

email	alerts	and	Singapore	Exchange	SGXNET	for	public	access
•	 Quarterly	results	reports	made	accessible	via	corporate	website,	email	

alerts	and	SGXNET
•	 Biannual	financial	results	briefings	for	analysts,	bankers	and	media
•	 Meetings,	conference	calls,	site	visits	for	analysts/institutional	investors.	 

In 2014, there were about 150 one-on-one sessions
•	 Publications	such	as	annual	reports,	sustainability	reports,	newsletters	

available through the website
•	 Open	communication	channels	accessible	to	all	through	website,	email	

and telephone 

Local 
Communities 

•	 Timely	news	releases
•	 Multi-tiered	financial	assistance	programmes	
•	 Corporate	websites	and	email	feedback	

channels
•	 Educational	programmes
•	 Organisation	of	events	
•	 Sponsorship	of	events	
•	 Collaborations	with	educational	institutions
•	 Corporate	website
•	 Newsletters

•	 Promoting	community	care	
and welfare

•	 Support	for	social	and	
community causes 

•	 Active	corporate	citizenry

•	 Community	contributions	of	close	to	$3.3	million	e.g.	annual	SchoolBAG	
grants	of	more	than	$266,000	and	national	WSH	campaign	sponsorship	
of	$180,000

•	 39	scholarships	and	55	bursaries	disbursed
•	 Annual	Green	Wave	Environmental	Care	Competition	which	saw	287	

entries from more than 1000 students 
•	 Annual	festive	activities	for	the	less	privileged	e.g.	Christmas	parties
•	 Annual	National	Day	Parade	sponsorship	and	participation
•	 Website	and	publications

Government 
& Industry 
Partners

•	 Formal	and	informal	dialogue	sessions	
with government authorities and trade 
associations on safety, health, manpower, 
security and environment issues 

•	 Events	to	share	information	with	the	industry
•	 Events	to	promote	the	industry	

•	 Compliance	to	regulations
•	 Collaborative	efforts	to	share	

knowledge 
•	 Joint	development	and	

deployment of best practices
•	 Jointly	manage	resources	and	

expertise

•	 Site	visits	and	discussions	with	relevant	government	representatives	e.g.	
NTUC	and	Singapore	Police	Force

•	 Participation	in	local	events	to	promote	the	industry	e.g.	annual	MPA-led	
Amazing Maritime Challenge

•	 Safety	campaigns	and	training	seminars	with	industry	partners	e.g.	
national WSH Council

•	 Joint	safety,	security,	environment,	health	and	innovation	related	activities	
with partners e.g. annual WSH Campaign and Innovation Carnival

stakeholders and Engagement Platforms

Approach to Sustainability
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summary of financial, social and Environmental Performance

Verification
Sembcorp Marine has engaged an independent third-
party consultant Ere-S to verify the level of disclosure 
of 11 indicators from the GRI Content Index, covering 
disclosures on materiality and stakeholder engagement, 
and recommendations for enhancing the adherence to 
GRI reporting requirements. The verification statement 
is available in the ‘Sustainability’ section of the Group’s 
website.

A detailed overview of the GRI standard disclosures 
and performance indicators is found in the GRI Index on 
pages 132 to 136 of this annual report.

2012 2013 2014

Economic

Turnover (S$’000) 4,430,123 5,525,882 5,832,595

Net Profit (S$’000) 538,453 555,747 560,128

Economic value added (S$’000) 383,555 405,651 331,279

People

Headcount 10,458 10,608 11,212

Investment in training ($m) 5.00 6.00 5.08

Employee turnover rate (%) 9.2 7.2 12.2

Health, Safety and Environment

Workplace Safety and Health

Number of fatalities 1 1 0

Accident severity rate (per million man-hours) 86.8 72.2 11.4

Accident frequency rate (per million man-hours) 0.7 0.6 0.4

Workplace injury rate (per million man-hours) 378.8 214.8 139.9

Environmental

Water withdrawal (million m3) 2.352 2.479 2.137

Waste disposal - Hazardous (mT)★ 4,015 9,723 9,464

Waste disposal - Non-Hazardous (mT)★ 39,493 44,060 38,958

Waste disposal - Recycled (mT)★s 128,106 143,533 135,831

GHG emissions from direct energy - diesel (tCO2e) 56,803 58,310 49,358

GHG emissions from direct energy - liquefied gases (tCO2e) 215,498 175,951 265,664

GHG emissions from indirect energy (tCO2e)✝ 83,948 64,409 87,169

Community
Community contribution ($m) 2.25 3.57 3.26

Looking ahead, the Group plans to broaden the scope 
of the sustainability reporting to include key overseas 
assets and progress towards external assurance. For 
feedback and suggestions on the sustainability report, 
please email the Investor Relations and Corporate 
Communications Department at ir@sembmarine.com.

★ PPL Shipyard began to track disposal volumes through its vendors in 2014.
s	 Two of the identified largest contributors of recyclable waste in shipyard operations are copper slag and steel scraps. 
✝
 2012 and 2013 figures have been revised to reflect changes by Singapore Ministry of the Environment and Water Resources’ (MEWR) to its historical conversion factors.
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Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican
Chairman
Non-Executive/Independent Director
Chairman 22 April 2014
Chairman, Executive Committee
Chairman, Executive Resource & Compensation Committee
Chairman, Transformation Committee
Member, Nominating Committee

Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican was appointed Chairman of Sembcorp Marine since 
22 April 2014. As an independent director, he heads the Board’s Transformation 
Committee, Executive Committee and Executive Resource & Compensation 
Committee. He serves as a member of the Board’s Nominating Committee.

Formerly President & CEO of Malaysia’s Petroliam Nasional (PETRONAS) from 1995 until 
his retirement in February 2010, Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican brings to the board over 
30 years’ experience in the energy sector, as well as in finance and management. He 
is Chairman of Singapore Power, Pavilion Energy, Pavilion Gas and Lan Ting Holdings 
and a director of the Regional Economic Development Authority of Sarawak, Sarawak 
Energy, Sembcorp Industries, Lambert Energy Advisory and MH Marican Advisory. He is 
also a senior international advisor at Temasek International Advisors.  

Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican holds an honorary doctorate from the University of 
Malaya and is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and 
Wales. Past directorships in listed companies and major appointments 2012-2014: 
ConocoPhillips.

Wong Weng Sun
President & CEO
Executive/Non-Independent Director
Appointed 1 May 2009

Mr Wong is President & CEO of Sembcorp Marine, as well as Managing Director 
of Jurong Shipyard. He also sits on the boards of a number of Sembcorp Marine’s 
subsidiaries, including Jurong Shipyard, Sembawang Shipyard, SMOE and PPL Shipyard.

Mr Wong is President of the Association of Singapore Marine Industries and sits on 
the boards of the Maritime and Port Authority of Singapore and the Singapore 
Maritime Foundation. He serves as a member of the Workplace Safety and Health 
Council, is the Chairman of the Workplace Safety and Health Council’s Industry 
Capability Building Committee and is Deputy Chairman of its Marine Industries 
Committee. Besides serving as a member of the Industry Advisory Panel of the School 
of Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering at Nanyang Technological University, he 
also chairs the Marine & Offshore Technology Advisory Committee and co-chairs the 
Advisory Committee of the Centre of Innovation, Marine & Offshore Technology at 
Ngee Ann Polytechnic.

Mr Wong holds a Bachelor of Mechanical Engineering (Marine) from Universiti 
Teknologi Malaysia, as well as a Masters in Business Administration from Oklahoma City 
University, USA.

Board of Directors
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Ajaib Haridass
Non-Executive/Independent Director
Appointed 31 October 2003
Chairman, Board Risk Committee 
Chairman, Nominating Committee
Member, Executive Committee
Member, Executive Resource & Compensation Committee

Mr Haridass is an independent director. He heads the Board’s Risk Committee and 
Nominating Committee and serves as a member of the Executive Committee and 
Executive Resource & Compensation Committee. He is also an independent director 
at Sembcorp Industries and a member of the Board’s Risk Committee.

With more than 38 years of legal experience, Mr Haridass specialises in maritime  
law and deals with commercial and banking litigation. Currently a consultant with  
Haridass Ho & Partners, a legal firm he founded in 1985, Mr Haridass is a panel member 
of the Singapore International Arbitration Centre and the Singapore Chamber of 
Maritime Arbitration, an accredited mediator of the Singapore Mediation Centre, 
as well as a referee of the Small Claims Tribunal of the State Courts of Singapore 
(formerly known as the Subordinate Courts).

He is a Commissioner for Oaths, a Notary Public and a Justice of the Peace. He is also 
the lead independent director of Nam Cheong.

Mr Haridass holds a Bachelor of Laws (Honours) degree from the University of London 
and qualified as a Barrister-at-Law at the Honourable Society of the Middle Temple in 
London.

Tang Kin Fei
Non-Executive/Non-Independent Director
Appointed 1 May 2005
Member, Executive Committee
Member, Executive Resource & Compensation Committee
Member, Nominating Committee
Member, Board Risk Committee

Mr Tang is a non-independent director and serves as a member on the Board’s 
Executive Resource & Compensation, Nominating, Risk and Executive Committees.

He is Group President and CEO of Sembcorp Industries. With more than 25 years at 
Sembcorp, he is credited with spearheading its growth into a focused energy, water 
and marine group with operations across six continents. 

Mr Tang is an executive committee member and Vice Chairman of the Singapore 
Business Federation’s council, as well as a council member of the Singapore Chinese 
Chamber of Commerce & Industry. He serves on several China-Singapore and Middle 
East-Singapore business councils and is a director and member of the governing 
board of the Cambridge Centre for Advanced Research in Energy Efficiency in 
Singapore, a research centre set up by the University of Cambridge in collaboration 
with Singapore universities and the National Research Foundation to study carbon 
assessment and abatement for the petrochemical industry. Mr Tang sits on the board 
of the Defence Science and Technology Agency of Singapore, chairs the college 
advisory board of Nanyang Technological University’s College of Engineering and is 
also Council Chairman of Ngee Ann Polytechnic. In addition, he is Vice Chairman and 
a trustee of the Kwong Wai Shiu Hospital, a charitable hospital which provides care for 
needy patients.

Mr Tang holds a First Class Honours degree in Mechanical Engineering from the 
University of Singapore and completed the Advanced Management Programme at 
INSEAD.
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Lim Ah Doo
Non-Executive/Independent Director
Appointed 7 November 2008
Chairman, Audit Committee
Member, Board Risk Committee
Member, Transformation Committee

Mr Lim is an independent director and heads the Board’s Audit Committee and 
serves on the Board’s Transformation Committee and Board Risk Committee. He 
brings with him vast experience and wide knowledge as a former senior banker 
and corporate executive. He is currently an independent director of ARA-CWT Trust 
Management (Cache), GP Industries, SM Investments Corporation, U Mobile Sdn 
Bhd, Sateri Holdings, Linc Energy and GDS Holdings Limited. He also chairs the audit 
committees of ARA-CWT Trust Management (Cache), GP Industries, Linc Energy and 
U Mobile. He is also Member, Ethics Sub-Committee, Public Accountants Oversight 
Committee, Singapore.

During his 18-year distinguished banking career in Morgan Grenfell, he held several 
key positions including chairing Morgan Grenfell (Asia). He also chaired the Singapore 
Investment Banking Association in 1994. From 2003 to 2008, he was President and 
then Vice Chairman of the RGM group, a leading global resource-based group. He 
was also formerly an independent director and Exco member of EDB Investments, 
an independent Commissioner and Chairman of the Audit Committee of PT 
Indosat, Indonesia and a council member of Singapore-Shandong Business Council 
and Singapore-Jiangsu Co-operation Council. He served as Chairman of EDBV 
Management and an independent director and Chairman of the Audit Committee 
of PST Management.

Mr Lim holds an honours degree in Engineering from the Queen Mary College, 
University of London in 1971, and a Masters in Business Administration from the Cranfield 
School of Management in 1976. Past directorships in listed companies and major 
appointments 2012-2014: Chemoil Energy Limited, EDBI Pte Ltd, PST Management Pte Ltd.

Ron Foo Siang Guan
Non-Executive/Independent Director
Appointed 30 June 2006
Member, Audit Committee
Member, Board Risk Committee
Member, Transformation Committee

Mr Foo is an independent director who serves as a member on the Board’s Risk, Audit 
and Transformation Committees.  

He brings with him more than 38 years of extensive auditing, accounting and 
financial experience in Singapore and overseas. Mr Foo was a partner of 
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Singapore for 22 years before retiring from active service in 
December 2005. Mr Foo is presently a director of SIA Engineering Company.

Mr Foo has also been actively involved as a council member in the Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants of Singapore (ICPAS) and was awarded the ICPAS Gold 
Medal 2004 in recognition of his outstanding contributions and distinguished service 
to the accounting profession. Presently, he is a member of the Canadian Institute 
of Chartered Accountants, Canada and a Fellow of the Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants of Singapore.
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Koh Chiap Khiong
Non-Executive/Non-Independent Director
Appointed 6 May 2011
Member, Audit Committee 
Member, Transformation Committee

Mr Koh is a non-independent director and serves as a member on the Board’s 
Transformation Committee and Audit Committee. He is currently the Group Chief 
Financial Officer (CFO) of Sembcorp Industries and is a director on the boards of 
various Sembcorp companies.

He is responsible for the corporate finance and treasury, reporting, accounts, tax, 
information technology and risk management at Sembcorp Industries and oversees 
these functions across the Group. As Group CFO, he also handles investor relations 
matters.

Mr Koh brings with him over 20 years’ extensive expertise in financial reporting, tax, 
corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions, treasury, risk management and audit. He 
has over a decade’s experience in managing infrastructure businesses.  

Mr Koh holds a First Class Honours degree in Accountancy from the National University 
of Singapore and completed the Advanced Management Programme at Harvard 
Business School.

Eric Ang Teik Lim
Non-Executive/Independent Director
Appointed 30 April 2013
Member, Board Risk Committee

Mr Ang is an independent director who serves as a member on the Board’s Risk 
Committee.  

Mr Ang is a career banker with more than 36 years of experience in financing 
functions. He is currently the Senior Executive Advisor with DBS Bank Ltd. He stepped 
down as Head of Capital Markets Group with DBS Bank on 1 June 2014. His current 
directorships include Hwang Capital (Malaysia) Berhad, Changi Airport Group 
(Singapore) Pte Ltd and DBS Foundation Ltd.

Mr Ang graduated from the University of Singapore with a Bachelor of Business 
Administration (Honours) degree. 
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Wong Weng Sun
•	 President & CEO, Sembcorp Marine
•	 Managing Director, Jurong Shipyard
•	 Bachelor of Mechanical Engineering (Marine),  

Universiti Teknologi Malaysia (Malaysia)
•	 Master of Business Administration,  

Oklahoma City University (USA)

Ho Nee Sin
•	 Managing Director, SMOE
•	 Bachelor of Science, Engineering, 

National Taiwan University 
(Taiwan)                       

•	 Master of Science, Imperial 
College, University of London (UK)

Lee Yeok Hoon
•	 Executive Director, New Yard 

Development & Ship Repair 
Business, Jurong Shipyard

•	 Diploma in Mechanical 
Engineering, Singapore 
Polytechnic

Ong Poh Kwee
•	 Deputy President, Sembcorp Marine
•	 Managing Director, Sembawang Shipyard
•	 Bachelor of Marine Engineering,  

University of Newcastle-Upon-Tyne (UK)
•	 Master of Business Administration, Sloan School of 

Management, Massachusetts Institute of Technology (USA)

Wong Teck Cheong
•	 Managing Director, PPL Shipyard
•	 Bachelor of Engineering 

(Structural), The University of New 
South Wales, Australia                       

•	 Masters in Structural Engineering, 
The University of New South Wales, 
Australia

Wong Lee Lin
•	 Executive Director, 

Sembawang Shipyard
•	 Bachelor of Arts, Bachelor of 

Social Sciences (Honours), 
National University of 
Singapore

Wang Zijian
•	 Executive Director, Jurong 

Shipyard
•	 Bachelor of Engineering, Naval 

Architecture and Ocean 
Engineering, Shanghai Jiao 
Tong University (PRC)

Freddie Woo
•	 Executive Director, Jurong SML
•	 Diploma in Mechanical 

Engineering, Singapore 
Polytechnic

SHIPYARDS (Strategic Business Units)

Governance and Transparency

Senior Management
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Tan Cheng Tat
•	 Chief Financial Officer
•	 Bachelor of Accountancy (Honours), 

National University of Singapore
•	 Fellow Member, Institute of Singapore 

Chartered Accountants

Lisa Lee
•	 Senior Vice President,  

Investor Relations &  
Corporate Communications

•	 Bachelor of Arts and Sociology, 
National University of Singapore

Tan Heng Jack
•	 Senior Vice President, Internal Audit
•	 Bachelor of Accountancy, Nanyang 

Technological University
•	 Fellow Member, Institute of Singapore 

Chartered Accountants

Chia Chee Hing
•	 Senior Vice President,  

Management Information 
Systems

•	 Bachelor of Arts & Sociology,  
National University of 
Singapore

Ng Thiam Poh
•	 Chief Risk Officer
•	 Bachelor of Science, Naval 

Architecture & Ocean 
Engineering, 1st Class Honours, 
University of Glasgow (UK)

Wee Keng Hwee
•	 Senior Vice President, Corporate 

Development
•	 Bachelor of Engineering, Yokohama 

National University (Japan)
•	 Master of Science, National University 

of Singapore

Tan Yah Sze
•	 Senior Vice President,  

Legal & Joint Company 
Secretary

•	 Bachelor of Law, National 
University of Singapore

Jessie Lau
•	 Vice President, Administration
•	 Bachelor of Science (Business 

Administration), Oklahoma City 
University (USA)

Chua San Lye
•	 Director, Group Human Resource
•	 Bachelor of Business Administration, 

National University of Singapore
•	 Master of Business Administration, 

University of Leicester (UK)

Chionh Keat Yee
•	 Senior Vice President, Group 

Performance Management 
and Mergers & Acquisitions

•	 Fellow Member, Association 
of Chartered Certified 
Accountants (UK)

•	 Member, Institute of Singapore 
Chartered Accountants

CORPORATE FUNCTIONS
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Corporate Governance
Sembcorp Marine Ltd (Sembcorp Marine or the Company) is 
committed to attaining a high level of corporate governance 
to help ensure the future sustainability of the organisation and 
to create long term value for its shareholders. This report outlines 
Sembcorp Marine’s corporate governance practices with 
reference to the Singapore Code of Corporate Governance 
2012 (Code). The Company has complied in all material aspects 
with the principles and guidelines set out in the Code and any 
deviations are explained in this report. Sembcorp Marine will 
continue to review its corporate governance policies regularly 
in order to enhance its corporate governance standard and to 
meet the rising expectations of shareholders and investors.  

Board Matters
Board’s Conduct of its Affairs (Principle 1)
Effective Board to lead and control   

The board of directors (Board) is responsible for 
overseeing the business affairs of the Company and its 
subsidiaries (collectively the Group) and setting strategic 
direction and establishing goals for Management. The 
Board works with Management to achieve these goals 
set for the Group. 

The key responsibilities of the Board include:

•	 providing	entrepreneurial	leadership	and	strategic	
direction for the Group and ensuring that resources 
are available for the Group to meet its objectives

•	 ensuring	prudent	and	effective	controls	for	
safeguarding shareholders’ interests and the Group’s 
assets

•	 setting	the	Group’s	values	and	standards	and	
ensuring that obligations to shareholders and 
stakeholders are met

•	 monitoring	Management’s	performance	towards	
achieving organisational goals

•	 considering	sustainability	issues	including	
environmental and social factors in the formulation of 
the Group’s strategies

Every director is expected, in the course of his duties, to 
act in good faith and consider at all times the interests of 
the Group.

The Board has established the following committees 
which assist the Board in discharging its responsibilities 
and providing independent oversight of the 
Management:  

•	 Audit	Committee	(AC)

•	 Executive	Resource	&	Compensation	Committee	
(ERCC)

•	 Nominating	Committee	(NC)

•	 Board	Risk	Committee	(BRC)

•	 Executive	Committee	(ExCo)

•	 Transformation	Committee	(TC)

These committees function within clearly defined terms 
of reference which are reviewed by the Board on a 
regular basis. 

The ExCo assists the Board in reviewing and approving 
matters as required under the Group’s policies. It also 
evaluates business opportunities for the Group.

The TC oversees the transformation efforts of the Group 
taking into account the Group’s business expansion in 
Singapore and globally.  
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Board Composition and Committees

Board Members Audit  
Committee

Executive Resource  
& Compensation  

Committee

Nominating
Committee

Board Risk 
Committee

Transformation  
Committee

Executive 
Committee

Tan	Sri	Mohd	Hassan	
Marican

Chairman Member Chairman Chairman

Wong Weng Sun Member

Ajaib	Haridass Member Chairman Chairman Member

Tang	Kin	Fei Member Member Member Member

Ron Foo Siang Guan Member Member Member

Lim Ah Doo Chairman Member Member

Koh	Chiap	Khiong Member Member

Eric	Ang	Teik	Lim	 Member

Name of Director Board  
Meetings 

Audit  
Committee 
Meetings 

Board Risk 
Committee 
Meetings 

Executive  
Committee
Meetings

Nominating  
Committee  
Meetings

Executive  
Resource &  

Compensation  
Committee  
Meetings

Transformation  
Committee 
Meetings

No.	of	Meetings No.	of	Meetings No.	of	Meetings No.	of	Meetings No.	of	Meetings No.	of	Meetings No.	of	Meetings

Held 1 Attended Held 1 Attended Held 1 Attended Held 1 Attended Held 1 Attended Held 1 Attended Held 1 Attended

Tan	Sri	Mohd	Hassan	
Marican2

5 5 1 1 6 6 1 1 2 2 5 5

Ajaib	Haridass 5 5 4 4 7 7 2 2 3 3

Tang	Kin	Fei 5 5 4 4 7 6 2 2 3 3

Ron Foo Siang Guan 5 5 4 4 4 4 5 4

Lim Ah Doo3 5 5 4 4 1 1 5 5

Wong Weng Sun 5 5 7 7

Koh	Chiap	Khiong4 5 5 3 3 5 3

Eric	Ang	Teik	Lim5 5 5 3 3

Goh Geok Ling6 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2

Eddie	Teh	Ewe	Guan7 1 1

Attendance at Board and Committee Meetings

1 The number of meetings held while each director was in office. 
2  Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican was appointed the Chairman of the Board, the Executive Committee and the Executive Resource & Compensation Committee,  

and a member of the Nominating Committee on 22 April 2014. He stepped down as a member of the Audit Committee on 22 April 2014. 
3 Mr Lim Ah Doo was appointed a member of the Board Risk Committee on 15 September 2014.
4 Mr Koh Chiap Khiong was appointed a member of the Audit Committee on 22 April 2014.
5 Mr Eric Ang Teik Lim was appointed a member of the Board Risk Committee on 22 April 2014.
6 Mr Goh Geok Ling retired and stepped down as the Chairman of the Board, the Executive Committee and Executive Resource & Compensation Committee and a member 

of the Nominating Committee on 22 April 2014.
7 Mr Eddie Teh Ewe Guan retired as a director of the Company on 22 April 2014.  
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Board Members

Directors  Position Held  
on the Board

Date of First  
Appointment to the Board

Date of Last Re-election/ 
Re-appointment as Director Nature of Appointment

Tan	Sri	Mohd	Hassan	
Marican

Chairman 1 October 2011 20 April 2012 Non-Executive/Independent

Wong Weng Sun Director/President	&	CEO 1 May 2009 22 April 2014 Executive/Non-Independent

Ajaib	Haridass Director 31 October 2003 19 April 2013 Non-Executive/Independent

Tang	Kin	Fei Director 1 May 2005 19 April 2013 Non-Executive/Non-Independent

Ron Foo Siang Guan Director 30 June 2006 19 April 2013 Non-Executive/Independent

Lim Ah Doo Director 7	November	2008 22 April 2014 Non-Executive/Independent

Koh	Chiap	Khiong Director 6 May 2011 22 April 2014 Non-Executive/Non-Independent

Eric	Ang	Teik	Lim	 Director 30 April 2013 22 April 2014 Non-Executive/Independent

Corporate Governance

Details of other Board committees are set out in the 
following sections of this report.

The Board meets on a quarterly basis, and as warranted 
by particular circumstances. A director who is unable 
to attend any meeting in person may participate in the 
meeting via video or teleconference.

A record of the directors’ attendance at Board and its 
committee meetings during the financial year ended  
31 December 2014 (FY2014) is disclosed on page 31.

The Company has adopted a set of internal controls 
which sets out approval limits for different types of 
transactions such as procurement of goods and services, 
capital expenditure, investments and divestments, bank 
borrowings and foreign exchange. Board’s approval is 
required if the amount of a transaction exceeds a pre-
defined threshold. 

A comprehensive orientation programme, including 
facility visits to the Group’s various premises, is provided 
to all newly-appointed directors. They are briefed on 
the Group’s business activities, financial performance, 
governance policies and practices, regulatory regime 
and their duties as directors. 

Directors are updated regularly on relevant new 
laws, regulations and changing business risks during 
Board meetings or at specially-convened sessions.  
Arrangements are made for them to attend training 
sessions, courses and seminars conducted by external 
consultants and institutions at the Company’s expense.

A formal letter of appointment which sets out the 
director’s duties and obligations is given to each 
newly-appointed director. The director also receives 
an information pack which contains the Group’s 
organisation structure, senior Management’s contact 
details, Sembcorp Marine’s memorandum and articles of 
association, group policies and a list of recent significant 
issues discussed at Board meetings.

Board’s Composition and Guidance 
(Principle 2)
Strong and Independent Board 

The Board comprises eight directors, five of whom 
(including the Chairman of the Board) are independent 
directors, one of whom (the President & CEO of 
Sembcorp Marine) is an executive director, and the rest 
are non-executive and non-independent directors.  

The Board currently comprises the following members:
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The NC has ensured that at least one third of the Board 
is made up of independent directors. It reviews the 
independence of each director annually based on the 
guidelines set out in the Code.

Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican is a non-executive 
and independent director of Sembcorp Industries 
Ltd (SCI), a controlling shareholder of the Company. 
He is also a Senior International Advisor at Temasek 
International Advisors (Temasek). His appointments in 
both SCI and Temasek are non-executive in nature. 
The Group’s transactions with SCI or Temasek (if any) 
are safeguarded by the mandate for interested person 
transactions (IPT Mandate) which was approved by 
the Company’s shareholders at the last annual general 
meeting and is subject to yearly renewal. During FY2014, 
SCI provided consultancy services to the Group. The 
aggregate amount paid by the Group to SCI for such 
services exceeded S$200,000. Tan Sri Mohd Hassan 
Marican was not involved in the decision makings of the 
transactions between SCI and the Group. The aggregate 
value of the transactions during FY2014 was not 
significant compared with the revenues of both SCI and 
SCM groups. The Board considers Tan Sri Mohd Hassan 
Marican to be an independent director of the Company 
as the Board believes that he is able to exercise strong 
independent judgment in his deliberations and act in 
the best interests of the Company.  

Mr Ajaib Haridass has served as an independent director 
on the Board for more than 9 years. He was appointed 
as a non-executive and independent director of SCI on 
1 May 2014. The Board had conducted a rigorous review 
on Mr Ajaib Haridass’ status and considers Mr Ajaib 
Haridass to be an independent director of the Company.
The Board is of the view that Mr Haridass has continued 
to demonstrate ability to exercise strong independent 
judgment and act in the interests of the Company. 
Further, having gained in-depth understanding of the 
business and operating environment of the Group, 
Mr Ajaib Haridass provides the Company with much 
needed experience and knowledge of the industry. His 
contributions are invaluable to the Company.

On 1 June 2014, Mr Eric Ang Teik Lim retired as the 
Managing Director and Head of Capital Markets Group 
of DBS Bank Ltd (DBS) which provides banking services 
to the Group. He is presently a Senior Executive Advisor 
of DBS. The Board considers that Mr Eric Ang Teik Lim’s 
change of appointment at DBS has not affected his 

independence as the services provided by DBS in 2014 
were standard services which were in the ordinary 
course of business of the Group and DBS. The Board 
had assessed and is of the view that the amounts paid 
were not significant in the context of the revenues of 
Sembcorp Marine and DBS.       

Each director has been appointed on the strength of 
his calibre and experience. Board members comprise 
business leaders, bankers and professionals with financial 
and legal backgrounds. The profile of each director is set 
out on pages 24 to 27 of the annual report for the year 
ended 31 December 2014 (FY2014 Annual Report). The 
directors, having examined and taken into account the 
size, scope and nature of the operations of the Group, 
consider that the Board is of an adequate size with the 
right mix of skills and experience that facilitates effective 
decision making.  

A majority of the Board comprises non-executive 
directors who constructively challenge and help 
develop strategies for the Group. They review the 
performance of Management in meeting agreed 
goals and objectives as well as reviewing management 
reports. In addition to contributing their valuable 
experience and providing insights to Board’s 
deliberations, each of them brings to the Board an 
objective perspective to enable balanced and well 
considered decisions to be made.  

The non-executive directors met 4 times in 2014, 
without the presence of Management, to discuss the 
Management’s performance.  

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 
(CEO) (Principle 3)
A clear division of responsibilities between the 
Chairman and CEO to ensure a balance of power 
and authority 

The Chairman of the Board and Sembcorp Marine’s 
President & CEO are separate persons. There is a clear 
separation of the roles and responsibilities between the 
Chairman and the President & CEO. The President & CEO 
is not related to the Chairman.

The Chairman, who is an independent director, takes 
a leading role in the Group’s drive to achieve and 
maintain a high standard of corporate governance with 
the full support of the directors, company secretaries 
and the Management.
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He is responsible for the leadership of the Board and 
ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of the Board’s 
role. He sets the agenda and ensures adequate and 
timely information is provided to directors and sufficient 
time is available for discussions of important issues. 
He promotes a culture of openness and debate at 
the Board. The Chairman facilitates the contribution 
of non-executive directors in particular, and ensures 
constructive relations within the Board and between 
the Board and Management. He also ensures effective 
communication with shareholders.

The President & CEO manages the operations of the 
Group in accordance with the Group’s strategies and 
policies, implements the Board’s decisions, and provides 
close oversight, guidance, advice and leadership to 
senior Management.  

Board Membership (Principle 4)
Formal and transparent process for appointment 
and re-appointment of directors 

The NC comprises the following members, the majority of 
whom, including the Chairman, are non-executive and 
independent:

Mr Ajaib Haridass (Chairman)
Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican
Mr Tang Kin Fei

The primary purpose of the NC is to support and assist 
the Board in selection, appointment, and re-election of 
directors. It makes recommendations to the Board on:

•	 the	review	of	the	Board’s	succession	plans	for	
directors

•	 the	development	of	a	process	for	evaluation	of	
the performance of the Board, its committees and 
directors

•	 the	review	of	training	and	professional	development	
programmes for the directors 

The NC ensures that directors appointed to the Board 
and its committees possess the background, experience 
and knowledge in technology, business, finance and 
management skills critical to the Group’s business and 
that each director brings to the Board an independent 
and objective perspective to enable balanced and well 
considered decisions to be made.

All directors (including the President & CEO) are 
required to submit themselves for re-nomination and 

re-appointment at regular intervals, and at least once 
every 3 years. Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican, Mr Ron 
Foo Siang Guan and Mr Tang Kin Fei will retire at the 
forthcoming annual general meeting (AGM) and will 
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

All newly appointed directors are also required to submit 
themselves for re-election at the AGM immediately 
following their appointments. Thereafter, they are 
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the 
Company’s articles of association.  

The NC reviews annually, and as and when 
circumstances require, if a director is independent. The 
independence of each director is assessed based on 
his ability to act with independent judgment and to 
discharge his duties objectively.  

The Board has adopted guidelines for addressing 
competing time commitments that are faced when 
directors serve on multiple boards and have other 
principal commitments. The Company has determined 
that a director should not hold more than 6 principal 
board representations to ensure that a director will 
have sufficient time and attention for the affairs of the 
Company.

The Board does not encourage the appointment of 
alternate directors. No alternate director is currently 
being appointed to the Board.

The Board has adopted a process for the selection, 
appointment and re-appointment of directors. The 
NC reviews the composition of the Board and Board 
committees periodically. It assesses and shortlists a list 
of candidates for a new position on the Board when a 
need arises. The list of shortlisted candidates is submitted 
to the Board for review and approval. The successful 
candidate is then appointed as a director of the 
Company in accordance with the Company’s articles of 
association.

The NC reviews the contribution and performance of 
each existing director before making recommendations 
to the Board for his re-election or re-appointment 
at the next AGM. Once the Board has considered 
and adopted the recommendations, the resolution 
proposing the re-election or re-appointment of a 
director will be tabled at the AGM for shareholders’ 
approval.

Corporate Governance
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Key information regarding directors’ profiles, disclosures 
of interests and directorships are disclosed in other 
sections of the FY2014 Annual Report.

Board Performance (Principle 5)
Formal assessment of the effectiveness of the 
Board and contribution by each director

The Board believes that active participation and 
valuable contributions are essential to the overall 
effectiveness of the Board. 

The NC reviews the Board’s performance annually, 
based on performance criteria as agreed by the Board. 
The Chairman of the Board and the NC Chairman also 
reviews the performance of each individual director 
based on factors such as director’s preparedness, 
participation and contribution at Board meetings, 
and industry and business knowledge. The Chairman 
will act on the results of the performance evaluation 
and propose, where appropriate, new members to 
be appointed to the Board or seek the resignation of 
directors.

For the year under review, each director was requested 
to complete a questionnaire based on the following 
areas of assessment:

•	 size	and	composition	of	the	Board	
•	 Board’s	access	to	information
•	 Board’s	processes	and	accountability
•	 Board’s	and	its	committees’	performance

The evaluation and feedback from the directors were 
consolidated and submitted to the Board for discussion 
and further improvements in its performance. Based on 
the overall assessment for 2014, the Board was effective 
as a whole.  

Access to Information (Principle 6)
Complete, adequate and timely information

All directors have access to complete, adequate and 
timely information and resources. Directors are provided 
with electronic tablets to enable them to access Board 
and Board committee papers 3 days prior to and 
during meetings. The Management provides the Board 
with monthly management reports on the Group’s 
operational and financial performance.  

The Board has separate and independent access to the 
President & CEO, members of senior Management and 
the company secretaries at all times. Management is 

also present at the meetings to address directors’ queries 
or to provide further insights into matters concerned.  

The company secretaries attend all Board and Board 
committee meetings and are responsible for ensuring 
that meeting procedures are followed and applicable 
rules and regulations are complied with. The company 
secretaries also ensure good information flows within the 
Board and its committees, and between Management 
and non-executive directors. They assist the Board 
in implementing and upkeeping good corporate 
governance and best practices across the Group.

The appointment and removal of each company 
secretary is a matter taken by the Board as a whole.

In the event that the directors, either individually or as a 
group, require independent professional advice in the 
furtherance of their duties, the company secretaries 
will, upon approval by the Board, appoint a professional 
advisor to render such services. The cost of such services 
will be borne by the Company. 

Remuneration Matters 
Procedures for Developing Remuneration 
Policies (Principle 7)
Formal and transparent procedure for fixing 
remuneration packages of directors

The ERCC comprises the following members, two of 
whom (including the Chairman) are independent 
directors and all of whom are non-executive directors:

Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican (Chairman)
Mr Tang Kin Fei
Mr Ajaib Haridass 

The primary purpose of the ERCC is to support and 
advise the Company on remuneration matters and 
leadership development by:

•	 overseeing	development	of	leadership	and	
management talent

•	 ensuring	that	the	Group	has	appropriate	
remuneration policies

•	 designing	remuneration	packages	with	a	focus	on	
long-term shareholders’ returns 
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The ERCC establishes guidelines on share plans and 
other long-term incentive plans, and approves the 
grant of incentives to key executives. The underlying 
philosophy is to motivate executives to maximise 
operating and financial performance and shareholders’ 
value.

In addition, the ERCC reviews the remuneration of 
non-executive directors, the executive director and 
senior executives, as well as major human resource 
management and compensation policies and practices 
for the rest of the Group.

On an annual basis, a comprehensive talent 
management programme and the succession plans are 
presented to the ERCC for review. The ERCC reviews the 
succession plans for key and critical positions to align the 
business goals and the Group’s human capital needs.  
This enables the Company to identify the talent pool 
and allow focus and devotion of time and resources 
to leverage the full value and potential of identified 
successors.

The Company has engaged Mercer (Singapore) to 
advise the ERCC on remuneration of directors and 
key executives. Mercer (Singapore) is an independent 
external consultancy firm. There is no relationship 
between the Company and Mercer (Singapore) that 
affects the independence and objectivity of Mercer 
(Singapore).  

The President & CEO is not present during the discussions 
relating to his own remuneration, terms and conditions of 
service, and the review of his performance.  

No ERCC member or any director is involved in 
deliberations on his own remuneration, compensation 
or any form of benefits. Hence the Board believes the 
ability of the ERCC to exercise considered judgment 
in its deliberations and act in the best interests of the 
Company.

The ERCC reviews the terms of the contracts of service 
of directors and key management personnel to ensure 
that the terms are fair and reasonable, and termination 
clauses are not overly generous.

Level and Mix of Remuneration (Principle 8)
Appropriate remuneration to attract, retain and 
motivate directors and key management 

The Company believes that its remuneration and 
reward system is aligned with the long term interest and 
risk policies of the Company and that a competitive 
remuneration and reward system based on individual 
performance is important to attract, retain and 
incentivise the best talent. 

The President & CEO, as an executive director, does 
not receive director’s fee. As a lead member of 
Management, his compensation consists of his salary, 
allowances, bonuses and share-based incentives 
conditional upon meeting certain performance targets. 
Details on the share-based incentives and performance 
targets are available on pages 215 to 224 and 253 to 254 
of the FY2014 Annual Report.    

Non-executive Directors’ Fees 

The ERCC had reviewed and updated the directors’ 
fee framework with effect from FY2014 in order to better 
align with market benchmarks and reflect directors’ 
efforts in transforming the Group’s business. The directors’ 
fee framework includes the proposed introduction of 
a new all-in chairman’s fee which reflects the greater 
commitment required of the Chairman of the Board 
in spending time outside regular Board and Board 
committee meetings to guide and provide oversight 
to the Company and Management as the business 
undergoes transformation. The Chairman of the Board 
will no longer receive further fees or allowances as a 
director on the Board or for his involvement in any of the 
Board’s committees.    

The framework on page 37 adopted by the Company is 
based on a scale of fees divided into basic retainer fees, 
attendance fees and allowances for travel and service 
on Board committees.

The directors’ fees payable to non-executive directors 
are paid in cash and in share awards under the 
Sembcorp Marine Restricted Share Plan 2010. The 
ERCC has determined that up to 30% of the aggregate 
directors’ fees approved by shareholders for a particular 
financial year may be paid out in the form of restricted 
share awards. Directors’ cash fees and share awards 
will only be paid and granted upon approval by 
shareholders at an AGM. Directors and their associates 
also abstain from voting on any resolution(s) relating to 
their remuneration.

Corporate Governance
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Notes:
(1) Mr Wong Weng Sun, being an executive director, does not receive any director’s 

fee.
(2) Cash fees for executives of SCI (nominee directors) are payable to SCI, but share 

awards are received by nominee directors in their personal capacity.
(3) Attendance fees for committee meetings also apply to attendance at general 

meetings.
(4) Chairman of the Board will not receive the directors’ basic fee nor any further 

fees or allowances for servicing as a chairman or member of any Board 
committees.

Directors’ Fee Framework S$

(i)    Board of Directors
-  Basic Fee
-  All-in Chairman’s fee 
-  Deputy Chairman’s allowance

75,000
600,000
60,000

(ii)   Audit Committee, Executive Committee  
and Transformation Committee
-  Chairman’s allowance
-  Member’s allowance

50,000
30,000

(iii)   Board Risk Committee
-  Chairman’s allowance
-  Member’s allowance

40,000
25,000

(iv)   Executive Resource &  
Compensation Committee
-  Chairman’s allowance
-  Member’s allowance

35,000
20,000

(v)  Nominating Committee
-  Chairman’s allowance
-  Member’s allowance

25,000
15,000

(vi)  Attendance Fees
-  Board meeting
-  Committee meeting
-  Teleconference (Board meeting)
-  Teleconference (Committee meeting)

  5,000
  2,500
  2,000
  1,000

(vii)  Travel Allowance for overseas directors  
-  < 4 hours (to & fro air travel time)
-  4 to 15 hours (to & fro air travel time)
-  > 15 hours (to & fro air travel time)

  2,500
  5,000
 10,000

Share awards granted under the Sembcorp Marine 
Restricted Share Plan 2010 to directors as part of 
directors’ fee will consist of the grant of fully paid shares 
outright with no performance and vesting conditions 
attached, but with a selling moratorium. Non-executive 
directors are required to hold shares in the Company 
(including shares obtained by other means) worth 
at least the value of their annual basic retainer fee 
(currently S$75,000); any excess may be disposed of 
as desired. A non-executive director may only dispose 
all of his shares one year after leaving the Board. The 
Company will be seeking shareholders’ advance 
approval at the forthcoming AGM for directors’ fees 
for year 2015. Subject to shareholders’ approval, the 
cash component of the directors’ fees for year 2015 is 
intended to be paid half-yearly in arrears.

The actual number of shares to be awarded to each 
non-executive director will be determined by reference 
to the volume-weighted price of a share on the SGX-ST 
over the 14 trading days from (and including) the day on 
which the shares are first quoted ex-dividend after the 
AGM (or, if the resolution to approve the final dividend 
is not approved, over the 14 trading days immediately 
following the date of the AGM). The number of shares 
to be awarded will be rounded down to the nearest 
hundred and any residual balance will be settled in 
cash. The share component of the directors’ fee for 
FY2015 is intended to be paid after the AGM in 2016.

The Company does not have a retirement remuneration 
plan for non-executive directors. 

In 2014, the Company paid a one-time ex-gratia 
payment of S$380,000 to Mr Goh Geok Ling for his 
exceptional services rendered during his tenure as the 
Chairman of the Board.

Remuneration for Key Management Personnel

The Company’s remuneration and reward system for 
key management personnel is designed to ensure a 
competitive level of compensation to attract, retain and 
motivate employees to deliver high-level performance in 
accordance to the Company’s established risk policies. 
The remuneration of the key management personnel 
comprises three primary components: 

•	 Fixed	Remuneration
 Fixed remuneration includes annual basic salary, and 

where applicable, fixed allowances, annual wage 
supplement and other emoluments. Base salaries of 
key management personnel are determined based 
on the scope, criticality and complexity of each 
role, equity against peers with similar responsibilities, 
experience and competencies as well as individual 
performance relative to market competitiveness of 
roles with similar responsibilities.

•	 Annual	Variable	Bonuses
 The annual variable bonus is intended to recognise 

the performance and contributions of the individual, 
while driving the achievement of key business 
results for the Company. The annual variable bonus 
includes two components. The first is linked to the 
achievement of pre-agreed financial and non-
financial performance targets, while the second is

 linked to the creation of economic value added (EVA).
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 The EVA-linked bonus component is held in a “bonus 
bank”. Typically, one-third of the balance in the bonus 
bank is paid out in cash each year, while the balance 
two-thirds is carried forward to the following year. 
Such carried forward balances of the bonus bank 
may either be reduced or increased in future, based 
on the yearly EVA performance of the Group and its 
subsidiaries. There are provisions in the EVA incentive 
plan to allow for forfeiture of the outstanding 
balances in the bonus bank in exceptional 
circumstances of mis-statement of financial results or 
misconduct resulting in financial loss to the Company.

•	 Share-based	Incentives
 The Company’s performance share plan and 

restricted share plan were approved and adopted 
by the shareholders at an extraordinary general 
meeting of the Company held on 20 April 2010. 
Through the share-based incentives, the Company 
motivates key management personnel to continue 
to strive for the Group’s long-term shareholder value. 
In addition, the share-based incentive plans aim to 
align the interests of participants with the interests 
of shareholders, so as to improve performance and 
achieve sustainable growth for the Company.

Pay for Performance

As in prior years, a pay-for-performance study was 
conducted in 2014 by the Company’s external 
consultant, Mercer (Singapore), to review the alignment 
between the Group’s executive pay programme, 
shareholder returns and business results. The Group 
benchmarked itself with established global marine, 
energy services and engineering firms and comparably-
sized local listed companies with which the Group 
competes with for talent and capital. 

The study benchmarked different elements of senior 
executive pay, namely fixed remuneration, total cash 
remuneration and total compensation including long-
term incentives, against that of peer companies. It found 
senior executive pay to be positioned competitively 
vis-à-vis the Group’s relative size and performance. 
Executive compensation for the year had a robust 
correlation to the Group’s earnings before interest and 
taxes and EVA. In the longer term, there was also an 
alignment between executives’ total compensation 
(which includes share awards for the President & CEO 

and senior executives) and the Group’s three-year 
earnings before interest and taxes, return on capital 
employed and total shareholder returns. Overall, the 
study showed a strong correlation between the Group’s 
executive pay and its business results and shareholder 
returns, indicating strong pay-for-performance alignment.

Disclosure of Remuneration (Principle 9)
Clear disclosure on remuneration policy, level and 
mix of remuneration

Information regarding remuneration of each individual 
director (including the President & CEO), and the five 
key executives is set out on pages 253 to 254 of FY2014 
Annual Report. 

Key executives include the Managing Directors of 
Sembawang Shipyard Pte Ltd, SMOE Pte Ltd and PPL 
Shipyard Pte Ltd, the Executive Director of Jurong SML 
Pte Ltd, and the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the 
Group. 

There was no immediate family member of a director 
or the President & CEO whose remuneration exceeded 
$50,000 during FY2014.

Accountability and Audit 
Accountability (Principle 10)
A balanced and understandable assessment of the 
Company’s performance, position and prospects 

The Board is accountable to shareholders and 
announces the Company’s quarterly and full year 
financial results which present a balanced and 
understandable assessment of the Company’s 
performance, position and prospects in a timely manner 
via SGXNet. 

The Board ensures that the Company complies with the 
applicable legislative and regulatory requirements by 
establishing written policies where appropriate. 

Management provides all members of the Board with 
management accounts accompanied by detailed 
explanations and information on a monthly basis or as 
the Board may require from time to time, enabling the 
Board to make a balanced and informed assessment of 
the Company’s performance, position and prospects.  

Corporate Governance
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Risk Management and Internal Controls 
(Principle 11)
A sound system of risk management and internal 
controls 

Sembcorp Marine has put in place a sound system of 
risk management and internal controls to safeguard 
shareholders’ interest and the Group’s assets. Oversight 
responsibility of risk management and internal controls 
is delegated by the Board to the BRC and AC. Both 
committees work closely to ensure that the system of 
risk management and internal controls maintained by 
Management is adequate and effective.

The BRC comprises the following members, four of whom 
(including the Chairman) are independent directors and 
all of whom are non-executive directors:

Mr Ajaib Haridass (Chairman)
Mr Tang Kin Fei
Mr Ron Foo Siang Guan 
Mr Eric Ang Teik Lim
Mr Lim Ah Doo

As part of its oversight responsibilities, the BRC 
undertakes the following:

•	 assess	the	adequacy	and	effectiveness	of	the	
Group’s risk management framework (including 
policies, procedures and processes). Such reviews 
can be carried out internally or with the assistance of 
external parties

•	 determine	the	Group’s	risk	appetite	and	oversee	
Management in the design, implementation 
and monitoring of the Group’s risk management 
framework

•	 review	and	approve	the	Group’s	risk	policies,	plans,	
guidelines and limits

•	 review	the	infrastructure	and	resources	that	support	
risk management such as human resources, IT 
systems, reporting structure and procedures

To ensure that the system of risk management 
and internal controls is adequate and effective, 
Sembcorp Marine has implemented the Enterprise Risk 
Management (ERM) programme since 2004. The ERM 
programme helps the Group identify, assess and manage 
key risks in the challenging business environment that it 
operates in. For more information on the Group’s ERM 
programme, please refer to pages 48 to 49. 

Since 2012, Sembcorp Marine has put in place a risk 
governance assurance framework to assist the Board to 
form an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of 
the system of risk management and internal controls. The 
risk governance assurance framework was developed 
with the guidance from external consultants, and has 
been implemented for both Singapore and overseas 
shipyards.

During the year under review, the Board was assured by 
the President & CEO and CFO that the financial records 
have been properly maintained and the financial 
statements give a true and fair view of the Group’s 
operations and finances, and that the Group’s system of 
risk management and internal controls is adequate and 
effective.

The Board, having performed its review, and with 
the concurrence of AC and BRC, is satisfied that the 
financial, operational, compliance and information 
technology controls and risk management systems are 
adequate and effective as at 31 December 2014 to 
meet the needs of the Group in the current business 
environment.

This opinion is based on Management’s review and 
effort to continually strengthen the Group’s risk 
mitigating measures and internal controls, reports 
by the Internal Audit and Group Risk Management 
departments, statutory audits conducted by the external 
auditors as well as documentation in risk governance 
assurance framework. 

Internal controls, because of their inherent limitations, 
can provide only reasonable and not absolute 
assurance regarding the achievement of their intended 
control objectives. In this regard, the Board is satisfied 
that if significant internal control failures or weaknesses 
were to arise, necessary actions would be swiftly taken 
to remedy them.

The Risk Management report is found on pages 48 to 52 
of the FY2014 Annual Report.
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Audit Committee (Principle 12)
Establishment of an Audit Committee with written 
terms of reference

The AC comprises the following members, two of whom 
(including the Chairman) are independent directors and 
all of whom are non-executive directors:

Mr Lim Ah Doo (Chairman)
Mr Ron Foo Siang Guan 
Mr Koh Chiap Khiong

The Board is of the view that the members of the AC 
have the necessary financial management expertise 
and experience to discharge their responsibilities. 
Management, external auditors and internal auditors 
update the AC as and when there are changes to the 
accounting standards and issues which have a direct 
impact on financial statements.  

The AC is empowered and functions in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 201B of the Companies Act, the 
Listing Manual of SGX-ST (Listing Manual) and the Code. 
The AC has the authority to investigate any activity 
within its terms of reference. It has full access to and co-
operation by Management, and full discretion to invite 
any director or executive officer to attend its meetings. 
It is granted with reasonable resources for discharging its 
functions properly.    

The duties of the AC include:

•	 reviewing	quarterly	results	and	any	announcements	
relating to the Company’s financial performance

•	 reviewing	management’s	representation	on	financial	
matters and internal controls presented quarterly

•	 reviewing	interested	person	transactions	in	
accordance with the requirements of the Listing 
Manual 

•	 reviewing	with	the	external	auditors	and	internal	
auditors significant internal control issues, if any, 
which are likely to have a material impact on the 
Group’s operating results and/or financial position

•	 reviewing	the	representation	and	opinion	of	
Management and internal audit on internal controls, 
and the results of work performed by the internal 
and external auditors, to provide AC’s concurrence 
with the Board’s opinion on the adequacy 
and effectiveness of internal controls and risk 
management system

•	 reviewing	the	effectiveness	of	the	Company’s	
internal audit function

•	 reviewing	the	scope	and	results	of	the	external	
audit, and the independence and objectivity of the 
external auditors

•	 recommending	to	the	Board	on	the	appointment,	
re-appointment and removal of the external auditors, 
and approving the remuneration and terms of 
engagement of the external auditors

The AC meets with the external auditors and internal 
auditors without the presence of Management at least 
annually.

The AC had reviewed all the non-audit services provided 
to the Group by the Company’s external auditors, 
and is satisfied that such services had not affected the 
independence of the external auditors. A breakdown 
of the fees for audit and non-audit services paid to the 
auditors for FY2014 are found on page 207 of the FY2014 
Annual Report.

The Company has put in place a whistle-blowing policy 
and procedure, under the oversight of the AC. Through 
this avenue, the employees of the Group or any other 
persons may, in confidence, raise concerns about 
possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting 
or other matters. The AC ensures that arrangements 
are in place for such concerns to be independently 
investigated, and for appropriate follow-up action to be 
taken. 

During the year under review, the AC had carried out 
its duties in accordance with its terms of reference. 
The Chairman of the AC reports to the Board on AC’s 
proceedings and on all significant matters relevant to 
the AC’s duties and responsibilities. 

In appointing auditors for the Company and its 
subsidiaries and significant associated companies, the 
Company has complied with Rules 712 and 715 of the 
Listing Manual.

No former partner or director of the Company’s existing 
auditing firm or auditing corporation was appointed as a 
member of the Company’s AC for FY2014.

Corporate Governance
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Internal Audit 
An Effective Internal Audit Function 
(Principle 13)
Establishment of an internal audit function that is 
independent of the activities it audits

The head of the Company’s Internal Audit Department 
(IAD) reports functionally to the AC and administratively 
to the President & CEO. The AC has empowered the IAD 
with access to all functions, personnel and records in 
the organisation necessary for the performance of IAD’s 
reviews and duties. The AC also ensures that the IAD is 
adequately resourced. 

IAD plans internal audit reviews and resource 
requirements in consultation with, but independent of, 
the Management. Its risk-based plan is submitted to the 
AC for approval at the beginning of each year and the 
AC reviews the internal audit reports quarterly. The IAD 
conducts audit reviews to provide assurance that the 
internal controls are adequate and effective to meet 
the Group’s requirements.

IAD’s staff consist of suitably qualified professionals 
with the relevant experience and skill sets. Training and 
development opportunities are provided to these staff 
on an ongoing basis. 

The IAD adopts the International Standards for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing set by the 
Institute of Internal Auditors and had successfully 
completed an external Quality Assurance Review in 
2012.  

Shareholder Rights and 
Responsibilities 
Shareholder Rights (Principle 14)
Fair and equitable treatment of shareholders

Sembcorp Marine is committed to treat all shareholders 
fairly and equitably. The Company recognises, protects 
and facilitates the exercise of shareholders’ rights, and 
continually reviews and updates such governance 
arrangements. 

The Company ensures that there is an adequate 
disclosure of developments in the Group and such 
disclosure is in compliance with SGX-ST listing rules. 

The Company invites and encourages all registered 
shareholders to participate in the Company’s general 
meetings. Each shareholder will receive a notice of 
meeting which is also advertised in the newspapers 
and released via SGXNet. To facilitate attendance of 
shareholders at general meetings, Sembcorp Marine 
arranges for buses to transport shareholders from a 
convenient MRT station to its registered office at  
29 Tanjong Kling Road. The Company has always 
preferred holding the meetings at its registered office to 
offer shareholders an opportunity to visit the premises as 
well as to understand the Group’s operations. 

The Company’s articles allow a shareholder to appoint 
up to two proxies to attend and vote on his or her behalf 
at general meetings. Shareholders who hold shares 
through custodial institutions are allowed to attend 
general meetings as observers. 

Communication with Shareholders 
(Principle 15)
Regular, effective and fair communication with 
shareholders

The Company has put in place a comprehensive 
investor relations programme to promote regular, 
effective and fair communication with shareholders. The 
Company conveys pertinent information to shareholders 
and complies with the guidelines set out in the Listing 
Manual when disclosing information. 

The Company does not practise selective disclosure of 
price sensitive information. The Board announces the 
Company’s quarterly financial results and any significant 
transactions and developments via SGXNet on a timely 
basis.

General meetings are the principal forum for dialogue 
with shareholders. There is a question and answer session 
during which shareholders may raise questions or share 
their views regarding the proposed resolutions and the 
Group’s business and affairs.

The quarterly and full year results announcements 
provide financial and other performance information of 
the Group as a whole as well as by business segments. 
This allows shareholders to gain better insight into the 
earning drivers within Sembcorp Marine. The earnings 
results are first released via SGXNet and posted on the 
SGX-ST website. The Management team then holds a 
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briefing or teleconference for the media and analysts. 
Materials used at the briefing are made available on 
SGXNet and on the Company’s website at  
www.sembmarine.com. Following any release of 
earnings or price-sensitive developments, investor 
relations personnel are available by email or telephone 
to answer questions from shareholders and the media as 
long as the information requested does not conflict with 
the SGX-ST’s rules of fair disclosure.

Apart from the regular meetings, email communication 
and teleconferences with investors and analysts, the 
Management team also travels regularly to attend 
overseas road shows and conferences to reach out to 
foreign institutional investors.

Sembcorp Marine aims to balance returns to 
shareholders with the need for long-term sustainable 
growth. It strives to provide shareholders on an annual 
basis with a consistent and sustainable dividend based 
on cash position, working capital, capital expenditure 
plans, acquisition opportunities and market environment. 
The Board has recommended a final dividend of 8 
Singapore cents per share, bringing the total ordinary 
dividend for FY2014 to 13 Singapore cents, if the 
proposed dividend is approved by the shareholders at 
the forthcoming AGM.  

For further details on Sembcorp Marine’s communication 
with its shareholders, please see the ‘Investor Relations’ 
section of the FY2014 Annual Report.

Conduct of Shareholder Meetings  
(Principle 16)
Greater shareholder participation at general 
meetings

All registered shareholders are invited to participate in 
shareholders’ meetings. Each shareholder is allowed to 
appoint up to two proxies to attend and vote on his or 
her behalf at each general meeting pursuant to the 
Company’s articles of association. Voting in absentia by 
mail, facsimile or email is currently not permitted as such 
voting methods would need to be cautiously evaluated 
for feasibility to ensure that there is no compromise to the 
integrity of the information and the authenticity of the 
shareholders’ identity.

The Company ensures that separate resolutions are 
proposed for substantially separate issues at general 
meetings.

The Chairman, President & CEO, Chairman of the AC as 
well as other directors, CFO and company secretaries 
attend the meetings. The external auditors are also 
present to address shareholders’ queries about the 
conduct of audit and the preparation and content of 
the auditors’ report.    

The Company ensures that minutes of each meeting 
include substantial and relevant comments or 
queries from shareholders relating to the agenda 
of the meeting, and responses from the Board and 
Management. All minutes of shareholders’ meetings are 
available on request by registered shareholders.

Since 2012, the Company has conducted electronic 
poll voting at shareholders’ meetings for greater 
transparency in the voting process. The total number of 
votes cast for or against each resolution is tallied and 
displayed live on-screen to shareholders immediately 
after the vote has been cast and is also announced 
after the meetings via SGXNet.

Dealings in Securities
The Company has put in place a policy on dealings in 
securities, which prohibits dealings in the Company’s 
securities by its officers during the period commencing 
two weeks before the announcement of the Company’s 
financial statements for each of the first three quarters 
of the Company’s financial year, and one month 
before the announcement of the Company’s full year 
financial statements, and ending on the date of the 
announcement of the relevant results. 

The officers and employees of the Group are expected 
to observe insider trading laws at all times and are 
prohibited from dealing in the Company’s securities 
while in possession of price sensitive information and on 
short-term considerations.  

Interested Person Transactions (IPTs)
Shareholders approved the renewal of a general 
mandate for IPTs at the AGM on 22 April 2014. The 
mandate sets out the levels and procedures for 
obtaining approval for each type of IPTs covered under 
the mandate. Information regarding the mandate is 
available on the Company’s website at  
www.sembmarine.com.  

All business units are required to be familiar with the 
IPT mandate and report any such transactions to their 
respective finance departments. The Group finance 
department keeps a register of the Group’s IPTs.

Detailed information on IPTs for FY 2014 is found on  
page 254 of FY2014 Annual Report. 
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Guideline  Questions How has the Company complied?

General (a) Has the Company complied with all the principles and 
guidelines of the Code? If not, please state the specific 
deviations and the alternative corporate governance 
practices adopted by the Company in lieu of the 
recommendations in the Code.

(b) In what respect do these alternative corporate 
governance practices achieve the objectives of the 
principles and conform to the guidelines in the Code?

The Company has complied in all material 
aspects with the principles and guidelines set 
out in the Code. 

Board Responsibility

Guideline 1.5 What are the types of material transactions which require 
approval from the Board?

The Company has adopted a set of internal 
controls which sets out approval limits 
for different types of transactions. Board 
approval is required if the amount of a 
transaction exceeds a pre-defined threshold.

Members of the Board

Guideline 2.6 (a) What is the Board’s policy with regard to diversity in 
identifying director nominees?

(b) Please state whether the current composition of the 
Board provides diversity on each of the following – skills, 
experience, gender and knowledge of the Company, and 
elaborate with numerical data where appropriate.

(c) What steps has the Board taken to achieve the balance 
and diversity necessary to maximise its effectiveness?

(a) To ensure that directors possess 
the background, experience and 
knowledge in technology, business, 
finance and management skills 
critical to the Group’s business and 
that each director should bring to the 
Board an independent and objective 
perspective to enable balanced and 
well considered decisions to be made.

(b) Current Board members include business 
leaders, bankers and professionals with 
financial and legal backgrounds.

(c) The Nominating Committee reviews the 
composition of the Board and Board 
committees periodically to ensure that 
the Board is of an adequate size with 
the right mix of skills and experience that 
facilitates effective decision making.  

Guideline 4.6 Please describe the board nomination process for the 
Company in the last financial year for (i) selecting and 
appointing new directors and (ii) re-electing incumbent 
directors.

(i) The Nominating Committee assesses 
and shortlists a list of candidates for a 
new position on the Board when a need 
arises. The list of shortlisted candidates is 
submitted to the Board for review and 
approval and the successful candidate 
is then appointed as a director in 
accordance with the Company’s 
articles of association.

(ii) The Nominating Committee reviews 
the contribution and performance of 
each existing director before making 
recommendations to the Board for 
his re-election or re-appointment 
at the next AGM. Once the Board 
has considered and adopted the 
recommendations, the resolution 
proposing the re-election or  
re-appointment of a director will be 
tabled at the AGM for shareholders’ 
approval.

Disclosure Guide on Governance Practices
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Guideline  Questions How has the Company complied?

Guideline 1.6 (a) Are new directors given formal training?  
If not, please explain why.

(b) What are the types of information and training provided 
to (i) new directors and (ii) existing directors to keep them 
up-to-date?

(a) Yes.

(b)(i)   A comprehensive orientation 
programme, including facility visits 
to the Group’s various premises, is 
provided to all newly appointed 
directors. They are briefed on the 
Group’s business activities, financial 
performance, governance policies 
and practices, regulatory regime and 
their duties as directors.

(ii)   Directors are updated regularly on 
relevant new laws, regulations and 
changing business risks during Board 
meetings or at specially-convened 
sessions. Arrangements are made 
for them to attend training sessions, 
courses and seminars conducted by 
external consultants and institutions at 
the Company’s expense.

Guideline 4.4 (a) What is the maximum number of listed company board 
representations that the Company has prescribed for its 
directors? What are the reasons for this number?

(b) If a maximum number has not been determined, what are 
the reasons?

(c) What are the specific considerations in deciding on the 
capacity of directors?

(a) The Company has determined that a 
director should not hold more than 6 
principal board representations.

(b) Not applicable.

(c) To ensure that a director will have 
sufficient time and attention for the 
affairs of the Company.

Board Evaluation

Guideline 5.1 (a) What was the process upon which the Board reached the 
conclusion on its performance for the financial year?

(b) Has the Board met its performance objectives?

(a) The Nominating Committee reviews 
the Board’s performance annually, 
based on performance criteria as 
agreed by the Board. Each director was 
requested to complete a questionnaire 
based on certain areas of assessment. 
The evaluation and feedback from 
the directors were consolidated and 
submitted to the Board for discussion 
and further improvements in its 
performance.

(b) Based on the overall assessment for 
2014, the Board was effective as a 
whole.  

Independence of Directors

Guideline 2.1 Does the Company comply with the guideline on the 
proportion of independent directors on the Board? If not, 
please state the reasons for the deviation and the remedial 
action taken by the Company.

Yes. The current Board comprises  
8 directors, 5 of whom are independent 
directors.
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Guideline  Questions How has the Company complied?

Guideline 2.3 (a) Is there any director who is deemed to be independent by 
the Board, notwithstanding the existence of a relationship 
as stated in the Code that would otherwise deem him not 
to be independent? If so, please identify the director and 
specify the nature of such relationship.

(b) What are the Board’s reasons for considering him 
independent? Please provide a detailed explanation.

(a) Yes. (i) Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican 
who is a non-executive director and 
independent director of Sembcorp 
Industries Ltd (SCI), a controlling 
shareholder of the Company. He is 
also a Senior International Advisor at 
Temasek International Advisors,  
(ii) Mr Ajaib Haridass who is a non-
executive director and independent 
director of SCI and (iii) Mr Eric Ang Teik 
Lim who is a Senior Executive Advisor of 
DBS Bank Ltd which provides banking 
services to the Group.

(b) Please refer to page 33 of the FY2014 
Annual Report.

Guideline 2.4 Has any independent director served on the Board for more 
than nine years from the date of his first appointment? If so, 
please identify the director and set out the Board’s reasons for 
considering him independent.

Yes, Mr Ajaib Haridass has served as an 
independent director on the Board for more 
than 9 years. The Board had conducted a 
rigorous review on Mr Ajaib Haridass’ status 
and considers him to be an independent 
director of the Company. The Board is of 
the view that Mr Haridass has continued 
to demonstrate ability to exercise strong 
independent judgment and act in the 
interests of the Company. Further, having 
gained in-depth understanding of the 
business and operating environment of 
the Group, Mr Ajaib Haridass provides 
the Company with much needed 
experience and knowledge of the industry. 
His contributions are invaluable to the 
Company. 

Disclosure on Remuneration

Guideline 9.2 Has the Company disclosed each director’s and the CEO’s  
remuneration as well as a breakdown (in percentage or dollar 
terms) into base/fixed salary, variable or performance-related 
income/bonuses, benefits in kind, stock options granted,  
share-based incentives and awards, and other long-term 
incentives? If not, what are the reasons for not disclosing so?

Yes. This information can be found on pages 
138 to 151, 253 to 254 of the FY2014 Annual 
Report.
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Guideline  Questions How has the Company complied?

Disclosure on Remuneration

Guideline 9.3 (a) Has the Company disclosed each key management 
personnel’s remuneration, in bands of $250,000 or in more 
detail, as well as a breakdown (in percentage or dollar 
terms) into base/fixed salary, variable or performance-
related income/bonuses, benefits in kind, stock options 
granted, share-based incentives and awards, and other 
long-term incentives? If not, what are the reasons for not 
disclosing so?

(b) Please disclose the aggregate remuneration paid to 
the top five key management personnel (who are not 
directors or the CEO).

(a) Yes. This information can be found on 
pages 223, 253 to 254 of the FY2014 
Annual Report.

(b) This information can be found on pages 
223, 253 to 254 of the FY2014 Annual 
Report.

Guideline 9.4 Is there any employee who is an immediate family member 
of a director or the CEO, and whose remuneration exceeds 
S$50,000 during the year? If so, please identify the employee 
and specify the relationship with the relevant director or the 
CEO.

No.

Guideline 9.6 (a) Please describe how the remuneration received by 
executive directors and key management personnel has 
been determined by the performance criteria.

(b) What were the performance conditions used to determine 
their entitlement under the short-term and long-term 
incentive schemes?

(c) Were all of these performance conditions met? If not, 
what were the reasons?

The remuneration of the key management 
personnel comprises three primary 
components: Fixed Remuneration, Annual 
Variable Bonuses and Share-based 
Incentives. Information on the remuneration 
received by executive directors and key 
management personnel and details on 
share-based incentives and performance 
targets are available on pages 215 to 224, 
253 to 254 of the FY2014 Annual Report.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

Guideline 6.1 What types of information does the Company provide to 
independent directors to enable them to understand its 
business, the business and financial environment as well as the 
risks faced by the Company? How frequently is the information 
provided?

All directors have access to complete, 
adequate and timely information and 
resources. Directors are provided with 
electronic tablets to enable them to access 
Board and Board committee papers 3 days 
prior to and during meetings. 

The Management provides all members 
of the Board with management accounts 
accompanied by detailed explanations 
and information on a monthly basis or as 
the Board may require from time to time, 
enabling the Board to make a balanced 
and informed assessment of the Company’s 
performance, position and prospects.

Guideline 13.1 Does the Company have an internal audit function?  
If not, please explain why.

Yes. The head of the Internal Audit 
Department reports functionally to the Audit 
Committee and administratively to the 
President & CEO.
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Guideline  Questions How has the Company complied?

Guideline 11.3 (a) In relation to the major risks faced by the Company, 
including financial, operational, compliance, information 
technology and sustainability, please state the bases for 
the Board’s view on the adequacy and effectiveness of 
the Company’s internal controls and risk management 
systems.

(b) In respect of the past 12 months, has the Board received 
assurance from the CEO and the CFO as well as the  
internal auditor that: (i) the financial records have been  
properly maintained and the financial statements give 
a true and fair view of the Company’s operations and 
finances; and (ii) the Company’s risk management and 
internal control systems are effective? If not, how does the 
Board assure itself of points (i) and (ii) above?

(a) The Company has put in place a risk 
governance assurance framework to 
assist the Board to form an opinion on 
the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
system of risk management and internal 
controls. The risk governance assurance 
framework was developed with the 
guidance from external consultants, 
and has been implemented for both 
Singapore and overseas shipyards.

(b) Yes.

Guideline 12.6 (a) Please provide a breakdown of the fees paid in total to 
the external auditors for audit and non-audit services for 
the financial year.

(b) If the external auditors have supplied a substantial 
volume of non-audit services to the Company, please 
state the bases for the Audit Committee’s view on the 
independence of the external auditors.

(a) Please refer to page 207 of the FY2014 
Annual Report.

(b) The amount of non-audit fees 
compared to the total annual audit fees 
is 30% and not deemed as substantial.

Communication with Shareholders

Guideline 15.4 (a) Does the Company regularly communicate with 
shareholders and attend to their questions? How often 
does the Company meet with institutional and retail 
investors?

(b) Is this done by a dedicated investor relations team (or 
equivalent)? If not, who performs this role?

(c) How does the Company keep shareholders informed 
of corporate developments, apart from SGXNET 
announcements and the annual report?

(a) Yes. Details can be found on pages 22, 
55 to 57 of the FY2014 Annual Report.

(b) It is done by a dedicated investor 
relations team and involves the senior 
management team.

(c) Details can be found on pages 22, 55 to 
57 of the FY2014 Annual Report.

 

Guideline 15.5 If the Company is not paying any dividends for the financial 
year, please explain why.

Not applicable.
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Risk Management

Risk Governance Structure 
Risk governance in the Group is driven by the Board Risk Committee (BRC), which 
assists the Board of Directors to oversee the design, implementation and monitoring of 
the Group’s system of risk management and internal controls. The BRC is responsible for 
communicating an appropriate tone from the top across the Group through policies 
and engagement with management. A total of four BRC meetings were held during 
the year and there were regular reviews and conversations with management on risk 
governance topics, including risk appetite, risk profile and treatment plans. Through the 
reviews and discussions, the BRC is able to assess the adequacy and effectiveness of 
the Group’s system of risk management and internal controls.

The year in review saw the recovery of the US economy 
on a more solid footing compared to the rest of the world, 
while Europe and China faced slowdowns. The US Federal 
Reserve ended over five years of quantitative easing, as Ebola 
threatened to spread to the rest of the world. Global oil price 
started a downward slide in the last quarter of 2014, precipitated 
by US shale oil production and OPEC’s reluctance to cut output. 
In such a global environment where risk parameters are inter-
related and constantly changing, it is ever more important for 
Sembcorp Marine to have a sound risk management framework 
to identify, assess and mitigate risks appropriately such that the 
Group may continue to achieve its corporate vision and mission.

Sembcorp Marine has implemented its Enterprise Risk 
Management (ERM) framework since 2004. To date, the Group 
has partnered with various external consultants to strengthen its 
ERM framework to keep pace with the global risk environment 
and evolving regulatory requirements impacting the business 
directly and indirectly. The Group continues to leverage on 
and enhance the risk and governance assurance framework 
to provide assurance on the system of risk management and 
internal controls.

The Group’s Business Continuity Management (BCM) framework 
remains an integral part of the ERM framework and supports the 
Group’s business continuity objectives by providing response and 
recovery plans for key disaster scenarios, including major fire and 
explosion, prolonged power outage, infectious disease outbreak 
and major IT disruption or failure.

Governance and Transparency
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self assessments continue to be an integral part of the 
system of risk management and internal controls. Key risk 
management initiatives undertaken in the year include:

•	 Operationalised	risk	appetite	–	The	Board	has	
approved the Group risk appetite statements, risk 
tolerance metrics and tolerance limits. Monitoring of 
the risk tolerance metrics and tolerance limits was 
delegated to the BRC, with selected key metrics 
reported to the Board. The approved Group risk 
appetite has been operationalised in the business 
units and corporate functions.

•	 Enhanced	risk	and	governance	assurance	framework	
(RGAF) – Working with external consultants, the 
Group has further enhanced the existing RGAF. To 
ensure successful implementation, representatives 
from Group Risk Management and Internal Audit 
conducted workshops to communicate to key 
stakeholders the expectations of the enhanced 
framework.

•	 Formalised	reporting	of	emerging	risks	–	Emerging	
risks are new risks which often result from changes 
in market conditions, political, legal or operating 
environment. The Group has formalised the 
reporting of emerging risks, which serves to facilitate 
dialogue between stakeholders in the BRC and ERM 
Committee and provides an early warning system.

•	 Anti-bribery	and	corruption	–	The	Group	has	
implemented an anti-bribery and corruption policy 
in the year of review. The policy ensures that due 
diligence is performed on third party representatives 
before they are engaged to represent the Group, 
and that these representatives do not violate anti-
bribery laws and regulations in their course of work.

•	 Awareness	training	on	Governance,	Risk	and	Controls	
– Group Risk Management and Internal Audit 
has together conducted training and awareness 
sessions to communicate and educate employees 
on corporate governance, risk management and 
internal controls.

Key Risks and Mitigation 
Strategies 
The Group conducts an exercise to review its top 
risk profile on an annual basis, or whenever there 
are significant changes to the business or operating 
environment. During the review, both internal and 

The Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Committee, 
chaired by the President & CEO, is responsible for 
managing the system of risk management and internal 
controls as well as reporting key risks and emerging risks 
to the BRC. The ERM Committee comprises strategic 
business unit heads, business unit chief risk officers 
and corporate function heads who champion their 
respective key risk areas. The ERM Committee reviews 
risk issues at both the Group and strategic business 
unit levels, covering risk policy matters, top risk profiles, 
treatment plans as well as other Group risk initiatives. 

Supporting the ERM Committee are Sub-committees 
which are responsible for their respective areas such as 
Health, Safety, Security and Environment (HSSE), Human 
Resource, Project Risk Management, Finance, Information 
Technology, Procurement and Critical Assets, amongst 
others. These Sub-committees are chaired by senior 
management staff who are appointed by the President 
& CEO from the strategic business units or the Group’s 
corporate functions.

Board of Directors

Board Risk Committee

Enterprise Risk Management  
Committee

Enterprise Risk Management  
Sub-committees

Sembcorp Marine’s Risk Governance 
Structure:

Key Risk Management Initiatives 
During the course of the year, the Group has reviewed 
and strengthened its risk policies, and also reviewed 
the risk profile and treatment plans at the Group, 
business unit and corporate function levels. Control 
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external factors are examined to determine the Group’s 
top risk profile. The top risk profiles of strategic business 
units and overseas shipyards as well as risk factors in the 
global environment are analysed and deliberated by 
the BRC and ERM Committee.

Strategic Risks 
The Group has in place mid to long term plans to 
grow its business and operations both in Singapore 
and globally. While shifts in customer requirements, 
advancement in technology and competitor offerings 
are considered during the development of the Group’s 
strategies, unforeseen developments in these areas 
may present risks and opportunities. Hence, the Group 
constantly keeps ahead of such developments to 
calibrate its strategies and re-evaluate its investments in 
order to mitigate risks which may arise, or capitalise on 
opportunities that present themselves.

External Environment Risks 
External environment risks have far-reaching impacts 
which affect the Group and its customers, suppliers, 
vendors and other business partners. Such risks include 
volatilities in the commodity market, health of the world 
economy, stability in the global financial and banking 
systems, foreign exchange fluctuations, changes in 
political regimes and regulatory landscape, and natural 
disasters. 

Sembcorp Marine recognises that external environment 
risks are inherently volatile and unpredictable and may 
cause interruption to the Group’s business continuity. 
Working within these constraints, the Group strives to 
mitigate such risks to as low as reasonably practicable 
with due consideration given to achieving an 
appropriate risk-reward balance.

In the year under review, the Group has implemented 
an emerging risk reporting framework which serves 
to provide a structured and formalised approach for 
horizon scanning to identify external environment risks as 
they develop.

Project Management Risks 
Project management is a multi-disciplined field spanning 
across project tender, contract negotiation, contract 
award, engineering, procurement, construction, 
commissioning and delivery. The Group has consistently 
demonstrated good project management through 

an established track record of safe and timely project 
deliveries, meeting budget, quality and environmental 
requirements.

The Project Risk Management Committee is chaired 
by the President & CEO and provides a platform for 
strategic business units to report and discuss material 
project risk matters, including project schedule, costs, 
work variations, financial and contractual issues.

However, risks in the form of underperformance or in 
severe cases, the failure of contractors, suppliers or 
vendors could cause project delays and cost overrun. To 
mitigate such events, the Group has in place a stringent 
selection process for these third parties. Once the third 
parties are engaged, their performances are regularly 
evaluated to ensure that they are able to deliver on their 
contractual obligations in a timely manner. 

Progress for the drillships under contract to Sete 
Brazil had been satisfactory. The Group continues to 
proactively manage the risks in contract execution. The 
construction of the Estaleiro Jurong Aracruz shipyard 
in Brazil is progressing well and initial operations have 
commenced in the Brazil shipyard. 

Financial Risks 
The Finance Committee is an ERM Sub-committee 
chaired by the Group Chief Financial Officer. The 
Committee comprises key finance staff from the 
strategic business units and corporate functions of 
treasury, tax, internal audit and risk management. The 
primary responsibilities of the Finance Committee cover 
the areas of financial system integrity, accounting, 
regulatory reporting, compliance, internal and external 
audit issues, and financial risks.

The Group’s international presence and worldwide 
clientele inevitably subjects it to financial risks arising 
from the global financial market, ranging from foreign 
exchange volatilities to customer credit risks. Policies 
and procedures addressing these areas have been 
established and implemented throughout the Group 
to mitigate the associated risks. These policies also set 
out financial approval limits for individual staff such that 
approvals for financial transactions are made within their 
authorised limits. The Group also has guidelines in place 
to manage costs of capital, foreign currency fluctuations 
and interest rates, as well as to ensure that the Group 
maintains a healthy cash flow to meet financial 
obligations and operational needs.

Risk Management
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Human Resource Risks 
The Group firmly believes that its employees are an 
asset to the organisation, without which, its objectives 
and strategies would not be achievable. Hence, the 
Group continues to invest in its human capital through 
a comprehensive and robust training and development 
programme. As operations at the Sembmarine 
Integrated Yard @ Tuas and the Estaleiro Jurong Aracruz 
shipyard in Brazil ramp up, there is an increased demand 
for capable staff in both shipyards. The Group provides 
competitive remuneration and benefits as well as 
progressive pathways for career development to attract 
and retain employees. Further human resource initiatives 
are discussed in the ‘People Development’ section of this 
report.

Health, Safety, Security and 
Environment Risks 
Providing a safe and healthy work environment for its 
customers, employees, contractors and the community 
is a top priority of the Group. The Group Health, 
Safety, Security and Environment (HSSE) Committee is 
responsible for implementing the Group’s four safety 
strategic thrusts to achieve its vision of zero incidents. 
The HSSE Committee, comprising key stakeholders from 
the various shipyards, monitors and reports the Group’s 
safety performance and other HSSE related matters to 
the ERM Committee and the BRC on a regular basis.

The ‘Workplace Safety and Security’ section of this 
annual report provides more information on the principal 
activities carried out during the year.

Compliance Risks 
Globally, there is an increasing trend of scrutiny and 
enforcement by authorities and government agencies 
that are also sharing information and cooperating with 
each another. Some legislation, e.g. anti-bribery laws 
and tax regulations, carries significant financial penalties 
and have extra-territorial reach. The US ‘Foreign Corrupt 
Practices Act’ and the UK ‘Bribery Act’ both have 
provisions on debarment from government contracts. In 
addition, the Group is required to comply with sanctions 
and trade embargoes imposed by international bodies 
such as the United Nations and European Union. Against 
this backdrop, the Group has developed a compliance 
register to identify legal and regulatory obligations which 
strategic business units are subjected to.

Information Technology Risks
The Group Information Technology (IT) Committee is the 
key ERM Sub-committee to identify and discuss IT risk 
issues faced by the Group’s business and operations. 
Chaired by the Senior Vice President of Group 
Management Information Systems, the Committee’s 
mandate is to design and implement the Group’s IT 
governance framework and strategies, including IT risk 
management and controls. The Committee, comprising 
key IT personnel from strategic business units, meets 
regularly to discuss matters relating to IT policies and 
implementation.

During the year, the IT Committee has reviewed and 
updated the Group IT risk profile and IT policies. The 
Committee has also reviewed key IT processes for 
process harmonisation and enhanced the security of  
the Group’s network and infrastructure.

Critical Assets Risks 
The smooth functioning of critical assets in the shipyards 
such as docks and quays, material handling equipment, 
workshops, launching facilities, power and utilities 
equipment and infrastructure ensure that operations 
are efficient and effective. The Group Critical Assets 
Committee has the task of maintaining high availability 
of critical assets through policies, procedures and best 
practices which are aligned with international standards 
in order to meet the Group’s operational objectives.

Each strategic business unit has stringent policies and 
procedures in place for the operation and maintenance 
of their critical assets, as well as measurement of key 
performance indicators. During the year, the Committee 
has developed best practice manuals for the critical 
assets and reviewed the Group’s critical assets risk profile 
and mitigating plans.

Fraud and Corruption Risks 
The Group takes a zero tolerance stance towards fraud 
and corruption in its business and operating environment. 
This stance is clearly articulated in the BRC approved 
fraud risk management policy and communicated to 
the Group via the risk appetite statements, risk metrics, 
tolerance limits and awareness training sessions.
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The Group does not tolerate any acts of fraud or 
corruption committed by employees or parties that 
provide dishonest or unfair benefits to themselves or 
related parties to the detriment of the organisation. 
Perpetrators will face penalties, such as disciplinary 
warnings or termination of employment or other 
contractual relationships. Offenders who violate the law 
or regulations will be reported to the appropriate law 
enforcement or regulatory body. 

During the year under review, there was no termination, 
non-renewal, or disciplinary action taken against 
employees or business partners arising from confirmed 
corruption or corruption related incidents.

The Group’s Fraud Risk Management (FRM) framework 
provides the key defense against fraud risk. Under the 
FRM framework, the Group had identified violation of 
anti-bribery and corruption laws such as the US ‘Foreign 
Corrupt Practices Act’ (FCPA) and the UK ‘Bribery Act’ 
as a significant risk in the fraud risk assessment. The 
Group’s FRM and anti-bribery policies and requirements 
are communicated across its global operations to 
key business partners including customers, suppliers 
and contractors. During the year, external consultants 
conducted several training sessions for management 
and other selected employees. Group Risk Management 
and Group Internal Audit also conducted a series of 
in-house sessions to raise awareness and educate staff 
on risk governance and internal controls, including the 
corresponding FRM and anti-bribery policies. These 
trainings were also extended to employees in overseas 
yards. To date, close to 3,000 employees have received 
anti-bribery and corruption training.

An open whistle-blowing channel remains an effective 
means utilised by the Group to combat fraud and 
corruption risks and for employees and external parties 
to raise concerns about possible improprieties in 
confidence for independent investigation.

Other Group-wide Risk-based 
Activities 
In addition to the key risk management initiatives and 
risk mitigating measures, the Control Self Assessment 
programme and insurance programme supplements 
the Group risk governance and risk management 
framework.

Control Self Assessment 
The Group’s Control Self Assessment (CSA) programme 
is an integral part of the overall risk and governance 
assurance framework. The CSA programme has been 
implemented in strategic business units since 2008 
and was rolled out to overseas shipyards in 2013. A risk 
based approach is taken to identify suitable processes 
and controls, for which CSA questionnaires would 
be completed by process and control owners on a 
quarterly basis. Updates on the CSA programme are 
reported at the BRC and ERM Committee meetings 
each quarter. 

Through the programme, weaknesses in the control 
environment may be detected and reported to 
management in a structured and formalised approach 
and corrective actions are taken to strengthen the 
processes concerned and prevent future occurrences. 
In addition to providing assurance that key controls are 
adequate and effective, the CSA programme also instills 
ownership among the process and controls owners, and 
promotes a sense of accountability.

Insurance 
The Group leverages on insurance as a means of 
risk transfer where it is cost effective or required by 
contractual obligations or by legislation (e.g. the ‘Work 
Injury Compensation Act’). Insurance coverage has 
been taken by the Group against foreseeable events 
which may potentially cause catastrophic financial 
losses. The Group’s approach on insurance is to strike 
a balance between the risk management capabilities 
to mitigate risk levels, and the cost benefits of a 
comprehensive insurance programme.

Through pooling of the strategic business units’ common 
insurance needs, insurance is procured at the Group 
level, to achieve better cost efficiency. The Group 
Insurance Committee maintains a close working 
relationship with insurance brokers and continually 
monitors insurance market conditions to ensure optimal 
coverage for the Group at competitive prices. During 
the year, the Group Insurance Committee has reviewed 
the sum insured for the Group’s critical assets, motor fleet 
and employees’ benefit insurance programme.

Risk Management
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Impetus, Oro Negro’s third proprietary Pacific Class 400 design jack-up rig.
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Results briefing with analysts, bankers and media.

Governance and Transparency

Investor Relations
Sembcorp Marine is committed to provide capital market 
investors with timely and reliable communication and 
upholds the highest standards of corporate governance 
and transparency in compliance with evolving regulatory 
requirements. To enable the financial community to make 
informed investment decisions, the Group utilises multiple 
platforms to share accurate, coherent and balanced accounts 
of its strategies, operations and performance. Through channels 
such as the Group’s corporate and related websites, group 
briefings, investor conferences, meetings and visits for analysts, 
media and investors, Sembcorp Marine ensures that key 
information on the Group’s businesses and performance is 
disseminated on a timely and non-exclusive basis.
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Sembcorp Marine’s Annual General Meeting (AGM) and Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM).

Proactive and Timely 
Communication 
Sembcorp Marine’s senior management and investor 
relations team continued to maintain dynamic two-way 
communication channels with stakeholders from the 
investment communities in 2014. In addition to providing 
them an in-depth understanding of the Group’s 
operations and financial performance, these platforms 
shared knowledge on business dynamics and industry 
outlook.

During the year, the Group held about 150 one-on-one 
meetings, conference calls, post-result meetings, 
investors’ conference meetings and yard tours for 
analysts and institutional investors. In addition, the Group 
organised briefings and conference calls to announce 
and discuss its four quarterly results.

To keep in touch with the overseas shareholders and 
investor base, the Group also participated in investor 
conferences and non-deal roadshows in Hong Kong, 
Japan, the United Kingdom, Europe, Canada and the 
United States, with 80 one-on-one and group meetings 
secured over the year in review. 

To engage the retail shareholder community, the Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) is held every April, for the 
shareholders to meet and interact with the Board of 
Directors and senior management as well as vote on the 
resolutions being tabled. Sembcorp Marine’s AGM on  
22 April 2014 was well-attended by over 200 shareholders 
and observers. 

Results announcements, press releases and news 
updates are released through a dedicated  
investor relations section on the Group’s website  
www.sembmarine.com, email alerts, and the Singapore 
Exchange website SGXNET. Quarterly results for the 
Group are announced within 45 days of the close of 
the previous quarter to provide the most up-to-date 
information.

The Group’s annual report, published both in hardcopy 
and CD as well as through the website, remains a key 
source of information for strategic, financial, operational 
and sustainability reporting. The investor relations team 
can be contacted at ir@sembmarine.com.

To ensure communication is dynamic, industry research 
reports as well as feedback from investor meetings are 
provided to management and the Board in a timely 
fashion.
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Announcements of Results & Dividends 2015 2014

Full year February 12 February 24

Quarter 1 April 27* May 2

Quarter 2 July 29* August 4

Quarter 3 October 22* November 5

Final Dividend Payment May 14 May 14

Delivery of Annual Report and Extraordinary General Meeting Notice April 1 April 3

Annual General Meeting/Extraordinary Meeting April 17 April 22

* Updates will be posted at www.sembmarine.com

Financial Calendar

Fund managers’ visit at the Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas.
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Diversified Shareholder Base
As at 6 March 2015, Sembcorp Marine had 38,920 
registered shareholders. The actual number of investors 
is likely to be more as some shares are held through 
nominees, investment funds and other share schemes. 

Sembcorp Industries continued to dominate as the 
largest shareholder with 61.08% of shares. Approximately 
38.22% of the shareholding is held by the public, which 
includes institutional and retail shareholders. Mitigating 
concentration risk and ensuring market liquidity, the 
shareholder base was well-diversified across key cities 
in the United States, Europe, the United Kingdom, 
Australia, New Zealand, Japan, Hong Kong, Malaysia and 
Singapore.

Briefing the investment community on Sembcorp Marine’s capabilities.

Yard tours are extended to analysts and fund managers to provide a deeper understanding of the Group’s operations.

Management panel responding to queries during a financial results briefing.

Share Performance  
Sembcorp Marine is a component of the Straits Times 
Index, with a market capitalisation of approximately  
$6.3 billion based on the closing share price of $3.26 on  
6 March 2015. In 2014, the share price registered $4.45 at 
its highest and $2.89 at its lowest. 

The daily turnover averaged 3.5 million shares in 2014 
and 3.2 million shares from January 2015 to February 
2015. 

In line with the sharp decline in oil prices, Sembcorp 
Marine share price has underperformed the FSSTI Index 
and the MSCI–Asia Pacific (excluding Japan) Index by 
9.71% and 11.58% respectively year-to-date (from  
2 January 2015 to 6 March 2015).
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Notes:
1 Ordinary shares purchased and held as treasury shares by the Company will have no voting rights.
2 Based on 2,089,760,107 shares in issue (and disregarding 3,607,713 shares held in treasury) as at 6 March 2015.
3  Temasek is deemed to be interested in the 1,274,270,764 shares held by SCI and the 3,016,343 shares in which its subsidiaries and/or 

associated companies have or are deemed to have an interest pursuant to Section 4 of the Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289.

Location of  
Shareholders

No. of  
Shareholders

% No. of Shares %

Singapore 37,802 97.13 2,066,536,993 99.06

Malaysia 687 1.77 7,675,725 0.37

Hong	Kong 45 0.12 459,200 0.02

Japan 5 0.01 5,951,000 0.29

US 29 0.07 301,800 0.01

UK 31 0.08 359,560 0.02

Europe 13 0.03 61,600 0.00

Australia/New	Zealand 93 0.24 726,200 0.03

Others 215 0.55 4,080,316 0.20

Total 38,920 100.00 2,086,152,394 100.00

Location of Shareholders

Size of  
Shareholdings No. of Shares %

1 – 999  55  1,497 

100 – 1000  5,449  5,095,338 

1,001 – 10,000  26,404  120,685,015 

10,001 – 1,000,000 6,984 239,944,655

1,000,001 and above  28  1,720,425,889 

Grand Total  38,920  2,086,152,394 

Distribution of Shareholdings

Substantial Shareholders
Direct Interest Deemed Interest Total Interest

No. of shares %2 No. of shares %2 No. of shares %2

Sembcorp Industries Ltd (“SCI”) 1,274,270,764 61.08 – – 1,274,270,764 61.08

Temasek	Holdings	(Private)	Limited	(“Temasek”)3 – 1,277,287,107 61.23  1,277,287,107 61.23

Statistics of Shareholdings as at 6 March 2015    

Share Capital
Issued and fully paid up capital : S$484,288,253.02
Number of issued shares : 2,089,760,107
Number of treasury shares : 3,607,713
Number of shareholders : 38,920
Class of shares and voting rights :  Ordinary shares with equal voting rights1

Shareholding Held by the Public
Based on information available to the Company as at 6 March 2015, approximately 38.22% of the issued ordinary shares of the 
Company is held by the public and therefore, the Company has complied with Rule 723 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore 
Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

No. Name No. of Shares %

1 Sembcorp Industries Ltd       1,274,270,764 61.08 

2 DBS	Nominees	Pte	Ltd										  102,781,753  4.93 

3 DBSN	Services	Pte	Ltd									  86,460,085  4.14 

4 Citibank	Noms	S’pore	Pte	Ltd		  65,588,023  3.14 

5 United	Overseas	Bank	Nominees	  45,676,529  2.19 

6 HSBC	(Singapore)	Noms	Pte	Ltd	  28,538,439  1.37 

7 Raffles	Nominees	(Pte)	Ltd				  28,419,760  1.36 

8 BNP	Paribas	Securities	Svcs			  12,131,444  0.58 

9 Bank	of	S’pore	Noms	Pte	Ltd			  11,497,710  0.55 

10 Tan	Kwi	Kin																			  10,293,210  0.49 

11 OCBC	Nominees	Singapore							  8,445,022  0.40 

12 OCBC Securities Private Ltd    6,314,810  0.30 

13 DB	Nominees	(S)	Pte	Ltd							  4,921,459  0.24 

14 IMC Co., Ltd.                  4,100,000  0.20 

15 Wong Weng Sun                  3,378,918  0.16 

16 Phillip Securities Pte Ltd     3,023,692  0.14 

17 DBS Vickers Secs (S) Pte Ltd   3,004,100  0.14 

18 BNP	Paribas	Noms	S’pore	Pl				  2,761,228  0.13 

19 ABN	AMRO	Noms	S’pore	Pte	Ltd		  2,564,856  0.12 

20 UOB	Kay	Hian	Pte	Ltd										  2,516,849  0.12 

Total 1,706,688,651 81.78 

Top 20 Shareholders

Substantial Shareholders

Shareholders’ Information

Governance and Transparency
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Share Prices & Monthly Volumes

Investor Data 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Earnings Per Share (cents) 41.55 36.13 25.81 26.61 26.83

Total Dividend Per Share (cents) 36.00 25.00 13.00 13.00 13.00

Share price ($)

High 5.40 6.01 5.28 4.87 4.45

Low 3.23 3.10 3.80 4.13 2.89

Close 5.37 3.82 4.60 4.45 3.26

Turnover

Volume (Million share) 1,292 1,827 1,558 923 807

Value ($’Million) 5,463 8,273 5,671 4,086 3,048

Net Tangible Assets
Per Share (cents)

124.80 114.14 115.19 126.76 139.40
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Corporate Structure

100%
Jurong shipyard Pte ltd 

100%
sembawang shipyard Pte ltd

100%
sMoE Pte ltd

85%
PPl shipyard Pte ltd

100%
Jurong sMl Pte ltd

100%
Estaleiro Jurong aracruz ltda

(Brazil)

90%
Pt sMoE indonesia

(Indonesia)

40%
sembmarine Kakinada ltd

(India)

100%
Pt Karimun sembawang shipyard 

(Indonesia)

30%
cosco shipyard group co ltd

(People’s Republic of China)

70%
sembmarine slP limited

(United	Kingdom)

100%
Jurong do Brasil Prestação de

serviços ltda
(Brazil)

100%
Jurong Marine contractors Pte ltd

100%
Dolphin shipping company Pte ltd

70%
shanghai Jurong Marine 

Engineering & technology co. ltd
(People’s Republic of China)

100%
Bulk trade Pte ltd

85.8%
JPl industries Pte ltd

100%
Jurong Marine services Pte ltd

100%
Jurong offshore Pte ltd

100%
sembmarine ssP inc

(USA)

100%
sembcorp Marine technology 

Pte ltd

85%
Baker Marine Pte ltd

20%
Ecospec global technology 

Pte ltd

Governance and Transparency

SInGAPORE 
SHIPyARDS

OVERSEAS 
SHIPyARDS

SuPPORTInG 
COMPAnIES

RESEARCH & 
DEVELOPMEnT
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Registered Office
SEMBCORP MARINE LTD 
29 Tanjong Kling Road, Singapore 628054
Telephone : (65) 6265 1766
Fax : (65) 6265 0201 / (65) 6261 0738
Website: www.sembmarine.com

Board of Directors
Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican
Chairman

Wong Weng Sun
President & CEO

Ajaib Haridass
Tang Kin Fei
Ron Foo Siang Guan
Lim Ah Doo
Koh Chiap Khiong
Eric Ang Teik Lim

Audit Committee
Lim Ah Doo
Chairman 

Ron Foo Siang Guan
Koh Chiap Khiong

Executive Resource &  
Compensation Committee
Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican
Chairman

Tang Kin Fei
Ajaib Haridass 

nominating Committee
Ajaib Haridass
Chairman

Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican
Tang Kin Fei

Board Risk Committee
Ajaib Haridass
Chairman

Tang Kin Fei
Ron Foo Siang Guan
Eric Ang Teik Lim 
Lim Ah Doo

Transformation Committee
Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican
Chairman

Ron Foo Siang Guan
Lim Ah Doo
Koh Chiap Khiong

Executive Committee
Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican
Chairman

Wong Weng Sun
Ajaib Haridass
Tang Kin Fei

Company Secretaries
Tan Yah Sze
Kem Huey Lee Sharon

Registrar
KCK Corpserve Pte Ltd
333 North Bridge Road
#08-00 KH Kea Building
Singapore 188721

Share Listing
Sembcorp Marine’s shares are listed on the  
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

Principal Bankers
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ
Citibank N.A.
DBS Bank
Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation
Standard Chartered Bank
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
United Overseas Bank

Auditors
KPMG LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Audit Partner : Kenny Tan Choon Wah
(Appointed during the financial year ended  

December 31, 2013)

Corporate Directory
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$5.8b 
Turnover

$707m 
Profit Before Tax

26.8cents
Earnings per Share

13cents
Total Dividend per Share

$1.42 
Net Asset Value per Share

$707m 
Operating Profit

$560m 
Net Profit

 
20% 
Return on Equity

$662m
Net Debt

$331m 
Economic Value Added

Financial Review
Sembcorp Marine achieved a 10% year-on-year increase in 
operating profit from $644 million to $707 million in 2014.
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Turnover
Group turnover for Sembcorp Marine increased 6% 

to $5.8 billion in 2014 from $5.5 billion in 2013, mainly 

attributable to higher revenue recognition for rig building 

and offshore and conversion projects.

Earnings
Group operating profit in 2014 of $707 million was 
10% higher as compared with $644 million in 2013.  
Consequently, Group pre-tax profit also saw an increase 
of 7% to $707 million in 2014. Overall, net profit in 2014 
was $560 million as compared to $556 million in 2013. The 
increase was mainly due to higher operating profit from 
rig building, offshore and conversion projects.  

Financial Position
The Group’s total assets of $8.2 billion in 2014 were 14% 
higher than that of $7.3 billion in 2013. The increase 
in property, plant and equipment was mainly due to 
capital expenditures for the new shipyard in Brazil and 
Phase II of Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas.

Group total liabilities of $5.1 billion at 31 December 
2014 were 15% higher than the previous year-end. The 
increase in interest-bearing borrowings was mainly due 
to the issuance of $600 million Fixed Rate Notes for 
capital expenditures for Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ 
Tuas, bank borrowings for the new Brazil shipyard and a 
marine vessel. 

Total capital employed of $3.1 billion as at 31 December 
2014 comprised shareholders’ funds of $3.0 billion and 
non-controlling interests of $167 million.

Cash Flow and Liquidity
The Group’s total cash and cash equivalents stood at 
$1.1 billion as at 31 December 2014. 

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in 
working capital was $850 million in 2014. Net cash used 
in operating activities amounted to $508 million. This 
was mainly due to working capital for the ongoing rig 
building projects.

The Group’s net cash outflow from investing activities 
of $770 million in 2014 was lower than 2013. The Group 
spent $739 million on expansion and operational capital 
expenditure, mainly for the new shipyard in Brazil and 
Phase II of Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas. 

Net cash inflow from financing activities was $668 
million in 2014; net cash generated was mainly from net 
proceeds from borrowings, offset by dividends paid.

Shareholder Returns
The Group achieved a return on equity of 20%, in line 
with its efforts to achieve good returns for the 
shareholders.

Subject to approval by shareholders of Sembcorp 
Marine at the next Annual General Meeting, the Group is 
proposing a final one-tier tax-exempt ordinary dividend 
of 8 cents per share. Together with the interim one-tier 
tax-exempt dividend of 5 cents per share, total dividend 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 would 
be 13 cents per share.

Economic Value Added
The economic value added generated in 2014 
amounted to $331 million, 18% lower than 2013. This 
was mainly due to higher capital charge on the higher 
average capital employed. 

Value Added
Group’s total value added in 2014 was $1.5 billion. The 
amount distributed to employees in 2014 was $556 
million, income and other taxes to the government was 
$156 million, and interest and dividends to the providers 
of capital was $293 million, leaving a balance of $445 
million reinvested in the business.
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Group Quarterly Results

2014 ($’000) 1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q Total

Turnover  1,335,300  1,340,799  1,711,564  1,444,932  5,832,595 

Operating profit  148,842  154,447  171,359  232,377  707,025 

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation     
and amortisation (EBITDA)

 176,494  182,444  199,539  263,681  822,158 

Profit before tax  154,889  163,375  171,073  217,667  707,004 

Net profit  122,475  131,602  132,005  174,046  560,128 

Earnings per share (cents)

  Year-to-date  5.87  12.17  18.49  26.83 

  In-quarter  5.87  6.30  6.32  8.34 

2013 ($’000) 1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q Total

Turnover  1,050,122  1,124,247  1,658,765  1,692,748  5,525,882 

Operating profit  143,450  146,152  166,749  187,906  644,257 

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation 
and amortisation (EBITDA)

 167,499  170,921  193,472  212,972  744,864 

Profit before tax  148,014  155,308  169,929  187,286  660,537 

Net profit  118,743  124,885  129,677  182,442  555,747 

Earnings per share (cents)

  Year-to-date  5.69  11.67  17.87  26.61 

  In-quarter  5.69  5.98  6.21  8.73  

Financial Review
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2010
The Group reported a turnover of $4.6 billion, 20% lower 
than 2009 mainly due to lower progressive revenue 
recognition for the rig building, ship conversion and 
offshore projects as well as lower variation order 
settlement in 2010 as compared to 2009.

Group operating profit grew 9% from $862 million in 2009 
to $943 million, attributable to the resumption of margin 
recognition arising from the sale of a harsh-environment 
jack-up rig as well as the execution of repeat rig orders 
for customers during the year. 

Group pre-tax profit was $1.1 billion, 19% higher than 
2009. This was driven mainly by higher profit margin 
and the receipt of settlement of the disputed foreign 
exchange transactions with Societe Generale during 
the year. Group net profit achieved a new high of $860 
million, 23% more than $700 million in 2009. 

2011
Group turnover declined 13% to $4.0 billion in 2011 due 
mainly to the timing, number and value of the projects 
in varying progressive revenue recognition stages across 
the three business sectors of rig building, ship conversion 
and offshore as well as ship repair.

Operating profit decreased 22% to $737 million due 
mainly to fewer rig projects especially semi-submersible 
rigs. Group pre-tax profit of $850 million was 20% lower. 
Net profit for 2011 was $752 million as compared to 
$860 million in 2010. The 13% decline was due to lower 
operating profit from rig building projects and the 
receipt on the full and final amicable settlement of the 
disputed foreign exchange transactions with Societe 
Generale in 2010. This was offset by the higher interest 
income received in 2011 for deferred payment granted 
to customers and write-back of prior years’ tax over-
provisions.

2012
Group turnover of $4.4 billion was 12% higher than that 
of the previous year. This was attributable to increased 
contributions from rig building and offshore platform 
projects.

Operating profit decreased 25% from $737 million in 2011 
to $554 million in 2012 due mainly to the lower margin 
from new design rigs. There was also a resumption of 
margin recognition on completion and delivery of a 
semi-submersible in 2011. 

Group pre-tax profit saw a decline of 27% to $617 million. 
Net profit of $538 million was 28% lower than 2011 due to 
lower operating profit from rig building projects.

2013
Group turnover for 2013 was $5.5 billion representing a  
25% increase as compared with $4.4 billion in 2012. 
Overall, the higher turnover was attributable mainly to 
higher revenue recognition for rig building projects.

Operating profit in 2013 increased 16% from $554 million 
in 2012 to $644 million mainly due to contribution from 
higher turnover for rig building projects.

Group pre-tax profit was $661 million, 7% higher than 
2012. Net profit of $556 million was 3% higher than 2012 
mainly due to higher operating profit, offset by lower 
interest income and lower contribution from associates 
and joint ventures.

2014
Group turnover for 2014 was $5.8 billion representing 
a 6% increase as compared with $5.5 billion in 2013. 
Overall, the higher turnover was attributable mainly to 
higher revenue recognition for rig building, offshore and 
conversion projects. 

Operating profit in 2014 increased 10% from $644 million 
in 2013 to $707 million mainly due to contribution from 
higher turnover for rig building, offshore and conversion 
projects. 

Group pre-tax profit was $707 million, 7% higher than 
2013. Net profit of $560 million was 1% higher than 2013 
mainly due to higher operating profit, offset by higher 
tax expense. In 2013, tax expense was lower due to the 
recognition of tax incentives.

Financial Review
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Group Five-Year Financial Summary

For the year 2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2012
$’000

2013
$’000

2014
$’000

Turnover  4,554,863  3,960,230  4,430,123  5,525,882  5,832,595 

Operating profit  942,564  737,129  554,218  644,257  707,025 

Profit before tax  1,067,101  850,310  617,378  660,537  707,004 

Net profit  860,266  751,903  538,453  555,747  560,128 

Dividend - Interim  103,795  104,185  104,382  104,464  104,459 

Dividend - Final  125,093  125,303  125,347  125,359  167,148 

Dividend - Final special  521,223  292,375  41,782  41,787  – 

Dividend - Total  750,111  521,863  271,511  271,610  271,607 

Group Balance Sheet

Property, plant and equipment  681,948  1,034,345  1,476,206  2,394,167  3,008,909 

Associates & joint ventures  306,956  380,065  417,329  445,743  470,277 

Other financial assets  286,856  126,956  154,332  107,166  90,443 

Other long term assets  103,258  111,411  97,715  81,931  101,673 

Current assets  3,900,152  3,398,869  3,640,875  4,221,093  4,567,118 

Current liabilities  (2,448,773)  (2,400,252)  (2,718,214)  (3,530,406)  (3,448,597)

Long term liabilities  (143,471)  (145,314)  (521,218)  (910,182)  (1,657,796)

 2,686,926  2,506,080  2,547,025  2,809,512  3,132,027 

Share capital  456,561  470,596  480,086  484,288  484,288 

Capital, foreign currency translation  
and other reserves

 175,888  (24,695)  (26,335)  (76,179)  (76,625)

Retained profit  1,966,954  1,968,356  1,984,773  2,268,927  2,557,455 

Non-controlling interests  87,523  91,823  108,501  132,476  166,909 

 2,686,926  2,506,080  2,547,025  2,809,512  3,132,027 

Per Share

EPS - basic (cents)  41.55  36.13  25.81  26.61  26.83 

EPS - diluted (cents)  41.43  36.10  25.80  26.59  26.82 

Net tangible assets (cents)  124.80  114.14  115.19  126.76  139.40 

Net asset value (cents)  125.10  115.92  116.80  128.21  141.92 

Financial Ratios

Return on equity (%)  38.37  29.99  22.19  21.73  19.86 

Return on total assets (%)  17.26  14.56  9.94  9.15  8.00 

Operating profit/equity (%)  42.05  29.40  22.84  25.19  25.06 

Current ratio (times)  1.59  1.42  1.34  1.20  1.32 

Net gearing (times)  Net cash  Net cash  Net cash  Net cash  0.22 

Dividend cover (times)  1.15  1.44  1.98  2.05  2.06 
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Final Dividend Per Share 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 8.00

Final Special Dividend  25.00 14.00 2.00 2.00 –
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
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Total 2,687 2,506 2,547 2,810 3,132

Return on Equity 38.4 30.0 22.2 21.7 19.9
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EconoMic valuE aDDED (Eva)
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EPS	-	After	Tax	 41.6	 36.1	 25.8	 26.6	 26.8
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2014
$’000

2013          
$’000

net operating profit before tax  697,145  649,371 

Adjusted for:

Share of associates' and joint ventures' profit  8,295  15,603 

Interest expense  26,997  11,135 

Others  (4,040)  43,017 

Adjusted profit before interest and tax  728,397  719,126 

Cash operating taxes (Note 1)   (96,305)  (74,800)

net operating profit after tax (nOPAT)  632,092  644,326 

Average capital employed (Note 2)  4,557,773  3,616,292 

Weighted average cost of capital (Note 3) 6.6% 6.6%

Capital charge  300,813  238,675 

Economic value added (EVA)    331,279  405,651 

Non-controlling share of EVA  (29,849)  (23,847)

EVA attributable to owners of the Company  301,430  381,804 

Unusual Items (UI) Gains (Note 4) –    (2,816)

EVA Attributable to Shareholders (exclude uI)  301,430  378,988 

Note 1: The reported current tax is adjusted for the statutory tax impact of interest expense.     

Note 2: Average capital employed is computed by taking monthly average total assets less non interest-bearing liabilities plus timing provision, 

goodwill written off/impaired and present value of operating leases.

Note 3: The weighted average cost of capital is calculated in accordance with Sembcorp Marine Ltd Group EVA Policy as follows:

i) Cost of equity using Capital Asset Pricing Model with market risk premium at 5.0% (2013: 5.0%);  

ii) Risk-free rate of 2.12% (2013: 2.30%) based on yield-to-maturity of Singapore Government 10 years Bonds;  

iii) Ungeared beta 0.9 (2013: 0.9) based on Sembcorp Marine risk categorisation; and

iv) Cost of debt rate at 2.47% (2013: 1.78%).

Note 4: Unusual Items (UI) refer to gain/loss on divestment of subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures, long-term investments and disposal of major 

property, plant and equipment.

Economic Value Added Statement
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DistriBution of valuE aDDED

$’M

Distribution to Employees 481 468 486 586 556

Distribution to Government 202 111 88 111 156

Distribution to 318 753 525 280 293
Providers of Capital 
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Value Added Statement
2010

$’000
2011

$’000
2012

$’000
2013

$’000
2014

$’000

Value added from

Turnover 4,554,863 3,960,230 4,430,123 5,525,882 5,832,595 

Less: Bought in materials and services (3,001,594) (2,647,550) (3,264,571) (4,231,874) (4,402,863)

Gross value added 1,553,269 1,312,680 1,165,552 1,294,008 1,429,732 

Investment, interest and other income/
expenses, net

4,873 64,610 20,316 81,650 12,371

Share of associates' profit 53,648 56,870 43,235 14,350 6,119 

Share of joint ventures' profit 3,991 6,008 13,035 1,253 2,176 

Non-operating (expenses)/income, net – (2,044) (2,439) 2,758 177

Foreign exchange transactions 52,640 – – – –

1,668,421 1,438,124 1,239,699 1,394,019 1,450,575 

Distribution

To employees in wages, salaries and 
benefits

481,267 467,746 486,270 585,859 556,436 

To government in income and other 
taxes

202,335 111,060 87,511 110,674 155,844 

To providers of capital on: 

Interest paid on borrowings 7,134 2,491 3,262 8,072 20,960 

Dividends to owners of the Company 311,271 750,501 522,036 271,593 271,600 

Retained in business

Depreciation, amortisation and  
R&D expenses

83,197 86,278 94,020 100,607 115,142 

Retained profit 548,995 1,402 16,417 284,154 288,528 

Non-controlling interests 33,613 17,226 28,985 32,513 41,147 

Other expenses 609 1,420 1,198 547 918 

Total distribution 1,668,421 1,438,124 1,239,699 1,394,019 1,450,575 

Productivity data

Average number of employees 9,233 9,592 10,395 12,313 12,938 

Employment costs 481,267 467,746 486,270 585,859 556,436 

Value added per employee 168.23 136.85 112.13 105.09 110.51

Employment cost per employee 52.12 48.76 46.78 47.58 43.01

Value added per dollar  
employment costs

3.23 2.81 2.40 2.21 2.57

Value added per dollar investment in 
property, plant and equipment

2.28 1.27 0.79 0.54 0.48

Value added per dollar turnover 0.34 0.33 0.26 0.23 0.25
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Operations Review
Sembcorp Marine posted another year of sustained profitability 

underpinned by its rig building, ship conversion & offshore and 

ship repair segments. This was particularly satisfying given that this 

was achieved in increasingly challenging market conditions as 

oil prices declined over 50% in the second half of 2014.

Group turnover for the year 2014 increased 6% year-on-year 

to $5.8 billion, which compares with $5.5 billion for the 

corresponding period in 2013. The higher revenue came mainly 

from increased contribution from the Group’s rig building 

activities and from offshore platform projects.

Various types of vessels undergoing repairs and refurbishments.
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Turnover for the rig building sector increased 6% year-on- 
year from $3.6 billion to $3.8 billion. The Group delivered 
eight jack-up rigs for the 12 months ended December, 
with another 10 rigs in the work in progress or planning 
stage.

The fixed platform segment registered a 6% increase 
in revenue from $868 million to $925 million for the year, 
with three major project deliveries in 2014. Offshore and 

conversion revenue increased 28% from $336 million in 
2013 to $428 million in 2014, with three project deliveries 
during the period.

Ship repair revenue was 9% lower at $622 million in 2014 
compared with $681 million in the corresponding period 
in 2013 as average revenue per vessel remained low 
although the number of ships repaired has increased.

turnovEr contriButions By sEctors

2014
$5.8 Billion

2013
$5.5 Billion

1%
11%

23%

65%
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17%
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Tanker Containership Bulk Carrier LNG/LPG	Carrier Cruise Liner Rig	&	Offshore/FPSO	Upgrading Others
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10%

2%
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24%
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Successful delivery of Investigator, an advanced research vessel contracted for 
construction by Teekay Shipping (Australia) for Commonwealth Scientific and 
Industrial Research Organisation (CSIRO).

Deliveries 2014 2013

FPSO/FSO 1 2

Newbuild 1 -

Offshore vessel 1 -

Platform 3 2

Total 6 4

Ship Conversion & Offshore Sector Rig Building Sector

Deliveries 2014 2013

Jack-up 8 8

Semi-submersible - -

Total	 8 8

Delivery of Noble Houston Colbert, the third Friede & Goldman JU3000N design  
jack-up rig for Noble Corporation.

Operations Review

Engineering and construction of Naga and Pelikan Wellhead Platforms for Premier Oil Natuna Sea.
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Contracts Secured
The Group secured $4.2 billion in new contracts in 2014. 
Of these, $1.94 billion was for offshore conversion and 
platforms, $1.36 billion for drillships and $871 million for 
jack-up rigs.

Net Order Book
The Group had a net order book of $11.43 billion  
with completion and deliveries stretching into 2019.  
This includes $6.06 billion in drillships, $3.12 billion in  
conversion & platform projects, $1.59 billion in jack-up 
rigs and $660 million in semi-submersible contracts.

contracts sEcurED in 2014 at s$4.2 Billion (ExcluDing rEPair anD uPgraDE)
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Strategic Investments for  
  Sustainable Growth 

To compete on a global scale, Sembcorp Marine’s strategy is to 
strengthen fundamentals in Singapore while forging new markets 
and growing capabilities overseas. To this end, the Group has 
embarked on the Phase II development of its state-of-the-art 
Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas, while the construction of 
its Brazil yard Estaleiro Jurong Aracruz is progressing steadily. In 
expanding its international reach, Sembcorp Marine continues 
to develop complementary facilities and competencies in other 
overseas hubs to provide added value and enhanced services 
to its worldwide customers.

Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas:  
A Successful First Year
Sembcorp Marine’s Singapore hub operations continue to see growth and expansion 
with the success of its Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas, which crossed its first year 
milestone. 

Since commencing Phase I operations in August 2013 and following its official launch 
by Singapore Prime Minister Mr Lee Hsien Loong in November the same year, the new 
yard at Tuas has made good progress with high utilisation of its docking and berthing 
facilities. In 2014, the integrated new yard hosted a total of 262 ships and offshore rigs.

Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas is well-positioned to serve deep-draft vessels and rigs, including drillships, cruise ships and 
semi-submersibles, due to its naturally deep waters.
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2 3 4

5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16

17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24

1 Adriatic I, repair and outfit of a 30-year-old jack-up rig for Shelf Drilling Holdings.
2 Amore Mio II, major drydocking repair works on 159,981 dwt tanker for Capital 

Ship Management. 
3 Anton Topic, contact damage repair work on 45,496 dwt bulk carrier for Marfin 

Management SAM.
4 Ayrton II, repair and overhaul of 51,260 dwt chemical tanker for Capital Ship 

Management.
5 Castor Voyager, repair of 104,866 dwt tanker for Chevron Shipping Company.
6 Dalian Express, drydocking repair works on 7,506 TEU containership for Hapag-

Lloyd AG.
7 Elpida GR, collision damage repair work on 52,579 dwt bulk carrier for Windforce 

Maritime Enterprise.
8 Fei He, collision damage steel renewal of 4,210 TEU containership for Shanghai 

Ocean Shipping Co. 
9 Fjell, overhaul and renewal works on semi-submersible heavy transport vessel for 

Fairstar Heavy Transport.
10 Grasmere Maersk, overhaul and renewal works on 62,007 dwt container vessel 

for Maersk Line UK.
11 Jewel of Sohar, repair and renewal of 55,875 dwt bulk carrier for Nissho Odyssey 

Ship Management. 
12 Key Singapore, drydocking repair works on a 33-year-old jack-up rig for Shelf 

Drilling Holdings.

13 Nautilus, repair and renewal works of 307,284 dwt vessel for Euronav Ship 
Management.

14 Ocean Apex, extensive upgrading of deepwater semi-submersible rig for 
Diamond Offshore. 

15 Ocean Explorer, overhaul and renewal works of 108,929 dwt crude oil tanker for 
Ocean Tankers.

16 Omega Trader, repair works on 305,206 dwt tanker for Mitsui OSK Lines (MOL) 
Tankship Management.

17 Oregon Voyager, repair and renewal of 45,671 dwt oil tanker for Chevron 
Shipping Company.

18 OS Concord, repair and survey works on 301,345 dwt crude oil tanker for Syncro 
Shipping Co.

19 Phoenix Vigor, routine repair works of 309,887 dwt tanker for MOL Tankship 
Management.

20 Polaris, survey and grounding damage steel repairs of 17,599 dwt tanker for KSIM 
Co.

21 Safe Astoria, installation, renewal and survey works on a semi-submersible 
accommodation platform for Prosafe.

22 Tectus, major overhaul of 74,862 dwt tanker for Stasco.
23 Tokitsu Maru, repair, overhaul and survey works on 305,484 dwt crude oil tanker 

for NYK Ship Management.
24 Voyager of the Seas, extensive revitalisation of 137,276 grt passengership for RCL 

Cruises.

1

Project Highlights at Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas
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Construction of Phase II New Yard 
& Steel Fabrication Facility
Construction for Sembcorp Marine’s Phase II facility 
has commenced, with marine works scheduled for 
completion in the first quarter of 2017. Spanning 34.5 
hectares, the Phase II facility will feature three graving 
docks – including two mid-sized 150,000 dwt drydocks 
with dimensions of 255m x 52m x -8m and a dedicated 
offshore drydock, among the widest in the region with 
dimensions of 255m x 110m x -12m, for offshore rig 
building, upgrades and repairs. Facilities under Phase II 
also include the finger pier, quays and wharves which will 
offer customers a total berthage of approximately 2km 
with maximum water depth ranging from -9m to -18m.

With the addition of the four VLCC docks in Phase I, the 
Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas will have seven drydocks 
in operation upon the construction completion of Phase II. 
This will give the yard greater flexibility in managing 
and optimising work flow. With the enhanced facilities 
under Phase II, the Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas 
will have capabilities to service a broader spectrum of 
vessels ranging from mid-sized to Suezmax commercial 
ships and to provide integrated offshore newbuilding, 
conversion, repair and upgrading solutions for offshore 
exploration and production units, jack-up & semi-
submersible drilling rigs, drillships and specialised oil & gas 
vessels. This will enable Sembcorp Marine to benefit from 
the anticipated growth in demand for modern docking 
capacity and further sharpen the Group’s competitive 

edge in providing value-added cost-competitive 
solutions for its global customers. 

The Phase II new yard will also house a multi-functional 
steel fabrication facility equipped with advanced 
equipment and machinery, which will significantly 
enhance automation and productivity of its offshore rig 
building, conversion, specialised shipbuilding, offshore 
platforms construction and ship repair businesses.

Designed to be the central kitchen for steel fabrication 
for all three phases of the new Tuas yard, the steel 
fabrication facility will offer a streamlined, seamless and 
extensively automated production process from steel 
stock yard to final assembly and finishing shop.

When completed in 3Q 2015, the new facility will have a 
tonnage capacity of more than three times that of the 
Group’s largest steel fabrication facility. Together with the 
optimal layout, overall efficiency is expected to more 
than double.

The preliminary projection of the development costs of 
Phase II – comprising marine, ancillary, mechanical and 
electrical works as well as the $222 million investment 
in the steel fabrication facility – is estimated to be $711 
million.

The Group has successfully completed a $600 million 
bond issue under Sembcorp Marine’s $2 billion Multi-
currency Multi-Issuer Debt Issuance programme to fund 
the Phase II development. 

Artist’s impression of the steel fabrication facility at the Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas Phase II development.
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Cofferdam completed.

The Phase II steel fabrication facility under construction.

Casting of capping beam.

Casting of dock head’s service tunnel in progress.

Steel box pile installation in progress.

Spun pile installation and cross beam casting underway.

Erection of steel structures for the fabrication facility.
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Estaleiro Jurong Aracruz Starts 
Initial Operations
Sembcorp Marine continues to make steady progress 
on the construction of its new integrated shipyard 
Estaleiro Jurong Aracruz (EJA) in Espírito Santo, Brazil, with 
completion on track for end 2015. When completed, the 
82.5-hectare yard will be well-positioned to serve Brazil’s 
thriving offshore oil and gas industry with its 1km berthing 
quay, a floating dock, steel fabrication workshops, 
floating crane and ancillary facilities for piping and 
outfitting, electromechanical works, hydroblasting and 
painting. The yard, which features a 1.6km coastline, will 
have capabilities to undertake the repair, upgrading 
and construction of drillships, semi-submersibles, jack-
up rigs, platforms and supply vessels as well as FPSO 
integration and topside modules fabrication.

Initial operations for EJA began in the second half 
of 2014 with the commencement of living quarters 
construction works for the yard’s drillship projects and 
topside modules fabrication. The yard successfully 
received the first Sete Brasil drillship in the first quarter 
of 2015 following the completion of its south finger pier, 
south quay, south quay extension and dredging works.

EJA also set a major milestone with the arrival of its new 
giant floating crane – the largest in Latin America. The 
floating crane has a lifting capacity of 3,600 tonnes, 
with four hooks capable of hoisting 900 tonnes each. 
Flying the Brazilian flag, the floating crane will be used 
for drillship construction, modules integration works and 
other operational requirements of EJA. Manned entirely 
by Brazilian crew, the floating crane is also capable of 

serving the Brazilian market in other areas such as civil 
construction and port operations.

Building a Strong Brazil Team
To develop a strong and capable team to drive EJA’s 
growth, Sembcorp Marine has in place a $4 million Joint 
Educational Programme, an initiative in partnership 
with Brazil’s Instituto Federal do Espírito Santo (IFES) and 
Singapore’s Ngee Ann Polytechnic, to develop talents 
over the next few years. 

As part of the programme, IFES trainees selected from 
the neighbouring communities undergo 12 to 15 months 
of training in Singapore. During this time, trainees go 
through a three-month Technical English Course and a 
five-month specialised course at Ngee Ann Polytechnic 
to graduate with a Diploma (Conversion) in Marine and 
Offshore Technology. Thereafter, trainees are attached to 
various departments in Jurong Shipyard for a period of 
five to six months to acquire a hands-on understanding 
of yard operations and work procedures.  

To-date, a total of 50 trainees have graduated from 
the programme and embarked on key roles as part of 
the core operational team at EJA. The third batch of 
30 trainees from IFES is currently undergoing training in 
Singapore, following the return of the second group of  
27 trainees to Brazil in February 2015. 

Overseas attachments to the Group’s Singapore yards 
are also provided for Brazilian engineers to learn best 
practices and align operational processes in EJA to 
achieve high standards of quality, safety and excellence. 
In all, a total of 21 EJA engineers have gone through 
training and immersion at Jurong Shipyard.

To equip the local workforce with foundational skills 
in various shipyard trades, EJA offers a wide range of 
training schemes in partnership with various educational 
institutes in the neighbouring communities. These include 
training in maintenance, welding, industrial automation, 
hydraulics, industrial mechanics, pipe fitting, scaffolding 
and electrical works.

Since 2012, more than 2,275 have completed these 
vocational training programmes, with 215 having gone 
on to join the EJA workforce after the completion of their 
courses. Approximately US$850,000 has been invested to 
strengthen the capabilities of the EJA workforce. 

Arpoador, the first Sete Brasil drillship based on the proprietary Jurong Espadon design, 
berthed at EJA. 

Strategic Investments for Sustainable Growth
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The yard is also partnering SENAI Aracruz to provide 
a year-long apprenticeship programme targeting 
youths between the ages of 18 and 23 to train them in 
maritime-related fields such as marine structure assembly, 
amongst others.   

Strengthening EJA’s Workforce 
Capabilities
In line with EJA’s commitment towards upholding 
workplace safety and health (WSH) excellence, more 
than 1,000 employees have undergone regulatory 
standards training in occupational health and safety in 
2014. This includes providing 17,352 hours of work-specific 
safety training for working at heights and confined space 
operations to 943 and 613 personnel respectively to 
equip them with knowledge of best practices in these 
areas. 

Contributing Back to Brazil 
Communities
For its commitment to business excellence and 
sustainable corporate practices, EJA was recognised 
with the Quality and Sustainability Naval Award 2014 
conferred by the National Union of Construction, Ship 
Repair and Offshore Industry (SINAVAL). EJA won the 
award in the ‘On the Way to Competitiveness’ (CCom) 
category for further enhancing the employability of 
Brazilians in marine and offshore technology through 
a wide range of training initiatives, including the yard’s 
Joint Educational Programme in Singapore.   

EJA was accorded the 2014 Ecology Award presented 
by the State Institute of Environment (IEMA) in 
partnership with the State Government of Espírito Santo, 
in recognition for its efforts in environmental conservation. 

The yard is also an active supporter of biodiversity and 
conservation programmes to promote environmental 
sustainability within and around Aracruz. As part of 
EJA’s community care and outreach efforts, the yard 
is sponsoring a programme to provide the local fishing 
community with technical training in the commercial 
cultivation of seaweed to further supplement their 
livelihood. In addition, EJA formed a partnership with 
the Chico Mendes Institute for Biodiversity Conservation 
(ICMBio) of the Federal Ministry of the Environment of 
Brazil to promote an environmental campaign on the 
beaches around the shipyard.

EJA also furthers worthy social causes as part of its 
commitment to community engagement. A key focus 
of the yard this year is in the area of breast cancer 
awareness. A partner company of the Women’s 
Association of Education and Combat of Cancer 
(AFECC) in Espírito Santo, EJA organised a series of 
breast cancer talks in conjunction with the Pink October 
campaign to raise awareness and educate female 
employees on breast cancer prevention.

The second batch of EJA trainees under Sembcorp Marine’s Joint Educational 
Programme. 

Participation of EJA staff in the Pink October Campaign to raise breast cancer 
awareness.
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Drillship berthing at quay. Completed breakwaters and ongoing dredging works.

Overview of workshops construction in progress. Installation of machinery and equipment in progress at the hull shop complex.

Brazil Yard Progress & Developments 

Aerial view of Estaleiro Jurong Aracruz, Sembcorp Marine’s integrated new yard in Espírito Santo, Brazil, which commenced initial operations in the second half of 2014.
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Assembly of the drillship derrick tower at the block assembly area. Fabrication of FPSO modules and helideck underway.

Construction of staff building with canteen, lockers and rest area. Hydroblasting and paint shops.
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Strategic Investments & 
Developments
During the year, Sembcorp Marine further bolstered 
its capabilities through the acquisition of SSP Offshore, 
a Houston-based company specialising in the design, 
engineering and delivery of innovative floating 
production and drilling solutions, and the purchase 
of a 12% stake in GraviFloat AS, a Norwegian firm 
with innovative capabilities in LNG and LPG terminals 
construction. 

Sembmarine SSP 
The acquisition of SSP Offshore, which was renamed 
Sembmarine SSP in September 2014, signals Sembcorp 
Marine’s strategic expansion into circular-based floaters 
to tap on new opportunities in this market segment. 
With the purchase, Sembcorp Marine now owns the 
company’s flagship SSP Floater technology – the next-
generation circular hull form – and its entire portfolio of 
proprietary SSP® (Satellite Services Platform) solutions, 
including the SSP Driller for deepwater drilling, the SSP 
Plus FPSO for production and storage, and the SSP Hub 
for logistic hub applications (please refer to page 100 for 
more details).

GraviFloat 

Sembcorp Marine’s acquisition of a 12% stake in 
GraviFloat, with the option to increase its stake by up 
to 20% through further equity injection in June 2014, 
represents a new business venture for the Group in 
the area of LNG and LPG terminals construction. The 
investment in GraviFloat is part of Sembcorp Marine’s 
strategy to participate across a broad spectrum of 
the offshore oil & gas value chain. GraviFloat’s patent-
pending technology and proprietary design allow re-
deployable, gravity-based and modularised LNG & LPG 
terminals to be built and completed at a shipyard with 
enhanced flexibility during construction (see pages 100 
to 101 for more details). 

Overseas Developments 
United Kingdom

Sembmarine SLP, Sembcorp Marine’s 70% owned 
subsidiary in the United Kingdom, achieved a key 
milestone in 2014 with the delivery of the Golden Eagle 
Living Quarters (LQ) Platform project on schedule to 
Nexen Petroleum for operations in the Golden Eagle 
Field offshore north east of Aberdeen. Contracted as the 
EPC provider for the project, Sembmarine SLP successfully 
fabricated, installed and integrated the 2,000-tonne 
LQ module, the 70m-long 550-tonne bridge and the 
220-tonne flare boom into the Golden Eagle topside 
platform, which was built to meet weight specifications 
and designed to minimise offshore installation and hook-
up time. 

During the year, Sembmarine SLP secured a contract 
from Siemens Transmission & Distribution to design and 
build a new generation Offshore Transformer Station 
(OTS) for the Dudgeon Offshore Wind Farm developed 
by Dudgeon Offshore Wind, a joint venture between 
Norwegian energy firms Statkraft and Statoil. Under the 
contract, the yard will work closely with Siemens and be 
responsible for the design, engineering, procurement, 
project management and construction of the offshore 
substation platform’s jacket substructure and topside, 
with Siemens providing the transformers and high 
voltage electrical distribution technology. 

Strategic Investments for Sustainable Growth

The Golden Eagle Living Quarters module departing Sembmarine SLP for offshore 
Aberdeen.
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Indonesia

Sembcorp Marine’s Indonesian subsidiary PT SMOE 
Indonesia witnessed the deployment of the Naga and 
Pelikan Wellhead Platforms following their successful 
engineering, construction and delivery by the yard to 
Premier Oil Natuna Sea. The two wellhead platforms for 
the Naga and Pelikan offshore production facilities are 
located in the Natuna Block A Development offshore 
Indonesia.

During the year, PT SMOE Indonesia further enhanced 
its capabilities with new assets and equipment. These 
included the addition of the yard’s first tug boat and 
barge Utama Bersatu as well as the installation of two 
650-tonne crawler cranes to support its production 
and operational requirements. PT SMOE Indonesia also 
witnessed the opening of a new engineering building, 
which has the capacity to house 380 personnel, to cater 
to the yard’s growing workforce.  

In expanding its operations, PT SMOE Indonesia has set 
up a new subsidiary known as PT SMOE Singgar Mulia 
Engineering in the Republic of Indonesia to provide 
engineering services and other offshore activities in the 
region.  

Sembmarine Kakinada in India.

India

The Group’s India subsidiary Sembmarine Kakinada 
undertook the drydocking and repair of a diverse range 
of projects in 2014. The only Indian yard capable of 
berthing and repairing deepwater rigs, Sembmarine 
Kakinada has successfully serviced and refitted semi-
submersible rigs and vessels of all types, mainly cutter 
suction and trailer suction dredgers, offshore support 
vessels, platform supply vessels, anchor handling tug 
supply vessels, multi-purpose offshore vessels, well 
stimulation vessels, tugboats, bulkers and tankers.

Repeat customers with Sembmarine Kakinada include 
Great Offshore, Greatship India, EMAS, Tidewater, Hallin 
Marine, Shipping Corporation of India, DEME, Dharti 
Dredging and Infrastructure, Dredging Corporation of 
India, Adani and Great Eastern.

Sembmarine Kakinada, which is being developed in 
three phases into an integrated marine and offshore 
facility, is now in its second phase of development which 
will strengthen the yard’s capabilities in newbuilding and 
modules fabrication. 
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Awards and Accolades

Business Excellence
Lloyd’s List Asia Awards 
Shipyard of the Year Award
Winner: Sembcorp Marine
Recognised for its excellent track record in ship repair, 
shipbuilding, conversion, rig building and offshore engineering 
and construction as well as its key contributions to the 
maritime sector.

Safety, Health and Innovation
WSH Awards 
1 WSH Performance Awards (Silver)
 Winner: Jurong SML

Conferred by WSH Council for exemplary safety and health 
performance through the effective implementation of safety 
and health management systems. 

2 WSH Innovation Awards
a Jurong Shipyard (C-Dile Machine) 
b Sembawang Shipyard (Quiver T Connector)

Recognition for the efforts in providing new and
innovative solutions to improve workplace safety and
health performance.

3 Safety and Health Award  Recognition for 
Projects (SHARP)

a Jurong Shipyard: Helix WIS Q5000, Safe Boreas, West Rigel, 
Ocean Apex, Noble Regina Allen, OSX 3, West Tucana, 
Arpoador, Helix 534, West Castor, West Linus, Noble Houston 
Colbert, Noble Sam Turner and MODEC Venture 11

b Sembawang Shipyard: Gagak Rimang, Investigator,  
Ngujima-Yin and Deep Venture

Recognises projects for excellent workplace safety and 
health performance through effective execution of safety 
and health management processes. 

4 National Safety and Security Watch Group 
Merit Award

 Recipient: Jurong Shipyard

Recognition by the Safety and Security Watch Group for 
active involvement and strong commitment in safeguarding 
community safety and security. 

Commissioner of Police’s Commendation
5 Individual Commendation 

Recipients: Mr Sivakumar Ganapathy, Assistant   
 Security Officer, Jurong Shipyard
                   Mr Samat Bin Salleh, Assistant Security Officer,  
 Jurong Shipyard

6 Team Commendation 
 Recipient: Jurong Shipyard Security Team

Awarded by the Singapore Police Force for their outstanding 
contribution and commitment in ensuring a safe and secure 
environment. 

3a

1

3b

Financial and Operations Review
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Corporate Social Responsibility
nTuC May Day Awards 
1 Plaque of Commendation Award
 Recipient: PPL Shipyard

Commended by the National Trades Union Congress  
(NTUC) for outstanding contributions towards good labour-
management relations, workers’ welfare and continuous 
support of NTUC-driven initiatives.

2 Model Partnership Award 
 Recipient: PPL Shipyard 
Recognition for facilitating good workplace practices and 
unwavering efforts towards improving employability through 
skills upgrading.

3 Medal of Commendation Award
 Recipient: Mr Ho Nee Sin 
Conferred for Mr Ho’s dedication to workers’ welfare and 
promotion of industrial relations.

Patron of Heritage Award
4 Recipient: Sembcorp Marine 
Accorded by the National Heritage Board for Sembcorp 
Marine’s solid support and contribution towards the 
preservation of Singapore’s rich heritage.

Community Chest Awards 
5 Corporate Gold Award 
 Recipient: Sembcorp Marine 
Recognition for its commitment and significant contributions 
to support various social service initiatives led by Community 
Chest.

6 SHARE Corporate Gold Award
 Recipient: Sembawang Shipyard

Presented by the Community Chest in recognition of the 
yard and its employees’ valuable contributions to the SHARE 
donation programme.

7 15-Year Outstanding SHARE Award 
 Recipient: Sembawang Shipyard 
Distinguished for its 15 years of solid support to Community 
Chest’s SHARE programme.

PnQS Awards (naval Award for Quality 
and Sustainability) 
8 Recipient: Estaleiro Jurong Aracruz 
Accorded by the National Union of Construction, Ship Repair 
and Offshore Industry (SINAVAL) in recognition for its 
commendable corporate social responsibility initiatives and 
quality excellence.

Ecology Award 
9 Recipient: Estaleiro Jurong Aracruz 

Conferred by the State Institute of Environment in partnership 
with the State Government of Espírito Santo, in recognition for 
its efforts in environmental conservation.

1

6

4

7
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January 

1 Delivery of Noble Houston Colbert, the third Friede & 

Goldman JU3000N design jack-up rig built by Jurong 

Shipyard for Noble Corporation.

2 Delivered Naga and Pelikan Wellhead Platforms built by 

PT SMOE Indonesia for Premier Oil Natuna Sea.

• Commencement of Phase II construction work at 

Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas.

February 

3 Award of US$1.08 billion contracts to Jurong Shipyard to 

build two drillships based on the proprietary Jurong  

Espadon III design for Transocean. 

4 Award of a US$214.3 million contract to PPL Shipyard to 

build a proprietary Pacific Class 400 design jack-up rig for 

Marco Polo Marine. 

5 Delivery of West Linus, a Gusto MSC CJ70-X150A design 

jack-up rig built by Jurong Shipyard for Seadrill’s subsidiary, 

North Atlantic Drilling.

6 Delivery of Decus, the second proprietary Pacific Class 400 

design jack-up rig built by PPL Shipyard for Oro Negro.

7 Launch of the Green Wave Environmental Care 

Competition 2014 and presentation of awards to 2013 

winners.  

March  

8 Award of a $25 million contract to Sembawang Shipyard for 

extensive revitalisation of cruise ship Voyager of the Seas for 

RCL Cruises. 

9 Delivery of Noble Sam Turner, the fourth Friede & Goldman 

JU3000N design jack-up rig built by Jurong Shipyard for 

Noble Corporation.

10 Participation in the inaugural Offshore Technology 

Conference (OTC) Asia 2014, the region’s newest oil and gas 

industry exhibition held in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia. 

• Participation in Cruise Shipping Miami 2014, a leading 

international exhibition and conference serving the cruise 

industry held in Miami, USA.

• Participation in Gastech 2014, the world’s premier natural 

gas conference and exhibition held in Seoul, South Korea.  

 April   
• Appointment of Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican as Chairman 

of Sembcorp Marine.

• Signing of a Favoured Customer Contract by Sembawang 

Shipyard with Ardmore Shipping for the repair of its fleet of 

product tankers and chemical tankers in Singapore.

11 51st Annual General Meeting and Extraordinary General 

Meeting.

May  

12 Award of a US$236 million contract to Jurong Shipyard to 

build a Friede & Goldman JU2000E jack-up rig for  

Hercules North Sea. 

13 Signing of a Favoured Customer Contract by Sembawang 

Shipyard with GasLog LNG Services to provide ship repair, 

refurbishment, upgrading and related marine services for its 

fleet of LNG carriers.

14 Delivery of Polar Marquis, a seismic vessel upgraded by 

Sembawang Shipyard for GC Reiber Norway.

15 Completion of the Golden Eagle Living Quarters Platform 

built by Sembmarine SLP for Nexen Petroleum. 

16 Launching of Vastus, the fourth proprietary Pacific Class 400 

design jack-up rig built by PPL Shipyard for Oro Negro.

17 Keel-laying of Iron V, a proprietary Pacific Class 400 design 

jack-up rig built by PPL Shipyard for Marco Polo Marine. 

18 Participation in the Offshore Technology Conference (OTC) 

2014, the world’s foremost oil and gas industry exhibition held 

in Houston, USA.  

June  

19 Delivery of Noble Tom Prosser, the fifth Friede & Goldman 

JU3000N jack-up rig built by Jurong Shipyard for Noble 

Corporation, followed by the naming in August. 

20 Delivery of Perisai Pacific 101, the first proprietary Pacific 

Class 400 design jack-up rig built by PPL Shipyard for Perisai 

Petroleum Teknologi.

21 Completion of Deep Venture drillship upgrading by 

Sembawang Shipyard for Zarubezhneft Joint Stock 

Company.

22 Acquisition of a 12% stake in Norway-based GraviFloat.

23 Participation in Posidonia 2014, a leading biennial shipping 

exhibition held in Athens, Greece.
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July  

24 Award of a $600 million contract to Sembawang Shipyard 

from Saipem SA for the conversion of two Floating 

Production Storage and Offloading (FPSO) vessels for the 

Kaombo Project in offshore Angola. 

25 Keel-laying of Supremus, the sixth proprietary Pacific Class 

400 design jack-up rig built by PPL Shipyard for Oro Negro.

• Keel-laying of Camburi, the third proprietary Jurong 

Espadon design drillship built by Jurong Shipyard for Sete 

Brasil Participações, following the strike-steel in February.

August  
26 Delivery of Gagak Rimang, an FSO conversion completed 

by Sembawang Shipyard for Mobil Cepu.

• Delivery of Investigator, a dynamic positioning research 

vessel contracted for construction by Teekay Shipping 

(Australia) to Sembawang Shipyard for the Commonwealth 

Scientific and Industrial Research Organisation (CSIRO).

27 Launching of Perisai Pacific 102, the second proprietary 

Pacific Class 400 design jack-up rig built by PPL Shipyard for 

Perisai Petroleum Teknologi.

September 

• Award of a US$190 million contract to SMOE to fabricate 

liquefied natural gas processing modules for Bechtel. 

• Acquisition of Houston-based SSP Offshore for US$21 million.

• Establishment of three subsidiaries with Ecospec Global 

Technology in Singapore, to develop, manufacture and 

market green products to the marine, offshore and onshore 

industries.

• Keel-laying of Noble Lloyd Noble, a Gusto MSC CJ70 

jack-up rig built by Jurong Shipyard for Noble Corporation, 

following the strike-steel in February.

28 Participation in Rio Oil & Gas Expo and Conference, Latin 

America’s leading oil and gas industry exhibition held in  

Rio de Janeiro, Brazil.

• Participation in Shipbuilding, Machinery & Marine 

Technology International Trade Fair (SMM), a biennial marine 

and offshore exhibition in Hamburg, Germany.

October 
29 Award of a US$696 million contract to Jurong Shipyard for 

the conversion of a shuttle tanker into a Floating Production 

Storage and Offloading (FPSO) vessel for OOGTK Libra.

• Award of $222 million in contracts to Sembmarine SLP from 

Siemens Transmission & Distribution for the design and 

construction of an offshore substation platform for the 

Dudgeon Offshore Wind Farm as well as Jurong Shipyard 

from MODEC Offshore Production Systems (Singapore) for 

the conversion of a Very Large Crude Carrier (VLCC) into a 

Floating Production Storage and Offloading (FPSO) vessel as 

part of the TEN Development offshore Ghana. 

30 Award of a US$240 million contract to PPL Shipyard to build a 

proprietary Pacific Class 400 design jack-up rig for BOT Lease 

Co.

31 Delivery of Noble Sam Hartley, the sixth Friede & Goldman 

JU3000N design jack-up rig built by Jurong Shipyard for 

Noble Corporation.

• Completion of the Australia Pacific LNG Modules built in 

PT SMOE Indonesia for ConocoPhillips, Origin Energy and 

Sinopec.

november
32 Completion of Voyager of the Seas revitalisation by 

Sembawang Shipyard for RCL Cruises. 

33 Launching of Animus, the fifth proprietary Pacific Class 

400 design jack-up rig built by PPL Shipyard for Oro Negro, 

following the keel-laying in February. 

34 Keel-laying of Q7000, the second semi-submersible well 

intervention rig unit built by Jurong Shipyard for Helix Energy 

Solutions, following the strike-steel in June. 

December 

• Completion of Impetus, the third proprietary Pacific Class 

400 design jack-up rig built by PPL Shipyard for Oro Negro, 

following the launching in February.

• Delivery of Ocean Apex, a semi-submersible rig extensively 

upgraded by Jurong Shipyard for Diamond Offshore.

• Incorporation of PT SMOE Singgar Mulia Engineering, a new 

subsidiary of PT SMOE Indonesia.
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Resilient & Responsive
Sembcorp Marine continues to grow, evolve and transform to 
be resilient and responsive in this highly competitive industry. 
To sustain its market leadership, the Group forges strong 
partnerships with customers, creates value-supply chain 
synergies, harnesses innovation for productivity enhancements 
and workplace improvements as well as invests in research 
& development to expand its portfolio of intellectual assets, 
proprietary capabilities and integrated solutions. 

Strategic Transformation for 
Sustainable Growth 
To gear up for the next phase of growth, Sembcorp 
Marine has embarked on a ‘Transformation for Growth’ 
journey since 2013 to prime itself for new opportunities, 
fresh challenges and uncharted frontiers. A series of 
strategic transformation initiatives are in motion to 
drive the Group’s continuous evolution and sustainable 
growth as a dynamic global leader in the marine and 
offshore industry. 

As part of Sembcorp Marine’s initial phase of 
transformation, there will be greater collaboration 
among all business units as Corporate Services functions 
are consolidated to create ‘Centres of Excellence’ and 
‘Shared Services’. This will enable the Group to leverage 
the combined scale and expertise of its operations 
to achieve resource efficiencies for enhanced 
competitiveness locally and globally.

The forging of a ‘One SCM’ identity is another vital focus 
as the Group continues to grow its brand equity and 
market share. By integrating its strengths and moving 
forward in synergy, the Group will be well-positioned to 
seize opportunities and create value for customers and 
stakeholders.

Customer-centric Culture
Sustaining high-levels of customer satisfaction is a 
cornerstone in Sembcorp Marine’s strategy of building 
a strong clientele base and growing its market share. In 
reaching out to understand the needs of customers, a 
broad spectrum of engagement platforms, feedback 

mechanisms and communication channels are utilised. 
Feedback is actively sought from past, present and 
potential clients to identify areas for improvement, new 
opportunities and prospects for future growth. Regular 
meetings between senior management and customers 
are also organised to encourage dialogue and open 
communication which facilitate stronger cooperation 
and deeper relationships.

The Group’s consistent performance has been 
demonstrated through an established track record of 
safe and timely project deliveries that meet customers’ 
quality, safety, security and environmental requirements. 

Customer Satisfaction 
Customer satisfaction is a key performance indicator for 
the Group’s shipyards. As part of the yards’ performance 
assessment, each project is concluded with evaluation 
forms to ensure that customer feedback continues to 
drive improvements within the organisation. Covering 
aspects such as quality, responsiveness, delivery, expertise 
and facilities, these feedback mechanisms perform 
several functions:

1) Provide a formalised platform of communication

 Documents are archived to ensure that the yards’ 
database of clients and customer relationship 
management systems are updated.
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The Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas is a key thrust in Sembcorp Marine’s strategy for long-term competitiveness and sustainable growth.

2) Enable the yards to assess, track and evaluate 
performance

 Feedback collected from customers are evaluated 
by the respective teams for necessary action. Ratings 
that are less satisfactory are brought up to the 
attention of management from both the marketing 
and respective function teams for review and 
appropriate actions.

3) Identify potential areas of new opportunities or 
improvement

 Feedback and suggestion mechanisms provide 
information to formulate, fine-tune and evaluate 

strategies and map action plans to ensure 
competitiveness. The Group’s close partnership and 
engagement with customers have led to product 
innovations as well as continuous enhancements in 
health, safety, security and environment processes. 

Employees who interact closely with clients undergo 
a well-rounded repertoire of training in areas such 
as effective communication, interpersonal skills, 
project management and business contract law to 
ensure responsiveness and provide a positive service 
experience for customers.
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Forging Long-term Relationships 
Sembcorp Marine’s proven track record and its focus 
on customers has brought about the continued support 
and return of these clients. These long-term alliances 
and partnerships with leading players in the marine and 
offshore industry reflect customers’ trust and confidence 
in the Group’s capabilities as well as high standards 
of quality, reliability and service. These sustainable 
partnerships also provide the Group with a stable 
operational base-load for greater resiliency.

Signing of a Favoured Customer Contract by Sembawang Shipyard with GasLog LNG Services to provide ship repair, refurbishment, upgrading and related marine services for its 
fleet of LNG carriers.

Vessels from the Group’s alliance partners provide a stable base-load for repairs. Sembcorp Marine’s turnkey capabilities in the delivery of high specification rigs have 
gained the confidence of its long-term customers.
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The Group maintains an Approved Vendor List of 
suppliers and contractors that are chosen for their ability 
to meet stringent standards and operate responsibly 
without conflicts of interest over a long term. New 
businesses recommended for inclusion in the Approved 
Vendor List are subject to approval by a review panel. 
The approved partners have to comply with the Group’s 
tender regulations and Codes of Conduct to ensure fair 
competition. Manpower resident contractors are further 
subject to a minimum of bizSAFE1 Level 3 certification 
to ensure that they are equipped with the necessary 
externally-audited risk assessment skills in their safety 
management systems.

The Approved Vendor List undergoes ongoing checks 
and is updated annually. Companies that have been 
non-compliant to national law or any of the Group’s 
policies and Codes of Conduct are issued corrective 
work orders. Sembcorp Marine and its yards believe in 
working with partners to improve their performance, but 
if corrective action is not taken to satisfaction by non-
conforming vendors within a stipulated time, they are 
de-registered.

Products & Solutions 
Development 
To develop innovative solutions that are geared to 
meet the evolving needs of customers, Sembcorp 
Marine makes sustained investments in research and 
development to continually enhance its product and 
service offerings. By expanding its product range and 
integrated capabilities, the Group has the resilience and 
flexibility to adapt quickly and respond swiftly to capture 
emerging opportunities in the market. 

Over the years, the Group has accumulated proven 
expertise in repair & upgrading, ship conversion & 
offshore solutions, specialised shipbuilding, fabrication 
of fixed platforms and the design & construction of 
vessels, rigs and drillships for the marine and offshore 
industry. The Group’s continuous R&D efforts and 
strategic investments have resulted in the expansion of 
Sembcorp Marine’s suite of services to include drillship 
design and construction, accommodation and well-
intervention semi-submersibles newbuilding, as well as 
the construction of minimum facilities platforms and 
offshore substations.

1 A national programme developed by the Singapore Workplace Safety and Health Council to promote workplace safety and health in small and medium enterprises.  
There are a total of five levels, Level 3 in particular focuses on audited risk management processes.

Value-Supply Chain 
Management 
Delivering quality services and reliable solutions on time, 
within budget and to client specifications are vital to 
customer satisfaction. Sembcorp Marine recognises that 
a large contributing factor to this is the management 
of the value-supply chain to ensure that high standards 
of quality, safety and excellence are attained while 
mitigating risks as well as social and environmental 
impacts. 

Sembcorp Marine’s yards actively manage the 
environmental, social and economic impacts throughout 
the life-cycle stages of their products and solutions, from 
the usage, storage and disposal of materials to ensuring 
high standards of quality health, safety and environment, 
to meet customers’ specifications and their operating 
requirements. In the development of designs for vessels, 
rigs and platforms, there is continuous emphasis on 
health, safety and environment as well as compliance to 
international regulations.

The value-supply chain consists of processes that 
influence the provision of products and services – from 
the procurement of materials, production operations 
and services rendered through to final delivery of 
projects to customers.

More information on the management of the value-
supply chain elements and aspect boundaries can be 
found on pages 98 to 99.

For information on how the environmental impacts are 
mitigated through product design and research, please 
refer to pages 124 to 125. 

Procurement of Products  
and Services 
Sembcorp Marine and its yards have strong turnkey 
capabilities and procurement is performed in an 
ethical and cost-effective manner in accordance with 
legal regulations and the Group’s Code of Conduct. 
A wide variety of on-site contractors, sub-contractors, 
consultants and other suppliers are contracted for 
materials, equipment, technology and manpower.
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Operation Description Our Ability to Influence  
(Inside org	/	outside org)

Material Issues / Challenges / Risks Negative or Positive Impact on 
Stakeholders

DESIGN
Product Sembcorp	Marine	recognises	that	sustainability	begins	at	the	drawing	board.	The	Group’s	products,	including	rigs,	platforms	and	ships,	are	designed	

to meet customers’ requirements and fulfill stringent standards of quality, health, safety and environment for efficient and reliable operations.

The	final	specifications	for	each	product	are	heavily	dependent	on	customer	requirements	or	preferences.

High	/	Low Sembcorp	Marine	can	influence	the	impacts	relating	to: •	 Customers	
•	 Employees
•	 Investors•	 Customer	satisfaction

•	 Environmental	compliance	
•	 Technology	innovation

•	 Safety	and	health	of	clients
•	 Materials	management
•	 Productivity	

Process Continuous innovation and improvements for quality, productivity, efficiency and safety are crucial in enabling the Group to continually achieve new 
breakthroughs in business excellence.

High	/	Medium The	Group	exerts	a	direct	influence	on	operational	processes	within	its	yards	and	this	will	impact: •	 Employees
•	 Contractors
•	 Customers
•	 Investors

•	 Safety	and	health	of	employees,	 
contractors and customers

•	 Environmental	compliance	
•	 Productivity

•	 Technology	innovation	
•	 Materials	management
•	 Customer	satisfaction	

PROCUREMENT
Raw materials

Equipment  
& parts

Steel remains the primary resource for the industry, supplemented by other metals. Liquefied gases are consumed for cutting and welding. Other 
items used in yard operations include chemicals (eg. anti-fouling, water treatment and lubrication), paint, materials (eg. wood, plastics, cables and 
wire). 

The	Group	purchases	a	range	of	equipment	and	parts	such	as:
1) Ad hoc equipment for internal shipyard operations, such as forklifts and cranes.
2)	 Equipment	and	parts	that	are	utilised	for	newbuilding,	repair	and	upgrading	projects,	including	specialist	items	like	engines,	drilling	packages,	

rig/ship	operation	software,	furniture,	navigation	systems,	etc.	These	are	often	heavily	influenced	by	customer	preferences.	

High	/	Low

High	/	Medium

Procurement	involves	two	primary	areas	–	for	use	on	projects	and	for	shipyard	operations.	
Impacts	relevant	to	this	part	of	the	value-supply	chain	are:

•	 Suppliers	
•	 Customers
•	 Investors

•	 Customer	satisfaction	
•	 Product	quality
•	 Business	integrity

•	 Environmental	management
•	 Materials	management

Services &  
manpower

These	include	specialist	services	ranging	from	waste	disposal	services	to	commissioning	agencies.	Manpower	vendors	include	the	Group’s	
contracted workforce.

High	/ Medium Manpower and services vendors are individually managed by the Group’s yards based on their 
operating	requirements	and	policies	in	the	areas	of:

•	 Customers
•	 Employees
•	 Government
•	 Regulators•	 Health	&	safety

•	 Business	integrity
•	 People	development

PRODUCTION
Repair &  
upgrading

Sembcorp	Marine	repairs	a	diverse	range	of	vessels	and	platforms.	These	include	cargo	and	container	vessels,	tankers,	liquefied	natural	and	
petroleum gas carriers, passenger-ships, drillships, drilling rigs and crane barges.

High	/	Medium The	Group	leverages	the	complementary	facilities	and	specialised	capabilities	of	its	yards	to	deliver	
integrated	solutions	for	a	broad	range	of	projects	on	time,	within	budget	and	in	accordance	with	
high	standards	of	quality,	safety	and	excellence.	The	key	impacts	to	production	operations	are:
•	 Health	&	safety
•	 Customer	satisfaction	
•	 People	development
•	 Product	quality
•	 Economic	performance	
•	 Innovation,	R&D
•	 Business	integrity
•	 Environmental	management
•	 Materials	management

•	 Customers
•	 Employees
•	 Suppliers/Contractors
•	 Investors
•	 Institutions	(Academic,	R&D)
•	 Regulators
•	 Community
•	 Government

Ship conversion  
& offshore

A host of solutions is offered by the Group for the conversion of offshore production and storage platforms and specialised dynamic positioning 
offshore	vessels.	Our	track	record	of	conversions	include	FPSOs,	FSOs,	FPUs,	FDPSOs	and	FSRUs,	shuttle	tankers,	ARVs	and	heavy-lift	pipe-laying	
vessels.

 

Rig building The	Group	offers	turnkey	expertise	in	the	proprietary	design	and	construction	of	deep	drilling	offshore	jack-up	rigs	and	drillships	as	well	as	the	
construction	of	semi-submersibles,	including	drilling	units,	accommodation	rigs	and	well	intervention	units.	The	Group	has	proven	capabilities	in	
building	high-specification	rigs	for	challenging	and	harsh	environments	such	as	the	North	Sea.

Offshore 
engineering & 
construction

Sembcorp Marine provides total solutions in the engineering, procurement, construction, transportation, installation, offshore hook-up and 
commissioning	of	offshore	production	platforms	and	floating	production	facilities	for	the	oil	and	gas	industries.	This	includes	construction	of	
integrated, process, production, drilling, wellhead and accommodation platforms as well as fabrication of modules and living quarters.

Shipbuilding The	company	designs	and	constructs	dynamic	positioning	heavy-lift	pipe-lay	vessels,	mid-sized	tankers,	container	carriers	and	a	wide	range	of	other	
specialist units.

QUALITY & SAFETY VALIDATION
A	project	at	various	stages	of	construction	or	repair	will	require	multiple	levels	of	quality	and	safety	validations.	Offshore	vessels	and	platforms	are	
required to be certified and compliant to a range of international regulations and benchmarks.

High	/	Low The	key	impacts	of	the	quality	and	safety	validation	processes	are:
•	 Health	&	safety
•	 Customer	satisfaction
•	 Product	safety

•	 Customers	
•	 Employees
•	 Classification	societies	and	other	

companies offering testing services
•	 Investors/Financial	Community

DELIVERY TRANSPORTATION
To	provide	customers	with	a	one-stop	service	solution,	arrangement	of	transportation	may	be	offered	to	customers	for	rigs,	fixed	platforms	or	vessels	
that	are	not	equipped	with	the	necessary	propulsion	systems	for	long	distance	travel.	These	projects	are	either	towed	with	tugboats	or	transported	via	
heavy-lift ships. 

High	/	Medium Sembcorp	Marine	recognises	that	the	following	impacts	are	relevant: •	 Customers
•	 Employees
•	 Suppliers/Contractors
•	 Investors

•	 Health	&	safety	of	contractors,	 
customers and employees 

•	 Customer	satisfaction	

•	 Environmental	management
•	 Social	responsibility

CORPORATE FUNCTIONS
Corporate functions, such as Business Development, Marketing, HSSE, Finance and Risk Management, are accountable to the Board of Directors and 
senior management. Financial and risk teams track threats and opportunities in the business. All core functions are aligned to Group-level policies 
and comply with a structured framework which are audited regularly by internal committees and external agencies.

High	/	High The	Group’s	corporate	functions	have	large	influence	on	key	impact	areas,	including: •	 Employees
•	 Government/Regulators
•	 Investors
•	 Customers
•	 Community
•	 Shareholders/Financial	Community

•	 Product	quality
•	 Economic	performance	
•	 Innovation,	R&D

•	 People	
•	 Social	responsibility

Sembcorp Marine Value-Supply Chain

Resilient & Responsive
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Operation Description Our Ability to Influence  
(Inside org	/	outside org)

Material Issues / Challenges / Risks Negative or Positive Impact on 
Stakeholders

DESIGN
Product Sembcorp	Marine	recognises	that	sustainability	begins	at	the	drawing	board.	The	Group’s	products,	including	rigs,	platforms	and	ships,	are	designed	

to meet customers’ requirements and fulfill stringent standards of quality, health, safety and environment for efficient and reliable operations.

The	final	specifications	for	each	product	are	heavily	dependent	on	customer	requirements	or	preferences.

High	/	Low Sembcorp	Marine	can	influence	the	impacts	relating	to: •	 Customers	
•	 Employees
•	 Investors•	 Customer	satisfaction

•	 Environmental	compliance	
•	 Technology	innovation

•	 Safety	and	health	of	clients
•	 Materials	management
•	 Productivity	

Process Continuous innovation and improvements for quality, productivity, efficiency and safety are crucial in enabling the Group to continually achieve new 
breakthroughs in business excellence.

High	/	Medium The	Group	exerts	a	direct	influence	on	operational	processes	within	its	yards	and	this	will	impact: •	 Employees
•	 Contractors
•	 Customers
•	 Investors

•	 Safety	and	health	of	employees,	 
contractors and customers

•	 Environmental	compliance	
•	 Productivity

•	 Technology	innovation	
•	 Materials	management
•	 Customer	satisfaction	

PROCUREMENT
Raw materials

Equipment  
& parts

Steel remains the primary resource for the industry, supplemented by other metals. Liquefied gases are consumed for cutting and welding. Other 
items used in yard operations include chemicals (eg. anti-fouling, water treatment and lubrication), paint, materials (eg. wood, plastics, cables and 
wire). 

The	Group	purchases	a	range	of	equipment	and	parts	such	as:
1) Ad hoc equipment for internal shipyard operations, such as forklifts and cranes.
2)	 Equipment	and	parts	that	are	utilised	for	newbuilding,	repair	and	upgrading	projects,	including	specialist	items	like	engines,	drilling	packages,	

rig/ship	operation	software,	furniture,	navigation	systems,	etc.	These	are	often	heavily	influenced	by	customer	preferences.	

High	/	Low

High	/	Medium

Procurement	involves	two	primary	areas	–	for	use	on	projects	and	for	shipyard	operations.	
Impacts	relevant	to	this	part	of	the	value-supply	chain	are:

•	 Suppliers	
•	 Customers
•	 Investors

•	 Customer	satisfaction	
•	 Product	quality
•	 Business	integrity

•	 Environmental	management
•	 Materials	management

Services &  
manpower

These	include	specialist	services	ranging	from	waste	disposal	services	to	commissioning	agencies.	Manpower	vendors	include	the	Group’s	
contracted workforce.

High	/ Medium Manpower and services vendors are individually managed by the Group’s yards based on their 
operating	requirements	and	policies	in	the	areas	of:

•	 Customers
•	 Employees
•	 Government
•	 Regulators•	 Health	&	safety

•	 Business	integrity
•	 People	development

PRODUCTION
Repair &  
upgrading

Sembcorp	Marine	repairs	a	diverse	range	of	vessels	and	platforms.	These	include	cargo	and	container	vessels,	tankers,	liquefied	natural	and	
petroleum gas carriers, passenger-ships, drillships, drilling rigs and crane barges.

High	/	Medium The	Group	leverages	the	complementary	facilities	and	specialised	capabilities	of	its	yards	to	deliver	
integrated	solutions	for	a	broad	range	of	projects	on	time,	within	budget	and	in	accordance	with	
high	standards	of	quality,	safety	and	excellence.	The	key	impacts	to	production	operations	are:
•	 Health	&	safety
•	 Customer	satisfaction	
•	 People	development
•	 Product	quality
•	 Economic	performance	
•	 Innovation,	R&D
•	 Business	integrity
•	 Environmental	management
•	 Materials	management

•	 Customers
•	 Employees
•	 Suppliers/Contractors
•	 Investors
•	 Institutions	(Academic,	R&D)
•	 Regulators
•	 Community
•	 Government

Ship conversion  
& offshore

A host of solutions is offered by the Group for the conversion of offshore production and storage platforms and specialised dynamic positioning 
offshore	vessels.	Our	track	record	of	conversions	include	FPSOs,	FSOs,	FPUs,	FDPSOs	and	FSRUs,	shuttle	tankers,	ARVs	and	heavy-lift	pipe-laying	
vessels.

 

Rig building The	Group	offers	turnkey	expertise	in	the	proprietary	design	and	construction	of	deep	drilling	offshore	jack-up	rigs	and	drillships	as	well	as	the	
construction	of	semi-submersibles,	including	drilling	units,	accommodation	rigs	and	well	intervention	units.	The	Group	has	proven	capabilities	in	
building	high-specification	rigs	for	challenging	and	harsh	environments	such	as	the	North	Sea.

Offshore 
engineering & 
construction

Sembcorp Marine provides total solutions in the engineering, procurement, construction, transportation, installation, offshore hook-up and 
commissioning	of	offshore	production	platforms	and	floating	production	facilities	for	the	oil	and	gas	industries.	This	includes	construction	of	
integrated, process, production, drilling, wellhead and accommodation platforms as well as fabrication of modules and living quarters.

Shipbuilding The	company	designs	and	constructs	dynamic	positioning	heavy-lift	pipe-lay	vessels,	mid-sized	tankers,	container	carriers	and	a	wide	range	of	other	
specialist units.

QUALITY & SAFETY VALIDATION
A	project	at	various	stages	of	construction	or	repair	will	require	multiple	levels	of	quality	and	safety	validations.	Offshore	vessels	and	platforms	are	
required to be certified and compliant to a range of international regulations and benchmarks.

High	/	Low The	key	impacts	of	the	quality	and	safety	validation	processes	are:
•	 Health	&	safety
•	 Customer	satisfaction
•	 Product	safety

•	 Customers	
•	 Employees
•	 Classification	societies	and	other	

companies offering testing services
•	 Investors/Financial	Community

DELIVERY TRANSPORTATION
To	provide	customers	with	a	one-stop	service	solution,	arrangement	of	transportation	may	be	offered	to	customers	for	rigs,	fixed	platforms	or	vessels	
that	are	not	equipped	with	the	necessary	propulsion	systems	for	long	distance	travel.	These	projects	are	either	towed	with	tugboats	or	transported	via	
heavy-lift ships. 

High	/	Medium Sembcorp	Marine	recognises	that	the	following	impacts	are	relevant: •	 Customers
•	 Employees
•	 Suppliers/Contractors
•	 Investors

•	 Health	&	safety	of	contractors,	 
customers and employees 

•	 Customer	satisfaction	

•	 Environmental	management
•	 Social	responsibility

CORPORATE FUNCTIONS
Corporate functions, such as Business Development, Marketing, HSSE, Finance and Risk Management, are accountable to the Board of Directors and 
senior management. Financial and risk teams track threats and opportunities in the business. All core functions are aligned to Group-level policies 
and comply with a structured framework which are audited regularly by internal committees and external agencies.

High	/	High The	Group’s	corporate	functions	have	large	influence	on	key	impact	areas,	including: •	 Employees
•	 Government/Regulators
•	 Investors
•	 Customers
•	 Community
•	 Shareholders/Financial	Community

•	 Product	quality
•	 Economic	performance	
•	 Innovation,	R&D

•	 People	
•	 Social	responsibility
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Innovative Technologies & 
Proprietary Capabilities 
During the year, the Group also acquired next-
generation technologies in the innovative design and 
construction of circular hull floaters and LNG/LPG 
terminals to provide customers with greater diversity of 
solutions across the value chain. The Group’s portfolio 
of proprietary designs also include the Jurong Espadon 
drillship design and Pacific Class series of jack-up rig 
designs.

•	 Next-generation	Circular	Hull	Floaters
Sembcorp Marine further sharpened its technological 
edge with the addition of the SSP® (Satellite Services 
Platform) Floater technology to its stable of proprietary 
offshore solutions following the acquisition of SSP 
Offshore, a Houston-based design and engineering 
company. 

The proprietary SSP Floater technology is customisable 
for a wide variety of applications and specifications. 
The SSP Floater series of next-generation of circular hull 
solutions include the SSP Driller for deepwater drilling, 
the SSP Plus FPSO for production and storage, and the 
SSP Hub for logistic hub applications.

Designed for operational stability, superior motion 
performance and improved safety, SSP floaters are built 
for robust operation and can be permanently moored 
on location during extreme or harsh sea conditions. 
Unlike conventional ship-shaped FPSOs, the unique 
circular hull design offers significant advantages and 
fabrication flexibility as it can be built using simple block 
construction methods without the need for a graving 
dock. In addition, the SSP Floater technology eliminates 
the need for turret, swivel or CALM buoy facilities for 
production and storage operations or offloading, 
translating to cost savings for customers.

•	 Modularised	LPG	&	LNG	terminals
Sembcorp Marine’s capabilities in LNG and LPG 
terminals construction were further bolstered with its 
strategic investment in Norway-based GraviFloat AS 
during the year. The Group is able to leverage on their 
patent-pending GraviFloat technology which allows 
LNG/LPG terminals to be built and completed at a 
shipyard with enhanced flexibility. 

Resilient & Responsive

The SSP Driller is customisable for mid to ultra-deepwater drilling and is capable of 
increased variable deck load over existing technologies.

The SSP Plus FPSO is configured for harsh-environment operation and has the 
capacity to store 1.25 million barrels of oil and accommodate topside modules of 
more than 20,000 mT.

The SSP Hub is capable of integrated delivery of logistic support services and offshore 
supply base services through a single platform.



101Sembcorp Marine Ltd Annual Report

Offering a more cost-competitive solution to FSRUs 
(Floating Storage and Regasification Units) and land 
terminals, GraviFloat LNG terminals can be customised 
to provide both liquefaction and receiving terminal 
services. GraviFloat LNG terminals are designed to be 
installed in shallow waters, while fully secured to the 
seabed during operation, for the direct ship loading of 
liquefied gases. Using the GraviFloat modularised block-
building concept, these terminals can be constructed to 
almost any size with the advantages of flexible capacity 
expansion and a phased reduced risk development 
approach. 

Versatile in application, GraviFloat terminals can also 
be customised as receiving and regasification capacity 
liquefaction terminals, as mobile units for stranded 
gas production and liquefaction, or for the temporary 
production of associated gas to support oil production.

•	 Jurong	Espadon	Drillship
The Jurong Espadon series of drillships represent the 
next generation of high-specification drillships with 
advanced capabilities for operational efficiency and 
ultra-deepwater operations worldwide.

The drillships are equipped with state-of-the-art drilling 
facilities, including a larger deck area with a 40m-wide 
main deck, efficient deck arrangement that enables 
the crew to safely carry out maintenance duties and 
a large moon pool for enhanced drilling operations. 
DP-3 (Dynamic Positioning Class 3) capabilities, superior 
motion features and Azimuth thrusters provide for 
positioning accuracy and flexibility as well as efficient 
mobility. Capable of operating at water depths 
of between 10,000 ft and 12,000 ft and drilling to 

depths of 40,000 ft, the drillships are equipped with 
accommodation facilities to house a crew of 180 
personnel. The proprietary Jurong Espadon drillship has 
received nine orders so far, including seven units for Sete 
Brasil and two units for Transocean. 

•	 Pacific	Class	400	Jack-up	Rig 
The Pacific Class 400 deep-drilling jack-up design was 
launched in 2010 following the success of the Pacific 
Class 375 jack-up design introduced in 2004. Designed 
with increased accommodation for a crew of 150, the 
rig incorporates the latest drilling equipment and offline 
pipe handling features for simultaneous operations 
support, with capabilities to operate in greater water 
depths without compromising on optimal wave height. 
The rig’s proprietary leg design and jacking system are 
designed to withstand storm load conditions. The jacking 
system is capable of elevating the rig for adjustment 
with full preload, reducing the processes involved and 
minimising exposure to work-related risks and hazards. 
The Pacific Class 400 jack-up design has received a total 
of 18 rig orders, including 11 units delivered to-date. 

Innovation 
Sembcorp Marine’s dedicated R&D unit Sembcorp 
Marine Technology (SMT) spearheads and supports 
projects relevant to green technologies, product 
innovations and process improvements for environmental 
management, operational effectiveness as well as 
workplace safety and health.

Sembcorp Marine’s proprietary Jurong Espadon drillship is capable of drilling to 
depths of 40,000 ft and ultra-deepwater operations.

Using a patent-pending modularised block-building concept, a GraviFloat terminal 
can be built entirely in a shipyard with the full flexibility to expand its storage capacity 
from 20,000 cubic metres as and when required.
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Workplace Innovations 
A key research and development focus of Sembcorp 
Marine is the development of innovative solutions 
to mitigate the environmental impact of maritime 
operations and yard activities. Among the eco-friendly 
innovations developed by the Group was the robotic 
ship blasting system with dust control, which has led to 
significant reductions in airborne dust during blasting 
operations and in turn resulted in better air quality as 
well as improved work safety and productivity. For more 
details on the Group’s R&D efforts in the area of green 
technologies, please refer to the ‘Environmental Focus’ 
section on pages 124 to 125.

SMT continued to partner the Group’s subsidiaries in 
innovative projects that reap operational benefits 
and streamline production processes. This includes 
collaborating with Jurong Shipyard on the development 
of an advanced version of their propeller carrier 
innovation – customised for different types and sizes of 
propellers – with the objective of further reducing the 
lead time on the propulsion overhauling process during 
ship repair and upgrading works. Other innovative 
projects generated in partnership with the yard were 
the engine exhaust valve lapping equipment designed 
to perform continuous lapping operations for increased 
productivity as well as a weather-tight door carrier which 
provides a safe and efficient solution for transporting and 
installing heavy weather-tight doors.

Jurong SML collaborated with Ngee Ann Polytechnic 
to develop the E-Planner, a digital programme for ship 
berthing and docking for optimal usage of wharf and 
dock facilities. Generating significant cost savings, 
time conservation while minimising human errors 
and improving safety performance, the E-Planner 
functionality has been enhanced to incorporate NEA 
forecasts on weather, tide, wind speed, temperature, 
humidity and PSI for heightened accuracy. In the same 
year, both parties facilitated two other projects – a 
wi-fi metering system for transmission of shipside power 
meter readings to an office database and a dock block 
management system to ensure adequate provision of 
dock blocks for drydocked vessels.

Culture of Continuous Improvement 
As part of Sembcorp Marine’s efforts to promote 
continuous workplace improvements, the Group utilises 
several engagement platforms, including staff suggestion 
schemes and innovation competitions, to motivate 
employees to generate new ideas and introduce 
effective solutions.

Sembcorp Marine held its 14th Innovation Carnival 
which showcased nearly 30 exhibits developed by 
teams from different business units across the Group.
The Group’s yards continued to organise innovation 
competitions annually to further encourage employees 
to innovate work processes for enhancing workplace 
safety, productivity and competitiveness. Teams with 
outstanding projects had the opportunity to showcase 
their creativity at WSH Innovation Conventions organised 
by the Association of Singapore Marine Industries and 
the national WSH Council.

Contributing to Industry Competitiveness 
Going beyond, Sembcorp Marine also contributes to 
sustaining Singapore’s leading status as an international 
maritime centre of choice and a global leader in the 
marine and offshore sector. The Group works in close 
collaboration with various government agencies, 
industry partners, research institutes and institutions of 
higher learning to develop next-generation technologies 
and advanced innovations to bolster the industry’s 
productivity and competitiveness.

Resilient & Responsive

Sembcorp Marine Technology collaborates with educational institutions to develop 
green technologies.
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Award-winning Innovations in 2014

The Transporter
Developed by: Jurong Shipyard 
Winner: ASMI WSH Innovation Award  
 (Gold Award)

• Enables transporting, installation 
and mounting of weather-tight 
door with greater safety and 
efficiency

• Eliminates the application of hot 
works 

C-Dile Machine 
Developed by: Jurong Shipyard 
Winner: WSH Innovation Award,  
 National WSH Award

• Enables hydraulic pistons to be 
disassembled with greater safety, 
precision and efficiency

• Reduces the need for manual 
handling, minimises the risk of 
injuries and enhances work 
efficiency

Quiver T Connector 
Developed by: Sembawang Shipyard
Winner: WSH Innovation Award,   
 National WSH Award

• Eliminates the use of two power 
cables for heating the quiver and 
the electrode holder

• Increases welding productivity

Ostium 
Developed by: Jurong Shipyard 
Winner: ASMI WSH Innovation Award   
 (Gold Award)

• Facilitates smooth transferring of 
grit from skid to hopper cover 

• Eliminates work-at-height activity

PropNut Turn-minator 
Developed by: Sembawang Shipyard
Winner: ASMI WSH Innovation Award   
 (Bronze Award)

• Increases efficiency of nut 
removal process

• Eliminates the risk of falling from 
heights

Aligned with the Group’s commitment to further 
education and research, Sembcorp Marine made 
a commitment in 2012 to invest $10 million over five 
years towards an endowment fund in support of the 
Sembcorp Marine Lab @ NTU. The research facility will 

serve as a centre for the development of innovative 
technologies and solutions to further the growth of 
Singapore’s maritime industry.

Little Hercules 
Developed by: Jurong SML 
Winner: ASMI WSH Innovation Award
 (Silver Award)

• Enables lifting and shifting of side 
blocks with improved propeller 
shaft removal and refit work

• Minimises the risk of hand, finger 
and back injuries
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People Development
Sembcorp Marine leverages its comprehensive human 

resource strategy as a key enabler for the organisation’s 

continuous ascent and evolution for the future. To drive its 

strategic objectives for sustainability and transformation, 

the Group strengthens its human capital through workforce 

development and retention, competencies building and skills 

enhancement, organisational development as well as forging  

a strong Sembcorp Marine identity.

Focus on Sustainability

Workforce Profile 
Sembcorp Marine registered a workforce strength of 

11,212 in Singapore as at end December 2014. The 

gender mix of employees comprised 92% males and 

8% females which is typical of the general profile of 

companies in the marine and offshore industry.

During the year, there were no major fluctuations or 

variations in workforce numbers. Production operations 

were largely carried out by employees or supervised 

employees of contractors. 

The workforce profile by employment type comprised 

58% production workers as well as management and 

staff of support functions which accounted for the 

remaining 42%. In these segments, male employees 

made up more than 99% of the production staff and  

81% of the management and support staff. 

Sembcorp Marine is led by a competent senior 

management team, comprising 13 men and 5 women. 

All 18 of them are Singaporeans, with six belonging to the 

age group of 40 to 49 years and 12 in the category of 50 

and above. Further details can be found at the ‘Senior 

Management’ section of the Annual Report.

Achieving high standards of quality, safety and reliability through strong teamwork.

Building a capable and motivated workforce.
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Fair Employment Practices and 
Diversity 
Sembcorp Marine is committed to create a fair 
and inclusive working environment in which equal 
opportunities are provided to employees without regard 
to their race, gender, marital status, age or religion. 

The Group’s human resource policies and practices, 
including those on recruitment, training and 
development, performance appraisal and grievance 
management, are in accordance with the Tripartite 
Guidelines on Fair Employment Practices formulated by 
the Singapore Tripartite Alliance. 

A fair and non-discriminatory approach is taken during 
the hiring process, beginning from job advertisement 
placement to the interview, selection and recruitment. 
The hiring of staff is based on merit and equal 
opportunities are accorded to potential candidates 
during recruitment. Sembcorp Marine and its yards, 
subcontractors and vendors are in compliance with 
Singapore’s employment legislations by the Ministry 
of Manpower, including the non-use of child or forced 
labour, and provisions to protect the labour rights of 
workers. In 2014, the Group did not receive any reports 
on the use of child or forced labour.

There are feedback channels which provide avenues 
for employees to share their views or grievances to their 
respective human resource departments or unions. 
Sembcorp Marine has a group-wide whistle-blowing 
policy whereby employees or other parties can flag 
up inappropriate conduct through various channels, 

Forging strong tripartite relationships.

including mail, email and fax, in confidence and without 
fear of reprisals for prompt investigation. There were no 
reports arising on employee discrimination during the 
year.

The Group respects the individual and labour rights of 
its people. Employees have the freedom of association 
to be members of trade unions, in accordance with 
Singapore’s ‘Industrial Relations Act’ which allows them 
representation by trade unions for collective bargaining 
and arbitration channels to seek redress for any disputes.

Unionised employees within Sembcorp Marine’s yards 
totalled 2,818 as at end 2014 and made up 25% of 
the workforce. These unionised personnel are from the 
SMEEU (Shipbuilding and Marine Engineering Employees’ 
Union), which has branch unions in Jurong Shipyard, PPL 
Shipyard and Jurong SML, as well as SSEU (Sembawang 
Shipyard Employees’ Union), which represents workers 
in Sembawang Shipyard and SMOE. The yards and 
their unions work closely through regular dialogues 
and meetings to develop collective bargaining 
agreements concerning the benefits, safety and training 
opportunities for employees.

Human Resource Strategy 
Guided by the Group’s vision, mission and core values, 
Sembcorp Marine’s multi-prong human resource strategy 
focuses on harnessing and maximising the potential 
and synergy of its valuable people assets to drive 
organisational performance and growth. 

Sembcorp Marine’s human resource strategy revolves 
around the key thrusts of:

•	 Workforce	availability,	development	and	retention

•	 Creating	a	conducive	working	environment

•	 Organisation	development	

•	 Organisation	culture

The Group’s human resource strategy is regularly 
reviewed and refined in alignment with the 
organisation’s strategic vision and growth objectives. This 
ensures that systems, processes and initiatives supporting 
the key thrusts are relevant and effective. 
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Workforce Availability, 
Development and Retention 
To ensure workforce availability and the building of a 
competent team, Sembcorp Marine is committed to 
attract, nurture and retain capable and experienced 
people to steer the Group ahead. 

Recruit the Right People for the Right Job
Various outreach platforms are utilised in Sembcorp 
Marine’s drive to attract and recruit new talents into 
its workforce. The Group participated in 55 career fairs 
and recruitment drives to grow its workforce base. 
During recruitment, candidates are screened using a 
competency framework which assesses their knowledge, 
skills, attitude and qualities to ensure that they fit well into 
the organisation and their work roles. 

To inspire students to pursue careers in marine and 
offshore engineering, the Group reached out to more 
than 2,700 students through job fairs and talks in tertiary 
and vocational institutions as well as 11 organised 
yard tours. Sembcorp Marine also works closely with 
institutions of learning to create greater awareness of 
the marine and offshore sector. The ITE-SCM Marine 
Engineering and Quality Centre, established in 2013 in 
partnership with the Institute of Technical Education 
(ITE) at its College Central Campus, is one such platform 
to showcase Sembcorp Marine’s capabilities and 
the exciting prospects in the industry to students and 
stakeholders. 

Sembcorp Marine provides scholarships to nurture bright 
and promising youths during their studies. In 2014, 39 
scholarships were extended to students from vocational 
institutions up to the university levels. The year saw 37 
scholars coming onboard to commence work after their 
graduation. The Group also supported 144 internships 
and industrial attachments which gave students 
opportunities for real-world practical training and 
experiential learning. Such attachments also enable the 
yards to identify promising interns for future recruitment.

Enhance Training and Skills Development
Sembcorp Marine implements a broad range of training 
and development programmes to equip employees with 
updated skills, knowledge and competencies to meet 
the evolving requirements of customers and the industry. 
Aligned to individual learning needs, training is provided 

to employees on the basis of job requirement and 
merit to further enhance their technical and functional 
competencies.

The Group invested about $5.08 million in training during 
the year, with employees receiving approximately 
39 learning hours on average through structured 
programmes. Learning opportunities were also provided 
to personnel through on-the-job training, technical 
briefings, job rotation, mentoring schemes as well as work 
attachment programmes locally and overseas.

Orientation courses are provided for new staff to learn 
about Sembcorp Marine and the Group’s Code of 
Conduct and policies, including aspects relating to anti-
corruption and whistle-blowing, as well as management 
systems relating to quality, productivity, safety and 
security. Compulsory safety induction is also conducted 
to educate employees on the importance of personal 
protective equipment and risk management procedures. 

Workplace safety and health training is a major focus 
for the Group. New employees involved in production 
or project management are required to undergo a 
range of specialised training that are relevant to their 
work scopes – including safety attachments, technical 
competency programmes and other accredited courses 
– to equip them with specific safety knowledge and core 
competencies to perform their jobs safely and effectively. 

Sembcorp Marine’s Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas, 
Sembawang Shipyard and PPL Shipyard have in-house 
training facilities to provide trainees and employees 
with specialised skills training, such as the Ministry 
of Manpower (MOM) accredited Shipyard Safety 
Instruction Courses for Workers. 

Committed to developing the full potential of 
employees, the Group partners local educational 
institutions, industry associations and certified training 
providers to offer professional development and 
personal effectiveness courses to upgrade their skills 
and knowledge in specialised fields. Staff are also 
exposed to learning and development opportunities 
through participation in local and overseas seminars, 
conferences and workshops, where they can gain new 
insights from technical experts and thought leaders. 

People Development
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The new state-of-the-art Learning Centre at the Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas aims to 
provide the workforce with a dynamic and multi-faceted learning space to train and upgrade their 
capabilities and skills for enhanced competitiveness.

Equipped with advanced facilities, the six-storey Learning Centre has specialised training areas for pipe and 
steel fabrication, scaffolding, utilities, electrical, mechanical, welding and crane operations, complemented by 
classrooms with learning aids, computer laboratories and discussion rooms, for hands-on training and theory-
based learning. Simulated work environments also allow trainees to apply their skills and practise safe work 
procedures before deployment to the work sites. 

The Learning Centre is accredited by the Ministry of Manpower to train specialists in various trades, the Singapore 
Workforce Development Agency to conduct Workforce Skills Qualifications (WSQ) training in 13 trades, as well 
as the Institute of Technical Education to provide Skills Evaluation Test (SET) certification in shipyard trades and 
NITEC certification for marine piping works and hull and structural operations. The training and qualification of 
welders in accordance with American Bureau of Shipping (ABS) certified welding standards also form part of the 
curriculum offered at the centre. 

new Learning Centre

Training in ABS-standard welding techniques.

Signalling and rigging training underway.

Conducting pipe and steel fabrication training.

Case study discussion in progress.
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Senior management representatives are in tune with 
the training and development needs of the industry 
through their active involvement on the boards of 
government, industry and educational institutions, 
including the Maritime and Port Authority of Singapore, 
Workplace Safety and Health Council, Association 
of Singapore Marine Industries, Singapore Maritime 
Foundation, Nanyang Technological University and Ngee 
Ann Polytechnic. This enables them to continually raise 
standards of excellence within Sembcorp Marine and 
Singapore’s marine and offshore industry.

The nurturing of future successors and leaders is vital for 
business continuity and sustainable growth. Leadership 
development is managed through the Group’s talent 
management and succession planning framework, 
which is reviewed at the Board level by the Executive 
Resource and Compensation Committee. The structured 
framework is used to identify talents and track their 
contributions using key performance indicators. 
Identified successors and leaders are groomed for key 
positions through an array of leadership development 
programmes to further strengthen their management 
capabilities.

Reward and Retain a Skilled Workforce
Talent retention is an important aspect in Sembcorp 
Marine’s focus of building a strong, capable and 
motivated team to sustain its success. The Group utilises 
a rewards and performance management system 
to compensate, reward and recognise staff for their 
performance and contributions. Compensation and 
benefits are regularly reviewed by external human 
resource consultants through benchmarking studies 
to ensure competitiveness in line with best industry 
practices in Singapore.

Sembcorp Marine offers competitive compensation 
packages and performance-linked incentives 
to employees in commensuration with their skills, 
experience and achievements. Mandatory contributions 
are also made towards the Central Provident Fund, 
a national social security savings plan for working 
Singaporeans and permanent residents, for employees’ 
secure retirement in future. 

To motivate staff, salary increments, performance 
bonuses, incentive bonuses and equity-based rewards 
are accorded on the basis of merit. An objective and 
well-structured appraisal system is in place to measure 
staff performance based on key performance indicators 

and behavioural traits. Appraisals are conducted 
twice yearly for full-time employees and subsequent 
compensation adjustments are pegged to individual 
contribution and Group performance. The system also 
serves as a platform for staff and their supervisors to 
share feedback and jointly participate in the setting of 
performance goals.

Comprehensive health and welfare benefits provided 
to employees include group insurance plans, leave 
entitlements, company transportation and subsidised 
accommodation. Married employees are eligible for 
maternity and paternity leaves for child birth as well as 
child care leave entitlements in line with Singapore’s 
legislation. Of the 41 employees who went on maternity 
leave, three left the Group while the rest returned to 
work within the year. 

Employees also enjoy a flexible benefits programme 
which offers them the versatility to choose additional 
benefits from a broad selection of lifestyle, healthcare 
and wellness choices based on their individual 
preferences. These flexible benefits can be used to 
subsidise spending on health care, self-improvement, 
travelling, insurance, childcare and fitness club 
membership expenses. 

The Group is open to providing flexible work options 
to staff with health considerations and unique work 
demands. Employees may bring their requests for special 
work arrangements, such as compressed work schedules, 
telecommuting and part-time work, to their respective 
supervisors and human resource departments for review 
and approval. 

Recognising staff for their contributions towards workplace improvement.

People Development
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Contract staff are extended the same basic healthcare 
and leave entitlements as full-time staff. Incentives such 
as variable compensation and flexible benefits may vary 
depending on individual employment terms.

Long-serving personnel are given special recognition for 
their years of loyal service and invaluable contributions. 
During the year, the Group presented long-service 
awards to 632 employees to honour them for their 
commitment and passion.

Sembcorp Marine values the knowledge and 
experience of its older employees and strives to  
retain them as valuable mentors in the workforce.  
Re-employing retired employees beyond the statutory 
retirement age of 62 was already an established 
practice within the Group even before the ‘Retirement 
and Re-employment Act’ was introduced, which requires 
companies to offer re-employment to eligible employees 
till the age of 65. In 2014, 635 of the retiring batch of 
employees chose to continue employment on an 
annual contract basis. To empower retiring employees 
for their new phase of life, preparatory workshops were 
organised to help them plan ahead for a meaningful 
and fulfilling retirement.

Creating a Conducive Work 
Environment 
Sembcorp Marine is committed to creating a conducive 
work environment where employees’ needs and welfare 
are well met. The Group cares for its workforce through 
a wide range of programmes and initiatives that 
encourage healthy, active and well-balanced living.

Dormitory residents working out in the well-equipped gymnasium at the Sembmarine 
Integrated Yard @ Tuas.

Ensure Employee Care and Wellness
Sembcorp Marine looks after the welfare of its non-local 
workforce and ensures that workers are well-integrated 
into their work environment. Overseas workers who join 
the workforce undergo a holistic immersion programme 
– that comprises orientation, mandatory safety courses, 
English language lessons and on-the-job training – to 
ensure a smooth transition into their jobs. In 2014, a 
total of 7,887 non-local employees complemented the 
Group’s local workforce.

This commitment to employee care is reflected in the 
Group’s new dormitory precinct, which is capable 
of housing 4,520 residents, within the Sembmarine 
Integrated Yard @ Tuas. Located right within the 
yard premises, the dormitory’s close proximity to the 
workplace enables workers to save time and energy on 
commuting. 

For the convenience of residents, the dormitory’s 
innovative centralised kitchen serves cooked meals 
three times a day and in-house laundrette services 
are available to ease their wash load. By relieving their 
cooking and washing chores, employees have more 
time to rest after work, which results in higher morale and 
greater productivity on the job. 

Dormitory residents have easy access to amenities such 
as a mini-mart, barber shop and ATM as well as a wide 
range of recreational and fitness options, ranging from 
a well-equipped gymnasium and roof-top street soccer 
courts to facilities for badminton, table tennis, sepak 
takraw, cricket and basketball. The dormitory also has a 
multi-media room for viewing movies, relaxation areas 
for reading and television watching, and a multi-purpose 
hall with a performance stage for large-scale events. 

Providing comprehensive health checks for employees.
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Active and Healthy Living
To encourage healthy and balanced lifestyles among 
employees, a multitude of wellness and fitness initiatives 
and programmes are regularly organised by the Group. 
Diverse sporting and recreational activities, such as 
nature walks, tournament games, sports competitions 
and outdoor excursions, held throughout the year 
provide staff with opportunities to not only engage in 
fitness activities and improve their health, but also to 
forge closer bonds with one another. 

Employees are encouraged to keep fit through daily 
morning exercises and ACTIVE (All Companies Together 
in Various Exercises) Day monthly mass workouts. Other 
fitness options available include gymnasium workouts 
and participation in a myriad of wellness classes such as 
yoga, pilates, aerobics as well as mind and body sessions. 

Health talks are conducted for employees throughout 
the year, with specialists from various medical institutions 
brought in to cover an assortment of topics ranging from 
healthy workplace practices to beneficial diets. Across 
the yards, nutritious food and drinks are regularly given 
out to employees to promote the benefits of a healthy 
and balanced diet.

Organisation Development 
Another thrust of Sembcorp Marine’s human resource 
strategy is the development of organisational systems 
and structures in gearing employees to work towards the 
Group’s corporate goals and strategic vision. 

Recreational activities promote work-life balance and healthy living among staff.

Provide a Healthy, Safe and  
Secure Working Environment
Ensuring high standards of workplace safety and health 
is vital in creating a safe, secure and conducive work 
environment for employees. Sembcorp Marine’s yards 
are equipped with medical centres and first-aid facilities 
that provide staff with convenient access to medical 
consultations and healthcare support. 

The yards also continued partnerships with established 
health institutions to offer free preventive health 
screenings, smoking cessation as well as chronic illness 
management programmes for employees. Over the 
years, staff from the Group have benefitted from medical 
tests for chronic illnesses such as high cholesterol, 
high blood pressure, coronary heart disease, stroke, 
hypertension and diabetes. For those discovered to be 
at risk, there are early intervention programmes that 
provide them with the means to better mitigate their 
conditions. 

Employees also have the benefit of access to direct 
referrals for specialist treatments, radiology, clinical 
measurements and faster treatment for industrial 
accidents as well as pandemic event support through 
the Group’s partnerships with Jurong Medical Centre 
and Khoo Teck Puat Hospital. Subsidised medical care is 
also extended to retired employees through the Group’s 
collaboration with Jurong Health.

People Development
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During the year, the human resource team was actively 
involved in various organisational development 
initiatives under Sembcorp Marine’s ‘Transformation 
for Growth’ strategy. These included providing support 
in the organisation of dialogue sessions, focus groups, 
Behavioural Event Interviews and teambuilding 
workshops, to understand the needs and concerns of 
employees as well as foster greater cohesiveness across 
business units.

The Group continues to align its people development 
systems with business excellence frameworks, such as 
ISO 9001 and SPRING Singapore’s Singapore Quality 
Class, Singapore Innovation Class and People Developer 
standards, to ensure workforce competitiveness. The 
structured review and evaluation mechanisms within 
these frameworks enable continuous workforce 
development in line with the evolving standards.

Organisation Culture 
Inculcating a strong and unified ‘One SCM’ identity 
among employees through diverse channels across 
the Group is a key part of Sembcorp Marine’s strategic 
transformation efforts to further strengthen synergy for 
greater competitiveness.

Teambuilding workshops further strengthen synergy across the Group’s strategic 
business units.

Building cohesiveness through various engagement platforms.

Training sessions are held to educate employees on the Group’s corporate 
governance and anti-bribery policies.

Promote Alignment with Corporate Values
A variety of platforms, such as training sessions, employee 
engagement programmes and teambuilding sessions, 
are used to promote alignment among employees with 
the Group’s corporate values.

During the year, several training sessions on anti-
bribery compliance and enterprise risk management 
were organised to ensure effective communication 
of corporate governance principles and policies to 
employees across Sembcorp Marine. 

Information technology and employee portals are 
also utilised as effective mediums for educating and 
engaging staff. For ease of reference, the Group’s 
Code of Conduct, policies and procedures are made 
available online via the intranet to staff across Sembcorp 
Marine. A Transformation Portal was also developed 
to provide news and updates on the company’s 
transformation developments. 

Forging a Strong Unified Identity and 
Building Cohesiveness
To enhance team spirit and cohesiveness, the Group 
organises various activities, such as teambuilding 
workshops, sporting functions, recreational events and 
festive celebrations, to foster closer connections among 
management and employees.

Developing strong union-management ties is another 
important focus in building a harmonious and supportive 
work environment. Reflecting the strong cooperation, 
Sembcorp Marine’s yards and their unions co-organise 
programmes, including National Day celebrations, WSH 
innovation carnivals and outreach events, to further 
reinforce tripartite relations, employee development and 
community engagement.
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Workplace Safety
  & Health

Workplace safety and health is Sembcorp Marine’s utmost 

priority and underlies all of its operating management systems. 

Sembcorp Marine believes that each and every one of the 

Group’s employees as well as contractors, clients, shipyard 

occupiers and other stakeholders deserve to work in a safe, 

secure and healthy environment and to return safely to their 

families each day. 

The Group’s four robust strategic thrusts developed from the 

Singapore Workplace Safety and Health 2018 strategy ensures 

that the health, safety, security, and environmental activities of 

Sembcorp Marine’s yards are aligned to national efforts.
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Workplace HSE Strategy 
Sembcorp Marine’s four Health, Safety and Environment 
(HSE) strategic thrusts are:

1. Continuous enhancement in HSE competencies and 
capabilities

2. Building up commitment and leadership towards a 
better Workplace Safety and Health (WSH) culture 

3. Involvement and support from stakeholders
4. Improvements in risk and safety management systems

Collectively formulated by dedicated personnel from 
multiple levels, the Group’s WSH policies are driven 
by management and extends from the Board Risk 
Committee and Enterprise Risk Management Committee 
to the Group, yard departments and sub-trade functions. 
A risk management team continuously monitors and 
evaluates the Group’s HSE performance against WSH 
impact on people, assets and consequential loss, 
environment and reputation. The safety management 
framework encompasses the 11,212 employees across 
the Group, as well as contractors, clients, shipyard 
occupiers and other stakeholders.
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WSH Performance in 2014
Sembcorp Marine’s yards monitor WSH performance 
using several indicators, including near misses, hazards 
reported and occupational disease rate, to assess the 
safety performance of employees and business partners. 
Such monitoring efforts enable the yards to customise 
appropriate WSH strategies and programmes to address 
specific areas of focus within their operations.

Sembcorp Marine systematically records all workplace 
safety and health related incidents and provides 
quarterly reports to the Group’s management and 
related ministries according to regulation. In 2014, the 
Group’s safety performance improved overall and there 
were no fatalities during the reporting period. There was 
a 33% drop in Accident Frequency Rate (AFR) to 0.42 
incidents per million man-hours, and an 84% decrease 
in Accident Severity Rate (ASR) to 11.37 man days lost 
per million man-hours. The Group’s Workplace Injury Rate 
(WIR) saw a reduction of 35% to 139.86 incidents per 
100,000 employed persons. 

Contractors account for slightly more than half of 
reportable incidents at 62% compared to employees. 
The Group will intensify efforts to close the performance 
gap through training and activities for contractors.
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Aim: To create and foster an internalised safety 
culture including proactive risk management 
and shared ownership by all stakeholders.

The yards deploy ongoing programmes to enhance 
competencies through Workforce Skills Qualifications 
(WSQ)1 Trades and WSH Competency Training. In 2014, 
724 employees and contractors received training 
to enhance their HSE competence in 13 specialised 
marine industry trades. A total of 190 WSH personnel 
received additional training in specialised safety and 
health topics.

To ensure continued WSH performance from 
Sembcorp Marine’s contractor partners, the Group 
provided 200,238 hours of training to 11,165 personnel 
from contractor companies on a variety of WSH-
related courses which ranged from basic Shipyard 
Safety Instruction Courses (SSIC) to refresher courses 
for 2014’s key risk areas.

Enhancement of WSH awareness and knowledge 
for on-job-training in 2014 focused on high-risk 
topics identified in the previous year – comprising 
hotwork, working at height, lifting operation, electrical 
work, structure and stability as well as working in 
confined spaces. As this form of practical training 
against a dynamic list of topics identified by the risk 
management team has proven effective with higher 
retention rates, the Group intends to develop a 
training system for increased reach.

Awards recognition programmes continued to 
recognise and identify supervisors and employees 
who are role models in championing workplace 
safety and health excellence, such as the WSH Best 
Supervisor and WSH Best Worker Awards.

Recognition and incentive programmes targeted at 
contractor partners are in place and these include 
the WSH Pinnacle Award and WSH STAR Award 
programmes.

Workshops and talks are conducted on various WSH 
topics such as occupational health, in collaboration 
with health authorities. 

Strategic Thrust 1: Continuous Enhancement in 
HSE Competencies and Capabilities

Equipping employees with the skills to be emergency-ready.

Creating platforms to develop and showcase WSH innovations.

Classroom training in progress.

1 13 modules of Singapore Workforce Skills Qualifications (WSQ) Workplace Safety and Health for Marine Industry – Forklift Operations, Signalling and Rigging, Marine Metal 
Scaffolding, Supervising Marine Metal Scaffolding, Self-Propelled Platform Operation, Welding, Pipe Fitting, Painting and Blasting, Dockside Tower Crane Operation, Steel Fitting, 
Tank Cleaning, Electrical Installation and Marine Mechanical Installation.
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Aim: To enhance capability building of all 
stakeholders and encourage innovation in 
promoting continuous safety and health 
assessment to ensure the highest standards of 
WSH.

Sembcorp Marine embraced the national Workplace 

Safety and Health Council’s (WSHC) CultureSAFE 

programme in 2014. The five-step culture-building 

programme is in line with the national WSH 2018 

strategy. The purpose of CultureSAFE is to not only 

nurture a WSH-oriented mindset and align goals 

across all levels and stakeholders, but also to widen 

the channels of communication and participation 

and further strengthen a WSH culture that sustains 

work systems and processes. The yards have 

completed Steps 1 and 2 of the five-step CultureSAFE 

cycle, and will continue to launch respective 

programmes and activities adapted for the yards.

The HSE Officers Inter-yard Exchange Programme 

continued to accelerate Group-level sharing and 

implementation of workplace safety and health 

best practices. This process ensures the Group’s HSE 

personnel embrace an outlook that encourages 

dynamic improvement and critical assessment of 

health, safety and environment practices.

Daily reminders on task- and site-specific workplace 

safety and health operations during morning toolbox 

briefings, meetings and prominent visual reminders 

around the yards ensured constant engagement of 

staff, contractors, customers and other stakeholders. 

Annual safety innovation competitions and sharing 

platforms engaged employees, external partners 

and stakeholders to foster a culture of continuous 

improvement in developing innovations and solutions 

for WSH enhancement.

Workplace safety and health promotional campaigns 

reinforced a proactive HSE culture among all 

stakeholders in the yard. Events such as WSH and 

innovation events, quizzes and competitions on 

STEP 5
Review & 

Evaluation

STEP 1
Diagnostic

STEP 2
Reporting

STEP 3
Action 

Planning
STEP 4

Implementation

5-Step
CultureSAFE  

Cycle

A WSH culture-building programme in line with the national WSH2018 Strategy.

Strategic Thrust 2: Commitment & Leadership 
Building Towards a Better WSH Culture

Joint programmes between shipyards encourage knowledge transfer.

related topics help to engage a wide audience of 

stakeholders and deepen awareness on a range of 

workplace safety and health topics. 
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Aim: To increase the connectivity and 
communication networks to enhance outreach 
to all relevant stakeholders through promotional 
activities and information-sharing portals.

There is proactive inclusion of contractors, clients, 
shipyard occupiers and other relevant stakeholders in 
the Group’s health, safety, security and environmental 
training programmes and activities. Sembcorp Marine 
yards conducted a total of 164 drills that included fire 
& rescue scenarios, evacuation drills, environmental 
threats, security breaches and joint exercises with the 
Singapore Civil Defence Force.

Proactive support is provided for contractor partners 
to continuously enhance capabilities and safety 
management systems through third-party certification 
and independent audit programmes such as WSHC’s 
bizSAFE scheme. 

In 2014, Sembcorp Marine’s yards began to audit 
the safety management systems of its resident 
contractors. While the resident contractors meet 
national requirements, this newly-launched initiative 
will ensure that contractor partners are aligned to 
the Group’s Code of Conduct and policies. Gaps are 
identified and resolved together to further build the 
capabilities of resident contractor partners. 

Forums and meetings between senior management, 
HSE committees, operations personnel and 
stakeholder groups such as contractor partners and 
customers ensure alignment of WSH expectations, 
goals and activities on all levels.

The Group’s yards cooperate with external agencies, 
including the Ministry of Manpower, WSH Council, 
Workforce Development Agency, the Association of 
Singapore Marine Industries as well as the community 
Security & Safety Watch Groups and Home Team 
agencies such as the Singapore Police Force and 
the Singapore Civil Defence Force, to improve 
occupational health and safety standards in the 
industry and ensure continued community vigilance 
and emergency readiness. 

The newly introduced WSH Communities Discussion 
Forum engages WSH corporate leaders outside of 
the marine and offshore industry such as Singapore 
Power Group to enhance the Group’s WSH policy 
formulation and management of frontline issues. The 
programme accelerates the sharing of information 
and adoption of best practices, and ensures that 
Group action is always responsive, relevant and 
effective.

Strategic Thrust 3: Involvement & Support from 
Stakeholders

Promoting WSH awareness among stakeholders.

Joint fire drill with the Singapore Civil Defence Force.

Sharing insights with Jurong Police Division HQ during a visit to the new 
Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas.

Workplace Safety & Health
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Aim: To develop and enhance the HSE 
management system through the development 
of benchmarking and statistical tools, incident 
reporting and continuous improvement. To 
develop focused intervention programmes for 
identified high risks to reduce incidents, including 
risk assessments, trade specific guides and 
industry practices.

The Review, Educate & Validate (REV) programme 
continued to be used by the yards and their 
contractor partners to address key risk areas. Key risk 
areas including working at height, fire and explosion, 
hand and finger injuries, as well as structural strength 
and stability were addressed in 2014.

An annual review of performance in the reporting 
period identified key areas that the yards will focus on 
in 2015. These areas are hotwork, working at height, 
lifting operation, electrical work, structure and stability 
as well as working in confined spaces. 

Sembcorp Marine’s yards require all of its 202 resident 
contractors to achieve a minimum of bizSAFE 
Level 3 which ensures that the companies’ safety 
management systems have been integrated with 
risk management aspects audited by a ministry-
approved WSH auditor. The yards continued to align 
and enhance contractors’ safety management 
systems in accordance to WSH Council’s five-step 
bizSAFE programme. In 2014, the Group focused on 
these resident contractors and encouraged them 
to attain bizSAFE’s highest STAR level through an 
independent auditor.

Safety checklists and permit-to-work systems 
continue to be an important part of the yards’ safety 
management systems. Mitigating measures are 
deployed to proactively manage and bring down 
risks to target levels.

The yards continued to employ platforms in their risk 
and safety management systems which include the 
Behavioural Based Safety (BBS) Programme, Hazard 
Observation Card (HOC) Programme, and regular 
Task Force Inspections.

Strategic Thrust 4: Improvements in Risk &  
Safety Management Systems

Encouraging contractor partners to grow their safety management systems 
together with the yards.

Functional tests on equipment and devices are scheduled regularly as part of 
pre-use assurance checks.

High standards of Health, Safety and Environment (HSE).
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Environmental Focus
Sembcorp Marine’s yards have stringent Environment Management 
Systems (EMS) to ensure operations are in compliance to the national 
‘Environmental Protection and Management Act’, ‘Environmental 
Public Health Act’, ‘Sewage and Drainage Act’, the National 
Environment Agency’s ‘Hazardous Waste (Control of Export, Import and 
Transit) Act’ as well as the Maritime and Port Authority of Singapore’s 
‘Prevention of Pollution of the Sea Act’. These EMS identify and assess 
significant environmental aspects followed by the mitigation measures 
and action plans to achieve targeted objectives in these identified 
areas. All the shipyards require contractors, customers and any shipyard 
occupier to comply with these policies and practices when carrying 
out on-site operations. In 2014, there were no reports of significant oil 
spills, sanctions or fines during the reporting period.

The Group promotes greater environmental consciousness through outreach programmes such as the Green Wave Environmental Care Competition.
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Two of the Group’s yards Sembawang Shipyard and 
SMOE monitor wind speeds in real time and halt open 
space blasting operations if wind speeds exceed eight 
knots to mitigate impact on nearby residential areas. Air 
quality is also monitored to ensure compliance to United 
States Environment Protection Agency PM-10 standards 
as part of their ISO14001 Environmental Management 
standards. All of the shipyards employ site-specific 
campaigns and measures to encourage frontline-users 
to conserve the environment and preserve resources.

Energy Management
The Group sources its electricity primarily from the 
national power grid which in the first half of 2014 
was generated from a mix of 95.3% natural gas, 0.9% 
petroleum products, and 3.9% others1. 

During the reporting year, the Group consumed 
a total of 1,447,105 GJ of energy. Consumption of 
indirect energy (electrical) power in 2014 increased by 
approximately 35% to 697,511 GJ compared to  
515,386 GJ in 2013.

This was attributable to increased operations at the 
new yard facility in 2014 as well as efforts to move away 
from diesel power. Initiatives to reduce consumption of 
diesel include replacement of diesel-fuelled compressors 
at Jurong Shipyard, as well as a trial installation of a 
solar-powered self-charging light panel at the Jurong 
SML waterfront as a shallow water warning system for 
vessels. The shipyards continued the Light Emitting Diode 
(LED) replacement programme across the Group. In 
the reporting period, 2,244 mercury-based units were 
replaced with eco-friendlier LED lights across workshops, 
streetlights, floodlights and corporate locations. This 
resulted in estimated savings of 1,745,217 KWH, a 1.22% 
reduction in overall electricity consumption.

During the period under review, use of liquefied gases 
increased primarily due to variations in timing of 
project progress and scope of jobs in the shipyards. 
Industrial gases – which consist mainly of LPG, CNG, CO2 
and acetylene for cutting and welding operations – 
increased to 65,612 GJ. 

Air Quality Management 
The Group’s carbon emissions for 2014 rose from 298,670 
tCO2e to 402,191 tCO2e in 2014. Conversion and repair 
works as well as certain stages of newbuilding generally 
require heavier use of fuel gases for cutting and welding 
processes. During the reporting year, liquefied fuel gases 
were the largest contributor to emissions at 66%.

1 Latest figures at time of print as provided from “Energising our Nation: Singapore Energy Statistics 2014”, pg. 22: Table 2.2: Fuel Mix for Electricity Generation by Energy Products 
(Annual), Research and Statistics Unit, Energy Market Authority, Republic of Singapore.

EnErgy consuMPtion

1.0_

0.8_

0.6_

0.4_

0.2_

0_

GJ
Million

Diesel 0.820 0.808 0.684
Liquefied Gases 0.067 0.060 0.066

Total Direct Energy 0.886 0.868 0.750

Indirect Energy (Electricity) 0.615 0.515 0.698
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Note:  The Group’s new yard in Tuas commenced operations in August 2013.

 2012-2013 direct energy figures have been revised in line with new data inclusions of liquefied 
gases to reflect higher accuracy in reporting.

 Liquefied gases used in shipyard operations such as welding and cutting include LPG, CNG, 
CO2 and acetylene.

Enclosed blasting and painting chambers enhanced with filtration equipment 
control airborne particle dispersion.
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Water is a stressed resource in Singapore and the 
Group takes action to manage freshwater consumption 
responsibly. The Group’s water supply is sourced from 
the Singapore Public Utilities Board (PUB) which has four 
origins of water – water from local catchment areas, 
imported water, reclaimed water known as NEWater and 
desalinated water. 

The Group’s move towards environmentally-friendly 
hydrojet blasting over traditional use of copper slag 
for the preparation of steel surfaces has resulted in an 
upward trend of water consumption over the years. 
An emphasis on water management strategy has 
however enabled the yards to control their overall water 
consumption. 

Where it is not possible for operations to use water from 
the sea, three of the Group’s locations have access to 
NEWater, a high-grade water reclaimed by PUB from 
used sources, and utilise it appropriately in shipyard 
operations. The remaining three yards face infrastructure 
constraints and have systems in place to manage 
water usage. All the yards are committed to water 
management efforts and employ several platforms such 
as utilisation of sea water where possible as well as water 
catchment tanks. 

The yards will focus on re-assessing the current water 
management systems in 2015 for improvements.

The shipyards continue to utilise eco-friendly production 
methods such as replacing conventional grit blasting 
with hydro-jet blasting and using enclosed chambers 
for blasting and painting to mitigate the dispersion 
of airborne particulates. All enclosed chambers are 
equipped with dust filtration equipment and paint 
arrestor mechanisms. Where operations in enclosed 
spaces are physically impossible, the yards deploy 
netting covering to ensure that all operations are 
compliant with national regulations. The yards have 
developed and deployed robotic and automated hull 
treatment systems that have increased capacity to 
mitigate the impact of shipyard operations on air quality. 

Water Management
In 2014, the Group’s operations utilised 2.14 million m3 
of water from PUB, which was a decrease of 14% 
compared to 2013. Of this, 38% consisted of NEWater and 
62% potable water. 
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Diesel 56,803 58,310 49,358

Liquefied Gases 215,498 175,951 265,664

Total Direct Energy 272,301 234,261 315,022

Indirect Energy (Electricity) 83,948 64,409 87,169

gHg EMissions

400000_

300000_

200000_

100000_

0_

GHG tCO2e

2012 2013 2014

Note: The Group’s new yard in Tuas commenced operations in August 2013.

 2014 emission figures were based on the Singapore Ministry of the Environment and Water 
Resources’ (MEWR) latest 2013 conversion factor. The 2014 figures were unavailable at time of 
writing.

 2012 and 2013 figures have been updated in line with MEWR’s revised historical conversion 
factors.

 Liquefied gases used in shipyard operations such as welding and cutting include LPG, CNG, 
CO2 and acetylene.
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as a sand substitute in bricks and pavement blocks 
for commercial use. All other forms of non-hazardous 
waste which amounted to 38,958 mT were disposed in 
accordance with statutory requirements. The Group 
disposed a total of 9,464 mT of hazardous waste in 2014. 
A major source of hazardous waste is from the cleansing 
process of client vessels which arrive for maintenance 
and repair works and this consists predominantly of built-
up sludge flushed from vessels. This contributed to 84% 
of the Group’s hazardous waste and the remaining 16% 

Spent copper grit is used as a sand substitute in the manufacture of bricks by 
recycling plants such as Sembcorp Marine subsidiary JPL Industries.

Materials Management 
A significant resource for the industry is steel which is 
heavily consumed in newbuilding projects. Sembcorp 
Marine’s yards consolidate steel procurement primarily 
through a subsidiary company to ensure that the Group 
sources from reputable vendors that comply with 
national laws in the countries they operate as well as 
adhere to the Group’s Code of Conduct and policies. 
The Group’s steel consumption in 2014 totalled 125,640 mT, 
a slight decrease of 2% from 2013 due to variances 
in timing of project stages and requirements. The 
organisation also employs innovation which plays a key 
role in improving technology design, process and use of 
materials in bringing down cost and increasing efficiency. 

Shipyard operations produce three main types of waste 
which the Group actively manages. During the reporting 
period, the Group’s yards recycled a total of 135,831 mT 
of materials which included 95,969 mT of used copper 
grit and 36,769 mT of scrap steel. The used copper grit 
recycled by the Group from steel treatment operations 
accounted for 71% of this. The recycling process involves 
two main treatments that are undertaken by the Group’s 
subsidiary JPL Industries or similar vendors. The copper 
grit is cleaned and treated for a second life, or recycled 
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Note: The Group’s new yard in Tuas commenced operations in August 2013.
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Note: The Group’s new yard in Tuas commenced operations in August 2013.

 PPL Shipyard commenced tracking of waste materials in 2014. 

 * From 2014, the Group will include information on separate sources of hazardous waste. Of the 
9,464 mT hazardous waste disposed in 2014, 7,918 mT was removed from client vessels which 
called at the yards for various repair, maintenance or upgrading works. 
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was a result of actual shipyard operations. All waste is 
removed by disposal vendors licensed by the Singapore 
National Environment Agency in accordance to strict 
Singapore regulation and the Basel Convention on the 
control of global transboundary movement of hazardous 
waste.

All usage of chemicals and hazardous materials in the 
Group’s yards is strictly controlled by Sembcorp Marine’s 
Permit-to-Work system, where they are handled in 
accordance to the respective Safety Data Sheets by 
personnel trained with the necessary risk assessment 
skills and equipped with the required Personal Protective 
Equipment. Designated areas are set aside and marked 
to store all chemicals and hazardous waste. Continued 
efforts are made to improve material movement and 
storage such as Sembawang Shipyard’s revamp of its 
waste management system and new chemical bay 
area.

Mitigating Impact with 
Sustainable Solutions
Sembcorp Marine’s products and solutions are 
designed and developed for a long service life of at 
least a quarter of a century, with recommendations 
of regular maintenance and upgrading to ensure 
performance. Newbuild projects are built compliant 

to the International Maritime Organization’s (IMO) 
‘International Convention for the Prevention of Pollution 
from Ships’ and ‘MARPOL Annex VI Tier II’ which restricts 
the main air pollutants contained in ships exhaust 
gas, including sulphur oxides (SOx) and nitrous oxides 
(NOx), and prohibits the deliberate emissions of 
ozone depleting substances. In addition, drilling rig 
construction projects are compliant to the IMO Code for 
Construction and Equipment of Mobile Offshore Drilling 
Units. Depending on project deployment and client 
requirements, projects have also been built to standards 
which mitigate environmental impact such as US Coast 
Guard ‘Regulations for Foreign Flag Vessels calling at US 
Ports’ and the strict NORSOK S-003 Environmental Care 
standard. These are in turn verified and certified by 
external classification societies.

As products mature in their life span, their efficiency 
levels decrease. All Sembcorp Marine yards provide 
the necessary maintenance and upgrading services 
to ensure that vessels and offshore floaters are able to 
continue performing at optimum capacity such that all 
best practice standards can be met.

The Group has embarked on a collaboration with 
A*STAR’s Institute of High Performance Computing 
(IHPC), University of Glasgow and University of Glasgow 
Singapore (UGS) in a research project which will look into 
vessel designs that are energy-efficient and leverage 
on gas abatement technology to lower exhaust 
emissions and harmful discharge. An enhanced scrubber 
design will be developed to address the emission of 
harmful gases like sulphur oxides (SOx), nitrous oxides 
(NOx), particulate matter and greenhouse gases, in 
particular CO

2, from the client’s heavy fossil fuel burning 
combustion engines. 

Subsidiary Sembawang Shipyard and Ecospec 
Global Technology, a Singapore-based research and 
development technological company, have jointly 
developed several industry solutions for advanced 
emission reduction and environmental technologies. 
Among those in development are the cSNOx, the 
world’s first three-in-one abatement system that reduces 
sulphur dioxide, nitrogen oxides and carbon dioxide in 
a single process, as well as the Semb-Eco L-UV Ballast 
Water Treatment System which uses LED-UV and 
biofouling control technologies to treat ballast water. The 
company was recently awarded a contract by Rederi 
AB TransAtlantic Sweden and Stora Enso OYJ — one of 

Automated hull treatment and cleaning system utilising hydrojet blasting at the 
Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas. The process entirely eliminates grit particles from 
traditional blasting methods, and the liquid nature of hydrojet blasting and integrated 
vacuum function further mitigates airborne particles stripped from the hull.

Environmental Focus
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the world’s largest pulp and paper manufacturers — to 
install the cSNOx system onboard. This will ensure that the 
vessel will meet IMO ‘MARPOL Annex VI’ requirements 
that limit fuel oil sulphur to 0.1% m/m when operating 
in Emission Control Areas (ECAs). The transport vessels 
consist of bulk, container and RORO vessels for the basic 
Nordic industrial sector that primarily ply the Baltic Sea.

During the year, the Group’s R&D arm Sembcorp Marine 
Technology in partnership with Nanyang Technological 
University, entered an agreement with NYK Line 
(Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha) and the Monohakobi 
Technology Institute (MTI) to research and develop 
an Exhaust Gas Cleaning System (EGCS) that can be 
used to control SOx emissions. Funded by the Singapore 
Maritime Institute (SMI), this R&D programme is focused 
on the future need to comply with SOx emissions 
control regulations outside ECAs with an aim to simplify 
EGCS operations and concurrently reduce cost and 
CO2 emissions. Advanced technology will be used to 

Inculcating a proactive, eco-friendly mindset in the next generation with programmes such as the Green Wave Environmental Care Competition.

explore simplification and miniaturisation of the EGCS for 
versatility to install in any vessel type and other practical 
applications.

Community Engagement
Sembcorp Marine continued to engage a wider 
community in its environmental promotion efforts through 
its Green Wave Environmental Care Competition which 
is currently in its 12th year. Aimed at spurring the young 
generation to take ownership and be proactive in 
caring for and protecting the environment, the annual 
competition reached out to more than 1,000 students 
and drew 287 project submissions in 2014. 

The involvement of corporate industry partners such 
as Shell International Eastern Trading Company and BP 
Shipping as well as educational institutions further serves 
to enhance and integrate community involvement 
towards a common environmental cause. 
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Community Engagement
Sembcorp Marine embraces the role of 

a committed and responsible corporate 

citizen by continually supporting meaningful 

community initiatives. The key areas of 

engagement include furthering educational 

causes, supporting less privileged groups 

in the community and actively advancing 

industry engagement efforts both locally 

and abroad. The monetary contributions the 

Group made to these key areas were close to 

$3.3 million in 2014. 

Helping students in need through the SchoolBAG programme.
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Nurturing the Future 
The Group recognises the importance of education and 
provides support for children and youth in achieving 
their academic goals and personal aspirations. The 
School Book Assistance Grant (SchoolBAG) programme 
was initiated by Sembcorp Marine in 2001 to provide 
grants to support the basic educational needs and 
holistic development of children and youth from 
financially disadvantaged families in the neighbouring 
communities. Almost 16,000 needy students have 
benefited from more than $3.2 million in grants since the 
programme was launched. In 2014, more than $266,000 
was given out to 1,298 students from 85 schools. Students 
from primary and secondary school as well as youths 
from junior colleges are eligible for this programme.

During the year, a total of 55 bursaries worth $65,100 
were awarded, while 39 scholarships were presented 
to students from tertiary institutions such as the National 
University of Singapore, Nanyang Technological University 
(NTU), Ngee Ann Polytechnic, Singapore Polytechnic, 
Singapore Institute of Technology and Institute of 
Technical Education. To encourage excellence in 
education, the Group also sponsored awards and book 
prizes given out by the Singapore Maritime Academy 
and NTU to recognise students with outstanding 
academic and co-curricular achievements. 

Education assistance programmes run by the Chinese 
Development Assistance Council, Yayasan MENDAKI, 
the Singapore Indian Development Association and the 
Eurasian Association are beneficiaries of contributions 
from Sembcorp Marine staff. These courses serve to help 
the less-privileged students in Singapore. 

As part of efforts to further education and research, the 
Group has been partnering NTU since 2012 to set up a 
new research facility – the Sembcorp Marine Lab @ NTU 
– with $10 million committed to this project over a period 
of five years. The facility will serve as a centre for the 
advancement of productivity enhancement solutions 
and sustainable growth in the industry.

Supporting Community 
Development
Besides financial assistance, Sembcorp Marine also looks 
out for the well-being of youths. The Group is a supporter 
of the Students Care Service (Yishun Branch) Great SCS 

Challenge, a programme that provides a platform for 
mid-risk youths from schools to build their self-esteem and 
achieve in different areas through social work. Together 
with the care centre, the Group organised the U.Me 
Christmas Party to bring fun and joy to the beneficiaries 
and their families. The proceeds further bolstered the 
centre’s ability to provide financial assistance and help 
to students from underprivileged families and those with 
special needs. 

Sembcorp Marine also extends support to the 
community by backing various fundraising activities 
and philanthropic efforts. In 2014, the Group provided 
sponsorships and donations to charitable organisations 
and causes, including the Community Chest, National 
Kidney Foundation, the Singapore Children’s Society, 
the Tan Tock Seng Hospital Community Charity Ride 
Programme and the NTUC U-Care Fund.

The Group also gave towards community and 
professional development initiatives. These efforts 
include supporting constituency organisations in 
their engagement programmes for residents as well 
as professional institutions, such as the Institution of 
Engineers (IES), in their drive to further raise standards of 
excellence within the profession. 

Employees from the yards also served as volunteers to 
interact with residents at welfare organisations. During 
the year, staff from the Group brought cheer to the 
elderly residents of Sunshine Welfare Action Mission 
(SWAMI) by helping them to spring clean their living 
quarters for the lunar new year. 

Students from Students Care Service (Yishun Centre) having a fun time at the U.Me 
Christmas party.
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Bolstering the Arts 
The promotion of arts and culture is another focus area 
in Sembcorp Marine’s community engagement efforts. 
The Group continued to sponsor the Art Attitude Club 
of the Students Care Service (Yishun Branch) which 
helps youths develop their artistic talents and build up 
their confidence. Reflecting its steadfast support of the 
arts in Singapore, the Group also sponsored ‘The Body 
as a Landscape’ exhibition organised by the Mexican 
Ministry of Foreign Affairs and the Embassy of Mexico 
in Singapore. The project showcased bronze sculpture 
pieces depicting Mexican figurative art to the public at 
UOB Plaza.

The Group’s staff also played their part in blood donation 
drives organised by Khoo Teck Puat Hospital throughout 
the year. Demonstrating their strong support, some of the 
participants went on to enlist as regular blood donors to 
contribute towards this meaningful cause.

Sharing the Nation’s Pride 
Reflecting its commitment and love for Singapore, 
Sembcorp Marine was a major sponsor and participant 
in Singapore’s 49th National Day Parade (NDP) in 
2014. This was the Group’s eighth consecutive year of 
participation in this annual national celebration. More 
than 55 staff from across the Group had contributed to 
the success of this milestone event at the Marina Bay 

Floating Platform.

Community Engagement

Group employees playing their part in the blood donation drive.

Supporting ‘The Body as a Landscape’ sculpture exhibition.

National Day Parade participants celebrating a proud moment.
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Promoting the Industry
To spur the sustainable growth of Singapore’s marine 
and offshore sector, Sembcorp Marine supports a wide 
range of industry promotion and development initiatives 
to further enhance ties with stakeholder partners, 
boost knowledge exchange as well as heighten public 
awareness.

Sembcorp Marine showcased its capabilities through 
several high profile international exhibitions during the 
year. The Group participated in the Offshore Technology 
Conference (OTC) and Cruise Shipping Miami in the 
United States, OTC Asia exhibition in Malaysia, Posidonia 
trade show in Greece, SMM exhibition in Germany,  

Rio Oil and Gas Expo and Conference in Brazil and 
Gastech exhibition in Korea. 

Locally, the Group maintained strong partnerships with 
government agencies such as International Enterprise 
Singapore, Economic Development Board, Maritime and 
Port Authority of Singapore (MPA), Ministry of Education, 
Ministry of Defence, Ministry of Manpower, National 
Environment Agency and SPRING Singapore. 

An active member of the Association of Singapore 
Marine Industries (ASMI), Society of Naval Architects 
and Marine Engineers (Singapore), Singapore Business 
Federation and Singapore International Chamber of 
Commerce, Sembcorp Marine also has strong links with 

Sharing Sembcorp Marine’s capabilities and facilities at OTC Asia 2014.

Raising the profile of Sembcorp Marine and Singapore’s marine and offshore industry at international exhibitions such as Rio Oil and Gas 2014.

Community Engagement
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Polytechnic students learning about Sembcorp Marine’s operations and facilities.

Overseas guests visiting the Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas.

the Singapore Maritime Foundation (SMF), Singapore 
Shipping Association (SSA), Singapore National Employers 
Federation and the Singapore First Aid Training Centre. 
In the area of talent outreach, the Group collaborates 
closely with academic institutions such as the Institute 
of Technical Education, polytechnics and universities as 
part of its recruitment strategy.

During the year, Sembcorp Marine further enhanced its 
profile in the industry through supporting various training 
programmes, knowledge exchange platforms, dialogue 
sessions, research collaborations, awards events as well 
as networking activities, including the Lloyd’s List Asia 
Awards as well as ASMI’s 46th Dinner and Dance.

In 2014, Sembcorp Marine was a key sponsor in the 
Amazing Maritime Hunt, an industry outreach and 
awareness programme jointly organised by MPA, SMF, SSA 
and ASMI. The Group’s employees were among the 1,300 
participants involved in the island-wide competition 
which featured fun-filled maritime-themed games 
designed to enhance public awareness of Singapore’s 
maritime sector. 

Committed to the advancement of maritime law and 
arbitration, Sembcorp Marine also sponsored this year’s 
Asian Maritime Law and Arbitration Conference, which 
was organised by the Maritime Law Association of 
Singapore and the Singapore Chamber of Maritime 
Arbitration. 

As a key player in the industry, the Group hosted a 
variety of visitor groups, including government officials, 
students and partners from Japan, Brazil, Malaysia and 
Singapore during the year. Through these interactions, 
visitors had the opportunity to learn about the Group’s 
integrated capabilities and broaden their knowledge of 
the marine and offshore industry in Singapore.
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GEnERAL STAnDARD DISCLOSuRES

Standard 
Disclosure Standard Disclosure Title Annual Report Sections

Page 
Reference

STRATEGy AnD AnALySIS

G4-1 Statement from the most senior decision-maker of the organisation 

about the relevance of sustainability to the organisation and the 

organisation’s strategy for addressing sustainability

Letter to Shareholders 4 - 13

G4-2 Description of key impacts, risks, and opportunities Letter to Shareholders

Risk Management

4 - 13

48 - 52

ORGANISATIONAL PROFILE

G4-3 Name of the organisation Corporate Vision & Profile Inside front 
cover - 1

G4-4 Primary brands, products, and/or services Corporate Vision & Profile Inside front 
cover - 1

G4-5 Location of organisation's headquarters Corporate Directory 61

G4-6 Number and names of countries where the organisation operates Corporate Profile Inside front 
cover

G4-7 Nature of ownership and legal form Corporate Directory 61

G4-8 Markets served Corporate Vision & Profile Inside front 
cover - 1

G4-9 Scale of the organisation Corporate Vision & Profile Inside front 
cover - 1

G4-10 Workforce statistics People Development 104 - 113

G4-11 Percentage of total employees covered by collective bargaining 

agreements

People Development 105

G4-12 Description of organisation's supply chain Resilient & Responsive 97 - 99

G4-13 Significant changes during the reporting period Letter to Shareholders 4 - 13

G4-14 Application of precautionary approach or principle Approach to Sustainability 16 - 23

G4-15 Externally developed economic, environmental and social charters, 

principles, or other initiatives to which the organisation subscribes or 

which it endorses.

Management Systems

Approach to Sustainability

Corporate Governance

People Development

Workplace Safety & Health

Environmental Focus

15

16 - 23

30 - 47

104 - 113

114 - 119

120 - 125

G4-16 Memberships of associations (such as industry associations) and national 

or international advocacy organisations

Community Engagement 130 - 131

IDEnTIFIED MATERIAL ASPECTS AnD BOunDARIES

G4-17 Coverage of entities in relation to organisation’s consolidated financial 

statements or equivalent documents

Financial Statements

Approach to Sustainability

248 - 251

17

G4-18 Process for defining report content and Aspect Boundaries Approach to Sustainability 16 - 23

G4-19 Material Aspects identified Approach to Sustainability 18 - 21

G4-20 Aspect Boundaries within the organisation for each material Aspect Approach to Sustainability

Resilient & Responsive

17 - 21

98 - 99

G4-21 Aspect Boundaries outside the organisation for each material Aspect Approach to Sustainability

Resilient & Responsive

17 - 21

98 - 99

global reporting initiative (gri) 4 core content index 
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IDEnTIFIED MATERIAL ASPECTS AnD BOunDARIES

G4-22 Restatements Environmental Focus
Direct energy consumption figures for 2012 

and 2013 are restated in EN3 to reflect 

more accurate inclusion of liquefied gases 

in calculation methodology.

MEWR’s revision of historic conversion 

rates have resulted in restatement of EN16 

indirect energy (electricity) figures for 2012 

and 2013.

121 - 123

G4-23 Significant changes from previous reporting periods in the Scope and 

Aspect Boundaries

Approach to Sustainability 17

STAKEHOLDER EnGAGEMEnT

G4-24 List of stakeholder groups engaged by the organisation Approach to Sustainability 17, 22 - 23

G4-25 Basis for identification and selection of stakeholders with whom to engage Approach to Sustainability 26 17-27

G4-26 Organisation's approach to stakeholder engagement Approach to Sustainability 26 16 - 22-27

G4-27 Key topics and concerns raised through stakeholder engagement Approach to Sustainability 26 16 - 22-27

REPORT PROFILE

G4-28 Reporting period Approach to Sustainability 17

G4-29 Date of most recent previous report Sembcorp Marine has published its 

sustainability report annually since the 

Annual Report 2011.

16 - 23

G4-30 Reporting cycle Approach to Sustainability

Financial Review

16 - 23

62 - 73

G4-31 Contact point for questions regarding the report or its contents Approach to Sustainability 23

G4-32 ‘In accordance' option Approach to Sustainability 17 - 23

G4-33 Policy and current practice with regard to seeking external assurance of 

the report

Approach to Sustainability 23

GOVERNANCE

G4-34 Governance structure of the organisation Board of Directors

Senior Management

Corporate Governance

24 - 27

28 - 29

30 - 47

ETHICS AND INTEGRITY

G4-56 Organisation’s values, principles, standards and norms of behaviour such 

as codes of conduct and codes of ethics

Corporate Governance 30 - 47

G4-58 Internal and external mechanisms for reporting concerns about 

unethical or unlawful behaviour, and matters related to organisational 

integrity, such as escalation through line management, whistle-blowing 

mechanisms or hotlines

Corporate Governance

Risk Management

30 - 47

48 - 52
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SPECIFIC STAnDARD DISCLOSuRES

Standard 
Disclosure Standard Disclosure Title Annual Report Sections

Page 
Reference

CATEGORy: ECOnOMIC
ASPECT: ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Approach to Sustainability
Corporate Governance

Risk Management
Financial Review

16 - 23
30 - 47
48 - 52
62 - 73

G4-EC1 Direct economic value generated and distributed Financial Review 62 - 73

CATEGORy: EnVIROnMEnTAL
ASPECT: MATERIALS

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Approach to Sustainability
Risk Management

Environmental Focus

16 - 23
48 - 52

120 - 125

G4-EN1 Materials used by weight or volume Environmental Focus 120 - 125

ASPECT: EnERGy

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Approach to Sustainability
Risk Management

Environmental Focus

16 - 23
48 - 52

120 - 125

G4-EN3 Energy consumption within the organisation Environmental Focus 121

G4-EN6 Reduction of energy consumption Environmental Focus 121

G4-EN7 Reductions in energy requirements of products and services Environmental Focus 121

ASPECT: WATER

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Approach to Sustainability
Risk Management

Environmental Focus

16 - 23
48 - 52

120 - 125

G4-EN8 Total water withdrawal by source Environmental Focus 122

ASPECT: EMISSIOnS

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Approach to Sustainability
Risk Management

Environmental Focus

16 - 23
48 - 52

120 - 125

G4-EN15 Direct greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions (Scope 1) Environmental Focus 121 - 122

G4-EN16 Energy indirect greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions (Scope 2) Environmental Focus 121 - 122

G4-EN19 Reduction of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions Environmental Focus 121 - 122

ASPECT: EFFLuEnTS AnD WASTE

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Approach to Sustainability
Risk Management

Environmental Focus

16 - 23
48 - 52

120 - 125

G4-EN23 Total weight of waste by type and disposal method Environmental Focus 123 - 125

G4-EN24 Total number and volume of significant spills No significant spills took place during the 
reporting period

G4-EN25 Weight of transported, imported, exported, or treated waste deemed 
hazardous under the terms of the Basel Convention Annex I, II, III, and VIII, 
and percentage of transported waste shipped internationally

Environmental Focus 123 - 125

ASPECT: COMPLIAnCE

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Approach to Sustainability
Risk Management

Environmental Focus

16 - 23
48 - 52

120 - 125

G4-EN29 Monetary value of significant fines and total number of non-monetary 
sanctions for non-compliance with environmental laws and regulations

No significant fines or sanctions took place 
during the reporting period
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CATEGORy: SOCIAL

SuB-CATEGORy: LABOuR PRACTICES AnD DECEnT WORK

ASPECT: EMPLOyMEnT

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Approach to Sustainability
People Development

Risk Management
Corporate Governance

16 - 23
104 - 113

48 - 52
30 - 47

G4-LA1 Total number and rates of new employee hires and employee turnover 
by age group, gender and region

People Development 107

G4-LA2 Benefits provided to full-time employees that are not provided to 
temporary or part-time employees, by significant locations of operation

People Development 110 - 111

G4-LA3 Return to work and retention rates after parental leave, by gender People Development 110

ASPECT: OCCuPATIOnAL HEALTH AnD SAFETy

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Approach to Sustainability
Risk Management

Workplace Safety & Health

16 - 23
48 - 52 

114 - 119

G4-LA5 Percentage of total workforce represented in formal joint management-
worker health and safety committees that help monitor and advise on 
occupational health and safety programmes

Workplace Safety & Health
Environmental Focus

114 - 119
121 - 125

G4-LA6 Type of injury and rates of injury, occupational diseases, lost days, and 
absenteeism, and total number of work-related fatalities, by region and 
by gender

Workplace Safety & Health 114 - 119

G4-LA7 Workers with high incidence or high risk of diseases related to their 
occupation

Workplace Safety & Health 114 - 119

G4-LA8 Health and safety topics covered in formal agreements with trade unions People Development 104 - 113

ASPECT: TRAInInG AnD EDuCATIOn

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach People Development 104 - 113

G4-LA9 Average hours of training per year per employee by gender, and by 
employee category

People Development 108

G4-LA10 Programmes for skills management and lifelong learning that support 
the continued employability of employees and assist them in managing 
career endings

People Development 108 - 111

G4-LA11 Percentage of employees receiving regular performance and career 
development reviews, by gender and by employee category

People Development 104 - 113

ASPECT: DIVERSITy AnD EQuAL OPPORTunITy

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Approach to Sustainability
People Development

16 - 23
104 - 113

G4-LA12 Composition of governance bodies and breakdown of employees per 
employee category according to gender, age group, minority group 
membership, and other indicators of diversity

People Development 104 - 113

SuB-CATEGORy: HuMAn RIGHTS

ASPECT: nOn-DISCRIMInATIOn

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Approach to Sustainability
People Development

16 - 23
104 - 113

G4-HR3 Total number of incidents of discrimination and corrective actions taken People Development 105

ASPECT: CHILD LABOuR

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Approach to Sustainability
People Development

16 - 23
104 - 113

G4-HR5 Operations and suppliers identified as having significant risk for incidents 
of child labour, and measures taken to contribute to the effective 
abolition of child labour

People Development
Resilient & Responsive

105
97 - 99
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SPECIFIC STAnDARD DISCLOSuRES

Standard 
Disclosure Standard Disclosure Title Annual Report Sections

Page 
Reference

ASPECT: FORCED OR COMPuLSORy LABOuR

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Approach to Sustainability
People Development

16 - 23
104 - 113

G4-HR6 Operations and suppliers identified as having significant risk for incidents 
of forced or compulsory labour, and measures to contribute to the 
elimination of all forms of forced or compulsory labour

People Development
Resilient & Responsive

105
97 - 99

SuB-CATEGORy: SOCIETy

ASPECT: LOCAL COMMunITIES

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Approach to Sustainability
Community Engagement

16 - 23
126 - 131

G4-SO1 Percentage of operations with implemented local community 
engagement, impact assessments, and development programmes

Community Engagement
Workplace Safety & Health

Environmental Focus

126 - 131
114 - 119
120 - 125

G4-SO2 Operations with significant actual and potential negative impacts on 
local communities

Environmental Focus 120 - 125

ASPECT: AnTI-CORRuPTIOn

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Approach to Sustainability
Risk Management

16 - 23
48 - 52

G4-SO3 Total number and percentage of operations assessed for risks related to 
corruption and the significant risks identified

Risk Management 48 - 52

G4-SO4 Communication and training on anti-corruption policies and procedures Risk Management 48 - 52

G4-SO5 Confirmed incidents of corruption and actions taken Risk Management 52

ASPECT: AnTI-COMPETITIVE BEHAVIOuR

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Risk Management 48 - 52

G4-SO7 Total number of legal actions for anti-competitive behaviour, anti-trust, 
and monopoly practices and their outcomes

No significant legal actions took place 
during the reporting period

ASPECT: COMPLIAnCE

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Approach to Sustainability
Risk Management

16 - 23
48 - 52

G4-SO8 Monetary value of significant fines and total number of non-monetary 
sanctions for non-compliance with laws and regulations

No significant fines or sanctions took place 
during the reporting period

SuB-CATEGORy: PRODuCT RESPOnSIBILITy

ASPECT: CuSTOMER HEALTH AnD SAFETy

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Approach to Sustainability
Resilient & Responsive

16 - 23
94 - 103

G4-PR1 Percentage of significant product and service categories for which 
health and safety impacts are assessed for improvement

Resilient & Responsive
Workplace Safety & Security

94 - 103
114 - 119

ASPECT: PRODuCT AnD SERVICE LABELInG

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Approach to Sustainability
Resilient & Responsive

16 - 23
94 - 103

G4-PR5 Results of surveys measuring customer satisfaction Resilient & Responsive 94 - 96
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We are pleased to submit this annual report to the members of the Company together with the audited financial statements for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2014.

Directors

The directors in office at the date of this report are as follows:

Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican   Chairman (appointed as Chairman on 22 April 2014)
Wong Weng Sun    President and CEO
Ajaib Haridass
Tang Kin Fei 
Ron Foo Siang Guan 
Lim Ah Doo
Koh Chiap Khiong
Eric Ang Teik Lim

Directors’ interests 

According to the register kept by the Company for the purposes of Section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”), particulars 
of interests of directors who held office at the end of the financial year (including those held by their spouses and infant children) in shares, 
debentures, warrants and share options in the Company and in related corporations are as follows:

Name of director and 
corporation in which 
interests (are) held

Description of 
interests

Exercise 
period

Shareholdings registered 
in the name of director, spouse, 

infant children or nominees

Other shareholdings in 
which the director is deemed

 to have an interest

At beginning 
of the year

At end
of the year

At 
21/01/2015

At beginning 
of the year

At end 
of the year

At 
21/01/2015

Tan Sri Mohd Hassan 
Marican

Sembcorp Marine Ltd Ordinary shares 
(Note 1)

– 11,500 30,200 30,200 – – –

Sembcorp Industries Ltd Ordinary shares
(Note 1)

– 19,000 29,600 29,600 – – –

Wong Weng Sun 

Sembcorp Marine Ltd Ordinary shares – 3,178,751 3,378,918 3,378,918 – – –

Conditional award of 
250,000 performance 
shares to be delivered 
after 2013 (Note 2a)

– Up to 
375,000

– – – – –

Conditional award of 
250,000 performance 
shares to be delivered 
after 2014 (Note 3a)

– Up to 
375,000

Up to 
375,000

Up to 
375,000

– – –
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Name of director and 
corporation in which 
interests (are) held

Description of 
interests

Exercise 
period

Shareholdings registered 
in the name of director, spouse, 

infant children or nominees

Other shareholdings in 
which the director is deemed

 to have an interest

At beginning 
of the year

At end
of the year

At 
21/01/2015

At beginning 
of the year

At end 
of the year

At 
21/01/2015

Wong Weng Sun

Sembcorp Marine Ltd
(cont’d)

Conditional award of 
250,000 performance 
shares to be delivered 
after 2015 (Note 3b)

– Up to 
375,000

Up to 
375,000

Up to 
375,000

– – –

Conditional award of 
500,000 performance 
shares to be delivered 
after 2016 (Note 3c)

– – Up to 
750,000

Up to 
750,000

– – –

Conditional award of 
100,000 restricted shares 
to be delivered after 2011 
(Note 4a)

– 50,000 – – – – –

Conditional award of 
100,000 restricted shares 
to be delivered after 2012 
(Note 5a)

– 77,333 38,666 38,666 – – –

Conditional award of 
85,000 restricted shares 
to be delivered after 2013 
(Note 6a)

– Up to 
127,500

68,000 68,000 – – –

Conditional award of 
85,000 restricted shares 
to be delivered after 2014 
(Note 7a)

– Up to 
127,500

Up to 
127,500

Up to 
127,500

– – –

Conditional award of 
85,000 restricted shares 
to be delivered after 2015 
(Note 7b)

– – Up to 
127,500

Up to 
127,500

– – –

Sembcorp Industries Ltd Ordinary shares – 79,000 79,000 79,000 – – –

Ajaib Haridass

Sembcorp Marine Ltd Ordinary shares – 595,710 713,910 713,910 – – –

Tang Kin Fei

Sembcorp Marine Ltd Ordinary shares – 232,970 249,470 249,470 – – –

Sembcorp Industries Ltd Ordinary shares 
(Note 8)

– 4,776,546 5,499,486 5,499,486 – – –

Options to subscribe for 
ordinary shares

- at $2.52 per share 10/06/2007 
to 

09/06/2016

300,000 – – – – –
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Name of director and 
corporation in which 
interests (are) held

Description of 
interests

Exercise 
period

Shareholdings registered 
in the name of director, spouse, 

infant children or nominees

Other shareholdings in 
which the director is deemed

 to have an interest

At beginning 
of the year

At end
of the year

At 
21/01/2015

At beginning 
of the year

At end 
of the year

At 
21/01/2015

Tang Kin Fei

Sembcorp Industries Ltd 
(cont’d)

Conditional award of 
400,000 performance 
shares to be delivered 
after 2013 (Note 2b)

– Up to 
600,000

– – – – –

Conditional award of 
400,000 performance 
shares to be delivered 
after 2014 (Note 3a)

– Up to 
600,000

Up to 
600,000

Up to 
600,000

– – –

Conditional award of 
300,000 performance 
shares to be delivered 
after 2015 (Note 3b)

– Up to 
450,000

Up to 
450,000

Up to 
450,000

– – –

Conditional award of 
300,000 performance 
shares to be delivered 
after 2016 (Note 3c)

– – Up to 
450,000

Up to 
450,000

– – –

Conditional award of 
126,000 restricted shares 
to be delivered after 2011 
(Note 4b)

– 50,820 – – – – –

Conditional award of 
126,000 restricted shares 
to be delivered after 2012 
(Note 5b)

– 114,240 57,120 57,120 – – –

Conditional award of 
126,000 restricted shares 
to be delivered after 2013 
(Note 6b)

– Up to 
189,000

126,000 126,000 – – –

Conditional award of 
180,000 restricted shares 
to be delivered after 2014 
(Note 7a)

– Up to 
270,000

Up to 
270,000

Up to 
270,000

– – –

Conditional award of 
180,000 restricted shares 
to be delivered after 2015 
(Note 7b)

– – Up to 
270,000

Up to 
270,000

– – –

Subordinated Perpetual 
Securities issued on 21 
Aug 2013 under the $2 
Billion Multicurrency Debt 
Issuance Programme 
(Note 9)

– Principal 
Amount: 

$1,000,000

Principal 
Amount: 

$1,000,000

Principal 
Amount: 

$1,000,000

– – –
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Name of director and 
corporation in which 
interests (are) held

Description of 
interests

Exercise 
period

Shareholdings registered 
in the name of director, spouse, 

infant children or nominees

Other shareholdings in 
which the director is deemed

 to have an interest

At beginning 
of the year

At end
of the year

At 
21/01/2015

At beginning 
of the year

At end 
of the year

At 
21/01/2015

Tang Kin Fei

Sembcorp Financial 
Services Pte Ltd

Fixed Rate Notes issued 
under the $2 Billion Multi-
currency Debt Issuance 
Programme (Note 10)

- Due 2014 – Principal 
Amount: 

$500,000

– – – – –

- Due 2020 – Principal 
Amount: 

$500,000

Principal 
Amount: 

$500,000

Principal 
Amount: 

$500,000

– – –

Ron Foo Siang Guan

Sembcorp Marine Ltd Ordinary shares – 122,080 138,580 138,580 28,000 28,000 28,000

Sembcorp Industries Ltd Ordinary shares – 52,820 52,820 52,820 – – –

Lim Ah Doo

Sembcorp Marine Ltd Ordinary shares – 45,700 61,700 61,700 – – –

Sembcorp Industries Ltd Ordinary shares – 9,768 9,768 9,768 – – –

Koh Chiap Khiong 

Sembcorp Marine Ltd Ordinary shares
(Note 11)

– 10,900 21,400 21,400 – – –

Sembcorp Industries Ltd Ordinary shares
(Note 11)

– 267,710 270,865 270,865 – – –

Conditional award of 
80,000 performance 
shares to be delivered 
after 2013 (Note 2c)

– Up to 
120,000

– – – – –

Conditional award of 
80,000 performance 
shares to be delivered 
after 2014 (Note 3a)

– Up to 
120,000

Up to 
120,000

Up to 
120,000

– – –

Conditional award of 
75,000 performance 
shares to be delivered 
after 2015 (Note 3b)

– Up to 
112,500

Up to 
112,500

Up to 
112,500

– – –

Conditional award of 
75,000 performance 
shares to be delivered 
after 2016 (Note 3c)

– – Up to 
112,500

Up to 
112,500

– – –
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Name of director and 
corporation in which 
interests (are) held

Description of 
interests

Exercise 
period

Shareholdings registered 
in the name of director, spouse, 

infant children or nominees

Other shareholdings in 
which the director is deemed

 to have an interest

At beginning 
of the year

At end
of the year

At 
21/01/2015

At beginning 
of the year

At end 
of the year

At 
21/01/2015

Koh Chiap Khiong

Sembcorp Industries Ltd 
(cont’d)

Conditional award of 
31,500 restricted shares 
to be delivered after 2011 
(Note 4c)

– 12,705 – – – – –

Conditional award of 
52,500 restricted shares 
to be delivered after 2012 
(Note 5c)

– 47,600 23,800 23,800 – – –

Conditional award of 
52,500 restricted shares 
to be delivered after 2013 
(Note 6c)

–    Up to 
78,750

52,500 52,500 – – –

Conditional award of 
65,000 restricted shares 
to be delivered after 2014 
(Note 7a)

–    Up to 
97,500

  Up to 
97,500

   Up to 
97,500

– – –

Conditional award of 
65,000 restricted shares 
to be delivered after 2015 
(Note 7b)

– –    Up to 
97,500

   Up to 
97,500

– – –

Subordinated Perpetual 
Securities issued on 21 
Aug 2013 under the $2 
Billion Multicurrency Debt 
Issuance Programme 
(Note 9)

– Principal
Amount:

$250,000

Principal
Amount:

$250,000

Principal
Amount:

$250,000

– – –

Note 1:  The 30,200 Sembcorp Marine Ltd shares and 29,600 Sembcorp Industries Ltd shares are held in the name of Citibank Nominees 
Singapore Pte Ltd. 

Note 2:  The actual number to be delivered will depend on the achievement of set targets over a 3-year period from 2011 to 2013.  Achievement 
of targets below threshold level will mean no performance shares will be delivered, while achievement up to 150% will mean up to 1.5 
times the number of conditional performance shares awarded could be delivered.

(a) For this period, 77,500 shares were released on 24 March 2014.

(b) For this period, 252,000 shares were released on 27 March 2014.

(c) For this period, 50,400 shares were released on 27 March 2014.

Note 3:  The actual number to be delivered will depend on the achievement of set targets over a 3-year period as indicated below.  Achievement 
of targets below threshold level will mean no performance shares will be delivered, while achievement up to 150% will mean up to 1.5 
times the number of conditional performance shares awarded could be delivered.

(a)  Period from 2012 to 2014

(b) Period from 2013 to 2015

(c)  Period from 2014 to 2016
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Note 4: The actual number to be released will depend on the achievement of set targets over a 2-year period from 2010 to 2011.  Achievement 
of targets below threshold level will mean no restricted shares will be delivered, while achievement up to 150% will mean up to 1.5 
times the number of conditional restricted shares awarded could be delivered.

(a) For this period, 50,000 shares (final release of 1/3 of the 150,000 shares) were released under the award on 24 March 2014.  
The 1st and 2nd release of 50,000 shares each have been released on 5 March 2012 and 15 March 2013 respectively.

(b) For this period, 50,820 shares (final release of 1/3 of the 152,460 shares) were released under the award on 27 March 2014.  
The 1st and 2nd release of 50,820 shares each have been released on 26 March 2012 and 27 March 2013 respectively.

(c) For this period, 12,705 shares (final release of 1/3 of the 38,115 shares) were released under the award on 27 March 2014.  The 
1st and 2nd release of 12,705 shares each have been released on 26 March 2012 and 27 March 2013 respectively.

Note 5: The actual number to be released will depend on the achievement of set targets over a 2-year period from 2011 to 2012.  Achievement 
of targets below threshold level will mean no restricted shares will be delivered, while achievement up to 150% will mean up to 1.5 
times the number of conditional restricted shares awarded could be delivered.

(a) For this period, 38,667 shares (2nd release of 1/3 of the 116,000 shares) were released under the award on 24 March 2014 and 
the remaining 38,666 shares will be vested in year 2015.  The 1st release of 38,667 shares has been released on 15 March 2013.

(b) For this period, 57,120 shares (2nd release of 1/3 of the 171,360 shares) were released under the award on 27 March 2014 and 
the remaining 57,120 shares will be vested in year 2015.  The 1st release of 57,120 shares has been released on 27 March 2013.

(c) For this period, 23,800 shares (2nd release of 1/3 of the 71,400 shares) were released under the award on 27 March 2014 and 
the remaining 23,800 shares will be vested in year 2015.  The 1st release of 23,800 shares has been released on 27 March 2013.

Note 6: The actual number to be released will depend on the achievement of set targets over a 2-year period from 2012 to 2013.  Achievement 
of targets below threshold level will mean no restricted shares will be delivered, while achievement up to 150% will mean up to 1.5 
times the number of conditional restricted shares awarded could be delivered.

(a) For this period, 34,000 shares (1/3 of the 102,000 shares) were released under the award on 24 March 2014 and the remaining 
68,000 shares will be vested in year 2015/2016.

(b) For this period, 63,000 shares (1/3 of the 189,000 shares) were released under the award on 27 March 2014 and the remaining 
126,000 shares will be vested in year 2015/2016.

(c) For this period, 26,250 shares (1/3 of the 78,750 shares) were released under the award on 27 March 2014 and the remaining 
52,500 shares will be vested in year 2015/2016.

Note 7: The actual number to be released will depend on the achievement of set targets at the end of the 2-year performance period as indicated 
below.  Achievement of targets below threshold level will mean no restricted shares will be delivered, while achievement up to 150% 
will mean up to 1.5 times the number of conditional restricted shares awarded could be delivered.

(a) Period from 2013 to 2014

(b) Period from 2014 to 2015

Note 8:  Of the 5,499,486 Sembcorp Industries Ltd shares, 1,000,000 shares are held in the name of DBS Nominees Pte Ltd and 1,000,000 
shares are held in the name of Citibank Nominees Singapore Pte Ltd.  

Note 9: Subordinated Perpetual Securities issued on 21 August 2013 under the $2 Billion Multicurrency Debt Issuance Programme.

Note 10: Fixed Rate Notes and Floating Rate Notes issued under the $2 Billion Multicurrency Debt Issuance Programme of Sembcorp Industries 
Ltd and Sembcorp Financial Services Pte Ltd, a related company of Sembcorp Industries Group.

Note 11: The 21,400 Sembcorp Marine Ltd shares and 270,865 Sembcorp Industries Ltd shares are held in the name of DBS Nominees Pte Ltd. 
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Except as disclosed in this report, no director who held office at the end of the financial year had interests in shares, debentures, warrants or share 
options of the Company, or of related corporations, either at the beginning of the financial year or at the end of the financial year.

There were no changes in any of the above mentioned interests in the Company between the end of the financial year and 21 January 2015.

Except as disclosed under the “Share-based Incentive Plans” section of this report, neither at the end of, nor at any time during the financial year, 
was the Company a party to any arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the directors of the Company to acquire 
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Except as disclosed in Notes 23(a) and 34 to the financial statements, since the end of the last financial year, no director has received or become 
entitled to receive, a benefit by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director, or with a firm of which he is 
a member, or with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest.

Share-based Incentive Plans

The Company’s Performance Share Plan (“SCM PSP 2010”) and Restricted Share Plan (“SCM RSP 2010”) (collectively, the “2010 Share Plans”) 
were approved and adopted by the shareholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 20 April 2010.  The 2010 Share 
Plans replaced the Share Plans which were approved and adopted by the shareholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held 
on 31 May 2000 and expired in 2010.

The Executive Resource and Compensation Committee (the “Committee”) of the Company has been designated as the Committee responsible for 
the administration of the Share Plans.  The Committee comprises the following members, all of whom are directors:

Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican  Chairman (appointed on 22 April 2014)
Tang Kin Fei
Ajaib Haridass

The SCM RSP 2010 is the incentive scheme for directors and employees of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) whereas the SCM PSP 
2010 is aimed primarily at key executives of the Group.

The 2010 Share Plans are intended to increase the Company’s flexibility and effectiveness in its continuing efforts to attract, retain and incentivise 
participants to higher standards of performance and encourage greater dedication and loyalty by enabling the Company to give recognition to past 
contributions and services; as well as motivating participants to contribute to the long-term prosperity of the Group.  The 2010 Share Plans will 
strengthen the Company’s competitiveness in attracting and retaining talented key senior management and senior executives.

The Company designates Sembcorp Industries Ltd as the Parent Group.

The SCM RSP 2010 is intended to apply to a broad base of senior executives as well as to the non-executive directors, while the SCM PSP 2010 
is intended to apply to a select group of key senior management.  Generally, it is envisaged that the range of performance targets to be set under 
the SCM RSP 2010 and the SCM PSP 2010 will be different, with the latter emphasising stretched or strategic targets aimed at sustaining longer 
term growth.

The 2010 Share Plans will provide incentives to high performing key senior management and senior executives to excel in their performance 
and encourage greater dedication and loyalty to the Company.  Through the 2010 Share Plans, the Company will be able to motivate key senior 
management and senior executives to continue to strive for the Group’s long-term shareholder value.  In addition, the 2010 Share Plans aim 
to foster a greater ownership culture within the Group which align the interests of participants with the interests of shareholders, and to improve 
performance and achieve sustainable growth for the Company in the changing business environment.

Directors’ Report



145Sembcorp Marine Ltd Annual Report

Directors’ Report
The 2010 Share Plans use methods fairly common among major local and multinational companies to incentivise and motivate key senior 
management and senior executives to achieve pre-determined targets which create and enhance economic value for shareholders.  The Company 
believes that the 2010 Share Plans will be effective tools in motivating key senior management and senior executives to strive to deliver long-term 
shareholder value.

While the 2010 Share Plans cater principally to Group executives, it is recognised that there are other persons who can make significant 
contributions to the Group through their close working relationship with the Group.  Such persons include employees of associates over which the 
Company has operational control.

A participant’s awards under the 2010 Share Plans will be determined at the sole discretion of the Committee.  In considering an award to 
be granted to a participant, the Committee may take into account, inter alia, the participant’s performance during the relevant period, and his 
capability, entrepreneurship, scope of responsibility and skill set.

Other information regarding the 2010 Share Plans and expired Share Plans is as follows:

(a) Share Option Plan

Under the rules of the Share Option Plan, participants who ceased to be employed by the Group, Parent Group or associate by reason of 
ill health, injury or disability, redundancy, retirement at or after the legal retirement age, retirement before the legal retirement age, death, 
etc., or any other event approved by the Committee, may be allowed by the Committee to retain their unexercised options.  The Committee 
may determine the number of shares comprised in that option which may be exercised and the period during which such option shall be 
exercisable, being a period not later than the expiry of the exercise period in respect of that option.  Such option may be exercised at any time 
notwithstanding that the date of exercise of such option falls on a date prior to the first day of the exercise period in respect of such option.

Other information regarding the Share Option Plan is as follows:

(i) The exercise price of the options can be set at market price or a discount to the market price not exceeding 20% of the market price 
in respect of options granted at the time of grant.  Market price is the volume-weighted average price for the shares on the Singapore 
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”) over the three consecutive trading days prior to grant date of that option.  For all 
options granted to date, the exercise prices are set at market price.

(ii) After the first 12 months of lock-out period, the Group imposed a further vesting of 4 years for managers and above for retention 
purposes.

(iii) In 2014 and 2013, all options were settled by the issuance of treasury shares.

(iv) The options granted expire after 5 years for non-executive directors and employees of the Company’s associates, and 10 years for 
the employees of the Group and Parent Group.  There are no outstanding share options for non-executive directors.
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(a) Share Option Plan (cont’d)

The options of the Company exercised in 2014 resulted in 412,877 (2013: 281,723) ordinary shares being issued at a weighted average 
price of $4.20 (2013: $3.38).  The options were exercised on a regular basis throughout the year.  The weighted average share price 
during the year was $3.77 (2013: $4.46).

The details of options of the Company awarded/exercised since commencement of the Scheme (aggregate) to 31 December 2014 are as 
follows:

Option participants
Aggregate options 

granted

Aggregate options 
cancelled/lapsed/

not accepted
Aggregate options 

exercised
Aggregate options 

outstanding

Directors of the Company

Wong Weng Sun 1,208,500 – (1,208,500) –

Ajaib Haridass 403,000 – (403,000) –

Tang Kin Fei 124,000 – (124,000) –

Ron Foo Siang Guan 28,000 – (28,000) –

Former Directors of the Company 14,911,800 – (14,911,800) –

Other executives 115,977,395 (14,448,146) (99,852,747) 1,676,502

At 31 December 2014 132,652,695 (14,448,146) (116,528,047) 1,676,502

Since the commencement of the Share Option Plan, no options have been granted to the controlling shareholders of the Company or their 
associates.  No participant under the Share Option Plan has been granted 5% or more of the total options available.  No options have been 
offered at a discount.

The options granted by the Company do not entitle the holders of the options, by virtue of such holdings, to any right to participate in any 
share issue of any company.

(b) Performance Share Plan

Under the Performance Share Plan (“SCM PSP 2010”), the awards granted conditional on performance targets are set based on medium-
term corporate objectives at the start of each rolling three-year performance qualifying period.  A specific number of performance shares 
shall be awarded at the end of the three-year performance cycle depending on the extent of the achievement of the performance conditions 
established at the onset.

The performance levels were calibrated based on Wealth Added and Total Shareholder Return.  A minimum threshold performance must be 
achieved to trigger an achievement factor, which in turn determines the number of shares to be finally awarded.  Performance shares to be 
delivered will range between 0% to 150% of the conditional performance shares awarded.
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(b) Performance Share Plan (cont’d)

To create alignment between senior management and other employees at the time of vesting, SCM PSP 2010 has in place a plan trigger.  
Under this trigger mechanism, the performance shares for the performance period 2014 to 2016 will be vested to the senior management 
participants only if the restricted shares for the performance period 2015 to 2016 are vested, subject to the achievement of the performance 
conditions for the respective performance periods.

Senior management participants are required to hold a minimum percentage of the shares released to them under the Performance Share 
Plan to maintain a beneficial ownership stake in the Group, for the duration of their employment or tenure with the Group.  A maximum cap 
is set based on a multiple of the individual participant’s annual base salary.  Any excess can be sold off, but in the event of a shortfall, they 
have a two calendar year period to meet the minimum percentage requirement.

The details of the movement of the performance shares of the Company awarded during the financial year since commencement of the 
Performance Share Plan (aggregate) are as follows:

Movements during the year

Performance 
Shares participants

At 
1 January

Conditional 
performance 

shares awarded

Additional 
performance 

shares awarded 
arising from 
targets met

Performance 
shares lapsed 
arising from 

targets not met

Conditional 
performance 

shares released

Conditional 
performance 
shares lapsed

At 
31 December

2014

Director of the Company

Wong Weng Sun 750,000 500,000 – (172,500) (77,500) – 1,000,000

Key executives of the Group 1,165,000 980,000 – (188,215) (84,560) (62,225) 1,810,000

1,915,000 1,480,000 – (360,715) (162,060) (62,225) 2,810,000

2013

Director of the Company

Wong Weng Sun 750,000 250,000 72,500 – (322,500) – 750,000

Key executives of the Group 1,115,000 405,000 85,389 – (379,833) (60,556) 1,165,000

1,865,000 655,000 157,889 – (702,333) (60,556) 1,915,000

With the Committee’s approval on the achievement factor for the achievement of the performance targets for the performance period 2011 
to 2013 (2013: performance period 2010 to 2012), a total of 162,060 (2013: 702,333) performance shares were released via the 
issuance of treasury shares.

In 2014, there were 360,715 performance shares that lapsed for under-achievement of the performance targets for the performance 
period 2011 to 2013.  In 2013, there were 157,889 performance shares awarded for over-achievement of performance targets for the 
performance period 2010 to 2012.

The total number of performance shares in awards granted conditionally and representing 100% of targets to be achieved, but not released 
as at 31 December 2014, was 2,810,000 (2013: 1,915,000).  Based on the multiplying factor, the actual release of the awards could 
range from zero to a maximum of 4,215,000 (2013: 2,872,500) performance shares.
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(c) Restricted Share Plan 

Under the Restricted Share Plan (“SCM RSP 2010”), the awards granted conditional on performance targets are set based on corporate 
objectives at the start of each rolling two-year performance qualifying period.  The performance criteria for the restricted shares are calibrated 
based on Return on Capital Employed and Earnings Before Interest and Taxes for awards granted in 2014 and 2013.

A minimum threshold performance must be achieved to trigger an achievement factor, which in turn determines the number of shares to 
be finally awarded.  Based on the criteria, restricted shares to be delivered will range from 0% to 150% of the conditional restricted shares 
awarded.

The managerial participants of the Group will be awarded restricted shares under the SCM RSP 2010, while the non-managerial participants 
of the Group will receive their awards in an equivalent cash value.  This cash-settled notional restricted shares award for non-managerial 
participants is known as the Sembcorp Marine Challenge Bonus.
 
A specific number of restricted shares shall be awarded at the end of the two-year performance cycle depending on the extent of the 
achievement of the performance conditions established at the onset.  There is a further vesting of three years after the performance period, 
during which one-third of the awarded shares are released each year to managerial participants.  Non-managerial participants will receive 
the equivalent in cash at the end of the two-year performance cycle, with no further vesting conditions.

Senior management participants are required to hold a minimum percentage of the shares released to them under the Restricted Share Plan 
to maintain a beneficial ownership stake in the Group, for the duration of their employment or tenure with the Group.  A maximum cap is 
set based on a multiple of the individual participant’s annual base salary.  Any excess can be sold off, but in the event of a shortfall, they 
have a two calendar year period to meet the minimum percentage requirement.

To align the interests of the non-executive directors with the interests of shareholders, up to 30% of the aggregate directors’ fees approved 
by shareholders for a particular financial year may be paid out in the form of restricted share awards under the SCM RSP 2010.

From 2011, non-executive directors were not awarded any shares except as part of their directors’ fees (except for Mr Wong Weng Sun, 
who is the President & CEO, and who does not receive any directors’ fees).  In 2014 and 2013, the awards granted consisted of the grant 
of fully paid shares outright with no performance and vesting conditions attached, but with a selling moratorium.  Non-executive directors 
are required to hold shares (including shares obtained by other means) worth at least one-time the annual base retainer; any excess may 
be sold as desired.  A non-executive director can dispose of all of his shares one year after leaving the Board.

The actual number of shares to be awarded to each non-executive director will be determined by reference to the volume-weighted average 
price of a share on the SGX-ST over the 14 trading days from (and including) the day on which the shares are first quoted ex-dividend after 
the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) (or, if the resolution to approve the final dividend is not approved, over the 14 trading days immediately 
following the date of the AGM).  The number of shares to be awarded will be rounded down to the nearest hundred and any residual balance 
will be settled in cash.
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(c) Restricted Share Plan (cont’d)
 
The details of the movement of the restricted shares of the Company awarded during the year are as follows:

Movements during the year

Restricted Shares participants
At 

1 January

Conditional 
restricted 

shares 
awarded

Additional 
restricted 

shares 
awarded 

arising from 
targets met

Conditional 
restricted 

shares 
released

Conditional 
restricted 

shares 
lapsed

At 
31 December

2014

Directors of the Company

Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican – 18,700 – (18,700) – –

Wong Weng Sun 297,333 85,000 17,000 (122,667) – 276,666

Ajaib Haridass – 18,200 – (18,200) – –

Tang Kin Fei – 16,500 – (16,500) – –

Ron Foo Siang Guan – 16,500 – (16,500) – –

Lim Ah Doo – 16,000 – (16,000) – –

Koh Chiap Khiong – 10,500 – (10,500) – –

Other executives 8,247,817 2,868,580 491,977 (3,338,511) (283,728) 7,986,135

8,545,150 3,049,980 508,977 (3,557,578) (283,728) 8,262,801

2013

Directors of the Company

Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican – 9,700 – (9,700) – –

Wong Weng Sun 322,500 85,000 16,000 (126,167) – 297,333

Ajaib Haridass 9,500 15,900 – (25,400) – –

Tang Kin Fei 8,500 14,800 – (23,300) – –

Ron Foo Siang Guan 8,500 11,900 – (20,400) – –

Lim Ah Doo 4,500 11,100 – (15,600) – –

Koh Chiap Khiong – 7,200 – (7,200) – –

Former directors of the Company 14,500 23,300 – (37,800) – –

Other executives 9,175,530 2,627,810 448,732 (3,633,397) (370,858) 8,247,817

9,543,530 2,806,710 464,732 (3,898,964) (370,858) 8,545,150
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(c) Restricted Share Plan (cont’d)
 

With the Committee’s approval on the achievement factor for the achievement of the performance targets for the performance period 2012 to 
2013, a total of 1,154,566 (2013: Nil) restricted shares were released.  For awards in relation to the performance period 2011 to 2012, a 
total of 1,074,512 (2013: 1,242,654) restricted shares were released.  For awards in relation to the performance period 2010 to 2011, a 
total of 1,232,100 (2013: 1,325,800) restricted shares were released.  In 2013, 1,236,610 restricted shares were released for awards in 
relation to the performance period 2009 to 2010.  In 2014, there were 96,400 (2013: 93,900) restricted shares released to non-executive 
directors.  The restricted shares were either released via the issuance of treasury shares or the issuance of new shares.

In 2014, additional 508,977 (2013: 464,732) restricted shares were awarded for the over-achievement of the performance targets for the 
performance period 2012 to 2013 (2013: performance period 2011 to 2012).

The total number of restricted shares outstanding, including awards achieved but not released, as at 31 December 2014, was 8,262,801 
(2013: 8,545,150).  Of this, the total number of restricted shares in awards granted conditionally and representing 100% of targets to be 
achieved, but not released was 5,450,570 (2013: 5,243,250).  Based on the multiplying factor, the actual release of the awards could 
range from zero to a maximum of 8,175,855 (2013: 7,864,875) restricted shares.

Sembcorp Marine Challenge Bonus

With the Committee’s approval on the achievement factor for the achievement of the performance targets for the performance period 2012 
to 2013 (2013: performance period 2011 to 2012), a total of $4,122,758 (2013: $5,027,602), equivalent to 1,010,480 (2013: 
1,129,037) notional restricted shares, were paid.

A total of 1,223,280 (2013: 1,091,350) notional restricted shares were awarded on 15 June 2014 (2013: 31 May 2013) for the 
Sembcorp Marine Challenge Bonus.

The total number of notional restricted shares in awards for the Sembcorp Marine Challenge Bonus granted conditionally and representing 
100% of targets to be achieved, but not released as at 31 December 2014, was 2,066,240 (2013: 1,886,000).  Based on the multiplying 
factor, the number of notional restricted shares to be converted into the funding pool could range from zero to a maximum of 3,099,360 
(2013: 2,829,000).

(d) Maximum Number of Shares Issuable

The maximum number of performance shares and restricted shares which could be delivered, when aggregated with the number of new 
shares issued and issuable in respect of all options granted, is within the 15% limit of the share capital of the Company on the day 
preceding the relevant date of the grant.

Audit Committee

The members of the Audit Committee during the year and at the date of this report are:

Lim Ah Doo   Chairman
Ron Foo Siang Guan 
Koh Chiap Khiong  (appointed on 22 April 2014)

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the financial year.  In performing its functions, the Audit Committee met with the Company’s external 
and internal auditors to discuss the scope of their work, the results of their examination and evaluation of the Company’s internal accounting 
control system.

Directors’ Report
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Audit Committee (cont’d)

The Audit Committee performs the functions specified in Section 201B of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50, the Listing Manual of the 
Singapore Exchange, and the Code of Corporate Governance.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the following:

•	 assistance	provided	by	the	Company’s	officers	to	the	external	and	internal	auditors;

•	 quarterly	financial	information	and	annual	financial	statements	of	the	Group	and	the	Company	prior	to	their	submission	to	the	directors	of	
the Company for adoption;

•	 interested	person	transactions	(as	defined	in	Chapter	9	of	the	Listing	Manual	of	the	Singapore	Exchange);

•	 internal	audit	plans	and	internal	audit	reports;	and

•	 whistle-blowers’	disclosures.

The Audit Committee has full access to the management and is given the resources required for it to discharge its functions.  It has full authority 
and the discretion to invite any director or executive officer to attend its meetings.  The Audit Committee also recommends the appointment of the 
external auditors and reviews the level of audit and non-audit fees.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the independence and objectivity of the external auditors and has recommended to the Board of Directors that 
the auditors, KPMG LLP, be nominated for re-appointment as auditors at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

In appointing our auditors for the Company, subsidiaries and significant associates, we have complied with Rules 712 and 715 of the Listing 
Manual of the Singapore Exchange.

The auditors, KPMG LLP, have indicated their willingness to accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican 
Chairman

Wong Weng Sun 
Director

Singapore
12 February 2015

Directors’ Report
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In our opinion:

(a) the financial statements set out on pages 155 to 252 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and 
of the Company as at 31 December 2014, and the results, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group for the year ended on that date 
in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50 and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards; and

(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall 
due.

The Board of Directors has, on the date of this statement, authorised these financial statements for issue.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican 
Chairman

Wong Weng Sun 
Director

Singapore
12 February 2015
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Members of the Company
Sembcorp Marine Ltd 

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sembcorp Marine Ltd  (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which 
comprise the balance sheets of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2014, the income statement, statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the Group for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 155 to 252.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the provisions of the 
Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, and for devising and maintaining a system of 
internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or 
disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair profit and 
loss accounts and balance sheets and to maintain accountability of assets.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance with 
Singapore Standards on Auditing.  Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the 
Company as at 31 December 2014, and the results, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group for the year ended on that date.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those subsidiaries incorporated in 
Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

KPMG LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore
12 February 2015

Independent Auditors’ Report
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Group Company
Note 2014 2013 2014 2013

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 3,008,909 2,394,167 90,805 87,744
Investment properties 5 – – 22,535 24,632
Investments in subsidiaries 6 – – 502,675 506,791
Interests in associates and joint ventures 7 470,277 445,743 107,369 107,369
Other financial assets 8 90,443 107,166 59,528 68,666
Trade and other receivables 9 41,015 44,482 73,824 74,374
Intangible assets 11 52,614 30,341 184 184
Deferred tax assets 12 8,044 7,108 – –

3,671,302 3,029,007 856,920 869,760

Current assets
Inventories and work-in-progress 13 3,005,419 2,083,586 – –
Trade and other receivables 9 468,532 442,410 40,869 52,951
Tax recoverable 203 196 – –
Other financial assets 8 14,188 – – –
Cash and cash equivalents 14 1,078,776 1,694,901 22,402 49,860

4,567,118 4,221,093 63,271 102,811

Total assets 8,238,420 7,250,100 920,191 972,571

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 1,825,676 1,781,118 18,430 18,553
Excess of progress billings over work-in-progress 13 1,005,353 1,440,812 – –
Provisions 17 15,690 23,057 – –
Other financial liabilities 18 46,771 8,775 – –
Current tax payable 121,259 110,533 3,682 5,080
Interest-bearing borrowings 19 433,848 166,111 – –

3,448,597 3,530,406 22,112 23,633

Net current assets 1,118,521 690,687 41,159 79,178

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 12 130,309 123,066 11,069 12,064
Provisions 17 100,274 96,573 27,895 27,895
Other financial liabilities 18 35,673 10,523 – –
Interest-bearing borrowings 19 1,307,519 600,000 – –
Other payables 15 84,021 80,020 16,823 19,233

1,657,796 910,182 55,787 59,192

Total liabilities 5,106,393 4,440,588 77,899 82,825

Net assets 3,132,027 2,809,512 842,292 889,746

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Share capital 20 484,288 484,288 484,288 484,288
Other reserves 21 (76,625) (76,179) (16,733) (4,051)
Revenue reserve 2,557,455 2,268,927 374,737 409,509

2,965,118 2,677,036 842,292 889,746
Non-controlling interests 30 166,909 132,476 – –

Total equity 3,132,027 2,809,512 842,292 889,746

Balance Sheets As at 31 December 2014

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Income Statement Year ended 31 December 2014

Group
Note 2014 2013

$’000 $’000

Turnover 22 5,832,595 5,525,882

Cost of sales (4,988,918) (4,818,071)

Gross profit 843,677 707,811

Other operating income 35,348 87,281

Other operating expenses (19,584) (2,393)

General and administrative expenses (152,416) (148,442)

Operating profit 23 707,025 644,257

Finance income 24 9,711 8,200

Finance costs 24 (20,960) (8,072)

Investment income 25 1,192 2,228

Non-operating income 26 179 3,027

Non-operating expenses 26 (2) (269)

Share of results of associates and joint ventures, net of tax 27 9,859 11,166

Profit before tax 707,004 660,537

Tax expense 28 (105,729) (72,277)

Profit for the year 601,275 588,260

Profit attributable to:

Owners of the Company 560,128 555,747

Non-controlling interests 30 41,147 32,513

Profit for the year 601,275 588,260

Earnings per share (cents) 31

Basic 26.83 26.61

Diluted 26.82 26.59

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income Year ended 31 December 2014

Group
Note 2014 2013

$’000 $’000

Profit for the year 601,275 588,260

Other comprehensive income 

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations  57,047 40,356

Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges 29(a) (30,236) (47,079)

Net change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets (22,008) (29,013)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 29 4,803 (35,736)

Total comprehensive income for the year 606,078 552,524

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the Company 558,246 517,031

Non-controlling interests 30 47,832 35,493

Total comprehensive income for the year 606,078 552,524

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity Year ended 31 December 2014

At
tri

bu
ta

bl
e 

to
 o

w
ne

rs
 o

f t
he

 C
om

pa
ny

Sh
ar

e
ca

pi
ta

l

Re
se

rv
e

fo
r o

w
n 

sh
ar

es
Ca

pi
ta

l 
re

se
rv

es

Cu
rr

en
cy

 
tra

ns
la

tio
n 

re
se

rv
e

Sh
ar

e-
ba

se
d

pa
ym

en
ts

 
re

se
rv

e
He

dg
in

g 
re

se
rv

e
Fa

ir 
va

lu
e 

re
se

rv
e

Re
ve

nu
e 

re
se

rv
e

To
ta

l

No
n-

co
nt

ro
lli

ng
 

in
te

re
st

s
To

ta
l

eq
ui

ty
Gr

ou
p

$’
00

0
$’

00
0

$’
00

0
$’

00
0

$’
00

0
$’

00
0

$’
00

0
$’

00
0

$’
00

0
$’

00
0

$’
00

0

At
 1

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

4
48

4,
28

8
(7

,7
59

)
25

,5
74

(6
7,

40
6)

(2
4,

58
3)

(1
3,

18
5)

11
,1

80
2,

26
8,

92
7

2,
67

7,
03

6
13

2,
47

6
2,

80
9,

51
2

To
ta

l c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 in

co
m

e 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r

Pr
ofi

t f
or

 th
e 

ye
ar

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
56

0,
12

8
56

0,
12

8
41

,1
47

60
1,

27
5

Ot
he

r c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 in

co
m

e

Fo
re

ig
n 

cu
rre

nc
y 

tra
ns

la
tio

n 
di

ffe
re

nc
es

  
fo

r f
or

ei
gn

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
  

–
–

–
50

,3
62

–
–

–
–

50
,3

62
6,

68
5

57
,0

47

N
et

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 fa

ir 
va

lu
e 

of
 c

as
h 

flo
w

 
he

dg
es

–
–

–
–

–
(3

0,
23

6)
–

–
(3

0,
23

6)
–

(3
0,

23
6)

N
et

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 fa

ir 
va

lu
e 

of
 a

va
ila

bl
e-

fo
r-

sa
le

 fi
na

nc
ia

l a
ss

et
s

–
–

–
–

–
–

(2
2,

00
8)

–
(2

2,
00

8)
–

(2
2,

00
8)

To
ta

l o
th

er
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r t

he
 

ye
ar

–
–

–
50

,3
62

–
(3

0,
23

6)
(2

2,
00

8)
–

(1
,8

82
)

6,
68

5
4,

80
3

To
ta

l c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 in

co
m

e 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r
–

–
–

50
,3

62
–

(3
0,

23
6)

(2
2,

00
8)

56
0,

12
8

55
8,

24
6

47
,8

32
60

6,
07

8

Tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 w
ith

 o
w

ne
rs

 o
f t

he
 C

om
pa

ny
, 

re
co

gn
is

ed
 d

ire
ct

ly
 in

 e
qu

ity
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 b

y 
an

d 
di

st
rib

ut
io

ns
 to

 
ow

ne
rs

 o
f t

he
 C

om
pa

ny

Pu
rc

ha
se

 o
f t

re
as

ur
y 

sh
ar

es
–

(1
1,

55
5)

–
–

–
–

–
–

(1
1,

55
5)

–
(1

1,
55

5)

Is
su

e 
of

 tr
ea

su
ry

 s
ha

re
s 

–
17

,5
99

–
–

(1
6,

88
7)

–
–

–
71

2
–

71
2

D
iv

id
en

ds
 p

ai
d 

to
 

- 
ow

ne
rs

 o
f t

he
 C

om
pa

ny
 (

N
ot

e 
32

) 
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

(2
71

,6
05

)
(2

71
,6

05
)

–
(2

71
,6

05
)

- 
no

n-
co

nt
ro

lli
ng

 in
te

re
st

s
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

(1
3,

39
9)

(1
3,

39
9)

Un
cl

ai
m

ed
 d

iv
id

en
ds

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
5

5
–

5

Sh
ar

e-
ba

se
d 

pa
ym

en
ts

 
–

–
–

–
12

,2
79

–
–

–
12

,2
79

–
12

,2
79

To
ta

l c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 b
y 

an
d 

di
st

rib
ut

io
ns

 to
 

ow
ne

rs
 o

f t
he

 C
om

pa
ny

–
6,

04
4

–
–

(4
,6

08
)

–
–

(2
71

,6
00

)
(2

70
,1

64
)

(1
3,

39
9)

(2
83

,5
63

)

At
 3

1 
De

ce
m

be
r 2

01
4

48
4,

28
8

(1
,7

15
)

25
,5

74
(1

7,
04

4)
(2

9,
19

1)
(4

3,
42

1)
(1

0,
82

8)
2,

55
7,

45
5

2,
96

5,
11

8
16

6,
90

9
3,

13
2,

02
7

Th
e 

ac
co

m
pa

ny
in

g 
no

te
s 

fo
rm

 a
n 

in
te

gr
al

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
se

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.



159Sembcorp Marine Ltd Annual Report

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (cont’d) Year ended 31 December 2014

At
tri

bu
ta

bl
e 

to
 o

w
ne

rs
 o

f t
he

 C
om

pa
ny

Sh
ar

e
ca

pi
ta

l

Re
se

rv
e

fo
r o

w
n 

sh
ar

es
Ca

pi
ta

l 
re

se
rv

es

Cu
rr

en
cy

 
tra

ns
la

tio
n 

re
se

rv
e

Sh
ar

e-
ba

se
d

pa
ym

en
ts

 
re

se
rv

e
He

dg
in

g 
re

se
rv

e
Fa

ir 
va

lu
e 

re
se

rv
e

Re
ve

nu
e 

re
se

rv
e

To
ta

l

No
n-

co
nt

ro
lli

ng
 

in
te

re
st

s
To

ta
l

eq
ui

ty
Gr

ou
p

$’
00

0
$’

00
0

$’
00

0
$’

00
0

$’
00

0
$’

00
0

$’
00

0
$’

00
0

$’
00

0
$’

00
0

$’
00

0

At
 1

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

3
48

0,
08

6
(3

,2
23

)
25

,5
74

(1
04

,7
82

)
(1

7,
99

1)
33

,8
94

40
,1

93
1,

98
4,

77
3

2,
43

8,
52

4
10

8,
50

1
2,

54
7,

02
5

To
ta

l c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 in

co
m

e 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r

Pr
ofi

t f
or

 th
e 

ye
ar

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
55

5,
74

7
55

5,
74

7
32

,5
13

58
8,

26
0

Ot
he

r c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 in

co
m

e

Fo
re

ig
n 

cu
rre

nc
y 

tra
ns

la
tio

n 
di

ffe
re

nc
es

 
fo

r f
or

ei
gn

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
  

–
–

–
37

,3
76

–
–

–
–

37
,3

76
2,

98
0

40
,3

56

N
et

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 fa

ir 
va

lu
e 

of
 c

as
h 

flo
w

 
he

dg
es

–
–

–
–

–
(4

7,
07

9)
–

–
(4

7,
07

9)
–

(4
7,

07
9)

N
et

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 fa

ir 
va

lu
e 

of
 a

va
ila

bl
e-

fo
r-

sa
le

 fi
na

nc
ia

l a
ss

et
s

–
–

–
–

–
–

(2
9,

01
3)

–
(2

9,
01

3)
–

(2
9,

01
3)

To
ta

l o
th

er
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r t

he
 

ye
ar

–
–

–
37

,3
76

–
(4

7,
07

9)
(2

9,
01

3)
–

(3
8,

71
6)

2,
98

0
(3

5,
73

6)

To
ta

l c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 in

co
m

e 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r
–

–
–

37
,3

76
–

(4
7,

07
9)

(2
9,

01
3)

55
5,

74
7

51
7,

03
1

35
,4

93
55

2,
52

4

Tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 w
ith

 o
w

ne
rs

 o
f t

he
 C

om
pa

ny
, 

re
co

gn
is

ed
 d

ire
ct

ly
 in

 e
qu

ity
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 b

y 
an

d 
di

st
rib

ut
io

ns
 to

 
ow

ne
rs

 o
f t

he
 C

om
pa

ny

Is
su

e 
of

 n
ew

 s
ha

re
s

4,
20

2
–

–
–

(4
,2

02
)

–
–

–
–

–
–

Pu
rc

ha
se

 o
f t

re
as

ur
y 

sh
ar

es
–

(2
0,

36
6)

–
–

–
–

–
–

(2
0,

36
6)

–
(2

0,
36

6)

Is
su

e 
of

 tr
ea

su
ry

 s
ha

re
s

–
15

,8
30

–
–

(1
5,

41
6)

–
–

–
41

4
–

41
4

D
iv

id
en

ds
 p

ai
d 

to
 

- 
ow

ne
rs

 o
f t

he
 C

om
pa

ny
 (

N
ot

e 
32

)
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

(2
71

,5
93

)
(2

71
,5

93
)

–
(2

71
,5

93
)

- 
no

n-
co

nt
ro

lli
ng

 in
te

re
st

s
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

(1
1,

51
8)

(1
1,

51
8)

Sh
ar

e-
ba

se
d 

pa
ym

en
ts

 
–

–
–

–
13

,0
26

–
–

–
13

,0
26

–
13

,0
26

To
ta

l c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 b
y 

an
d 

di
st

rib
ut

io
ns

 to
 

ow
ne

rs
 o

f t
he

 C
om

pa
ny

4,
20

2
(4

,5
36

)
–

–
(6

,5
92

)
–

–
(2

71
,5

93
)

(2
78

,5
19

)
(1

1,
51

8)
(2

90
,0

37
)

At
 3

1 
De

ce
m

be
r 2

01
3

48
4,

28
8

(7
,7

59
)

25
,5

74
(6

7,
40

6)
(2

4,
58

3)
(1

3,
18

5)
11

,1
80

2,
26

8,
92

7
2,

67
7,

03
6

13
2,

47
6

2,
80

9,
51

2

Th
e 

ac
co

m
pa

ny
in

g 
no

te
s 

fo
rm

 a
n 

in
te

gr
al

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
se

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.



160

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Year ended 31 December 2014

Group
2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year 601,275 588,260

Adjustments for:

Finance income (9,711) (8,200)

Finance costs 20,960 8,072

Investment income (1,192) (2,228)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 110,893 97,251

Amortisation of intangible assets 4,240 3,356 

Share of results of associates and joint ventures, net of tax (9,859) (11,166)

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (98) (14,760)

Gain on disposal of an associate – (2,816)

Changes in fair value of hedging instruments 12,169 1,231

Changes in fair value of other financial assets (177) 58 

Share-based payment expenses 15,998 16,948

Assets written off 232 268

Tax expense 105,729 72,277

Operating profit before working capital changes 850,459 748,551

Changes in working capital:

Inventories and work-in-progress (1,357,292) (23,117)

Trade and other receivables (22,465) 42,947

Trade and other payables 112,557 222,690

Cash generated from operations (416,741) 991,071

Investment and interest income received 10,726 10,530

Interest paid (19,460) (10,889)

Tax paid (82,798) (53,547)

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (508,273) 937,165

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (738,878) (814,916)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 419 17,893

Purchase of intangible assets (26,513) (62)

Additional investment in an associate – (457)

Additional investment in a joint venture – (5,590)

Acquisition of other financial assets (5,417) (1,450)

Proceeds from disposal of an associate – 5,726

Dividend from associate – 1,175

Net cash used in investing activities (770,389) (797,681)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (cont’d) Year ended 31 December 2014

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Group
2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings 1,255,269 738,185

Repayment of borrowings (291,696) (300,000)

Proceeds from share options exercised 723 583

Purchase of treasury shares (11,555) (20,366)

Dividends paid to owners of the Company (271,605) (271,593)

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests of subsidiaries (13,399) (11,518)

Unclaimed dividends 5 –

Net cash generated from financing activities 667,742 135,291

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (610,920) 274,775

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,694,901 1,408,907

Effect of exchange rate changes on balances held in foreign currencies (7,198) 11,219

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (Note 14) 1,076,783 1,694,901

Significant non-cash transactions

During the year, purchase of property, plant and equipment excludes accrued capital expenditure of $33.1 million (2013: $Nil) for the Brazil new 
yard.

In 2013, there was a reclassification of $227.5 million from ‘inventories and work-in-progress’ to ‘property, plant and equipment’ for a vessel by 
a subsidiary (see Note 4).

Arising from the divestment of 30 per cent shareholding in HQSM Engineering Pte Ltd (“HQSM”) (previously at 49 per cent) by a subsidiary in 
2013, the retained 19 per cent equity stake in HQSM was fair valued at $2.7 million and reclassified to ‘other financial assets’ in 2013.
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These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 February 2015.

1. Domicile and activities

 Sembcorp Marine Ltd  (the “Company”) is a company incorporated in the Republic of Singapore and has its registered office at 29 Tanjong 
Kling Road, Singapore 628054.

 When FRS 110 became effective on 1 January 2014, the immediate holding company, Sembcorp Industries Ltd (“SCI”), a company 
incorporated in Singapore, has been evaluated to be a subsidiary of Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited, a company incorporated in 
Singapore.  As such, the Company’s immediate holding company is SCI and the ultimate holding company is Temasek Holdings (Private) 
Limited.

 The financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group” and individually as “Group 
entities”) and the Group’s interests in associates and joint ventures.

 The principal activities of the Company are the provision of management services and investment holding.  The principal activities of the 
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are stated in Note 40.

2. Basis of preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”).

2.2 Basis of measurement

 The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as otherwise described in the accounting policies below.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

 The financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.  All financial information 
presented in Singapore dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand ($’000), unless otherwise stated.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgements

 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with FRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.  Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period 
in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

 Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most 
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is discussed in Note 39.

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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2.5 Changes in accounting policies

With effect from 1 January 2014, the Group adopted the following new or revised FRS that are mandatory for application from that date.  
The adoption of these new or revised FRS did not have any significant impact on the financial statements, except for the adoption of        
FRS 110 Consolidated Financial Statements which results in additional related parties in Notes 14, 19, 34 and 35 as the Group’s ultimate 
holding company is now Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited.

The table below summarises the related party transactions and balances in 2013 restated as a result of the above adoption disclosed in 
Notes 19 and 34.

Note
As previously 

reported As restated
$’000 $’000

31 December 2013

Related party transactions

Related corporations

Sales 34 10,210 571,778

Purchases 34 69,974 77,744

Related party balances

Interest-bearing borrowings from related corporations 19 200,000 533,912

 (i) Subsidiaries

From 1 January 2014, as a result of FRS 110 Consolidated Financial Statements, the Group has changed its accounting policy for 
determining whether it has control over and consequently whether it consolidates its investees.  FRS 110 introduces a new control 
model that focuses on whether the Group has power over an investee, exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement 
with the investee and ability to use its power to affect those returns.

 (ii) Joint Arrangements

From 1 January 2014, as a result of FRS 111 Joint Arrangements, the Group has changed its accounting policy for its interests 
in joint arrangement.  Under FRS 111, the Group has classified its interests in joint arrangements as either joint operations (if the 
Group has rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to an arrangement) or joint ventures (if the Group has rights 
only to the net assets of an arrangement).  When making this assessment, the Group considered the structure of the arrangements, 
the legal form of any separate vehicles, the contractual terms of the arrangements and other facts and circumstances.  Previously, 
the structure of the arrangement was the sole focus of classification.

 (iii) Disclosure of interests in other entities

From 1 January 2014, as a result of FRS 112 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, the Group has expanded its disclosures about 
its interests in subsidiaries (Note 6), associates and joint ventures (Note 7).

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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3. Significant accounting policies

 The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements, and have been 
applied consistently by Group entities, except as explained in Note 2.5, which address changes in accounting policies.

3.1 Basis of consolidation

 (i) Business combinations

Acquisitions on or after 1 January 2010

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date, which is the date on which control 
is transferred to the Group.  Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits 
from its activities.  In assessing control, the Group takes into consideration potential voting rights that are currently exercisable.

Deferred consideration comprises obligations to pay specific amounts at future dates.  Deferred consideration is recognised and 
measured at fair value at the acquisition date and included in the consideration transferred.
 
The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships.  Such amounts are 
generally recognised in profit or loss.

Costs related to the acquisition, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group incurs in 
connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.  If the contingent consideration is classified 
as equity, it is not re-measured and settlement is accounted for within equity.  Otherwise, subsequent changes to the fair value of 
the contingent consideration are recognised in profit or loss.

For non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the acquiree’s 
net assets in the event of liquidation, the Group elects on a transaction-by-transaction basis whether to measure them at fair value, 
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, at the 
acquisition date.  All other non-controlling interests are measured at acquisition-date fair value or, where applicable, on the basis 
specified in another standard.

Acquisitions prior to 1 January 2010

All business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method.  Under the purchase method, the cost of an acquisition is 
measured at the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, 
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition.  The excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, 
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition is credited to profit or loss in the period of the acquisition.

 (ii) Acquisition of non-controlling interests

Acquisitions of non-controlling interests are accounted for as transactions with owners in their capacity as owners and therefore 
no goodwill is recognised as a result of such transactions and no gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.  Adjustments to non-
controlling interests arising from transactions that do not involve the loss of control are based on a proportionate amount of the net 
assets of the subsidiary.

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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3.1 Basis of consolidation (cont’d)

 (ii) Acquisition of non-controlling interests (cont’d)

Prior to 1 January 2010, goodwill was recognised on the acquisition of non-controlling interests in a subsidiary, which represented 
the excess of the cost of the additional investment over the carrying amount of the interest in the net assets acquired at the date of 
the transaction.

 (iii) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities that are controlled by the Group.  The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights 
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences 
until the date control ceases.  The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed when necessary to align them with the 
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests are that part of the net results of operations and of net assets of a subsidiary attributable to the interests 
which are not owned directly or indirectly by the equity holders of the Company.  They are shown separately in the consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and balance sheet.  Total comprehensive income is attributed 
to the non-controlling interests based on their respective interests in a subsidiary even if this results in the non-controlling interests 
having a deficit balance.

 (iv) Loss of control

Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the 
other components of equity related to the subsidiary.  Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in profit or 
loss.  If the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that control 
is lost.  Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or as an available-for-sale financial asset depending on 
the level of influence retained.

 (v) Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over the financial and 
operating policies of these entities.

The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are presently exercisable or presently convertible are considered when 
assessing whether the Group has significant influence over another entity.  Significant influence is presumed to exist when the Group 
holds 20% or more of the voting power of another entity.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting from the date that significant influence commences until the 
date that significant influence ceases and are recognised initially at cost.  The cost of investments includes transaction costs.  When 
the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity-accounted investee, the carrying amount of the investment (including 
any other unsecured receivables, that in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate) is reduced to zero, 
and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or made payments on its 
behalf to satisfy obligations of the associate that the Group has guaranteed or otherwise committed on behalf of.

The excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of 
acquisition is credited to profit or loss in the period of the acquisition.  Where the audited financial statements are not available, the 
share of results is arrived at from unaudited management financial statements made up mainly to the end of the accounting year 
to 31 December.

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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3.1 Basis of consolidation (cont’d)

 (vi) Joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement in which the Group has joint control, whereby the Group has rights to the net assets of the 
arrangement.

The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are presently exercisable or presently convertible are considered when 
assessing whether the Group has joint control over the entity.

Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting from the date that joint control commences until the date 
that joint control ceases.

The excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of 
acquisition is credited to profit or loss in the period of the acquisition.  Where the audited financial statements are not available, the 
share of results is arrived at from unaudited management financial statements made up mainly to the end of the accounting year 
to 31 December.

 (vii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

All intra-group balances, transactions, and unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated 
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.  Unrealised gains arising from transactions with associates and joint ventures 
are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee.  Unrealised losses are eliminated in the 
same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

 (viii) Accounting for subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are measured in the Company’s balance sheet at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses.

3.2 Foreign currencies

 (i) Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of Group entities at exchange rates at the 
dates of the transactions.  At each reporting date:

•	 Foreign	currency	monetary	assets	and	liabilities	are	retranslated	to	the	functional	currency	using	exchange	rates	at	that	date.

•	 Non-monetary	assets	and	liabilities	 in	a	 foreign	currency	 that	are	measured	 in	 terms	of	historical	cost	are	 translated	using	
exchange rates at the date of the transaction. 

•	 Non-monetary	assets	and	liabilities	denominated	in	foreign	currencies	that	are	measured	at	fair	value	are	retranslated	to	the	
functional currency at exchange rate at the date the fair value was determined.

Foreign currency differences arising from the settlement or from translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
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3.2 Foreign currencies (cont’d)

 (i) Foreign currency transactions and balances (cont’d)

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised directly in profit or loss, except for the following differences 
which are recognised in other comprehensive income arising on the retranslation of:

•	 available-for-sale	equity	instruments	(except	on	impairment	in	which	case	foreign	currency	differences	that	have	been	recognised	
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss);

•	 a	financial	liability	designated	as	a	hedge	of	net	investment	in	a	foreign	operation	to	the	extent	that	the	hedge	is	effective;	or

•	 qualifying	cash	flow	hedges	to	the	extent	the	hedge	is	effective.

 (ii) Foreign operations

The results and financial positions of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have 
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

•	 Assets	and	liabilities	are	translated	at	exchange	rates	ruling	at	the	date	of	the	balance	sheet.

•	 Revenues	and	expenses	are	translated	at	average	exchange	rates.

•	 All	resulting	foreign	currency	differences	are	taken	to	the	foreign	currency	translation	reserve	in	other	comprehensive	income.

Goodwill (except those relating to acquisitions of foreign operations prior to 1 January 2004) and fair value adjustments arising 
from the acquisition of foreign operations are translated to the presentation currency for consolidation at the rates of exchange ruling 
at the balance sheet date.  Goodwill arising from the acquisition of foreign operations prior to 1 January 2004 are translated at 
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income, and presented in the foreign currency translation 
reserve (translation reserve) in equity.  However, if the foreign operation is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary, then the relevant 
proportionate share of the translation difference is allocated to the non-controlling interests.  When a foreign operation is disposed 
of such that control, significant influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that 
foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.  When the Group disposes of only part of its 
interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while retaining control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is 
reattributed to non-controlling interests.  When the Group disposes of only part of its investment in an associate or joint venture that 
includes a foreign operation while retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount 
is reclassified to profit or loss.

When the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is neither planned nor likely to occur in 
the foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains and losses arising from such a monetary item that are considered to form part of a 
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised in other comprehensive income, and are presented in the translation reserve 
in equity.

 (iii) Net investment in a foreign operation

Foreign currency differences arising from monetary items that in substance form part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign 
operation are recognised in the Company’s profit or loss.  Such differences are reclassified to the foreign currency translation reserve 
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and are released to the consolidated income statement upon disposal of 
the investment as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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3.3 Property, plant and equipment

 (i) Owned assets

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.  Cost 
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour and any other costs directly attributable to bringing 
the assets to a working condition for their intended use, the cost of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on 
which they are located and capitalised borrowing costs.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major components having different useful lives, they are accounted for 
as separate items of property, plant and equipment.

 (ii) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment that has already been recognised is added to the carrying amount 
of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the 
existing asset, will flow to the Group and its costs can be measured reliably.  All other subsequent expenditure is recognised as an 
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Certain items of property, plant and equipment are subject to overhauls at regular intervals.  The inherent components of the initial 
overhaul are determined based on the costs of the next overhaul and are separately depreciated in order to reflect the estimated 
intervals between two overhauls.  The costs of the overhauls subsequently incurred are capitalised as additions and the carrying 
amounts of the replaced components are written off to profit or loss.

 (iii) Disposals

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

 (iv) Finance lease assets

Finance leases are those leasing agreements with terms of which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership.  Property, plant and equipment acquired by way of such leases is capitalised at the lower of its fair value and the 
present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.  
Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate 
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Finance charges are charged directly to profit or loss.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the economic useful life of the asset and the lease term.

 (v) Provision for restoration costs

A provision is recognised for the costs expected to be incurred to dismantle, remove and restore the asset upon expiry of the lease 
agreement.  The estimated costs form part of the cost of the property, plant and equipment and are depreciated over the useful life 
of the asset.
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3.3 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

 (vi) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost less its residual value so as to write off items of 
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives.  Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost 
that is significant in relation to the total cost of an item is depreciated separately.  Depreciation is recognised from the date that the 
property, plant and equipment are installed and are ready for use, or in respect of internally constructed assets, from the date that 
the asset is completed and ready for use.  Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives 
unless it is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years are as follows:

Leasehold land Lease period of 3 to 60 years
Buildings 50 years or lease period of 3 to 60 years
Quays and dry docks 60 years or lease period of 6 to 22 years
Marine vessels, launches, cranes and floating docks 3 to 30 years
Plant, machinery and tools 3 to 30 years
Motor vehicles 3 to 10 years
Furniture and office equipment 3 to 5 years
Utilities and fittings 30 years
Computer equipment 1 to 5 years

The assets’ depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values, if not insignificant, are reviewed annually and adjusted if 
appropriate.  In 2013, the Group revised the useful lives of certain property, plant and equipment, whose financial effects are 
disclosed in Note 4.

No depreciation is provided on freehold land or construction-in-progress.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer in use.

 (vii) Investment properties

Investment properties comprise significant portions of land and buildings and quays that are held for long-term rental yields or for 
capital appreciation, or for both.

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses.  Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives ranging 
from 45 to 60 years or the lease period of 15 to 16 years.  The assets’ depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed, if not insignificant, annually, and adjusted if appropriate.   No depreciation is provided on the freehold land.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment property.

Investment properties are subject to renovations or improvements at regular intervals.  The cost of major renovations and 
improvements is capitalised as additions and the carrying amounts of the replaced components are written off to profit or loss.  The 
cost of maintenance, repairs and minor improvements is charged to profit or loss when incurred.

On disposal of an investment property, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is 
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.4 Intangible assets

 (i) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

•	 the	fair	value	of	the	consideration	transferred;	plus

•	 the	recognised	amount	of	any	non-controlling	interests	in	the	acquiree;	

•	 plus	if	the	business	combination	is	achieved	in	stages,	the	fair	value	of	the	pre-existing	equity	interest	in	the	acquiree,	less	the	
net amount recognised (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill that arises upon the acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.

Goodwill on acquisition of associates and joint ventures is included in investments in associates and joint ventures, respectively.  
An impairment loss on such investments is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount 
of the investments.

Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis in accordance with Note 3.11.

 (ii) intellectual property rights

Intellectual property rights are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.  Amortisation 
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 10 years.

 (iii) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure on capitalised intangible assets is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied 
in the specific asset to which it relates.  All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

 (iv) Amortisation

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted if appropriate.

3.5 Financial assets

 The Group initially recognises loans and receivables and deposits on the date that they are originated.  All other financial assets (including 
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially on the trade date, which is the date that the Group becomes 
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

 The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to 
receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of 
the financial asset are transferred.  Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a 
separate asset or liability.
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3.5 Financial assets (cont’d)

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheets when, and only when, the Group has a legal 
right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

 The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans 
and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.  The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets are 
acquired.  Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every 
reporting date.  The designation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is irrevocable.

 (i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified at fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as held for trading or is designated as such upon 
initial recognition.  Financial assets are designated at fair value through profit or loss if the Group manages such investments and 
makes purchase and sale decisions based on their fair value in accordance with the Group’s documented risk management or 
investment strategy.  Upon initial recognition, attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.  Financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss comprise unquoted securities that otherwise would have been 
classified as available for sale.

 (ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.  They are 
included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date for which they are classified as 
non-current assets.  Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.  Receivables with a short duration are not discounted.  
Loans and receivables are included in trade and other receivables in the balance sheet.

Loans and receivables comprise cash and cash equivalents, and trade and other receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and bank deposits.  For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and 
cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand.  Bank overdrafts are shown within interest-
bearing borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

 (iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Other financial assets held by the Group that are either designated in this category or not classified in any other category, are classified 
as being available-for-sale.  They are included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investment 
within 12 months of the balance sheet date.  They are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction 
costs.  Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein, other than impairment losses and 
foreign currency differences, are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.  When these investments are derecognised, the 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised directly in other comprehensive income, or part thereof, is recognised in profit or loss.  
Where these investments are interest-bearing, interest calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets comprise equity shares and unit trusts.
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3.6 Impairment of financial assets

 The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets 
is impaired.  A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the 
asset, and that the loss event has a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

 The Group considers evidence of impairment for loans and receivables at both a specific asset and collective level.  All individually 
significant loans and receivables are assessed for specific impairment.  All individually significant receivables found not to be specifically 
impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified.  Loans and receivables that 
are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and receivables with similar risk 
characteristics.

 In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses historical trends of the probability of default, the timing of recoveries and the amount of 
loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgement as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses 
are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends.

 Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity securities) are impaired can include default or delinquency by a debtor, 
restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer 
will enter bankruptcy, adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the Group, economic conditions that correlate 
with defaults or the disappearance of an active market for a security.  In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or 
prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

 When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognised directly in other comprehensive income 
and there is objective evidence that the value of the asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been recognised directly in other 
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss even though the financial asset has not been derecognised.  The amount of the 
cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or loss is the excess of acquisition cost less any impairment loss on that financial asset 
previously recognised in profit or loss, over its current fair value.

 An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying amount 
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.  Losses are recognised 
in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against loans and receivables.  Interest on the impaired asset continues to be 
recognised.  When the Group considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written 
off.  If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the 
impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

 Reversals of impairment

 An impairment loss in respect of a receivable carried at amortised cost is reversed if the subsequent increase in recoverable amount can 
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised.  The decrease in impairment loss is reversed through 
profit or loss.

 An impairment loss once recognised in profit or loss in respect of an investment in an equity instrument classified as available-for-sale 
is not reversed through profit or loss.  Any subsequent increase in fair value of such assets is recognised directly in other comprehensive 
income.  If the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an 
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss shall be reversed, with the amount of the 
reversal recognised in profit or loss.
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3.7 Derivatives

 Derivative financial instruments are used to manage exposures to foreign exchange and interest rate risks arising from operational, 
financing and investment activities.  Derivative financial instruments are not used for trading purposes.  However, derivatives that do not 
qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as trading instruments.

 Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value; attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.  
Subsequent to initial recognition, derivative financial instruments are re-measured at fair value.  The gain or loss on re-measurement to fair 
value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.  However, where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting, recognition of any resultant 
gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged as described in Note 3.8.

3.8 Hedging activities  

 The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between the hedging instruments and hedged items, together with 
the methods that will be used to assess the effectiveness of the hedge relationship as well as its risk management objective and strategies 
for undertaking various hedge transactions.  The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, 
of whether the derivatives designated as hedging instruments are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows of the 
hedged items.

 (i) Fair value hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument hedges the changes in fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm 
commitment (or an identified portion of such asset, liability or firm commitment), any gain or loss on the hedging instrument is 
recognised in profit or loss.  The hedged item is also measured at fair value in respect of the risk being hedged, with any gain or 
loss recognised in profit or loss.

 (ii) Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the variability in cash flows attributable to a particular risk 
associated with a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable forecast transaction, the effective part of any gain or loss on the 
derivative financial instrument is recognised directly in other comprehensive income and presented in the hedging reserve in equity.  
The ineffective part of any gain or loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.  

When the forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the associated 
cumulative gain or loss is removed from equity and included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the non-financial asset 
or liability.  If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a financial asset or financial liability, the 
associated gains and losses that were recognised directly in other comprehensive income are reclassified into profit or loss in the 
same period or periods during which the asset acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss.

If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the 
designation is revoked, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively.  If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to 
occur, then the balance in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
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3.9 Inventories and work-in-progress

 (i) Inventories

Inventories consist mainly of steel and other materials used for ship and rig repair, building and conversion and are stated at the 
lower of cost and net realisable value.  Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises all costs of 
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which the related 
revenue is recognised.

The amount of any allowance for write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an 
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.  The amount of any reversal of any allowance for write-down of inventories, 
arising from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense 
in the period in which the reversal occurs.

 (ii) Long-term contracts

The accounting policy for recognition of contract revenue is set out in Note 3.18(i).

Long-term contracts-in-progress at the balance sheet date are recorded in the balance sheet at cost plus attributable profit less 
recognised losses, net of progress billings and allowance for foreseeable losses, and are presented in the balance sheet as 
‘inventories and work-in-progress’ (as an asset) or ‘excess of progress billings over work-in-progress’ (as a liability), as applicable.  
Work-in-progress represents the gross unbilled amount expected to be collected from customers for contract work completed to 
date.  This comprises mainly uncompleted ship and rig repair, building and conversion jobs.  It is measured at cost plus profit 
recognised to date less progress billings and recognised losses.  Long-term contract costs includes the cost of direct materials, 
direct labour, sub-contractors’ costs and an appropriate allocation of fixed and variable production overheads.  Allowance is made 
for anticipated losses, if any, on work-in-progress when the possibility of loss is ascertained.  When it is probable that total contract 
costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Progress billings not yet paid by the customer are included in the balance sheet under “Trade receivables”.  

3.10 Government grants

 Asset related grants are credited to a deferred asset grant account at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that they will be 
received and the Group will comply with the conditions associated with the grant.  These grants are released to profit or loss on the 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the relevant assets.

 Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised in profit or loss as other income on a systematic basis in the same 
periods in which the expenses are recognised.
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3.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

 The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting 
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.  If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are 
estimated.  For goodwill, and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable 
amount is estimated each year at the same time.  An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its 
cash-generating unit (“CGU”) exceeds its recoverable amount.  A CGU is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows 
that largely are independent from other assets and groups.  Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss unless it reverses a 
previous revaluation that was credited to equity, in which case it is charged to equity.  Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs 
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU (group of CGUs) and then, to reduce the carrying 
amount of the other assets in the CGU (group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

 
 Goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually 

and as and when indicators of impairment occur.

 (i) Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.  In assessing value 
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.  For the purpose of impairment testing, assets 
that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows from continuing 
use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Subject to an operating segment ceiling test, for the purposes of goodwill impairment testing, CGUs to which goodwill has been 
allocated are aggregated so that the level at which impairment testing is performed reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is 
monitored for internal reporting purposes.  Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to groups of CGUs that are 
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

 (ii) Reversals of impairment

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed, even if it relates to an impairment loss recognised in an interim period that 
would have been reduced or avoided had the impairment assessment been made at a subsequent reporting or balance sheet date.  
In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications 
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.  An 
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the assets’ carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount of an investment in an associate or joint venture is not recognised separately, and 
therefore is not tested for impairment separately.  Instead, the entire amount of the investment in an associate or joint venture is 
tested for impairment as a single asset when there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate or joint venture may 
be impaired.
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3.12 Non-derivative financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities (including liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially on the trade date, which is 
the date that the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

 The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheets when, and only when, the Group has a legal 
right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

 The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities category.  Such financial liabilities are recognised 
initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.  Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

 Other financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, bank overdrafts, and trade and other payables.

 Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as a component 
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

3.13 Employee benefits

 (i) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity 
and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.  Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans 
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as incurred.

 (ii) Long-term employee benefits

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned 
in return for their service in the current and prior periods.  That benefit is discounted to determine its present value.  Long-term 
employee benefits are reported in “non-current other payables”.

 (iii) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related employment 
service is provided.

The amount expected to be paid is accrued when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a 
result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

 (iv) Staff retirement benefits

Retirement benefits payable to certain categories of employees upon their retirement are provided for in the financial statements 
based on their entitlement under the staff retirement benefit plan or, in respect of unionised employees of a subsidiary who joined 
on or before 31 December 1988, based on an agreement with the union.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of retirement benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return 
for their service in the current and prior periods.  The obligation is calculated using the projected future salary increase and is 
discounted to its present value and the fair value of any related assets is deducted.
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3.13 Employee benefits (cont’d)

 (v) Equity and equity-related compensation benefits

Share Option Plan

The share option programme allows the Group’s employees to acquire shares of the Group companies.  The fair value is measured 
at grant date and spread over the period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the options.  The fair value 
of options granted is recognised as an employee expense with a corresponding increase in equity.  At each balance sheet date, the 
Company revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to become exercisable.  It recognises the impact of the 
revision of original estimates in employee expense and in a corresponding adjustment to equity over the remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital when new shares are issued.  
The amount in the share-based payments reserve is retained when the option is exercised or expires.

Where treasury shares are issued, the difference between the cost of treasury shares and the proceeds received net of any directly 
attributable costs are transferred to share-based payments reserve.

Performance Share Plan

The fair value of equity-related compensation is measured using the Monte Carlo simulation method as at the date of the grant.  The 
method involves projecting future outcomes using statistical distributions of key random variables including the share prices and 
volatility of returns.  This model takes into account the probability of achieving the performance conditions in the future.

The fair value of the compensation cost is measured at grant date and amortised over the service period to which the performance 
criteria relates and the period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the shares.  In estimating the fair value 
of the compensation cost, market-based performance conditions are taken into account.  From 2014 onwards, awards granted 
have both market-based and non-market-based performance conditions.  The compensation cost is charged to profit or loss with a 
corresponding increase in equity on a basis that fairly reflects the manner in which the benefits will accrue to the employee under the 
plan over the service period to which the performance period relates, irrespective of whether this performance condition is satisfied.

The share-based payments reserve relating to the performance shares released is transferred to share capital when new shares are 
issued.  When treasury shares are issued, the cost of treasury shares is transferred to share-based payments reserve.

Restricted Share Plan

Similar to the Performance Share Plan, the fair value of equity-related compensation is measured using the Monte Carlo simulation 
method as at the date of the grant.  The method involves projecting future outcomes using statistical distributions of key random 
variables including the share prices and volatility of returns.  This model takes into account the probability of achieving the 
performance conditions in the future.

The fair value of the compensation cost is measured at grant date and amortised over the service period to which the performance 
criteria relates and the period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the shares.  Awards granted have 
non-market based performance conditions.  The compensation cost is charged to profit or loss with a corresponding increase in 
equity on a basis that fairly reflects the manner in which the benefits will accrue to the employee under the plan over the service 
period to which the performance period relates.
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3.13 Employee benefits (cont’d)

 (v) Equity and equity-related compensation benefits (cont’d)

Restricted Share Plan (cont’d)

At the balance sheet date, the Company revises its estimates of the number of performance-based restricted shares that the 
employees are expected to receive based on the achievement of non-market performance conditions and the number of shares 
ultimately given.  It recognises the impact of the revision of the original estimates in employee expense and in a corresponding 
adjustment to equity over the remaining vesting period.

The share-based payments reserve relating to the restricted shares released is transferred to share capital when new shares are 
issued.  When treasury shares are issued, the cost of treasury shares is transferred to share-based payments reserve.

In the Company’s separate financial statements, the fair value of options, performance shares and restricted shares granted 
to employees of its subsidiaries is recognised as an increase in the cost of the Company’s investment in subsidiaries, with a 
corresponding increase in equity over the vesting period.

 (vi) Cash-related compensation benefits

Sembcorp Marine Challenge Bonus

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into consideration 
the share price of the Company.  The Group recognises a provision when contractually obliged to pay or where there is a past 
practice that has created a constructive obligation to pay.

The compensation cost is measured at the fair value of the liability at each balance sheet date and spread over the service period 
to which the performance criteria relates and the period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the bonus.  
The liability takes into account the probability of achieving the performance conditions in the future.

Until the liability is settled, the Group will re-measure the fair value of the liability at each balance sheet date and at the date of 
settlement, with any changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss for the period.

3.14 Provisions

 A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be reliably 
estimated and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.  If the effect is material, provisions 
are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.  The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

3.15 Tax expense

 Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.  Tax expense is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to business 
combinations, or to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity or in other comprehensive income.

 Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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3.15 Tax expense (cont’d)

 Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.  Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial 
recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects 
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures to the extent that the 
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable 
future.

 The measurement of deferred tax reflects the consequences that would follow the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the 
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.  Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
by the reporting date.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and 
assets and they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to 
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

 A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable 
that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilised.  Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and 
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

3.16 Share capital

 Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

 Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary shares and share options are deducted against the share capital 
account, net of any tax effects.

 Where the Company’s ordinary shares are repurchased (treasury shares), the consideration paid, excluding any directly attributable 
incremental costs, is deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders and presented as reserve for own shares within 
equity, until they are cancelled, sold or reissued.

 When treasury shares are cancelled, the cost of treasury shares is deducted against the share capital account, if the shares are purchased 
out of capital of the Company, or against the accumulated profits of the Company, if the shares are purchased out of profits of the 
Company.

 When treasury shares are subsequently sold or reissued pursuant to the Share-based Incentive Plans, the cost of the treasury shares 
is reversed from the reserve for own shares account and the realised gain or loss on sale or reissue, net of any directly attributable 
incremental transaction costs and related tax, is recognised as a change in equity of the Company.  No gain or loss is recognised in profit 
or loss.

3.17 Dividends

 Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised when they are approved for payments.  Dividends on ordinary shares classified as equity 
are accounted for as movements in revenue reserve.
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3.18 Revenue recognition

 (i) Contract revenue

Contract revenue includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract work, claims and incentive 
payments, to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and can be measured reliably.

Revenue from ship and rig repair, building, conversion and offshore is recognised on the percentage of completion method, 
provided the outcome of the contract can be reliably estimated.  The percentage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys 
of work performed.

When the outcome of a contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and costs are recognised as income and expense 
respectively using the percentage of completion method.  When the outcome of a long-term contract cannot be estimated reliably, 
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that can probably be recovered and contract costs are recognised 
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.  An expected loss on a contract is recognised immediately in profit or loss 
when it is foreseeable.

 (ii) Income on goods sold and services rendered

Revenue from goods sold is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer.  
Revenue on other service work is recognised when the work is completed.  Revenue excludes goods and services or other sales 
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.  No revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery 
of the consideration due, associated costs or the possible return of goods.

 (iii) Charter hire and rental income

Charter hire and rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the 
term of the lease.  Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, over the term of the lease.  
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are earned.

3.19 Dividend and finance income

 Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date that the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

 Finance income is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective interest rate method.

3.20 Leases

 (i) Operating lease

When entities within the Group are lessees of an operating lease

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating leases, payments made under the leases are recognised in profit or loss 
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.  Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of 
the total lease payments made.
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3.20 Leases (cont’d)

 (ii) Finance lease

When entities within the Group are lessors of a finance lease

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the 
leases.  Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s 
net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

3.21 Finance costs

 Finance costs comprise of interest expense on borrowings, amortisation of capitalised transaction costs and transaction costs written off.  
Interest expense and similar charges are expensed in profit or loss in the period using the effective interest method, except to the extent 
that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset.  The interest 
component of finance lease payments is recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.  

3.22 Earnings per share

 The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its ordinary shares.  Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit 
or loss attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, adjusted 
for own shares held.  Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which 
comprise awards of share options granted to employees.

3.23 Segment reporting

 An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur 
expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components.  All operating segments’ 
operating results are reviewed regularly by the Group’s President & CEO to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment 
and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

 Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets other 
than goodwill.
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3.24 Financial guarantee contracts

 Financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as insurance contracts and treated as contingent liabilities until such time as they become 
probable that the Company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee.  A provision is recognised based on the Group’s 
estimate of the ultimate cost of settling all claims incurred but unpaid at the balance sheet date.  The provision is assessed by reviewing 
individual claims and tested for adequacy by comparing the amount recognised and the amount that would be required to settle the 
guarantee contract.

3.25 Fair value measurement

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in its absence, the most advantageous market to 
which the Group has access at that date.

 The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price, that is the fair value of 
the consideration given or received.  When available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an 
active market for that instrument.

 If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Group uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs.  The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants 
would take into account in pricing a transaction.

 The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting period during which the change has 
occurred.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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4. Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Docks, launches, 
and cranes (2)

Plant, 
machinery 
and tools Others (3) Total

Company $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Cost/valuation

Balance at 1 January 2013

At cost 163,709 7,609 7,426 178,744

At valuation 25,152 – – 25,152

188,861 7,609 7,426 203,896

Additions – – 897 897

Balance at 31 December 2013 188,861 7,609 8,323 204,793

Balance at 1 January 2014

At cost 163,709 7,609 8,323 179,641

At valuation 25,152 – – 25,152

188,861 7,609 8,323 204,793

Additions – – 11,825 11,825

Balance at 31 December 2014 188,861 7,609 20,148 216,618

Balance at 31 December 2014

At cost 163,709 7,609 20,148 191,466

At valuation 25,152 – – 25,152

188,861 7,609 20,148 216,618

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1 January 2013 93,536 6,804 3,938 104,278

Depreciation for the year 11,675 68 1,028 12,771

Balance at 31 December 2013 105,211 6,872 4,966 117,049

Depreciation for the year 7,663 100 1,001 8,764

Balance at 31 December 2014 112,874 6,972 5,967 125,813

Carrying amounts

At 1 January 2013 95,325 805 3,488 99,618

At 31 December 2013 83,650 737 3,357 87,744

At 31 December 2014 75,987 637 14,181 90,805
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4. Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

(1) During the year, interest charge of $13,231,000 (2013: $349,000) was capitalised as construction-in-progress.

(2) The carrying amounts of docks, launches and cranes included certain docks stated at Directors’ valuation of $25,152,000 in the 
year 1973.  Subsequent additions to these docks were stated at cost.  The revaluation was done on a one-off basis and accordingly, 
the transitional provision in FRS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment was adopted to continue with its existing policy of stating these 
docks at cost and revalued amounts.  If the following re-valued assets of the Group and Company had been included in the financial 
statements at cost less accumulated depreciation, they would have been fully written down.

 In 2013, arising from the default of a customer’s payment obligations for the conversion of a vessel by a subsidiary, the subsidiary 
exercised its voting rights to acquire all of the shares in an entity, as pledged by the customer.  As a result, there was a reclassification 
of $227.5 million from ‘inventories and work-in-progress’ to ‘property, plant and equipment’.

(3) Others comprise motor vehicles, furniture and office equipment, utilities and fittings and computer equipment.

(4) Includes provision for restoration costs amounting to $60,287,000 (2013: $60,254,000).

Change in estimates

 During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group revised its estimates for the useful lives of certain assets within buildings, cranes, 
plant and machinery and motor vehicles after conducting an operational review of their useful lives.  As a result, there was a change in 
the expected useful lives of these assets.  The effect of these changes on depreciation expense in current and future periods on assets 
currently held is as follows:

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Later
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Group

(Decrease)/increase in depreciation expense and 
    (increase)/decrease in profit before tax (8,409) (10,256) (9,963) (8,672) (8,243) 45,543
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5. Investment properties
Company

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Cost

Balance at 1 January and 31 December 95,361 95,361

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1 January 70,729 64,238

Depreciation for the year 2,097 6,491

Balance at 31 December 72,826 70,729

Carrying amounts

At 31 December 22,535 24,632

 The investment properties of the Company are used by the Group in carrying out its principal activities and are accounted for as property, 
plant and equipment at the Group.

 The following amounts are recognised in profit or loss:

Company
2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Rental income (29,536) (37,313)

Operating expenses arising from rental of investment properties 27,945 35,536

6. Investments in subsidiaries

Company
2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Unquoted shares, at cost 517,926 522,042

Allowance for impairment loss (15,251) (15,251)

502,675 506,791

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 40.
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7. Interests in associates and joint ventures

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Interests in associates 403,777 384,368 107,369 107,369

Interests in joint ventures 66,500 61,375 – –

470,277 445,743 107,369 107,369

In 2014, the Group did not receive dividends (2013: $1,175,000) from its associates and joint ventures.

Associates 

The Group has one (2013: one) associate that is material and a number of associates that are individually immaterial to the Group.  All 
are equity accounted.  The following information is in relation to the material associate:

Name of significant 
associate Principal activity

Country of 
incorporation

Effective equity held by 
the Group

Fair value of ownership 
interest (if listed)

2014 2013 2014 2013
% % $’000 $’000

Cosco Shipyard Group 
Co., Ltd

Provision of services for 
repairs of vessels; repairs, 
construction and conversion 
of offshore platforms and 
offshore engineering facilities; 
and related services

People’s 
Republic of 

China

30 30 N.A. N.A.

The following summarises the financial information of the Group’s material associate based on the financial statements prepared in 
accordance with FRS, modified for fair value adjustments on acquisition and differences in the Group’s accounting policies.  The table 
also includes summarised financial information for the Group’s interest in immaterial associates, based on the amounts reported in the 
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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7. Interests in associates and joint ventures (cont’d)

Summarised financial information of associates is as follows: 
Cosco Shipyard 
Group Co., Ltd

Immaterial 
associates Total

$’000 $’000 $’000
2014

Revenue 4,303,180 15,607 4,318,787

Profit/(loss) from continuing operations 28,768 (6,467) 22,301

Other comprehensive income – – –

Total comprehensive income 28,768 (6,467) 22,301

Attributable to non-controlling interests (9,506) – (9,506)

Attributable to investee’s shareholders 38,274 (6,467) 31,807

Non-current assets 2,436,450 45,676 2,482,126

Current assets 7,128,417 10,851 7,139,268

Non-current liabilities (2,730,885) – (2,730,885)

Current liabilities (4,924,024) (13,100) (4,937,124)

Net assets 1,909,958 43,427 1,953,385

Attributable to non-controlling interests 560,547 – 560,547

Attributable to investee’s shareholders 1,349,411 43,427 1,392,838

Group’s interest in net assets of investee at beginning of the year 374,218 10,150 384,368

Group’s share of:

- Profit/(loss) from continuing operations 10,280 (1,462) 8,818

- Other comprehensive income – – –

- Total comprehensive income 10,280 (1,462) 8,818

Translation 10,596 (5) 10,591

Group’s contribution during the year – – –

Carrying amount of interest in investee at end of the year 395,094 8,683 403,777
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Cosco Shipyard 
Group Co., Ltd

Immaterial 
associates Total

$’000 $’000 $’000

2013

Revenue 3,499,668 22,178 3,521,846

Profit/(loss) from continuing operations 58,598 (4,178) 54,420

Post-tax loss from discontinued operations – (3,252) (3,252)

Other comprehensive income – – –

Total comprehensive income 58,598 (7,430) 51,168

Attributable to non-controlling interests 9,072 339 9,411

Attributable to investee’s shareholders 49,526 (7,769) 41,757

Non-current assets 2,334,137 47,663 2,381,800

Current assets 6,060,658 8,679 6,069,337

Non-current liabilities (1,981,899) – (1,981,899)

Current liabilities (4,581,337) (6,553) (4,587,890)

Net assets 1,831,559 49,789 1,881,348

Attributable to non-controlling interests 555,588 – 555,588

Attributable to investee’s shareholders 1,275,971 49,789 1,325,760

Group’s interest in net assets of investee at beginning of the year 340,480 19,145 359,625

Group’s share of:

- Profit/(loss) from continuing operations 13,653 (1,046) 12,607

- Post-tax loss from discontinued operations – (1,593) (1,593)

- Other comprehensive income – – –

- Total comprehensive income 13,653 (2,639) 11,014

Translation 20,085 35 20,120

Dividend declared – (1,175) (1,175)

Group’s contribution during the year – 457 457

Divestment during the year – (5,673) (5,673)

Carrying amount of interest in investee at end of the year 374,218 10,150 384,368

7. Interests in associates and joint ventures (cont’d)

Summarised financial information of associates is as follows: 
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7. Interests in associates and joint ventures (cont’d)

Joint ventures 

The Group has a number of joint ventures that are individually immaterial to the Group.  All are equity accounted.  The following 
summarises the financial information of the Group’s interest in immaterial joint ventures based on the financial statements prepared in 
accordance with FRS, modified for fair value adjustments on acquisition and differences in the Group’s accounting policies.

Summarised financial information of joint ventures is as follows: 

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Carrying amount 66,500 61,375

Loss for the year (666) (2,743)

Other comprehensive income – –

Total comprehensive income (666) (2,743)
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8. Other financial assets

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

(a)  Non-current assets

Available-for-sale financial assets:

-  Quoted equity shares, at fair value 77,259 99,300 54,075 68,250

-  Unit trusts, at fair value 449 416 449 416

-  Unquoted equity shares, at cost(1) 7,646 2,642 5,004 –

85,354 102,358 59,528 68,666

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

-  Quoted equity shares, at fair value 1 3 – –

-  Unit trusts, at fair value 1,957 1,510 – –

Cash flow hedges:

-  Forward foreign currency contracts 8 322 – –

-  Interest rate swaps 3,123 2,973 – –

90,443 107,166 59,528 68,666

(b)  Current assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

-  Forward foreign currency contracts 14,022 – – –

Cash flow hedges:

-  Forward foreign currency contracts 166 – – –

14,188 – – –

(1) Unquoted equity securities which have no market prices and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured using other valuation 
techniques are stated at cost less impairment losses.
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9. Trade and other receivables

Group Company
Note 2014 2013 2014 2013

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

(a)  Non-current assets

Amounts due from related parties 10 – – 28,584 27,397

Staff loans (c) 54 22 – –

Loans and receivables 54 22 28,584 27,397
Amounts due from related parties 
-  Loans and advances

10 40,961 44,460 45,240 46,977

41,015 44,482 73,824 74,374

(b)  Current assets

Trade receivables 381,427 343,662 – –

Allowance for doubtful receivables (1,003) (858) – –

380,424 342,804 – –

Amounts due from related parties 10 5,155 3,367 36,341 49,360

GST refundable 32,913 38,616 266 128

Interest receivable 291 114 2 –

Sundry receivables 16,785 11,858 3,403 2,413

Unbilled receivables 7,468 14,339 – –

Recoverable 2,729 872 – –

Staff loans (c) 371 506 – –

Deposits 2,794 2,968 – –

Loans and receivables 448,930 415,444 40,012 51,901

Prepayments and advances 19,602 26,966 857 1,050

468,532 442,410 40,869 52,951

(c)  Staff loans

Staff loans are unsecured and bear interest at 3.0% (2013: 3.0%) per annum.
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10. Amounts due from related parties

Group Company
Note 2014 2013 2014 2013

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Subsidiaries

-  Trade – – 45,249 58,645

-  Non-trade – – 19,650 18,100

-  Loans and advances – – 45,240 46,977

– – 110,139 123,722

Associates and joint ventures 

-  Trade 3,426 2,519 – –

-  Non-trade 847 24 – –

-  Loans and advances 40,961 44,460 – –

45,234 47,003 – –

Related companies

-  Trade 830 772 26 12

-  Non-trade – 1 – –

830 773 26 12

Non-controlling interests

-  Non-trade 52 51 – –

Total 

-  Trade 4,256 3,291 45,275 58,657

-  Non-trade 899 76 19,650 18,100

-  Loans and advances 9 40,961 44,460 45,240 46,977

46,116 47,827 110,165 123,734

Amount due within 1 year 9 (5,155) (3,367) (36,341) (49,360)

Amount due after 1 year 9 40,961 44,460 73,824 74,374

The trade amounts due from related parties are unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-free, except for an amount of $28,584,000 
(2013: $27,397,000) which is not expected to be repayable within the next twelve months.

The non-trade amounts due from related parties comprise mainly payments on behalf which are unsecured, repayable on demand and 
interest-free.

The loans and advances to related parties are unsecured and interest-free, except for $40,961,000 (2013: $44,460,000) of loan to a 
joint venture that bears a weighted average rate of 0.23% (2013: 0.25%) per annum.  The settlement of loans and advances to these 
related parties is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future.  As these are, in substance, a part of the Company’s net 
investment in these entities, they are stated at cost.

No impairment loss has been recognised in respect of amounts due from related parties.
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11. Intangible assets

Goodwill Club memberships
Intellectual 

property rights Total

Group $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Cost

Balance at 1 January 2013 8,464 858 33,559 42,881

Translation adjustments 9 (1) – 8

Additions – 62 – 62

Write-offs – (17) – (17)

Balance at 31 December 2013 8,473 902 33,559 42,934

Translation adjustments 15 14 – 29

Additions – – 26,513 26,513

Balance at 31 December 2014 8,488 916 60,072 69,476

Accumulated amortisation and impairment 
losses

Balance at 1 January 2013 2,524 663 6,041 9,228

Translation adjustments 9 – – 9

Amortisation for the year – – 3,356 3,356

Balance at 31 December 2013 2,533 663 9,397 12,593

Translation adjustments 15 14 – 29

Amortisation for the year – – 4,240 4,240

Balance at 31 December 2014 2,548 677 13,637 16,862

Carrying amounts

At 1 January 2013 5,940 195 27,518 33,653

At 31 December 2013 5,940 239 24,162 30,341

At 31 December 2014 5,940 239 46,435 52,614
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11. Intangible assets (cont’d)
Club memberships

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Company

Cost

Balance at 1 January 652 590

Additions – 62

Balance at 31 December 652 652

Accumulated impairment losses

Balance at 1 January and 31 December 468 468

Carrying amounts

At 1 January 184 122

At 31 December 184 184

Amortisation

The amortisation of intangible assets amounting to $4,240,000 (2013: $3,356,000) is included in cost of sales.

Goodwill

Impairment testing for goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Group’s operating segments.  The aggregate carrying amounts of 
goodwill allocated to each segment are as follows:

Group
2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Ship and rig repair, building and conversion 4,917 4,917

Others 1,023 1,023

Total 5,940 5,940

For goodwill impairment testing, the recoverable amounts of cash-generating units of the Group are determined based on a value in use 
calculation using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by senior management for the next financial year.  These cash 
flow projections cover a period of 5 years and are based on long-term secured contracts with customers, updated with new contracts over 
the financial year; and discounted at 6.6% (2013: 6.6%).

Intellectual property rights

Intellectual property rights relate to acquired patents for the Jurong Espadon Drillship and Satellite Services Platform offshore designs.
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12. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are set off when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax 
liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same taxation authority.  The amounts determined after appropriate offsetting included 
in the balance sheets are as follows:

Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Deferred tax liabilities 130,309 123,066 11,069 12,064

Deferred tax assets (8,044) (7,108) – –

122,265 115,958 11,069 12,064

As at 31 December 2014, a deferred tax liability of $4,534,000 (2013: $2,768,000) for temporary differences of $41,659,000 (2013: 
$24,334,000) related to investments in subsidiaries were not recognised because the Group can control the timing of reversal of the 
taxable temporary differences for all subsidiaries and the temporary differences are not expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

Group

2014 2013

$’000 $’000

Deductible temporary differences 3,844 4,109

Tax losses 118,614 56,945

Capital allowances 1,154 1,496

123,612 62,550

In 2013, tax losses of the Group amounting to $1,954,000 applicable to certain foreign subsidiaries would expire in 2016.  These tax 
losses were fully utilised in 2014.  The deductible temporary differences, the remaining tax losses and the capital allowances do not expire 
under current tax legislation.  

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above temporary differences in accordance with Note 3.15 and under the 
following circumstances:

(a) Where they qualify for offset against the tax liabilities of member companies within the Group under the Loss Transfer System of 
Group Relief but the terms of the transfer have not been ascertained as at year end; and

(b) Where it is uncertain that future taxable profit will be available against which certain subsidiaries of the Group can utilise the 
benefits.
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13. Inventories and work-in-progress
Group

Note 2014 2013

$’000 $’000

Raw materials (a) 14,222 15,535

Finished goods (a) 2,202 2,029

Work-in-progress (b) 2,988,995 2,066,022

3,005,419 2,083,586

In 2014, raw materials and changes in finished goods included as cost of sales amounted to $60,152,000 (2013: $78,249,000).

(a) Materials and finished goods are stated after deducting $4,258,000 (2013: $4,334,000) of allowance for inventories obsolescence.  
In 2014, the write-down of materials and finished goods to net realisable value by the Group amounted to $745,000 (2013: 
$1,947,000).  The reversal of write-downs by the Group in 2014 amounted to $821,000 (2013: $627,000).  The write-down 
and reversal are included in cost of sales.

(b) Work-in-progress

Group

2014 2013

$’000 $’000

Costs and attributable profits less allowance for foreseeable losses 8,000,190 5,227,749

Progress billings (6,016,548) (4,602,539)

1,983,642 625,210

Comprising:

Work-in-progress 2,988,995 2,066,022

Excess of progress billings over work-in-progress (1,005,353) (1,440,812)

1,983,642 625,210

Information about critical judgement in determining the allowance for foreseeable losses is included in Note 39. 
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14. Cash and cash equivalents
Group Company

Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Fixed deposits (a) 66,157 194,615 – –

Cash and bank balances (b) 1,012,619 1,500,286 22,402 49,860
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance 

sheets
1,078,776 1,694,901 22,402 49,860

Bank overdrafts 19 (1,993) – – –
Cash and cash equivalents in the 

consolidated statement of cash flows
1,076,783 1,694,901 22,402 49,860

(a) Fixed deposits of the Group placed with financial institutions have maturity periods ranging from 6 to 153 days (2013: 6 to 120 
days) from the financial year-end and interest rates ranging from 0.02% to 11.59% (2013: 0.05% to 9.21%) per annum, which 
are also the effective interest rates.

(b) Included in the Group’s cash and bank balances at the balance sheet date are amounts of $450,245,655 (2013: $433,328,000) 
placed with a bank under the Group’s cash pooling arrangement by the Company.  During the year, the cash pooling balances 
earn interest rates ranging from 0.61% to 0.77% (2013: 0.24% to 0.69%) per annum, which are also the effective interest rates.  
The remaining bank balances during the year earn interest rates at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates of up to 0.75% 
(2013: up to 0.60%) and up to 0.18% (2013: up to 0.16%) per annum, for the Group and the Company respectively, which are 
also the effective interest rates.

Of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents, fixed deposits and cash and bank balances of $20,023,000 (2013: $22,000) and 
$260,740,000 (2013: $332,618,000), respectively, are placed with a related corporation.  The Company’s cash and bank balances of 
$17,978,000 (2013: $8,559,000) are also placed with a related corporation.

15. Trade and other payables
Group Company

Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

(a)  Current liabilities

Trade payables 1,764,612 1,761,358 14,166 14,792

Amounts due to related parties 16 2,724 3,839 721 463

1,767,336 1,765,197 14,887 15,255

Deposits received 3,450 2,403 26 26

GST payables 1,838 998 – –

Interest payable 13,328 1,906 – –

Other creditors 8,893 9,894 118 83

Accrued capital expenditure 30,808 – – –

Amounts due to related parties 16 23 720 3,399 3,189

58,340 15,921 3,543 3,298

Total 1,825,676 1,781,118 18,430 18,553

(b)  Non-current liabilities

Other payables* 84,021 80,020 16,823 19,233

* Non-current other payables include accrued rental and long-term employee benefits.
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16. Amounts due to related parties
Group Company

Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Immediate holding company

-  Trade 262 269 256 251

Subsidiaries

-  Trade – – 354 111

-  Non-trade – – 3,399 3,189

– – 3,753 3,300

Associates and joint ventures 

-  Trade 2,157 3,360 – –

-  Non-trade 23 22 – –

2,180 3,382 – –

Related companies

-  Trade 305 210 111 101

-  Non-trade – 698 – –

305 908 111 101

Total 

-  Trade 15 2,724 3,839 721 463

-  Non-trade 15 23 720 3,399 3,189

2,747 4,559 4,120 3,652

The trade and non-trade amounts due to related parties are unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-free.
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17. Provisions

Retirement 
gratuities Warranty Restoration costs Total

Group $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2014

Balance at 1 January 874 58,502 60,254 119,630

Translation adjustments 17 280 33 330

Provision made/(written-back) during the year, net 372 (4,039) – (3,667)

Provision utilised during the year (235) (94) – (329)

Balance at 31 December 1,028 54,649 60,287 115,964

Provisions due:

-  within 1 year 503 15,187 – 15,690

-  after 1 year but within 5 years 380 39,462 1,756 41,598

-  after 5 years 145 – 58,531 58,676

1,028 54,649 60,287 115,964

2013

Balance at 1 January 988 16,984 43,734 61,706

Translation adjustments – 156 20 176

Provision made during the year, net – 41,388 16,500 57,888

Provision utilised during the year (114) (26) – (140)

Balance at 31 December 874 58,502 60,254 119,630

Provisions due:

-  within 1 year 479 22,578 – 23,057

-  after 1 year but within 5 years 123 35,924 587 36,634

-  after 5 years 272 – 59,667 59,939

874 58,502 60,254 119,630

Restoration costs
2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Company

Balance at 1 January and 31 December 27,895 27,895

Provisions due:

-  after 5 years 27,895 27,895



203Sembcorp Marine Ltd Annual Report

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014

17. Provisions (cont’d)

Warranty

The provision for warranty is based on estimates made from historical warranty data associated with similar projects and adjusted by 
weighting all possible outcomes by their associated probabilities.

The non-current portion of the provision for warranty is for contracts with contractual warranty periods that will lapse within 2 to 3 years 
from the reporting date.

Restoration costs

Restoration costs relate to cost of dismantling and removing assets and restoring the premises to its original condition as stipulated in the 
operating lease agreements.  The Group expects to incur the liability upon termination of the lease.

18. Other financial liabilities

Group
2014 2013
$’000 $’000

(a)  Current liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

-  Forward foreign currency contracts 2,701 –

Cash flow hedges:

-  Forward foreign currency contracts 44,070 8,775

46,771 8,775

(b)  Non-current liabilities

Cash flow hedges:

-  Forward foreign currency contracts 35,203 10,523

-  Interest rate swaps 470 –

35,673 10,523
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19. Interest-bearing borrowings

Group
Note 2014 2013

$’000 $’000
Current liabilities

Unsecured term loans (a) 431,855 166,111

Bank overdrafts 14 1,993 –

433,848 166,111

Non-current liabilities

Unsecured term loans (a) 1,307,519 600,000

Total interest-bearing borrowings 1,741,367 766,111

Of the Group’s interest-bearing borrowings, $300,000,000 (2013: $533,912,000) were borrowed from related corporations.

Effective interest rates and maturity of liabilities 

Group
2014 2013

% %

Floating rate loans – 0.60 - 0.85

Fixed rate loans 0.72 - 11.28 1.38 - 9.48

Notes 2.95 - 3.85 –

Group
2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Within 1 year 433,848 166,111

After 1 year but within 5 years 707,519 600,000

After 5 years 600,000 –

Total borrowings 1,741,367 766,111

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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19. Interest-bearing borrowings (cont’d)

 (a) Unsecured Term Loans

Included in the unsecured term loans are the following notes of the Group:

On 18 August 2014, the Company updated its $2,000,000,000 Multicurrency Multi-issuer Debt Issuance Programme (the 
“Programme”) to include perpetual securities as one of the debt instruments under the Programme.

Under the updated Programme, the Company, together with its subsidiaries - Jurong Shipyard Pte Ltd, Sembawang Shipyard Pte 
Ltd and SMOE Pte Ltd (“Issuing Subsidiaries”), may from time to time issue notes (the “Notes”) and/or perpetual securities (the 
“Perpetual Securities”, and together with the Notes, the “Securities”) denominated in Singapore dollars and/or any other currency 
as the relevant Issuer and the relevant dealer may agree.  The obligations in respect of Securities issued by the Issuing Subsidiaries 
will be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the Company.

During the year, Jurong Shipyard Pte Ltd has issued the following medium term notes under the Programme:

Nominal interest rate Year of issue Year of maturity
Principal amount 

$’000

S$ medium term notes 2.95% 2014 2021 275,000

S$ medium term notes 3.85% 2014 2029 325,000

600,000

As at 31 December 2014, an amount of $167,500,000 for the medium term notes maturing in 2021 was subscribed by a related 
corporation.

20. Share capital

Group and Company
No. of ordinary shares

2014 2013

Issued and fully paid, with no par value:

Balance at 1 January 2,089,760,107 2,088,526,225

Exercise of share options, release of performance shares and restricted shares – 1,233,882

Balance at 31 December 2,089,760,107 2,089,760,107

The holders of ordinary shares (excluding treasury shares) are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled 
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.  All shares (excluding treasury shares) rank equally with regard to the Company’s 
residual assets.

The Company issued 4,071,893 (2013: 3,649,138) treasury shares during the year pursuant to its share based incentive plans (Note 
33).

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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21. Other reserves
Group Company

Note 2014 2013 2014 2014
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Distributable

Reserve for own shares (a) (1,715) (7,759) (1,715) (7,759)

Non-distributable

Currency translation reserve (b) (17,044) (67,406) – –

Share-based payments reserve (c) (29,191) (24,583) (27,110) (22,526)

Fair value reserve (d) (10,828) 11,180 11,132 25,274

Hedging reserve (e) (43,421) (13,185) – –

Other capital reserves (f) 25,574 25,574 960 960

(76,625) (76,179) (16,733) (4,051)

(a) Reserve for own shares comprises the cost of the Company’s shares held by the Company.  As at 31 December 2014, the Company 
holds 416,247 (2013: 1,798,762) of its own shares as treasury shares.

(b) The foreign currency translation reserve comprises foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial 
statements of foreign operations whose functional currencies are different from that of the presentation currency of the Group.

(c) Share-based payments reserve comprises the cumulative value of services received from employees recorded on grant of equity-
settled share options, performance shares and performance based restricted shares.  The expense for service received is recognised 
over the performance period and/or vesting period.

(d) Fair value reserve includes the cumulative net change in fair value of available-for-sale investments until the investments are 
derecognised.

(e) Hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments 
relating to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred.

(f) Other capital reserves comprise:
 

(i) asset revaluation reserve of $960,000 (2013: $960,000) associated with the one-time revaluation conducted in 1973 (see 
Note 4) for both the Group and Company; and

(ii) reserves (transferred from revenue reserve) set aside to comply with the regulations of the foreign jurisdiction in which some 
of the Group’s associates operate.

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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22. Turnover

Turnover represents sales from the various activities described in Note 1 and Note 40, including the revenue recognised on contracts 
relating to ship and rig repair, building, conversion and offshore.

Group
2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Contract revenue 5,759,737 5,455,820

Charter hire income 50,816 42,164

Services rendered 6,139 8,533

Sale of goods 15,903 19,365

5,832,595 5,525,882

23. Operating profit

The following items have been included in arriving at operating profit:
Group

Note 2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Amortisation of intangible assets 11 4,240 3,356

Audit fees paid/payable

- auditors of the Company 660 520

- overseas affiliates of the auditors of the Company 182 142

- other auditors 22 36

Non-audit fees paid/payable

- auditors of the Company 253 374

- overseas affiliates of the auditors of the Company – 71

- other auditors 166 334

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4 110,893 97,251

Staff costs (a) 556,436 585,859

Operating lease expenses 36,656 32,061

Property, plant and equipment written off 232 251

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net (98) (14,760)

Foreign currency exchange loss/(gain), net 5,913 (30,314)

Fair value adjustment on hedging instruments 12,169 1,231

(a)  Staff costs

Salaries and bonus 466,592 507,313

Defined contribution plan 24,982 24,989

Share-based compensation 15,998 16,948

Directors’ fee 2,032 2,023

Other employee benefits 46,832 34,586

556,436 585,859

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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24. Finance income and Finance costs
Group

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Finance income

Interest income from:

- Trade receivables 84 97

- Fixed deposits and bank balances 9,529 7,999

- Joint venture 98 104

9,711 8,200

Finance costs

Interest paid and payable to:

- Bank and others 18,618 6,104

- Commitment and facility fee 2,342 1,968

20,960 8,072

25. Investment income
Group

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Net dividend from:

- Quoted equity shares 1,114 2,228

- Unquoted equity shares 78 –

1,192 2,228

26. Non-operating income and Non-operating expenses
Group

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Non-operating income:

- Gain on disposal of an associate – 2,816

- Changes in fair value of other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 179 211

179 3,027

Non-operating expenses:

- Changes in fair value of other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (2) (269)

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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27. Share of results of associates and joint ventures
Group

Note 2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Share of profit for the year 8,295 15,603

Share of tax for the year 1,564 (4,437)

28 9,859 11,166

28. Tax expense
Group

Note 2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Current tax expense

Current year 95,579 82,759

Over provided in prior years (a) (2,299) (14,289)

93,280 68,470

Deferred tax expense

Movements in temporary differences 21,106 23,759

Over provided in prior years (a) (8,657) (19,952)

12,449 3,807

Tax expense 105,729 72,277

Reconciliation of effective tax rate 

Profit for the year 601,275 588,260

Tax expense 105,729 72,277

Share of results of associates and joint ventures 27 (9,859) (11,166)

Profit before share of results of associates and joint ventures, and tax expense 697,145 649,371

Tax calculated using Singapore tax rate of 17% (2013: 17%) 118,515 110,393

Exempt income, capital gains and tax incentives/concessions (18,571) (20,204)

Effect of different tax rates in foreign jurisdictions (5,087) (961)

Effect on utilisation of deferred tax assets not previously recognised (1,092) (146)

Non-deductible expenses 7,470 7,338

Over provision in respect of prior years (a) (10,956) (34,241)

Deferred tax assets not recognised 19,811 12,079

Others (4,361) (1,981)

Tax expense 105,729 72,277

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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28. Tax expense (cont’d)

(a) In 2013, the Group wrote back $30,365,000 of tax provision for recognition of tax incentives.

 As at 31 December 2014, certain subsidiaries have unutilised tax losses and capital and investment allowances of $119,768,000 
(2013: $58,441,000) and other temporary differences of $3,844,000 (2013: $4,109,000) available for set-off against future taxable 
income subject to the tax provisions and agreement by the relevant tax authorities of the various jurisdictions.

29. Other comprehensive income

Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive income are set out below:

2014 2013
Before tax Tax expense Net of tax Before tax Tax expense Net of tax

Group $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Foreign currency translation differences 
for foreign operations

57,047 – 57,047 40,356 – 40,356

Cash flow hedges: net movement in 
hedging reserve (Note (a)) 

(36,428) 6,192 (30,236) (56,713) 9,634 (47,079)

Fair value changes of available-for-sale 
financial assets

(22,008) – (22,008) (35,958) 6,945 (29,013)

Other comprehensive income (1,389) 6,192 4,803 (52,315) 16,579 (35,736)

 (a) Cash flow hedges
Group

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Net change in fair value of hedging instruments (51,078) (56,846)

Amount transferred to profit or loss 14,650 133

Tax expense 6,192 9,634

Net movement in the hedging reserve during the year recognised 
in other comprehensive income

(30,236) (47,079)

30. Non-controlling interests

On 15 May 2010, the Company commenced proceedings in the High Court of Singapore against PPL Holdings Pte Ltd and its wholly 
owned subsidiary, E-Interface Holdings Limited for various reliefs, including the transfer of the remaining 15 per cent of the shares in 
PPL Shipyard Pte Ltd (“PPLS”) to the Company.  On 30 May 2012, the High Court released its judgement together with the Grounds of 
Decision.  The decision was not favourable to the Company.  On 29 June 2012, the Company filed an appeal to the Court of Appeal which 
was heard on 8 November 2012.

On 25 July 2013, the Court of Appeal ruled, in favour of the Company, that certain provisions in the Joint Venture Agreement between the 
Company and PPL Holdings Pte Ltd premised on equal shareholding no longer applied when the Company increased its shareholding 
from 50 per cent to 85 per cent in PPLS.  Arising from the decision of the Court of Appeal, the Company has full control of PPLS Board.  The 
Group continues to consolidate its 85 per cent interest in PPLS and separately account for the 15 per cent as a “non-controlling interest”.

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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30. Non-controlling interests (cont’d)

The following subsidiary has material non-controlling interests:

Name of company Country of incorporation Operating segment
Ownership interests held by 

non-controlling interests

2014 2013
% %

PPL Shipyard Pte Ltd 
and its subsidiaries

Singapore
Ship and rig repair, building 

and conversion
15 15

The following summarises the financial information of each of the Group’s subsidiaries with material non-controlling interest, based on 
their respective (consolidated) financial statements prepared in accordance with FRS, modified for fair value adjustments on acquisition 
and differences in the Group’s accounting policies.

PPL Shipyard 
Pte Ltd and 

its subsidiaries

Other 
individually 
immaterial 
subsidiaries

Intra-group 
elimination Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2014

Revenue 1,193,361

Profit for the year 290,020

Other comprehensive income 44,250

Total comprehensive income 334,270

Attributable to non-controlling interests:

Profit for the year 43,503 (2,425) 69 41,147

Other comprehensive income 6,637 48 – 6,685

Total comprehensive income 50,140 (2,377) 69 47,832

Non-current assets 24,143

Current assets 1,490,206

Non-current liabilities (784)

Current liabilities (420,371)

Net assets 1,093,194

Net assets attributable to non-controlling interests 163,979 2,907 23 166,909

Cash flows from operating activities (304,381)

Cash flows from investing activities (5,397)

Cash flows from financing activities (dividends to 
non-controlling interests: $12,897,000)

(86,358)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (396,136)

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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30. Non-controlling interests (cont’d)

PPL Shipyard 
Pte Ltd and 

its subsidiaries

Other 
individually 
immaterial 
subsidiaries

Intra-group 
elimination Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2013

Revenue 1,021,976

Profit for the year 212,759

Other comprehensive income 19,399

Total comprehensive income 232,158

Attributable to non-controlling interests:

Profit for the year 31,913 531 69 32,513

Other comprehensive income 2,910 70 – 2,980

Total comprehensive income 34,823 601 69 35,493

Non-current assets 20,866

Current assets 1,156,977

Non-current liabilities (805)

Current liabilities (331,997)

Net assets 845,041

Net assets attributable to non-controlling interests 126,756 5,789 (69) 132,476

Cash flows from operating activities 290,783

Cash flows from investing activities (4,116)

Cash flows from financing activities (dividends to 
non-controlling interests: $11,100,000)

(74,933)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 211,734

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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31.  Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company of $560,128,000 (2013: 
$555,747,000) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding of 2,088,054,000 (2013: 2,088,675,000) as 
follows:

Group
2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Profit attributable to owners of the Company 560,128 555,747

No. of shares No. of shares
’000 ’000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 2,089,760 2,088,526

Effect of share options exercised, performance shares and restricted shares released 2,225 1,985

Effect of own shares held (3,931) (1,836)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares during the year 2,088,054 2,088,675

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company of $560,128,000 (2013: 
$555,747,000) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive 
potential ordinary shares of 2,088,720,000 (2013: 2,089,795,000) as follows:

Group
2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Profit attributable to owners of the Company 560,128 555,747

No. of shares No. of shares
’000 ’000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic earnings 
per share

2,088,054 2,088,675

Effect of dilutive share options 666 1,120

Weighted average number of ordinary shares during the year 2,088,720 2,089,795

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per ordinary share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding is 
adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential ordinary shares, which comprise awards of share options granted to employees.

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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31.  Earnings per share (cont’d)

(b) Diluted earnings per share (cont’d)

For share options, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to take into account the dilutive effect arising 
from the exercise of all outstanding share options granted to employees where such shares would be issued at a price lower than 
the fair value (average share price during the year).  The difference between the weighted average number of shares to be issued 
at the exercise prices under the options and the weighted average number of shares that would have been issued at the fair value 
based on assumed proceeds from the issue of these shares are treated as ordinary shares issued for no consideration.  The number 
of such shares issued for no consideration is added to the number of ordinary shares outstanding in the computation of diluted 
earnings per share.  No adjustment is made to the profit attributable to owners of the Company.  The average market value of the 
Company’s shares for purposes of calculating the dilutive effect of share options was based on quoted market prices for the period 
during which the options were outstanding.

32. Dividends

Subject to the approval by the shareholders at the next Annual General Meeting, the directors have proposed a final ordinary one-tier 
tax-exempt dividend of 8.0 cents per share (2013: final ordinary one-tier tax-exempt dividend of 6.0 cents per share and a special one-
tier tax-exempt dividend of 2.0 cents per share) amounting to an estimated net dividend of $167,148,000 (2013: $167,037,000) in 
respect of the year ended 31 December 2014, based on the number of issued shares as at 31 December 2014.

The proposed dividend of 8.0 (2013: 8.0) cents per share has not been included as a liability in the financial statements.

Group and Company
2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Dividends paid

Interim one-tier tax-exempt dividend of 5.0 cents per share in respect of year 2014 
(2013: 5.0 cents per share in respect of year 2013) 104,459 104,464

Final one-tier tax-exempt dividend of 6.0 cents per share in respect of year 2013 
(2013: 6.0 cents per share in respect of year 2012) 125,359 125,347

Special one-tier tax-exempt dividend of 2.0 cents per share in respect of year 2013 
(2013: 2.0 cents per share in respect of year 2012) 41,787 41,782

271,605 271,593

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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33. Share-based incentive plans

The Company’s Performance Share Plan (“SCM PSP 2010”) and Restricted Share Plan (“SCM RSP 2010”) (collectively, the “2010 Share 
Plans”) were approved and adopted by the shareholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 20 April 2010.  The 
2010 Share Plans replaced the Share Plans which were approved and adopted by the shareholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting 
of the Company held on 31 May 2000 and expired in 2010.

The Executive Resource and Compensation Committee (the “Committee”) of the Company has been designated as the Committee 
responsible for the administration of the Share Plans.  The Committee comprises the following members, all of whom are directors:

Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican   Chairman (appointed on 22 April 2014)
Tang Kin Fei
Ajaib Haridass

The SCM RSP 2010 is the incentive scheme for directors and employees of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) whereas the 
SCM PSP 2010 is aimed primarily at key executives of the Group.

The 2010 Share Plans are intended to increase the Company’s flexibility and effectiveness in its continuing efforts to attract, retain and 
incentivise participants to higher standards of performance and encourage greater dedication and loyalty by enabling the Company to give 
recognition to past contributions and services; as well as motivating participants to contribute to the long-term prosperity of the Group.  
The 2010 Share Plans will strengthen the Company’s competitiveness in attracting and retaining talented key senior management and 
senior executives.

The Company designates Sembcorp Industries Ltd as the Parent Group.

The SCM RSP 2010 is intended to apply to a broad base of senior executives as well as to the non-executive directors, while the SCM PSP 
2010 is intended to apply to a select group of key senior management.  Generally, it is envisaged that the range of performance targets to 
be set under the SCM RSP 2010 and the SCM PSP 2010 will be different, with the latter emphasising stretched or strategic targets aimed 
at sustaining longer term growth.

The 2010 Share Plans will provide incentives to high performing key senior management and senior executives to excel in their performance 
and encourage greater dedication and loyalty to the Company.  Through the 2010 Share Plans, the Company will be able to motivate key 
senior management and senior executives to continue to strive for the Group’s long-term shareholder value.  In addition, the 2010 Share 
Plans aim to foster a greater ownership culture within the Group which align the interests of participants with the interests of shareholders, 
and to improve performance and achieve sustainable growth for the Company in the changing business environment.

The 2010 Share Plans use methods fairly common among major local and multinational companies to incentivise and motivate key 
senior management and senior executives to achieve pre-determined targets which create and enhance economic value for shareholders.  
The Company believes that the 2010 Share Plans will be effective tools in motivating key senior management and senior executives to 
strive to deliver long-term shareholder value.

While the 2010 Share Plans cater principally to Group executives, it is recognised that there are other persons who can make significant 
contributions to the Group through their close working relationship with the Group.  Such persons include employees of associates over 
which the Company has operational control.

A participant’s awards under the 2010 Share Plans will be determined at the sole discretion of the Committee.  In considering an award to 
be granted to a participant, the Committee may take into account, inter alia, the participant’s performance during the relevant period, and 
his capability, entrepreneurship, scope of responsibility and skill set.
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33. Share-based incentive plans (cont’d)

Other information regarding the 2010 Share Plans and expired Share Plans is as follows:

(a) Share Option Plan

Under the rules of the Share Option Plan, participants who ceased to be employed by the Group, Parent Group or associate by reason 
of ill health, injury or disability, redundancy, retirement at or after the legal retirement age, retirement before the legal retirement age, 
death, etc., or any other event approved by the Committee, may be allowed by the Committee to retain their unexercised options.  
The Committee may determine the number of shares comprised in that option which may be exercised and the period during which 
such option shall be exercisable, being a period not later than the expiry of the exercise period in respect of that option.  Such option 
may be exercised at any time notwithstanding that the date of exercise of such option falls on a date prior to the first day of the 
exercise period in respect of such option.

Other information regarding the Share Option Plan is as follows:

(i) The exercise price of the options can be set at market price or a discount to the market price not exceeding 20% of the market 
price in respect of options granted at the time of grant.  Market price is the volume-weighted average price for the shares on the 
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”) over the three consecutive trading days prior to grant date of that 
option.  For all options granted to date, the exercise prices are set at market price.

(ii) After the first 12 months of lock-out period, the Group imposed a further vesting of 4 years for managers and above for retention 
purposes.

(iii) In 2014 and 2013, all options were either settled by the issuance of treasury shares or by the issuance of new shares.

(iv) The options granted expire after 5 years for non-executive directors and employees of the Company’s associates, and 10 years 
for the employees of Group and Parent Group.  There are no outstanding share options for non-executive directors.

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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33. Share-based incentive plans (cont’d)

(a) Share Option Plan (cont’d)

The options of the Company exercised in 2014 resulted in 412,877 (2013: 281,723) ordinary shares being issued at a weighted 
average price of $4.20 (2013: $3.38).  The options were exercised on a regular basis throughout the year.  The weighted average 
share price during the year was $3.77 (2013: $4.46).

Fair value of share options

The fair value of services received is measured by reference to the fair value of share options granted.

(b) Performance Share Plan

 Under the Performance Share Plan (“SCM PSP 2010”), the awards granted conditional on performance targets are set based 
on medium-term corporate objectives at the start of each rolling three-year performance qualifying period.  A specific number of 
performance shares shall be awarded at the end of the three-year performance cycle depending on the extent of the achievement of 
the performance conditions established at the onset.

 The performance levels were calibrated based on Wealth Added and Total Shareholder Return.  For awards granted from 2014 
onwards, both market-based and non-market-based performance conditions are taken into account.  A minimum threshold 
performance must be achieved to trigger an achievement factor, which in turn determines the number of shares to be finally 
awarded.  Performance shares to be delivered will range between 0% to 150% of the conditional performance shares awarded.

 To create alignment between senior management and other employees at the time of vesting, SCM PSP 2010 has in place a plan 
trigger.  Under this trigger mechanism, the performance shares for the performance period 2013 to 2015 will be vested to the 
senior management participants only if the restricted shares for the performance period 2014 to 2015 are vested, subject to the 
achievement of the performance conditions for the respective performance periods.

 Senior management participants are required to hold a minimum percentage of the shares released to them under the Performance 
Share Plan to maintain a beneficial ownership stake in the Group, for the duration of their employment or tenure with the Group.  A 
maximum cap is set based on a multiple of the individual participant’s annual base salary.  Any excess can be sold off, but in the 
event of a shortfall, they have a two calendar year period to meet the minimum percentage requirement.

 The details of the movement of the performance shares of the Company awarded during the year are as follows:

2014 2013

At 1 January 1,915,000 1,865,000

Conditional performance shares awarded 1,480,000 655,000

Additional performance shares awarded arising from targets met – 157,889

Performance shares lapsed arising from targets not met (360,715) –

Conditional performance shares released (162,060) (702,333)

Conditional performance shares lapsed (62,225) (60,556)

At 31 December 2,810,000 1,915,000

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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33. Share-based incentive plans (cont’d)

(b) Performance Share Plan (cont’d)

With the Committee’s approval on the achievement factor for the achievement of the performance targets for the performance 
period 2011 to 2013 (2013: performance period 2010 to 2012), a total of 162,060 (2013: 702,333) performance shares were 
released via the issuance of treasury shares.

In 2014, there were 360,715 performance shares that lapsed for under-achievement of the performance targets for the performance 
period 2011 to 2013.  In 2013, there were additional 157,889 performance shares awarded for over-achievement of the 
performance targets for the performance period 2010 to 2012.

The total number of performance shares in awards granted conditionally and representing 100% of targets to be achieved, but not 
released as at 31 December 2014, was 2,810,000 (2013: 1,915,000).  Based on the multiplying factor, the actual release of the 
awards could range from zero to a maximum of 4,215,000 (2013: 2,872,500) performance shares.

Fair value of Performance Shares

The fair values of the performance shares are estimated using a Monte Carlo simulation methodology at the grant dates.

The fair values of performance shares granted during the year are as follows:

Date of grant 15 June 2014 31 May 2013

Fair value at measurement date $1.35 $2.31

Assumptions under the Monte Carlo model

Share price $4.04 $4.34

Expected volatility:

Sembcorp Marine Ltd 26.1% 31.5%

Morgan Stanley Capital International (“MSCI”) AC Asia Pacific 
excluding Japan Industrials Index

17.0% 23.2%

Correlation with MSCI 60.6% 81.5%

Risk-free interest rate 0.6% 0.5%

Expected dividend 4.2% 4.2%

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility over the most recent period that is close to the expected life of the 
performance shares.

During the year, the Group charged $2,016,000 (2013: $2,012,000) to profit or loss based on the fair value of the performance 
shares at the grant date being expensed over the vesting period.

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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33. Share-based incentive plans (cont’d)

(c) Restricted Share Plan

Under the Restricted Share Plan (“SCM RSP 2010”), the awards granted conditional on performance targets are set based on 
corporate objectives at the start of each rolling two-year performance qualifying period.  The performance criteria for the restricted 
shares are calibrated based on Return on Capital Employed and Earnings Before Interest and Taxes for awards granted in 2014 
and 2013.

A minimum threshold performance must be achieved to trigger an achievement factor, which in turn determines the number of 
shares to be finally awarded.  Based on the criteria, restricted shares to be delivered will range from 0% to 150% of the conditional 
restricted shares awarded.

The managerial participants of the Group will be awarded restricted shares under the SCM RSP 2010, while the non-managerial 
participants of the Group will receive their awards in an equivalent cash value.  This cash-settled notional restricted shares award 
for non-managerial participants is known as the Sembcorp Marine Challenge Bonus.

A specific number of restricted shares shall be awarded at the end of the two-year performance cycle depending on the extent of the 
achievement of the performance conditions established at the onset.  There is a further vesting of three years after the performance 
period, during which one-third of the awarded shares are released each year to managerial participants.  Non-managerial 
participants will receive the equivalent in cash at the end of the two-year performance cycle, with no further vesting conditions.

Senior management participants are required to hold a minimum percentage of the shares released to them under the Restricted 
Share Plan to maintain a beneficial ownership stake in the Group, for the duration of their employment or tenure with the Group.  A 
maximum cap is set based on a multiple of the individual participant’s annual base salary.  Any excess can be sold off, but in the 
event of a shortfall, they have a two calendar year period to meet the minimum percentage requirement.

To align the interests of the non-executive directors with the interests of shareholders, up to 30% of the aggregate directors’ fees 
approved by shareholders for a particular financial year may be paid out in the form of restricted share awards under the SCM RSP 
2010.

From 2011, non-executive directors were not awarded any shares except as part of their directors’ fees (except for Mr Wong Weng 
Sun, who is the President & CEO, and who does not receive any directors’ fees).  In 2014 and 2013, the awards granted consisted 
of the grant of fully paid shares outright with no performance and vesting conditions attached, but with a selling moratorium.  Non-
executive directors are required to hold shares (including shares obtained by other means) worth at least one-time the annual base 
retainer; any excess may be sold as desired.  A non-executive director can dispose of all of his shares one year after leaving the 
Board.

The actual number of shares to be awarded to each non-executive director will be determined by reference to the volume-weighted 
average price of a share on the SGX-ST over the 14 trading days from (and including) the day on which the shares are first quoted 
ex-dividend after the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) (or, if the resolution to approve the final dividend is not approved, over the 
14 trading days immediately following the date of the AGM).  The number of shares to be awarded will be rounded down to the 
nearest hundred and any residual balance will be settled in cash.

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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33. Share-based incentive plans (cont’d)

(c) Restricted Share Plan (cont’d)

The details of the movement of the restricted shares of the Company awarded during the year are as follows:

2014 2013

At 1 January 8,545,150 9,543,530

Conditional restricted shares awarded 3,049,980 2,806,710

Additional restricted shares awarded arising from targets met 508,977 464,732

Conditional restricted shares released (3,557,578) (3,898,964)

Conditional restricted shares lapsed (283,728) (370,858)

At 31 December 8,262,801 8,545,150

With the Committee’s approval on the achievement factor for the achievement of the performance targets for the performance period 
2012 to 2013, a total of 1,154,566 (2013: Nil) restricted shares were released.  For awards in relation to the performance period 
2011 to 2012, a total of 1,074,512 (2013: 1,242,654) restricted shares were released.  For awards in relation to the performance 
period 2010 to 2011, a total of 1,232,100 (2013: 1,325,800) restricted shares were released.  In 2013, 1,236,610 restricted 
shares were released for awards in relation to the performance period 2009 to 2010.  In 2014, there were 96,400 (2013: 93,900) 
restricted shares released to non-executive directors.  The restricted shares were either released via the issuance of treasury shares 
or the issuance of new shares.

In 2014, additional 508,977 (2013: 464,732) restricted shares were awarded for the over-achievement of the performance targets 
for the performance period 2012 to 2013 (2013: performance period 2011 to 2012).

The total number of restricted shares outstanding, including awards achieved but not released, as at 31 December 2014, was 
8,262,801 (2013: 8,545,150).  Of this, the total number of restricted shares in awards granted conditionally and representing 
100% of targets to be achieved, but not released was 5,450,570 (2013: 5,243,250).  Based on the multiplying factor, the actual 
release of the awards could range from zero to a maximum of 8,175,855 (2013: 7,864,875) restricted shares.

Sembcorp Marine Challenge Bonus  

With the Committee’s approval on the achievement factor for the achievement of the performance targets for the performance period 
2012 to 2013 (2013: performance period 2011 to 2012), a total of $4,122,758 (2013: $5,027,602), equivalent to 1,010,480 
(2013: 1,129,037) notional restricted shares, were paid.

A total of 1,223,280 (2013: 1,091,350) notional restricted shares were awarded on 15 June 2014 (2013: 31 May 2013) for 
the Sembcorp Marine Challenge Bonus.

The total number of notional restricted shares in awards for the Sembcorp Marine Challenge Bonus granted conditionally and 
representing 100% of targets to be achieved, but not released as at 31 December 2014, was 2,066,240 (2013: 1,886,000).  
Based on the multiplying factor, the number of notional restricted shares to be converted into the funding pool could range from zero 
to a maximum of 3,099,360 (2013: 2,829,000).
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33. Share-based incentive plans (cont’d)

(c) Restricted Share Plan (cont’d)

Fair value of Restricted Shares

The fair values of the restricted shares are estimated using a Monte Carlo simulation methodology at the grant dates.

The fair values of restricted shares granted during the year are as follows:

Date of grant 15 June 2014 31 May 2013

Fair value at measurement date $3.56 $3.39

Assumptions under the Monte Carlo model

Share price $4.04 $4.34

Expected volatility:

Sembcorp Marine Ltd 26.1% 31.5%

Risk-free interest rate 0.4% - 0.9% 0.3% - 0.7%

Expected dividend 4.2% 4.2%

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility over the most recent period that is close to the expected life of the restricted 
shares.

During the year, the Group charged $10,263,000 (2013: $11,014,000) to profit or loss based on the fair value of restricted shares 
at the grant date being expensed over the vesting period.

Fair value of Sembcorp Marine Challenge Bonus

During the year, the Group charged $3,719,000 (2013: $3,922,000) to profit or loss based on the market values of the shares at 
the balance sheet date.  The fair value of the compensation cost is based on the notional number of restricted shares awarded for 
the Sembcorp Marine Challenge Bonus and the market price at the vesting date.
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34. Related parties

(a) Related party transactions

The Group had the following significant transactions with related parties during the year:
Group

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

(Restated)
Immediate holding company

Management fee payable 250 250

Related corporations

Sales 685,495 571,778

Purchases 63,035 77,744

Payment on behalf 15 –

Purchase of property, plant and equipment – 1,233

Rental income 95 41

Finance income 2,695 1,462

Finance costs 6,687 6,221

Others 37 30

Associates and joint ventures

Sales 159 269

Purchases 19,792 23,482

Payment on behalf 408 –

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

The Group considers the directors of the Company, President & Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director of Jurong Shipyard Pte Ltd, 
Deputy President/Managing Director of Sembawang Shipyard Pte Ltd, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, Managing Director 
of PPL Shipyard Pte Ltd, Managing Director of SMOE Pte Ltd and Executive Director of Jurong SML Pte Ltd to be key management 
personnel in accordance with FRS 24 Related Party Disclosures.  These persons have the authority and responsibility for planning, 
directing and controlling the activities of the Group.

The key management personnel compensation is as follows:
Group

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Directors’ fees and remuneration 6,901 7,244

Other key management personnel remuneration 5,608 6,864

12,509 14,108

Fair value of share-based compensation 1,721 1,778

Remuneration includes salary (which includes allowances, fees and other emoluments) and bonuses. 

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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34. Related parties (cont’d)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel (cont’d)

In addition to the above, the Company provides medical benefits to all employees including key management personnel.

The Group adopts an incentive compensation plan, which is tied to the creation of Economic Value Added (“EVA”), as well as to 
attainment of individual and Group performance goals for its key executives.  A “bonus bank” is used to hold incentive compensation 
credited in any year.  Typically, one-third of the available balance is paid out in cash each year, with the balance being carried 
forward to the following year.  The balances of the bonus bank in future will be adjusted by the yearly EVA performance of the Group 
and its subsidiaries and the payouts made from the bonus bank.

The fair value of share-based compensation relates to performance shares and restricted shares granted that were charged to profit 
or loss.

35. Financial instruments 

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s activities expose it to market risk (including interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

As part of the Group’s Enterprise Risk Management framework, Group treasury policies and financial authority limits are documented and 
reviewed periodically.  The policies set out the parameters for management of Group liquidity, counterparty risk, foreign exchange and 
derivative transactions and financing.

The Group utilises foreign exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and various financial instruments to manage exposures to interest 
rate and foreign exchange risks arising from operating, financing and investment activities.  Exposures to foreign currency risks are also 
hedged naturally by a matching sale or purchase of a matching asset or liability of the same currency and amount where possible.  All 
such transactions must involve underlying assets or liabilities and no speculative transactions are allowed.

The financial authority limits seek to limit and mitigate transactional risks by setting out the threshold of approvals required for the entry 
into contractual obligations and investments.

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and prices will affect the Group’s 
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.  The objective of market risk management is to manage and reduce 
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rate environment relates mainly to its debt obligations.

The Group’s policy is to maintain an efficient and optimal interest cost structure using a mix of fixed and variable rate debts 
and long-term and short-term borrowings.

The Group enters into interest rate swaps to reduce its exposure to interest rate volatility.  In accordance with the Group’s policy, 
the duration of such interest rate swaps must not exceed the tenor of the underlying debt.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had interest rate swaps with an aggregate notional amount of $723,253,000 (2013: 
$300,000,000).  The Group receives a variable interest rate and pays a fixed rate interest ranging from 1.53% to 2.38% 
(2013: 1.53%) per annum on the notional amount.  Interest rate swaps with notional amounts of $300,000,000 (2013: 
$300,000,000) were entered with a related corporation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014

35. Financial instruments (cont’d)

(a) Market risk (cont’d)

(i) Interest rate risk (cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis

It is estimated that 50 basis points (“bp”) change in interest rate at the reporting date would increase/(decrease) equity and 
profit before tax by the following amounts.  This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, 
remain constant.

2014
Profit before tax

2013
Profit before tax

50 bp
Increase

50 bp
Decrease

50 bp
Increase

50 bp
Decrease

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Group

Variable rate financial instruments 4,533 (4,533) 5,171 (5,171)

Company

Variable rate financial instruments 109 (109) 249 (249)

(ii) Foreign currency risk

The Group operates globally and is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are denominated in a 
currency other than the respective functional currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries.  The currencies in which these 
transactions are primarily denominated in are Singapore dollars (“SGD”), United States dollars (“USD”) and Euros (“EUR”).  
Such risks are hedged either by forward foreign exchange contracts in respect of actual or forecasted currency exposures which 
are reasonably certain or hedged naturally by a matching sale or purchase of a matching asset or liability of the same currency 
and amount.  Forward foreign exchange contracts with notional amounts of $434,797,000 (2013: $545,171,000) were 
entered with a related corporation.
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35. Financial instruments (cont’d)

(a) Market risk (cont’d)

(ii) Foreign currency risk (cont’d)

The summary of quantitative data about the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk as provided to the management of the 
Group based on its risk management policy is as follows:

SGD USD EUR Others Total
Group $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
2014
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 32,696 182,252 43,190 29,646 287,784

Trade and other receivables 7,814 681,228 23,231 87,357 799,630

Other financial assets – – – 14,876 14,876

40,510 863,480 66,421 131,879 1,102,290

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables (119,633) (367,710) (111,067) (93,788) (692,198)

Interest-bearing borrowings – (462,451) – – (462,451)

(119,633) (830,161) (111,067) (93,788) (1,154,649)

Net financial (liabilities)/assets (79,123) 33,319 (44,646) 38,091 (52,359)

Less: Foreign exchange contracts 38,000 175,709 40,220 – 253,929
Net currency exposure of financial 

(liabilities)/assets
(41,123) 209,028 (4,426) 38,091 201,570

Cash flow hedges for future dated 
transactions

Forward foreign currency contracts – (1,724,302) – (3,160) (1,727,462)

2013
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,132 133,862 109,271 9,264 254,529

Trade and other receivables 9,009 547,718 44,196 24,822 625,745

Other financial assets – – – 15,753 15,753

11,141 681,580 153,467 49,839 896,027

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables (118,588) (252,042) (112,720) (54,597) (537,947)

Interest-bearing borrowings – (206,844) – – (206,844)

(118,588) (458,886) (112,720) (54,597) (744,791)

Net financial (liabilities)/assets (107,447) 222,694 40,747 (4,758) 151,236

Less: Foreign exchange contracts – – – – –
Net currency exposure of financial 

(liabilities)/assets
(107,447) 222,694 40,747 (4,758) 151,236

Cash flow hedges for future dated 
transactions

Forward foreign currency contracts 187,903 (1,376,916) 29,818 1,006 (1,158,189) 
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35. Financial instruments (cont’d)

(a) Market risk (cont’d)

(ii) Foreign currency risk (cont’d)

The Company’s gross exposure to foreign currencies is as follows:
USD Others Total

Company $’000 $’000 $’000
2014

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 302 – 302

Other financial assets – 14,875 14,875

302 14,875 15,177

2013

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 356 – 356

Other financial assets – 15,750 15,750

356 15,750 16,106

Sensitivity analysis

A 10% strengthening of the following currencies against the functional currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries at the 
balance sheet date would have increased/(decreased) equity and profit before tax by the amounts shown below.  The analysis 
assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.  The analysis is performed on the same basis 
for 2013.

Group Company
Equity Profit before tax Equity Profit before tax
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2014

USD (122,198) (12,228) – 30

EUR – (518) – –

SGD – (4,143) – –

Others 1,241 2,321 1,488 –

(120,957) (14,568) 1,488 30

2013

USD (115,664) 22,117 – 36

EUR 2,350 4,229 – –

SGD 590 7,330 – –

Others 1,646 (2,053) 1,575 –

(111,078) 31,623 1,575 36

A 10% weakening of the above currencies against the functional currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries at the balance 
sheet date would have equal but opposite effects on the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all 
other variables remain constant.
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35. Financial instruments (cont’d)

(a) Market risk (cont’d)

(iii) Price risk

Equity securities price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because of the investments held by the Group which are classified on the 
consolidated balance sheet either as available-for-sale or at fair value through profit or loss.

Sensitivity analysis

If prices for equity securities increase by 10%, with all other variables being held constant, the equity and profit before tax will 
be:

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Equity 7,726 9,930 5,408 6,825

Profit before tax – – – –

A 10% decrease in the underlying equity prices (assuming no impairment found on the equity shares) would have equal but 
opposite effects on the amounts shown above.  The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2013 and assumes that all 
other variables remain constant.

(b) Credit risk

The Group monitors its exposure to credit risks arising from sales to trade customers on an on-going basis, and credit evaluations 
are done on customers that require credit.  The credit quality of customers is assessed after taking into account its financial position 
and past experience with the customers.  

The Group only deals with pre-approved customers and financial institutions with good credit rating.  To minimise the Group’s 
counterparty risk, the Group enters into derivative transactions only with creditworthy institutions.  Cash and fixed deposits are 
placed in banks and financial institutions with good credit rating.  

As the Group and the Company do not hold any collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of each 
financial asset, including derivative financial instruments, in the balance sheets.
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35. Financial instruments (cont’d)

(b) Credit risk (cont’d)

The Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for loans and receivables at the balance sheet date is as follows: 

Group Company
Note 2014 2013 2014 2013

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
By business activity
Ship and rig repair, building and 

conversion
438,030 396,983 – –

Ship chartering 4,872 11,701 – –

Others 6,082 6,782 68,596 79,298

448,984 415,466 68,596 79,298

Loans and receivables

Non-current 9 54 22 28,584 27,397

Current 9 448,930 415,444 40,012 51,901

448,984 415,466 68,596 79,298

The age analysis of loans and receivables for the Group is as follows:

Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
2014 2014 2013 2013
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Group

Not past due 321,713 – 393,150 –

Past due 0 to 3 months 120,956 1 14,789 –

Past due 3 to 6 months 3,203 – 5,160 –

Past due 6 to 12 months 2,343 120 1,574 135

More than 1 year 1,772 882 1,651 723

449,987 1,003 416,324 858

Company

Not past due 68,596 – 79,298 –
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35. Financial instruments (cont’d)

(b) Credit risk (cont’d)

Movements in the allowance for impairment of loans and receivables are as follows:

Group
2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Balance at beginning of the year 858 1,827

Currency translation difference 8 (1)

Allowance made 366 292

Allowance utilised (55) (281)

Allowance written back (174) (979)

Balance at end of the year 1,003 858

The allowance account in respect of loans and receivables is used to record impairment losses unless the Group is satisfied that 
no recovery of the amount owing is possible.  At that point, the financial asset is considered irrecoverable and the amount charged 
to the allowance account is written off against the carrying amount of the impaired financial asset.
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35. Financial instruments (cont’d)

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk with the view to maintaining a healthy level of cash and cash equivalents appropriate to the 
operating environment and expected cash flows of the Group.  Liquidity requirements are maintained within the credit facilities 
established and are adequate and available to the Group to meet its obligations.

The table below analyses the maturity profile of the Group’s and Company’s financial instruments (including derivative financial 
instruments) based on contractual undiscounted cash inflows/(outflows), including estimated interest payments and excluding the 
impact of netting agreements:

Cash flows
Carrying 
amount

Contractual 
cash flows

Less than 
1 year

Between 
1 and 5 years

Over 
5 years

Group $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2014

Derivative financial liabilities

Interest rate swaps (470) (2,506) (3,541) 1,035 –

Forward foreign currency contracts (81,974)

- Inflow 1,802,511 872,317 930,194 –

- Outflow (1,884,485) (919,088) (965,397) –

Derivative financial assets

Interest rate swaps 3,123 4,724 (1,985) 6,709 –

Forward foreign currency contracts 14,196

- Inflow 192,891 192,830 61 –

- Outflow (178,695) (178,642) (53) –

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 
(including other long-term liability)*

(1,867,469) (1,867,469) (1,819,728) (324) (47,417)

Interest-bearing borrowings (1,741,367) (2,034,646) (463,860) (835,583) (735,203)

(3,673,961) (3,967,675) (2,321,697) (863,358) (782,620)

* Excludes deposits received, advance payment from customers and long-term employee benefits.
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Cash flows
Carrying 
amount

Contractual 
cash flows

Less than 
1 year

Between
1 and 5 years

Over 
5 years

Group $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2013

Derivative financial liabilities

Forward foreign currency contracts (19,298)

- Inflow 1,418,619 767,351 651,268 –

- Outflow (1,437,917) (776,126) (661,791) –

Derivative financial assets

Interest rate swaps 2,973 (7,728) (1,968) (5,760) –

Forward foreign currency contracts 322

- Inflow 205,769 – 205,769 –

- Outflow (205,447) – (205,447) –

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables
(including other long-term liability)*

(1,812,821) (1,812,821) (1,777,077) (294) (35,450)

Interest-bearing borrowings (766,111) (794,347) (172,874) (621,473) –

(2,594,935) (2,633,872) (1,960,694) (637,728) (35,450)

Cash flows
Carrying 
amount

Contractual 
cash flows

Less than 
1 year

Between
1 and 5 years

Over 
5 years

Company $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2014

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 
(including other long-term liability)*

(18,404) (18,404) (18,404) – –

2013

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 
(including other long-term liability)*

(18,527) (18,527) (18,527) – –

* Excludes deposits received, advance payment from customers and long-term employee benefits.

35. Financial instruments (cont’d)

(c) Liquidity risk (cont’d)



233Sembcorp Marine Ltd Annual Report

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014

35. Financial instruments (cont’d)

(c) Liquidity risk (cont’d)

The following table indicates the periods in which the cash flow associated with derivatives that are cash flow hedges are expected 
to impact profit or loss and the fair value of the related hedging instruments:

Cash flows
Carrying 
amount

Contractual 
cash flows

Less than 
1 year

Between 
1 and 5 years

Group $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2014

Derivative financial liabilities

Interest rate swaps (470) (2,506) (3,541) 1,035

Forward foreign currency contracts (79,273)

- Inflow 1,724,302 794,108 930,194

- Outflow (1,803,575) (838,178) (965,397)

Derivative financial assets

Interest rate swaps 3,123 4,724 (1,985) 6,709

Forward foreign currency contracts 174

- Inflow 3,160 3,099 61

- Outflow (2,986) (2,933) (53)

(76,446) (76,881) (49,430) (27,451)

2013

Derivative financial liabilities

Forward foreign currency contracts (19,298)

- Inflow 1,418,619 767,351 651,268

- Outflow (1,437,917) (776,126) (661,791)

Derivative financial assets

Interest rate swaps 2,973 (7,728) (1,968) (5,760)

Forward foreign currency contracts 322

- Inflow 205,769 – 205,769

- Outflow (205,447) – (205,447)

(16,003) (26,704) (10,743) (15,961)
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35. Financial instruments (cont’d)

(d) Estimation of fair values

FRS 107 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritises the inputs used to measure fair value.  The three levels of the fair value 
input hierarchy defined by FRS 107 are as follows:

•	 Level	1	–	Fair	values	are	measured	based	on	quoted	prices	(unadjusted)	from	active	markets	for	identical	financial	instruments.
•	 Level	2	–	Fair	 values	are	measured	using	 inputs,	other	 than	 those	used	 for	 Level	1,	 that	are	observable	 for	 the	financial	

instruments either directly (prices) or indirectly (derived from prices).
•	 Level	3	–	Fair	values	are	measured	using	inputs	which	are	not	based	on	observable	market	data	(unobservable	input).

Securities

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, and available-for-sale financial assets, is based on quoted 
market prices (bid price) in an active market at the balance sheet date without any deduction for transaction costs.  If the market for 
a quoted financial asset is not active, and for unquoted financial assets, the Group establishes fair value by using other valuation 
techniques.

Derivatives

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is accounted for based on the difference between the contractual price and the current 
market price.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the indicative amount that the Group is expected to receive or pay to terminate the swap with 
the swap counterparties at the balance sheet date.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Fair values are calculated based on discounted expected future principal and interest cash flows at the market rate of interest at the 
reporting date.

Other financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year (including trade and other receivables, 
cash and cash equivalents, and trade and other payables) are assumed to approximate their fair values because of the short period 
to maturity.  All other financial assets and liabilities are discounted to determine their fair values.

For financial instruments that are not actively traded in the market, the fair value is determined by independent third party or using 
valuation techniques where applicable.  The Group may use a variety of methods and make assumptions that are based on 
existing market conditions at each balance sheet date.  Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used to 
estimate the fair value for medium term notes for disclosure purpose.  Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, 
are used to determine the fair value for the remaining financial instruments.  Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, the 
management will estimate the future cash flows and use relevant market rate as the discount rate at the balance sheet date.

Non-current amount due from related parties

Fair values are calculated based on discounted expected future principal and interest cash flows at the market rate of interest at the 
reporting date.
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35. Financial instruments (cont’d)

(d) Estimation of fair values (cont’d)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table sets forth by level within the fair value hierarchy of the financial assets and liabilities that were accounted for at 
fair value on a recurring basis as of 31 December 2014.  These financial assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based 
on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.  The assessment of the significance of a particular input 
to the fair value measurement requires judgement, and may affect the valuation of assets and liabilities and their placement within 
the fair value hierarchy levels.

Financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value

Fair value measurement using:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Group

At 31 December 2014

Available-for-sale financial assets 77,259 449 – 77,708

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1 1,957 – 1,958

Derivative financial assets – 17,319 – 17,319

77,260 19,725 – 96,985

Derivative financial liabilities – (82,444) – (82,444)

Total 77,260 (62,719) – 14,541

At 31 December 2013

Available-for-sale financial assets 99,300 416 – 99,716

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 3 1,510 – 1,513

Derivative financial assets – 3,295 – 3,295

99,303 5,221 – 104,524

Derivative financial liabilities – (19,298) – (19,298)

Total 99,303 (14,077) – 85,226

Company

At 31 December 2014

Available-for-sale financial assets 54,075 449 – 54,524

At 31 December 2013

Available-for-sale financial assets 68,250 416 – 68,666

In 2014 and 2013, there were no transfers between the different levels of the fair value hierarchy.
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35. Financial instruments (cont’d)

(d) Estimation of fair values (cont’d)

Assets and liabilities not carried at fair value but for which fair values are disclosed*

Fair value measurement using:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Group

At 31 December 2014

Trade and other receivables – 54 – 54

Interest-bearing borrowings – (1,307,519) – (1,307,519)

Other payables – (47,741) – (47,741)

– (1,355,260) – (1,355,260)

Total – (1,355,206) – (1,355,206)

At 31 December 2013

Trade and other receivables – 22 – 22

Interest-bearing borrowings – (600,000) – (600,000)

Other payables – (35,744) – (35,744)

– (635,744) – (635,744)

Total – (635,722) – (635,722)

Company

At 31 December 2014

Trade and other receivables – 28,584 – 28,584

At 31 December 2013

Trade and other receivables – 27,397 – 27,397

*  Excludes financial assets and liabilities whose carrying amounts measured on the amortised cost basis that approximate their fair values due to 

their short-term nature and where the effect of discounting is immaterial.
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35. Financial instruments (cont’d)

(e) Fair value versus carrying amounts (cont’d)

Note
Available-
for-sale

Loans and 
receivables

Other financial 
liabilities within 

the scope of 
FRS 39

Total carrying 
amount Fair value

Company $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 31 December 2014

Cash and cash equivalents 14 – 22,402 – 22,402 22,402

Trade and other receivables 9 – 68,596 – 68,596 65,912

Available-for-sale financial assets

- Equity shares 8(a) 54,075 – – 54,075 54,075

- Unit trusts 8(a) 449 – – 449 449

54,524 90,998 – 145,522 142,838

Trade and other payables* – – 18,404 18,404 18,404

At 31 December 2013

Cash and cash equivalents 14 – 49,860 – 49,860 49,860

Trade and other receivables 9 – 79,298 – 79,298 76,730

Available-for-sale financial assets

- Equity shares 8(a) 68,250 – – 68,250 68,250

- Unit trusts 8(a) 416 – – 416 416

68,666 129,158 – 197,824 195,256

Trade and other payables* – – 18,527 18,527 18,527

*  Excludes deposits received, advance payment from customers and long-term employee benefits.

 (f) Capital management

The Group aims to maintain a sound capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain 
future development and growth of its businesses, while at the same time maintaining an appropriate dividend policy to reward 
shareholders.  The Group monitors Economic Value Added attributable to shareholders, which the Group defines as net operating 
profit after tax less capital charge excluding non-controlling interests.  Management also monitors the level of dividends paid to 
ordinary shareholders.

The Group seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the 
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.  Capital is defined as equity attributable to the equity holders.  The 
Group records a net debt position as at 31 December 2014 (2013: net cash position).

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the year.

The Group is required to maintain consolidated net borrowings to consolidated net assets (less dividends, goodwill and other 
intangible assets) ratio of not more than 1.75.  This externally imposed capital requirement has been complied with at each quarter 
in the financial year ended 31 December 2014.
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36. Contingent liabilities
Company

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Unsecured corporate guarantees granted in respect of:

- Performance of subsidiaries 2,465,596 2,365,332

- Unsecured term loan by a subsidiary 300,000 300,000

- Unsecured bonds issued by a subsidiary 600,000 –

 The Company has provided guarantees to banks to secure banking facilities provided to a wholly-owned subsidiary, Jurong Shipyard Pte 
Ltd.  These financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as insurance contracts.

 The principal risk to which the Company is exposed is credit risk in connection with guarantee contracts it has issued.  The credit risk 
represents the loss that would be recognised upon a default by the parties to which the guarantees were given on behalf of.  To mitigate 
these risks, management continually monitors the risks and has established processes including performing credit evaluations of the 
parties it is providing the guarantee on behalf of.

 There are no terms and conditions attached to the guarantee contracts that would have a material effect on the amount, timing and 
uncertainty of the Company’s future cash flows.

 Estimates of the Company’s obligation arising from financial guarantee contracts may be affected by future events, which cannot be 
predicted with any certainty.  The assumptions made may well vary from actual experience so that the actual liability may vary considerably 
from the best estimates.  As of balance sheet date, there is no provision made in respect of the obligations.

37. Commitments

Commitments not provided for in the financial statements are as follows:

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

(a) Approved capital commitment:

-  Approved capital expenditure commitment 540,957 458,865 – –

(b) Minimum lease rental payable in  
respect of land and buildings: 

-  Within 1 year 19,151 18,645 10,913 10,059

-  After 1 year but within 5 years 68,757 65,587 39,994 37,679

-  After 5 years 382,212 402,558 50,729 57,479

470,120 486,790 101,636 105,217

(c) Share of joint ventures’ approved and 
contracted capital commitments

7,205 9,360 – –

The leases do not provide for contingent rents and lease terms do not contain restrictions on the Group activities concerning dividends, 
additional debt or further leasing.  Certain leases contain escalation clauses to reflect market rentals.

Certain leases include renewal options for additional lease period of 10 to 30 years and at rental rates based on prevailing market rates.



241Sembcorp Marine Ltd Annual Report

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014

37. Commitments (cont’d)

The Group leases out its marine vessel.  The initial lease term is 5 years, with an option to extend for another 5 years.  The lease agreement 
provides for additional lease payments annually based on changes to a price index.  The future minimum lease receivable under non-
cancellable leases is as follows:

Group
2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Within 1 year 61,957 53,896

After 1 year but within 5 years 165,285 222,670

227,242 276,566

38. Operating segments

(a) Business segments

The Group has two reportable segments, which are the Group’s strategic business units.  The strategic business units are managed 
separately because of their different business activities.  The two reportable segments are (i) ship and rig repair, building and 
conversion and (ii) ship chartering.

The accounting policies are described in Note 3.  Inter-segment sales and transfers are carried out on an arm’s length basis.  
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, current assets and exclude inter-segment balances.  Segment 
liabilities comprise mainly operating liabilities and exclude inter-segment balances.  Performance is measured based on segment 
profit before tax, as included in the internal management reports that are reviewed by the Group’s CEO.  Segment profit is used 
to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain 
segments relative to other entities that operate within these industries.

Other operations include bulk trading in marine engineering related products; provision of harbour tug services to port users; 
collection and treatment of used copper slag, and the processing and distribution of copper slag for blast cleaning purposes.
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38. Operating segments (cont’d)

(a) Business segments (cont’d)

Ship & rig 
repair, building, 
conversion and 

offshore Ship chartering Others Eliminations Total
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2014

Turnover

Sales to external parties 5,759,737 50,816 22,042 – 5,832,595

Inter-segment sales – – 220,236 (220,236) –

Total 5,759,737 50,816 242,278 (220,236) 5,832,595

Results

Segment results 680,455 12,907 13,663 – 707,025

Finance income 9,596 – 115 – 9,711

Finance costs (19,318) (1,642) – – (20,960)

Investment income 78 – 1,114 – 1,192

Non-operating income 179 – – – 179

Non-operating expenses (2) – – – (2)

Share of results of associates and joint ventures, 
    net of tax

3,290 4,909 1,660 – 9,859

Profit before tax 674,278 16,174 16,552 – 707,004

Tax expense (103,838) – (1,891) – (105,729)

Profit for the year 570,440 16,174 14,661 – 601,275

Assets

Segment assets 7,389,588 238,219 132,089 – 7,759,896

Investments in associates and joint ventures 408,061 56,152 6,064 – 470,277

Deferred tax assets 8,044 – – – 8,044

Tax recoverable 203 – – – 203

Total assets 7,805,896 294,371 138,153 – 8,238,420

Liabilities

Segment liabilities 4,692,124 123,853 38,848 – 4,854,825

Deferred tax liabilities 129,897 – 412 – 130,309

Current tax payable 118,460 – 2,799 – 121,259

Total liabilities 4,940,481 123,853 42,059 – 5,106,393

Capital expenditure 798,283 – 216 – 798,499

Significant non-cash items

Depreciation and amortisation 105,895 8,366 872 – 115,133

Impairment/write-off of assets 232 – – – 232

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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38. Operating segments (cont’d)

(a) Business segments (cont’d)

Ship & rig 
repair, building, 
conversion and 

offshore Ship chartering Others Eliminations Total
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2013

Turnover

Sales to external parties 5,455,820 42,164 27,898 – 5,525,882

Inter-segment sales – – 204,993 (204,993) –

Total 5,455,820 42,164 232,891 (204,993) 5,525,882

Results

Segment results 626,993 3,209 14,055 – 644,257

Finance income 8,126 1 73 – 8,200

Finance costs (8,072) – – – (8,072)

Investment income – – 2,228 – 2,228

Non-operating income 3,027 – – – 3,027

Non-operating expenses (269) – – – (269)

Share of results of associates and joint ventures, 
    net of tax

4,880 5,170 1,116 – 11,166

Profit before tax 634,685 8,380 17,472 – 660,537

Tax expense (70,477) – (1,800) – (72,277)

Profit for the year 564,208 8,380 15,672 – 588,260

Assets

Segment assets 6,402,973 247,834 146,246 – 6,797,053

Investments in associates and joint ventures 392,411 48,928 4,404 – 445,743

Deferred tax assets 7,108 – – – 7,108

Tax recoverable 196 – – – 196

Total assets 6,802,688 296,762 150,650 – 7,250,100

Liabilities

Segment liabilities 4,176,091 3,924 26,974 – 4,206,989

Deferred tax liabilities 122,515 – 551 – 123,066

Current tax payable 108,096 – 2,437 – 110,533

Total liabilities 4,406,702 3,924 29,962 – 4,440,588

Capital expenditure 814,558 – 420 – 814,978

Significant non-cash items

Depreciation and amortisation 96,169 3,469 969 – 100,607

Impairment/write-off of assets 267 – 1 – 268

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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38. Operating segments (cont’d)

 (b) Geographical segments

The Group operates in 10 (2013: 10) countries and principally in the Republic of Singapore.  Pricing of inter-segment sales and 
transfers are carried out on an arm’s length basis.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical location of 
customers.  Segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets.

Turnover from 
external customers

Non-current 
assets (1) Total assets

Capital 
expenditure

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
2014

Singapore 775,566 1,949,864 6,504,070 265,978

China 5,225 397,938 398,176 25

Rest of ASEAN, Australia & India 696,627 148,132 178,147 16,973

Middle East & Africa 24,222 – – –

Norway 924,097 – – –

The Netherlands 1,069,909 228,473 243,795 –

Rest of Europe 205,130 6,809 29,278 709

Brazil 127,511 837,612 878,772 514,785

U.S.A. 1,327,426 3,933 6,182 29

Mexico 676,882 – – –

Total 5,832,595 3,572,761 8,238,420 798,499

2013

Singapore 489,599 1,773,532 5,999,605 428,301

China 778 377,528 377,971 5

Rest of ASEAN, Australia & India 1,195,169 139,002 167,915 15,711

Middle East & Africa 81,314 – – –

Norway 1,075,189 – – –

The Netherlands 476,822 227,157 252,532 –

Rest of Europe 207,462 7,269 21,590 974

Brazil 15,482 386,470 425,560 369,985

U.S.A. 1,420,353 3,753 4,927 2

Mexico 561,608 – – –

Other countries 2,106 – – –

Total 5,525,882 2,914,711 7,250,100 814,978

(1)  Non-current assets presented consist of property, plant and equipment, investments in associates and joint ventures, trade and 
other receivables (other than financial instruments) and intangible assets.

(c) Major customers

In 2014, turnover from one customer of the Group’s ship & rig repair, building, conversion and offshore segment represents 
approximately 11 per cent of the Group’s total turnover (2013: one single external customer accounted for 16 per cent of the 
Group’s total turnover).

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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39. Significant accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates, assumptions concerning the future and judgements are made in the preparation of the financial statements.  They affect the 
application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made.  They 
are assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and relevant factors, including expectations of future events that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant 
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Information on other significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most 
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are described in the following notes:

(a) Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis.  This requires an estimation of the value in use of 
the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.  Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate 
of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate 
the present value of those cash flows.  Information about the assumptions and their risk factors relating to goodwill impairment are 
disclosed in Note 11.

(b) Taxes

The Group is subject to taxes in numerous jurisdictions.  Significant judgement is involved in determining the group-wide provision 
for taxes.  In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Group takes into account the impact of uncertain tax positions 
and whether additional taxes and interest may be due.

There are certain transactions and computation for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of 
business.  The Group recognises liabilities for expected tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.  The 
Group believes that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open years based on its assessment of many factors, including 
interpretations of tax law and prior experience.  This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series 
of judgements about future events.  Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially 
recorded, such differences will impact the taxes and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.  The 
tax expense is disclosed in Note 28.

(c) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.  Management estimates the 
useful lives of these property, plant and equipment to be within 1 to 60 years.  The carrying amounts of the Group’s property, plant 
and equipment are set out in Note 4.  Changes in the expected level of usage and technological developments could impact the 
economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets; therefore future depreciation charges could be revised.

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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39. Significant accounting estimates and judgements (cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

(d) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Estimates of the Group’s obligations arising from contracts that exist as at balance sheet date may be affected by future events, 
which cannot be predicted with any certainty.  The assumptions and estimates are made based on the management’s knowledge 
and experience and may vary from actual experience so that the actual liability may vary considerably from the best estimates.

Warranty

The provision for warranty is based on estimates from known and expected warranty work and contractual obligation for further work 
to be performed after completion.  The warranty expense incurred could be higher or lower than the provision made.  Movements 
in provision for warranty are detailed in Note 17.

Contingent liability

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, 
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.  Possible 
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also 
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Disclosure of contingent liabilities is detailed in Note 36.

 Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

 In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made certain judgements, apart from those involving 
estimations, which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

 (a) Revenue recognition and assessment of risk of foreseeable losses on long term construction contracts

The Group has recognised revenue on construction contract, ship and rig repair, building and conversion based on the percentage 
of completion method in proportion to the stage of completion.  The percentage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys of 
work performed.  Significant judgement is required in determining the appropriate stage of completion and estimating a reasonable 
contribution margin for revenue and costs recognition.

The Group conducts critical review of all its long term construction contracts regularly.  Allowance is made where necessary to 
account for foreseeable losses where total costs to complete the construction contracts exceed the contract revenue.  To determine the 
total costs, the Group monitors and reviews constantly the progress of all long term construction contracts taking into consideration 
all inputs from both internal project managers and external customers.  The review includes evaluating any potential risks and 
factors which may affect the timely completion of the construction contracts.  The review also encompasses the cost analysis 
process whereby both actual costs incurred and future costs to complete are critically examined.

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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39. Significant accounting estimates and judgements (cont’d)

 Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies (cont’d)

(b) Impairment of investments and financial assets

The Group follows the guidance of FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement in determining whether there is 
any objective evidence that an investment or financial asset is impaired.  This determination requires significant judgement.  The 
Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment and financial asset is less 
than its cost; and the financial health of and near-term business outlook for the investment or financial asset, including factors such 
as industry and sector performance, changes in technology and operational and financing cash flow.

In assessing whether there is any objective evidence that its investment in available-for-sale financial assets is impaired, the Group 
takes into consideration whether there is a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of its investment, alongside with other 
considerations such as volatility of the share price relative to general stock indices, analysts’ reports on outlook of the underlying 
security, recovery in share price shortly after the year end provided that it was not concluded that the investment was impaired in 
the past, and other qualitative factors such as the financial performance of the investment.

(c) Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment 

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment is tested for impairment whenever there is any objective evidence or indication 
that the property, plant and equipment may be impaired.  This determination requires significant judgement.  This impairment takes 
into account the market value of the asset, changes to the technological, market, economic or legal environment in which the Group 
operates, market interest rates, evidence of obsolescence or physical damage to the property, plant and equipment and changes to 
the expected usage to the property, plant and equipment.

Impairment assessment of a vessel

In estimating the recoverable amount of a vessel, the Group obtained valuation reports from external experts.  Owing to the 
specialised nature of this vessel where re-sale transactions of similar level are lacking, these experts appraise the recoverable 
amount using the discounted cash flow model.

The Group also performed a back-test using discounted cash flows with key assumptions on the charter rate, operating rate, 
terminal value and discount rate over the remaining economic useful life of the vessel.

Based on this assessment, no impairment is necessary for property, plant and equipment as at the balance sheet date.

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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40. Group entities

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are as follows:

Name of company

Place of 
incorporation
and business Principal activities

Effective  
equity held  

by the Group
2014 2013

% %
Subsidiaries

Bulk Trade Pte Ltd(1) Singapore Bulk trading 100 100

Dolphin Shipping Company Private Limited(1) Singapore Ship owning and chartering 100 100

JPL Industries Pte Ltd(1) Singapore Processing and distribution of copper slag 85.8 85.8

Jurong Integrated Services Pte Ltd(1) Singapore Steel fabrication work 100 100

Jurong Marine Services Pte Ltd(1) Singapore Provision of tugging and sea transportation services 100 100

Jurong Shipbuilders Private Limited(1) Singapore Investment holding 100 100

Jurong Shipyard Pte Ltd(1) Singapore Ship and rig repair, building, conversion and related 
services

100 100

Jurong SML Pte Ltd(1) Singapore Shipbuilding, ship repair and related services 100 100

Karimun Shiprepair and Engineering Pte Ltd(1) Singapore Investment holding 100 100

PPL Shipyard Pte Ltd(1) Singapore Rig building, repair and related services 85 85

SCM Investment Holdings Pte Ltd(1) Singapore Investment holding 100 100

Sembawang Shipyard Pte Ltd(1) Singapore Ship repair and related services 100 100

Sembcorp Holdings, LLC(4) United States  
of America

Investment holding 100 100

Sembcorp Marine Technology Pte Ltd(1) Singapore Research & development in offshore and marine technology 100 100

SembMarine Investment Pte Ltd(1) Singapore Investment holding 100 100

SML Shipyard Pte Ltd(1) Singapore Ship repair and related services 100 100

SMOE Pte Ltd(1) Singapore Engineering, construction and fabrication of offshore 
structures

100 100

Associates

Cosco Shipyard Group Co., Ltd(3) People’s 
Republic 
of China

Provision of services for repairs of vessels; repairs, 
construction and conversion of offshore platforms and 
offshore engineering facilities; and related services

30 30

Joint Shipyard Management Services Pte Ltd(1) Singapore Managing dormitories 32 32

Joint ventures of Dolphin Shipping Company Private Limited

Dolphin Workboats Pte Ltd(1) Singapore Ship owning and charter 50 50

Pacific Workboats Pte Ltd(3) Singapore Ship leasing and marine surveying services 50 50

Subsidiary of JPL Industries Pte Ltd

JPL Concrete Products Pte Ltd(1) Singapore Production of concrete products 85.8 85.8

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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40. Group entities (cont’d)

Name of company

Place of 
incorporation
and business Principal activities

Effective  
equity held  

by the Group
2014 2013

% %
Subsidiaries and joint venture of Jurong Shipyard Pte Ltd

Dolphin Rig 1 Pte. Ltd.(1) Singapore Provision of marine/offshore engineering and shipbuilding 
services 

100 100

Dolphin Rig 2 Pte. Ltd.(1) Singapore Provision of marine/offshore engineering and shipbuilding 
services 

100 100

Dolphin Rig 3 Pte. Ltd.(1) Singapore Provision of marine/offshore engineering and shipbuilding 
services 

100 100

Dolphin Rig 4 Pte. Ltd.(1) Singapore Provision of marine/offshore engineering and shipbuilding 
services 

100 100

Dolphin Rig 5 Pte. Ltd.(1) Singapore Provision of marine/offshore engineering and shipbuilding 
services 

100 100

Dolphin Rig 6 Pte. Ltd.(1) Singapore Provision of marine/offshore engineering and shipbuilding 
services 

100 100

Dolphin Rig 7 Pte. Ltd.(1) Singapore Provision of marine/offshore engineering and shipbuilding 
services 

100 100

Estaleiro Jurong Aracruz Ltda(2) Brazil Ship and rig repair, building, conversion and related 
services

100 100

JED Centre Sdn. Bhd.(2) Malaysia Render services for engineering 100 100

Jurong Autoblast Services Pte. Ltd.(1) Singapore Surface preparation of steel plates, structures and marine 
engineering services

100 100

Jurong do Brasil Prestacao de Servicos Ltda(2) Brazil Ship and rig repair, building, conversion and related 
services

100 100

Jurong Marine Contractors Private Limited(1) Singapore Provision of contract services 100 100

Jurong Netherlands B.V.(4) Netherlands Investment holding 100 100

Jurong Offshore Pte. Ltd.(1) Singapore Investment holding 100 100

Jurong Solutions Pte. Ltd.(1) Singapore Provision of management and technical services 100 100

Marine Housing Services Pte. Ltd.(3) Singapore Provision of dormitory housing services 50 50

Sembmarine SSP Inc(4) United States  
of America

In the business of engineering design, research and 
development, marketing and client services support 
centre

100 –

Shanghai Jurong Marine Engineering & 
Technology Co Ltd(3)

People’s 
Republic 
of China

Research and development of technologies for civil ships 
and equipment for oceanics industries and provision of 
related technical consultation services

70 70

Subsidiary of Karimun Shiprepair and Engineering Pte Ltd

P.T. Karimun Sembawang Shipyard(3) Indonesia Ship repair and related services 100 100

Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014
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Notes to the Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2014

40. Group entities (cont’d)

Name of company

Place of 
incorporation
and business Principal activities

Effective  
equity held  

by the Group
2014 2013

% %
Subsidiaries of PPL Shipyard Pte Ltd

Baker Marine Pte Ltd(1) Singapore Rig enhancement and upgrading services, engineering 
consultancy and project management, and supply of rig 
equipment and parts

85 85

Baker Marine Services (HK) Limited(2) Hong Kong Provision of rig designs 85 85

Baker Marine Technology Inc.(4) United States
of America

Engineering design, research and development, marketing 
and client services support centre

85 85

Subsidiaries, associate and joint venture of Sembawang Shipyard Pte Ltd

Ecospec Global Technology Pte. Ltd.(1) Singapore Provision of environmental engineering services 20 20

Equinox Offshore ARV3 B.V.(4) Netherlands Shipowner 100 100

Semb-Eco Pte. Ltd.(1) Singapore Investment holding 55 –

Semb-Eco R&D Pte. Ltd.(1) Singapore Research and development, holding of patents 55 –

Semb-Eco Technology Pte. Ltd.(1) Singapore Manufacturing and commercialisation of patents 55 –

Sembawang Shipyard Project Services Pte. Ltd.(1) Singapore Marine services and rental of premises 100 100

Sembawang Shipyard (S) Pte Ltd(1) Singapore Investment holding 100 100

Sembawang Shipyard Services Pte Ltd(1) Singapore Marine services 100 100

Sembmarine Kakinada Limited(3) India Ship repair, conversion, building and related activities 40 40

SES Engineering (M) Sdn Bhd(2) Malaysia Fabrication of metal structures 100 100

SES Marine Services (Pte) Ltd(1) Singapore Marine services 100 100

Subsidiaries of Sembcorp Holdings, LLC

Sabine Offshore Services Inc(4) United States 
of America

Inactive 100 100

Sembcorp-Sabine Industries Inc(4) United States 
of America

Investment holding 100 100

Sembcorp-Sabine Shipyard Inc(4) United States 
of America

Rig and vessel enhancement and upgrading services 100 100
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Name of company

Place of 
incorporation
and business Principal activities

Effective  
equity held  

by the Group
2014 2013

% %
Subsidiaries and associates of SMOE Pte Ltd

HQSM Engineering Pte. Ltd.(3)  Singapore Engineering, procurement and construction for oil and gas 
related business

– Note 
(a)

PT SMOE Indonesia(2) Indonesia Engineering, construction and fabrication of offshore 
structures

90 90

PT SMOE Singgar Mulia Engineering (2) Indonesia Engineering and construction consultation services 55 –

Sembmarine North Sea Limited(2) United 
Kingdom

Investment holding 70 70

Sembmarine SLP Limited(2) United 
Kingdom

Design, engineering, fabrication and installation of offshore 
platforms, modules and structures for the oil, gas and 
renewable energy industry

70 70

Shenzhen Chiwan Offshore Petroleum Engineering 
Company Ltd (formerly known as Shenzhen 
Chiwan Offshore Petroleum Equipment Repair & 
Manufacture Co. Ltd)(3)

People’s 
Republic 
of China

Equipment inspection, repair and maintenance services for 
oil reconnoiter and exploitation in South China Sea

35 35

Straits Offshore Pte. Ltd.(1) Singapore Hook-up, commissioning and maintenance of offshore oil 
and gas production facilities

100 100

Straits Overseas Pte. Ltd.(1) Singapore Investment holding and engineering, construction and 
fabrication of offshore marine structures

100 100

(1) Audited by KPMG LLP, Singapore
(2) Audited by overseas affiliates of KPMG International
(3) Audited by other firms
(4) These companies are not required to be audited under the laws of their country of incorporation

Note(a) On 25 June 2013, SMOE Pte Ltd divested 30 per cent of its 49 per cent equity stake in HQSM Engineering Pte Ltd (“HQSM”).  Following the 
divestment, the retained 19 per cent equity stake in HQSM was reclassified to ‘Other financial assets’.

40. Group entities (cont’d)
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41. New or revised accounting standards and interpretations

Below are the mandatory standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that have been published, and are relevant for 
the Group’s accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2015 or later periods and which the Group has not early adopted:

Applicable for the Group’s 2015 financial statements

Improvements to FRSs (January 2014):

FRS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and 
    FRS 38 Intangible Assets

–  Restatement of accumulated depreciation on revaluation

FRS 24 Related Party Disclosures –  Definition of related party

FRS 102 Share-based Payment –  Definition of vesting condition

FRS 103 Business Combinations –  Classification and measurement of contingent consideration in a
business combination

FRS 108 Operating Segments –  Aggregation of operating segments and reconciliation of the total of the
reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets

Improvements to FRSs (February 2014):

FRS 103 Business Combinations –  Scope exceptions for joint ventures

FRS 113 Fair Value Measurements –  Scope of portfolio exception

FRS 40 Investment Property –  Clarifying the interrelationship between FRS 103 and FRS 40 when 
classifying property as investment property or owner-occupied property

Management anticipates that the adoption of the above amendments to FRS in the future periods will not have a material impact on the 
finiancial statements of the Group and of the Company in the period of their initial adoption.

Applicable for the Group’s 2017 financial statements
FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.  The core principle is for companies to recognise revenue to depict the transfer of 
goods or services to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration (that is, payment) to which the company expects to be entitled 
in exchange for those goods or services.  This will also result in enhanced disclosures about revenue, provide guidance for transactions 
that were not previously addressed comprehensively (for example, service revenue and contract modifications) and improve guidance for 
multiple-element arrangements.

Applicable for the Group’s 2018 financial statements
FRS 109 Financial Instruments.  It sets out the requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some 
contracts to buy or sell non-financial items.  This Standard replaces FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

FRS 115 and FRS 109 were issued by the Accounting Standards Council on 19 November 2014 and 11 December 2014 respectively.  
Management is currently evaluating the impact of the implementation of these standards, in view of the complexities of these standards 
and the potential wide-ranging implications.
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(Under SGX-ST Listing Manual requirements)
A. Directors’ and Key Executives’ Remuneration Earned for the Year

Summary compensation table for the year ended 31 December 2014

Name of Director Salary1
Bonus 
Earned

Fair value of 
share-based 

compensation 
granted for 
the year2

Directors’ Fees Brought 
Forward 
Bonus 
Bank5

Cash-
based3

Share-
based4

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
Payable by the Company:
Goh Geok Ling3 – – – 188 – –

Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican – – – 348 149 –

Wong Weng Sun 915 2,425 978 – – 7,929

Ajaib Haridass – – – 181 77 –

Tang Kin Fei3 – – – 159 68 –

Ron Foo Siang Guan – – – 152 65 –

Lim Ah Doo – – – 151 64 –

Koh Chiap Khiong3 – – – 118 50 –

Ang Teik Lim Eric3 – – – 127 – –

Teh Ewe Guan Eddie3 – – – 33 – –

915 2,425 978 1,457 473 7,929

Payable by Subsidiaries:
Goh Geok Ling3 – – – 28 – –

Tang Kin Fei3 – – – 30 – –

Koh Chiap Khiong3 – – – 21 – –

– – – 79 – –

Name of Key Executive Salary1
Bonus 
Earned

Fair value of 
share-based 

compensation 
granted for 
the year2

Directors’ Fees Brought 
Forward 
Bonus 
Bank5

Cash-
based

Share-
based

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Ong Poh Kwee 482 697 324 – – 2,799

Tan Cheng Tat 380 391 203 – – 936

Ho Nee Sin 383 468 203 – – 1,196

Wong Teck Cheong 406 850 – – – –

Freddie Woo Fong Wah 207 270 41 – – –

1,858 2,676 771 – – 4,931

Notes:

1. The amount shown is inclusive of basic salary, fixed allowances, AWS and other emoluments.

2. The fair value of the share plans granted for the year is disclosed. The shares granted to key executives are contingent upon meeting 
performance measures. If these performance measures are not met, the key executive will not be vested with any shares.
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3. Mr Goh Geok Ling and Mr Eddie Teh Ewe Guan, both of whom had retired on 22 April 2014, will receive their Directors’ fees entirely in 
cash.  Mr Eric Ang Teik Lim’s Director’s fee will be paid entirely in cash to his employer, DBS Bank Ltd.  Cash portion of the Directors’ 
fees for Mr Tang Kin Fei and Mr Koh Chiap Khiong, nominee Directors from Sembcorp Industries Ltd (“SCI”), will be paid to SCI.

4. To align the interests of the non-executive Directors with the interests of shareholders, up to 30% of the aggregate Directors’ fees 
approved by shareholders for a particular financial year may be paid out in the form of restricted share awards under the Sembcorp 
Marine Restricted Share Plan 2010. 

 For year 2014, the awards granted under the Sembcorp Marine Restricted Share Plan 2010 to all Directors as part of their Directors’ 
fees (except for (i) Mr Wong Weng Sun, who is the President & CEO, and who does not receive any Directors’ fees, (ii) Mr Eric 
Ang Teik Lim, and (iii) Mr Goh Geok Ling and Mr Eddie Teh Ewe Guan) will consist of the grant of fully paid shares outright with 
no performance and vesting conditions attached, but with a selling moratorium. These non-executive Directors are required to hold 
shares (including shares obtained by other means) worth at least one-time the annual base retainer (currently S$65,000), any 
excess may be sold as desired. These non-executive Directors can dispose of all of the shares one year after leaving the Board.

 The actual number of shares to be awarded to each non-executive Director, (other than Mr Eric Ang Teik Lim, Mr Goh Geok Ling and 
Mr Eddie Teh Ewe Guan) will be determined by reference to the volume-weighted average price of a share on the Singapore Exchange 
Securities Trading Limited (SGX-ST) over the 14 trading days immediately following the date of the Annual General Meeting. The 
number of shares to be awarded will be rounded down to the nearest hundred and any residual balance will be settled in cash.

5. The Brought Forward Bonus Bank is the outstanding balance of bonus as at 31 December 2014 (excluding the bonus earned during 
the financial year).  Typically, one-third of the accumulated bonus comprising Bonus Earned in the financial year and the Brought 
Forward Bonus is paid out in cash each year, with the balance being carried forward to the following year. The balances of the bonus 
bank in future will be adjusted by the yearly EVA performance of the Group and its subsidiaries and the payouts made from the Bonus 
Bank.

Details on the share options, performance shares and restricted shares granted to the directors are set out in the Share-based Incentive 
Plans of the Directors’ Report.

(Under SGX-ST Listing Manual requirements)
B. Interested Person Transactions

Aggregate value of all interested person 
transactions conducted under shareholders’ 

mandate pursuant to Rule 920 of the 
SGX-ST Listing Manual

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Transaction for the Sales of Goods and Services

PSA International Pte Ltd and its associates 5,840 3,256

Sembcorp Industries Limited and its associates 108 –

Transaction for the Purchase of Goods and Services

Sembcorp Industries Limited and its associates 1,811 2,917

PSA International Pte Ltd and its associates – 650

Singapore Technologies Engineering Ltd and its associates 16,117 3,230

Singapore Technologies Telemedia Pte Ltd and its associates – 539

Management and Support Services

Sembcorp Industries Limited 250     250

Total Interested Person Transactions 24,126 10,842

Treasury Transactions

Placement of Funds from – as at 31 December

Sembcorp Industries Limited and its associates – 200,000

Supplementary Information Year ended 31 December 2014
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Major Properties As at 6 March 2015

Location
Description & 
Approximate Land Area Tenure Usage

Jurong Shipyard

•	 Jalan	Samulun Land area: 185,738m2 
Buildings, workshops, drydocks 
and quays

Leasehold Ship repairs including drydock, berthage 
and workshops

•	 Tanjong	Kling	Road Land area: 491,056m2 
Buildings, workshops, drydocks 
and quays

10 years leasehold 
10 years renewal 
(JTC Land)

Ship repairs, ship conversion, offshore 
engineering, shipbuilding and rig 
building including drydock, berthage 
and workshops

Sembawang Shipyard

•	 Admiralty	Road	East/Admiralty	
Road West

Land area: 866,705m2 
Buildings, workshops, docks and 
quays

22 years leasehold Ship repairs, ship conversion, offshore 
engineering and rig building including 
docks, berthage and workshops

PPL Shipyard

•	 Pandan	Road Land area: 141,791m2 15 years leasehold 
(JTC Land)

Rig building, repairs, upgrading and 
fabrication including berthage and 
workshops

•	 Pandan	Road Land area: 9,182m2 30 years leasehold 
(JTC Land)

Leg component fabrication

•	 Tuas	Crescent Land area: 58,226m2 9.5 years leasehold
(JTC Land)

Rig building, repairs, upgrading and 
fabrication including berthage and 
workshops

Jurong SML

•	 Shipyard	Road Land area: 63,300m2 
Buildings, workshops and 
drydocks

6 years leasehold 
(JTC Land)

Ship repairs and shipbuilding including 
drydocks, berthage and workshops

•	 Tuas	Road Land area: 59,942m2 
Buildings, workshops, docks and 
quays

14 years leasehold 
(JTC Land)

Shipbuilding and fabrication including 
berthage and workshops

P.T. Karimun Sembawang Shipyard

•	 Karimun	Island,	Indonesia Land area: 307,000m2 
Buildings, workshops and wharves

30 years leasehold 
with option for 
20 years plus another 
option for 30 years 

Ship repair and fabrication including 
berthage and workshops

JPL Industries

•	 Jurong	Pier	Road Land area: 27,783m2 20 years leasehold 
(JTC Land)

Copper slag recycling
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Major Properties As at 6 March 2015

Location
Description & 
Approximate Land Area Tenure Usage

SES Engineering Sdn Bhd

•	 Perindustrian	Taman	Johor,	
Johor Bahru

Land area: 5,235m2 
Workshop and 3-storey office 
building

Freehold Metal fabrication workshop

P.T. SMOE Indonesia

•	 Batam	Island,	Indonesia Land area: 685,300m2     
Workshops, office buildings and 
547 metres of jetty for modules 
load out

30 years leasehold Workshops and fabrication facilities  

Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas

•	 Tuas	South	Boulevard	Phase	I	
  

Land area: 733,104m2  
Docks, quays, workshops, 
buildings and berthage

30 plus 30 years 
leasehold 
(JTC land)

Ship repairs, ship conversion, offshore 
engineering, shipbuilding and rig 
building including drydock, berthage 
and workshops

•	 Tuas	South	Boulevard	Phase	II
(under development)

Land area: 345,600m2  30 plus 30 years 
leasehold 
(JTC land)

Ship repairs, ship conversion, offshore 
engineering, shipbuilding and rig 
building including drydock, berthage 
and workshops

Estaleiro Jurong Aracruz

•	 Municipal	of	Aracruz,	State	of	
Espirito Santo, Brazil

Land area: 825,000m2 
Slipways, berthing quays, drydock, 
ancillary steel and piping facilities

Freehold Drillships construction, building of semi-
submersible rigs, FPSO integration, 
fabrication of topside modules, PSVs 
construction, drilling rig repairs and 
modification works

Sembmarine SLP Ltd

•	 Lowestoft,	Suffolk,	UK Land area: 55,000m2

Workshops and office building
Freehold and 
leasehold land ranges 
from 22 to 99 years

Workshops and fabrication facilities

Mendon Spring

•	 Pasir	Panjang 9 units of 3-room apartment with 
built-in area of 99m2 per unit

Freehold Residential properties
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Company Registration No. 196300098Z
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the 52nd Annual General Meeting of Sembcorp Marine Ltd (the “Company”) will be held at  
29 Tanjong Kling Road, Singapore 628054 on 17 April 2015 at 11.00 a.m. to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1 To receive and adopt the directors’ report and audited financial statements for the year ended 31 
December 2014 and the auditors’ report thereon.

Resolution 1

2 To declare a final one-tier tax exempt dividend of 8 cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 
December 2014.

Resolution 2

3 To re-elect the following directors, each of whom will retire by rotation pursuant to Article 91 of the 
Company’s Articles of Association and who, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election:

(a) Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican
(b) Mr Tang Kin Fei
(c) Mr Ron Foo Siang Guan

Resolution 3
Resolution 4
Resolution 5

4 To approve directors’ fees of S$1,930,231 (2013: S$1,742,166) for the year ended 31 December 
2014 comprising:

(a) S$1,455,600 to be paid in cash (2013: S$1,357,266); and

(b) S$474,631 to be paid in the form of restricted share awards under the Sembcorp Marine 
Restricted Share Plan 2010 (2013: S$384,900), with the number of shares to be awarded 
rounded down to the nearest hundred and any residual balance settled in cash.

Resolution 6

5 To approve directors’ fees of up to S$2,037,000 for the year ending 31 December 2015 comprising:

(a)     up to S$1,425,900 to be paid in cash; and

(b)    up to S$611,100 to be paid in the form of restricted share awards under the Sembcorp Marine 
Restricted Share Plan 2010, with the number of shares to be awarded rounded down to the 
nearest hundred and any residual balance settled in cash.

Resolution 7

6 To re-appoint KPMG LLP as auditors of the Company and authorise the directors to fix their remuneration. Resolution 8
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SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions which will be proposed as Ordinary Resolutions:

7 That authority be and is hereby given to the directors to:

(a) (i) issue shares in the capital of the Company (“shares”) whether by way of rights, bonus or 
otherwise; and/or

 (ii)  make or grant offers, agreements or options (collectively, “Instruments”) that might or 
would require shares to be issued, including but not limited to the creation and issue of (as 
well as adjustments to) warrants, debentures or other instruments convertible into shares,

 at any time and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes and to such persons as 
the directors may, in their absolute discretion deem fit; and

Resolution 9

(b) (notwithstanding the authority conferred by this Resolution may have ceased to be in force) issue 
shares in pursuance of any Instrument made or granted by the directors while this Resolution  
was in force, 

 provided that:

(1) the aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to this Resolution (including shares to be 
issued in pursuance of Instruments made or granted pursuant to this Resolution) does not exceed 
50% of the total number of issued shares in the capital of the Company excluding treasury 
shares (as calculated in accordance with paragraph (2) below), of which the aggregate number 
of shares to be issued other than on a pro rata basis to shareholders of the Company (including 
shares to be issued in pursuance of Instruments made or granted pursuant to this Resolution) 
shall not exceed 5% of the total number of issued shares in the capital of the Company excluding 
treasury shares (as calculated in accordance with paragraph (2) below);

(2) (subject to such manner of calculation as may be prescribed by the Singapore Exchange 
Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”)) for the purpose of determining the aggregate number of 
shares that may be issued under paragraph (1) above, the percentage of issued shares shall be 
based on the total number of issued shares in the capital of the Company (excluding treasury 
shares) at the time this Resolution is passed, after adjusting for:

(i) new shares arising from the conversion or exercise of any convertible securities or share 
options or vesting of share awards which are outstanding or subsisting at the time this 
Resolution is passed; and

(ii)  any subsequent bonus issue or consolidation or subdivision of shares;

(3) in exercising the authority conferred by this Resolution, the Company shall comply with the 
provisions of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST for the time being in force (unless such compliance 
has been waived by the SGX-ST) and the Articles of Association for the time being of the Company; 
and
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(4) (unless revoked or varied by the Company in General Meeting) the authority conferred by this 
Resolution shall continue in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the 
Company or the date by which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company is required by 
law to be held, whichever is the earlier.

8 That approval be and is hereby given to the directors to: Resolution 10

(a) grant awards in accordance with the provisions of the Sembcorp Marine Performance Share 
Plan 2010 (the “Performance Share Plan”) and/or the Sembcorp Marine Restricted Share Plan 
2010 (the “Restricted Share Plan”) (the Performance Share Plan and the Restricted Share Plan, 
together the “Share Plans”); and

(b) allot and issue from time to time such number of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company 
as may be required to be delivered pursuant to the vesting of awards under the Share Plans,

 provided that:

(i) the aggregate number of (i) new ordinary shares allotted and issued and/or to be allotted and 
issued, (ii) existing ordinary shares (including shares held in treasury) delivered and/or to be 
delivered, and (iii) ordinary shares released and/or to be released in the form of cash in lieu of 
shares, pursuant to the Share Plans, shall not exceed 7% of the total number of issued shares in 
the capital of the Company (excluding treasury shares) from time to time; and

(ii) the aggregate number of ordinary shares under awards to be granted pursuant to the Share 
Plans during the period commencing from this Annual General Meeting and ending on the date 
of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or the date by which the next Annual General 
Meeting of the Company is required by law to be held, whichever is the earlier, shall not exceed 
1% of the total number of issued shares in the capital of the Company (excluding treasury 
shares) from time to time.

9 To transact any other business.

By Order of the Board

Tan Yah Sze/Kem Huey Lee Sharon
Joint Company Secretaries

1 April 2015
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Explanatory Notes:

Resolutions 3 to 5 – Detailed information on these directors can be found under the Board of Directors and Corporate Governance Report in the 
Annual Report 2014.

Resolution 5 – If re-elected, Mr Ron Foo Siang Guan, an independent director, will remain as a member of the Audit Committee. 

Resolution 6 – This resolution is to approve the payment of directors’ fees, comprising a cash component and a share component, for the year 
ended 31 December 2014. Detailed information can be found under the Supplementary Information section in the Annual Report 2014. Directors 
and their associates will abstain from voting on Resolution 6.

The directors’ fees for year 2014 will only be paid after shareholders’ approval has been obtained at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting 
(“2015 AGM”). To align the interests of the non-executive directors with the interests of shareholders, up to 30% of the aggregate directors’ fees 
approved by shareholders may be paid out in the form of restricted share awards under the Sembcorp Marine Restricted Share Plan 2010. 

For year 2014, the awards granted under the Sembcorp Marine Restricted Share Plan 2010 to all directors as part of their directors’ fees (except 
for (i) Mr Wong Weng Sun, who is the President & Chief Executive Officer, and who does not receive any director’s fees and (ii) Mr Eric Ang Teik 
Lim, whose director’s fees will be paid entirely in cash to his employer, DBS Bank Ltd) will consist of the grant of fully paid shares outright with 
no performance and vesting conditions attached, but with a selling moratorium. Non-executive directors are required to hold shares (including 
shares obtained by other means) worth at least one-time the annual base retainer; any excess may be sold as desired. A non-executive director 
can dispose of all of his shares one year after leaving the Board.

The actual number of shares to be awarded to each non-executive director (other than Mr Eric Ang Teik Lim who, as stated above, will not receive 
any director’s fees in shares) will be determined by reference to the volume-weighted average price of a share on the SGX-ST over the 14 trading 
days from (and including) the day on which the shares are first quoted ex-dividend after the 2015 AGM (or, if Resolution 2 is not approved, over 
the 14 trading days immediately following the date of the 2015 AGM). The number of shares to be awarded will be rounded down to the nearest 
hundred and any residual balance will be settled in cash. A non-executive director who steps down before the payment of the share component 
will receive all of his director’s fees for year 2014 (calculated on a pro rata basis, where applicable) in cash.

Resolution 7 – If passed, will facilitate the payment of directors’ fees during the financial year in which the fees are incurred, that is during the 
financial year ending 31 December 2015. Directors and their associates will abstain from voting on Resolution 7.

The amount of directors’ fees is computed based on the anticipated number of board and committee meetings for year 2015, assuming full 
attendance by all the non-executive directors.  The amount also caters for new or additional non-executive directors who may be appointed and 
additional ad-hoc board and committee meetings, and includes travel allowances for overseas non-executive directors.

In the event that the amount proposed is insufficient, approval will be sought at the next Annual General Meeting in year 2016 (“2016 AGM”) 
before payments are made to directors for the shortfall.

As with the directors’ fees for year 2014, the directors’ fees for year 2015 will comprise a cash component and a share component, and up 
to 30% may be paid out in the form of restricted share awards under the Sembcorp Marine Restricted Share Plan 2010, which will consist of 
the grant of fully paid shares outright with no performance or vesting conditions attached, but with a similar selling moratorium. With the new 
directors’ fee framework which can be found in the Corporate Governance Report in the Annual Report 2014, non-executive directors are required 
to hold shares (including shares obtained by other means) worth S$75,000; any excess may be sold as desired. A non-executive director can 
dispose of all of his shares one year after leaving the Board.

The cash component of the directors’ fees for year 2015 is intended to be paid half-yearly in arrears. The share component of the directors’ fees for 
year 2015 is intended to be paid after the 2016 AGM has been held. The actual number of shares to be awarded to each non-executive director 
holding office at the time of the payment is intended to be determined by reference to the volume-weighted average price of a share on the SGX-ST 
over the 14 trading days from (and including) the day on which the shares are first quoted ex-dividend after the 2016 AGM (or, if no final dividend 
is proposed at the 2016 AGM, or the resolution to approve any such final dividend is not approved at the 2016 AGM), over the 14 trading days 
immediately following the date of the 2016 AGM). The number of shares to be awarded will be rounded down to the nearest hundred and any 
residual balance will be settled in cash. A non-executive director who steps down before the payment of the share component will receive all of 
his director’s fees for year 2015 (calculated on a pro rata basis, where applicable) in cash.
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Statement pursuant to Article 54 of the Articles of Association of the Company:

Resolution 9 – This resolution is to empower the directors to issue shares in the capital of the Company and to make or grant Instruments (such 
as warrants or debentures) convertible into shares, and to issue shares in pursuance of such Instruments, up to a number not exceeding 50% 
of the total number of issued shares in the capital of the Company excluding treasury shares, of which up to 5% may be issued other than on 
a pro rata basis to shareholders. The aggregate number of shares which may be issued shall be based on the total number of issued shares in 
the capital of the Company excluding treasury shares at the time that Resolution 9 is passed, after adjusting for (a) new shares arising from the 
conversion or exercise of any convertible securities or share options or vesting of share awards which are outstanding or subsisting at the time 
that Resolution 9 is passed, and (b) any subsequent bonus issue or consolidation or subdivision of shares.

Resolution 10 – This resolution is to empower the Directors to offer and grant awards pursuant to the Sembcorp Marine Performance Share Plan 
2010 and the Sembcorp Marine Restricted Share Plan 2010 (collectively, the “Share Plans”) and to issue ordinary shares in the capital of the 
Company pursuant to the vesting of awards granted pursuant to the Share Plans provided that: (a) the aggregate number of (i) new ordinary 
shares allotted and issued and/or to be allotted and issued, (ii) existing ordinary shares (including shares held in treasury) delivered and/or to 
be delivered, and (iii) ordinary shares released and/or to be released in the form of cash in lieu of shares, pursuant to the Share Plans, shall 
not exceed 7% of the total number of issued shares in the capital of the Company (excluding treasury shares) from time to time; and (b) the 
aggregate number of ordinary shares under awards to be granted pursuant to the Share Plans during the period commencing from this Annual 
General Meeting and ending on the date of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or the date by which the next Annual General Meeting 
of the Company is required by law to be held, whichever is the earlier, shall not exceed 1% of the total number of issued shares in the capital 
of the Company (excluding treasury shares) from time to time. Approval for the adoption of the Share Plans was given by shareholders at an 
Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 20 April 2010. The grant of awards under the Share Plans will be made in accordance 
with their respective provisions.

Notes:  

1. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint not more than two (2) proxies to 
attend and vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be lodged at the registered office of the Company at 29  Tanjong Kling Road, Singapore 
628054 not later than 48 hours before the time of the Annual General Meeting. 

Personal data privacy:

By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting and/or any 
adjournment thereof, a member of the Company (i) consents to the collection, use and disclosure of the member’s personal data by the Company 
(or its agents) for the purpose of the processing and administration by the Company (or its agents) of proxies and representatives appointed for 
the Annual General Meeting (including any adjournment thereof) and the preparation and compilation of the attendance lists, minutes and other 
documents relating to the Annual General Meeting (including any adjournment thereof), and in order for the Company (or its agents) to comply 
with any applicable laws, listing rules, regulations and/or guidelines (collectively, the “Purposes”), (ii) warrants that where the member discloses 
the personal data of the member’s proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to the Company (or its agents), the member has obtained the prior consent 
of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the collection, use and disclosure by the Company (or its agents) of the personal data of such 
proxy(ies) and/or representatives for the Purposes, and (iii) agrees that the member will indemnify the Company in respect of any penalties, 
liabilities, claims, demands, losses and damages as a result of the member’s breach of warranty.

NOTICE OF BOOKS CLOSURE AND DIVIDEND PAYMENT DATE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed on 30 April 2015 to determine 
the members’ entitlements to the proposed dividend.  

Duly completed transfers of shares received by the Company’s Share Registrar, KCK Corpserve Pte Ltd, 333 North Bridge Road #08-00 KH KEA 
Building, Singapore 188721, up to 5.00 p.m. on 29 April 2015 (the “Book Closure Date”) will be registered to determine members’ entitlements 
to the proposed dividend. Subject as aforesaid, shareholders whose securities accounts with The Central Depository (Pte) Limited are credited with 
ordinary shares in the capital of the Company as at 5.00 p.m. on the Book Closure Date will be entitled to the proposed dividend.

The proposed dividend, if approved by the members at the 52nd Annual General Meeting, will be paid on 14 May 2015.
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I/We (Name) (NRIC/Passport No.)

of (Address)

being a member/members of Sembcorp Marine Ltd hereby appoint:

Name Address NRIC/Passport Number Proportion of
Shareholdings (%)

and/or (delete as appropriate)

as my/our proxy/proxies to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf and, if necessary, to demand a poll, at the 52nd Annual General Meeting of the 
Company to be held at 29 Tanjong Kling Road, Singapore 628054 on 17 April 2015 at 11.00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

(Please indicate with an “X” in the spaces provided whether you wish your vote(s) to be cast for or against the Resolutions as set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting. 
In the absence of specific directions, the proxy/proxies will vote or abstain as he/they may think fit, as he/they will on any other matter arising at the Annual General Meeting.)

No. Resolutions For Against

Ordinary Business
1 To adopt the directors’ report and accounts

2 To declare a final dividend

3 To re-elect Tan Sri Mohd Hassan Marican

4 To re-elect Mr Tang Kin Fei

5 To re-elect Mr Ron Foo Siang Guan

6 To approve directors’ fees for financial year ended 31 December 2014

7 To approve directors’ fees for financial year ending 31 December 2015

8 To re-appoint KPMG LLP as auditors and to authorise the directors to fix their remuneration

Special Business
9 To approve the renewal of share issue mandate

10 To authorise the directors to grant awards and issue shares under Sembcorp Marine’s Share Plans 

Total Number of Shares Held

Signature(s) of Member(s) or Common Seal of Member(s) Date

IMPORTANT: PLEASE READ NOTES BELOW

Notes:
1. Please insert the total number of shares held by you.  If you have shares entered against your name in the Depository Register (as defined in Section 130A of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore), you should insert that number of shares.  If you have shares 

registered in your name in the Register of Members, you should insert that number of shares.  If you have shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, you should insert the aggregate 
number of shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and registered in your name in the Register of Members.  If no number is inserted, the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies shall be deemed to relate to all the shares held by you.

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at a meeting of the Company is entitled to appoint one or two proxies to attend and vote instead of him.  A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3. Where a member appoints two proxies, the appointments shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportion of his shareholding (expressed as a percentage of the whole) to be represented by each proxy.

4. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be lodged at the registered office of the Company at 29 Tanjong Kling Road, Singapore 628054 not later than 48 hours before the time appointed for the Annual General Meeting. The sending of a proxy form by a 
shareholder does not preclude him from attending and voting in person at the Annual General Meeting if he finds that he is able to do so. In such event, the relevant proxy forms will be deemed to be revoked.

5. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in writing.  Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by a corporation, it must be executed either under its seal or under 
the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

6. A corporation which is a member may authorise by a resolution of its directors or other governing body such person as it thinks fit to act as its representative at the Annual General Meeting in accordance with Section 179 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of 
Singapore.

7. The Company shall be entitled to reject the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies if it is incomplete, improperly completed or illegible or where the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specified in the instrument 
appointing a proxy or proxies. In addition, in the case of shares entered in the Depository Register, the Company may reject any instrument appointing a proxy or proxies lodged if the member, being the appointor, is not shown to have shares entered against his 
name in the Depository Register as at 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the Annual General Meeting, as certified by The Central Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company.

PROXY FORM
IMPORTANT
1. For investors who have used their CPF moneys to buy shares in the capital of Sembcorp Marine Ltd, 

this Annual Report is forwarded to them at the request of their CPF Approved Nominees and is sent FOR 
INFORMATION ONLY.

2. This Proxy Form is not valid for use by CPF Investors and  shall be ineffective for all intents and purposes if 
used or purported to be used by them.

3. CPF Investors who wish to vote should contact their CPF Approved Nominees.

PERSONAL DATA PRIVACY
By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s), the member accepts and agrees 
to the personal data privacy terms set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting dated 1 April 2015.

Company Registration No. 196300098Z
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)



The Company Secretary
Sembcorp Marine Ltd
29 Tanjong Kling Road

Singapore 628054
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Corporate Profile
A leading global marine & offshore engineering group with over 50 years of proven 
track record

Headquartered in Singapore with a global headcount of close to 13,315 employees 
and worldwide operations spanning the key hubs of Brazil, India and United Kingdom 
with strategic presence in Indonesia, China and the United States of America

Singapore operations comprising six yards – Jurong Shipyard, Sembawang Shipyard, 
SMOE, PPL Shipyard, Jurong SML and Sembmarine Integrated Yard @ Tuas, Singapore’s 
largest integrated yard that commenced Phase I operations in August 2013

Comprehensive portfolio encompassing the full spectrum of integrated solutions 
from ship repair, shipbuilding, ship conversion, rig repair and rig building to offshore 
engineering and construction

Strong track record for quality and timely delivery as well as the ability to handle 
complex turnkey projects and repairs while meeting high standards for health, safety, 
security and environment

Well-established long-term alliances with international ship operators that provide a 
stable and growing base-load in repair and upgrade

Development and ownership of proprietary designs catering to rigs, drillships, floaters 
and vessels

Continuous research and development as well as process improvements to further raise 
operational efficiency and productivity for greater competitiveness



Sembcorp marine Ltd 
29 Tanjong Kling Road,  

Singapore 628054. Tel: (65) 6265 1766   

Fax: (65) 6265 0201 / 6261 0738 

Website: www.sembmarine.com   

Company Reg. No: 196300098Z
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